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Dear Fellow Shareholder, 
Thank you for your continued support of Blue Foundry Bancorp. The economic landscape in 2024, shaped by the Federal Reserve's 
restrictive monetary policy, presented significant challenges for community banks nationwide including our operating subsidiary, 
Blue Foundry Bank. Higher interest rates constrained asset growth as many borrowers hesitated to secure funding at elevated 
levels, while increased short-term funding costs compressed margins on loans originated in the post-pandemic, low-rate 
environment. 

Despite these headwinds, our Bank remained resilient, anchored by strong asset quality and prudent capital management. As of 
year-end 2024, ow· non-performing assets to total assets remained near historic lows at 0.25%, and our tangible equity to tangible 
assets stood at 16.1 %, reinforcing the strength of our balance sheet. 

Recognizing the opportunity presented by market conditions, we executed strategic share repurchases, acquiring 1.9 million shares 
at a weighted average price of $9.90. This initiative contributed to a 17% increase in tangible book value per share, reaching 
$14.74 at year end, enhancing shareholder value in a challenging operating environment. 

Operational efficiency remained a key focus for us in 2024. Despite inflationary pressures, our non-interest expenses increased by 
only 2%, due to disciplined cost management. Managing our largest expense categories- compensation, real estate, and technology 
-remains critical to our long-term success. 

Investing in Our People 

Our employees are our most valuable asset, and investing in their development is an investment in our future. Approximately 40% 
of our employees are frontline bankers, dedicated to delivering best-in-class service and focusing on deepening customer 
relationships. 

The remaining 60% of our workforce provides essential operational and strategic support, ensuring the seamless execution of our 
banking services. Their expertise in risk management, technology, and customer support is critical to maintaining our strong 
foundation and driving sustainable performance. 

Risk Infrastructure 

Risk management is a fundamental pillar of our institution, ensuring the Bank remains resilient in an evolving financial 
landscape. We continue to invest in our risk infrastructure and capabilities to proactively identify, assess, and mitigate risks as 
they emerge. In 2024, we strengthened our leadership team by hiring a Chief Risk Officer with extensive banking risk 
management experience. 

Optimizing Our Real Estate Portfolio 

Our branch footprint remained stable in 2024, eonsisting of 20 branch locations in addition to our administrative headquarters. 
Each branch location presents opportunities to expand market share and enhance customer relationships, reinforcing our 
commitment to community-based banking. 

Enhancing Technology for Efficiency and Growth 

Through proactive contract management and process optimization, we successfully reduced technology costs by 8% year over year. 
At the same time, we continued to invest in innovative solutions that enhance customer experience and streamline internal 
operations, ensuring we remain competitive in an evolving digital banking landscape. 
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Letter to Shareholders 

Supporting our Communities 

Focusing on the well-being of ow· communities is an important part of who we are. Our employees give their time and talent to 
serve the local neighborhoods, while the Blue Foundry Charitable Foundation provides the financial resources to support worthy 
causes throughout our communities. Since 2021, we have supported over 184 organizations in the areas of Affordable Housing, 
Education, Health and Human Services and Youth Programs with grants of approximately $1.4 million. 

Positioning for the Future 

As we move forward, ow· strategic priorities remain clear: 

• Strategic Growth: Expanding our commercial banking presence whlle maintaining strong asset quality. 

• Enhancing Profitability: Strengthening our Net Interest Margin through disciplined balance sheet management. 

• Expense Control: Leveraging technology and operational efficiencies to maintain a stable cost structure. 

• Talent & Leadership: Developing our workforce and further strengthening our leadership team. 

• Community Commitment: Supporting the communities we serve through responsible lending and engagement initiatives. 

The management team's commitment to disciplined financial management, operational efficiency, and customer-centric banking 
will position us well for the future. We remain confident in our ability to navigate the evolving banking landscape and drive 
sustainable long-term growth. 

Our Board of Directors provides outstanding direction, support and guidance. In 2024, we welcomed a new director who further 
enhances our Board by bringing substantial executive expertise in public banking as well as in cybersecurity oversight. 

On behalf of the Board of Directors, the management team and our employees, I would like to thank you for being a shareholder of 
Blue Foundry Bancorp. We appreciate your confidence, trust and commitment and we look forward to another year of progress and 
opportunity. 

II 

James D. Nesci 
President and CEO 
Member, Board of Directors 
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Blue Foundry Bancorp 19 Park Avenue 
Rutherford, New Jersey 07070 

(201) 939-5000 

Notice of Annual 
Meeting of Shareholders 
AprillO, 2025 

To Our Shareholders: 
Notice is hereby given that the 2025 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Blue Foundry Bancorp will be held via live webcast only 
on May 15, 2025, at 10:00 a.m., Eastern Time. To participate in the meeting you must register by visiting 
www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/BLFY2025 and entering the 16 digit control number included on your proxy card. If you hold 
your shares through a bank, broker or other nominee, you will need to take additional steps to participate in the meeting, as 
described in the proxy statement. 

A Proxy Card and Proxy Statement for the annual meeting are enclosed. The annual meeting is for the purpose of considering and 
acting upon: 

MEETING AGENDA BOARD RECOMMENDATION 

1. The election of the four nominees for director specified in the accompanying proxy statement; 

2. The ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP as the independent registered public 
accounting firm for the year ending December 31, 2025; 

3. Shareholder Non-Binding Proposal Recommending Sale or Merger of t he Company, if 
properly presented; and 

FOR ALL NOMINEES 

FOR 

AGAINST 

such other matters as may properly come before the annual meeting, or any adjournments thereof. The Board of Directors is not 
aware of any other business to come before the annual meeting. 

Any action may be taken on the foregoing proposals at the annual meeting on the date specified above, or on the date or dates to 
which the annual meeting may be adjourned. Shareholders of record at the close of business on March 24, 2025 are the 
shareholders entitled to vote at the annual meeting, and any adjournments thereof. 

Each shareholder is requested to sign, date and return the enclosed proxy card without delay in the enclosed postage-paid envelope. 
Any proxy given by the shareholder may be revoked at any time before it is voted. A proxy may be revoked by filing with the 
Corporate Secretary of Blue Foundry Bancorp a written revocation or a duly executed proxy card bearing a later date. Any 
shareholder present at the virtual annual meeting may revoke his or her proxy and vote personally on each matter brought before the 
annual meeting. However, if you are a shareholder whose shares are not registered in your own name, you will need additional 
documentation from your record holder in order to vote online at the annual meeting. Virtual attendance at the annual meeting will 
not in itself constitute revocation of your proxy. 

If you have any questions regarding this information or the proxy materials, please call Elyse D. Beidner, Executive Vice 
President, Chief Legal Officer and Corporate Secretary for the Company at (201) 939-5000; or Georgeson at (866) 441-6116. 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

Rutherford, New Jersey 

Elyse D. Beidner 
Corporate Secretary 

Important: the prompt return of the proxies will save the 
expense of further requests for proxies. A self-addressed 
envelope is enclosed for your convenience. No postage is 
required if mailed within the United States. 
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Annual Meeting of Shareholders 

MEETING INFORMATION 

DATE AND TIME: 

Thursday, May 15, 2025 
10:00 a.m., Eastern 'l'ime 

LOCATION: 

Virtual Meeting: 
This year's meeting is a virtual shareholders meeting at 
www. virtualshareholdermeeting.com/BLFY2025 

RECORD DA'l'E: 

March 24, 2025 

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE ANNUAL MEETING 
Why am I receiving this p roxy sta tement? 

The Board of the Company is soliciting your proxy for use at the Company's annual meeting to be held via live we beast only on 
May 15, 2025, at 10:00 a.m., Eastern Time, and at such other meeting upon any postponements or adjournments thereof. Only 
holders of record of shares at the close of business on March 24, 2025 (the "Record Date") will be entitled to notice of and to vote at 
the annual meeting or such other meeting upon any adjournments or postponements thereof. As of the Record Date, there were 
22,096,649 shares issued and outstanding, and entitled to vote, as further described in this Proxy Statement. 

We intend to mail these proxy materials, including the proxy card, on or about April 10, 2025, to all shareholders of record entitled 
to vote at the annual meeting. 
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Proxy Statement 

What proposals are to be presented at the Annual Meeting and what are the Board's voting 
recommendations? 

As described in further detail later in this Proxy Statement, the pw·pose of the annual meeting is to consider and vote upon the 
following proposals. The Board's recommendation on each of the proposals is indicated below. 

PROPOSAL 

Managemen t Proposals 

PROPOSAL 1 

PROP OSAL2 

Shareholder Proposal 

PROPOSAL3 

Election of four nominees for director for 
a term to end as of the 2027 annual 
meeting and until their successors are 
duly elected and qualified. 

Ratification of the appointment of 
KPMG LLP as the Company's 
independent registered public 
accounting firm for the fiscal year 
ending December 31,2025. 

Shareholder non-binding proposal 
recommending sale or merger of the 
Company. 

BOARD 
RECOMMENDATION 

FOR ALL NOMINEES 

FOR 

AGAINST 

As of the date of the Notice of Annual Meeting, we knew of no other matte1·s to be presented at the annual meeting. 

How do I vote? 

The Company encourages shareholders to fill out and return the enclosed proxy card or vote by proxy via telephone or the Internet 
as instructed on your proxy card in advance of the Annual Meeting, even if you plan to attend the virtual Annual Meeting. 

The Company's Cettificate of Incorporation provides that, subject to ce1tajn exceptions, record owners of the Company's common 
stock that is beneficially owned by a person who beneficially owns in excess of 10% of the Company's outstanding shares are not 
entitled to any vote in respect of the shares held in excess of the 10% limit. 

What is the required vote to approve each proposal? 

In accordance with the bylaws of the Company, directors are elected by a plurality of votes cast. Proxies marked ''WITHHELD" 
and broker non-votes will have no effect on the election of a director. 

As to the ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for the year ending 
December 31, 2025, by checking the appropriate box, a shareholder may: (i) vote FOR the ratification; (ii) vote AGAINST the 
ratification; or (iii) ABSTAIN from voting on the matter. The ratification of this matter shall be determined by a majority of the 
votes cast on the matter. Broker non-votes and abstentions will not affect the outcome of the vote. 

As to the approval of the shareholder proposal, by checking the appropriate box, a shareholder may: (i) vote FOR the proposal; 
(ii) vote AGAINST the proposal; or (iii) ABSTAIN from voting on the matter. The approval of this matter shall be determined by a 
majority of the votes cast on the matter. Broker non-votes and abstentions will not affect the outcome of the vote. 

How many shares must be present to conduct the Annual Meeting? 

The presence in person or by proxy of holders of a majority of the total number of outstanding shares of common stock entitled to 
vote is necessary to constitute a quorum at the annual meeting. Abstentions and broker non-votes will be counted for purposes of 
determining that a quorum is present. A broker non-vote, as further explained below, occurs when a broker holding shares for a 
beneficial owner does not vote on a particular proposal because the broker does not have discretionary voting power for that 
particular item and has not received instructions from the beneficial owner. 
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What is the .difference between lwlding shares as a "shareholder of record" and as a "beneficial owner''? 

If your shares are registered in your name on the Record Date, you are a shareholder of record. When you properly vote in 
accordance with the instructions provided on the proxy card, you are instructing the named proxies to vote your shares in the 
manner you indicate on your proxy. 

If your shares are held in the name of your bank, broker or other nomjnee (also referred to herein as a "Broker"), whlch is usually 
the case if you hold your shares in a brokerage or similar account, your shares are held in "street name." Your Broker is the 
shareholder of record for your shares. As the holder of record, only your Broker is authorized to vote or grant a proxy for your 
shares. If your shares are held in "street name," you should follow the instructions on your voting instruction form and provide 
specific instructions to your Rroker on how to vote the shares they hold for you. 

What is a "Broker Non-Vote"? 

A broker non-vote occurs when a Broker submits a proxy on behalf of a beneficial owner for the annual meeting but does not vote 
on a particular proposal because such Broker does not have discretionary voting power with respect to that proposal and has not 
received voting instructions from the beneficial owner. Brokers have discretionary authority to vote on routine matters, such as the 
ratification of auditors, but do not have discretionary authority to vote on non-routine matters. Broker non-votes (like abstentions 
and withheld votes) are counted as present for purposes of determining a quorum. 

Such Broker has the discretion to vote your shares only on "routine" matters without your voting instructions, but not on 
non-routine matters such as Proposal 1 (Election of Directors) and Proposal 3 (Shareholder Proposal). Proposal 2 (Ratification of 
the appointment ofKPMG LLP as the Company's independent auditors for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2025) is considered 
a routine matter. For the proposals to be presented at the Annual Meeting that are considered "non-routine", Brokers will not have 
discretionw;y cwtlwrity to vote your shares with respect to those proposals. Therefore, it is important that you instruct your Broker 
how to vote your shares. We encourage you to instruct your Broker to vote your shares by following the instructions shown on the 
enclosed voting instruction form. 

If you are a shareholder of record with respect to shares on the Record Date, you may vote by one of the following four options: 

• Vote via the Internet. Go to the web address specified on the enclosed proxy card and follow the instructions indicated on 
the site. Your vote by Internet authorizes the named proxies to vote your shares in the same manner as if you had signed, 
dated and! returned a proxy card. 

• Vote by Telephone. On a touch-tone phone, dial the number indicated on the enclosed proxy card and follow the voice 
prompts. Have your proxy card available for reference when you call, and follow the voting instructions to vote your shares. 
Your vote by telephone authorizes the named proxies to vote your shares in the same manner as if you had signed, dated and 
retmned a proxy card. 

• Vote by Proxy Card. Complete, sign and date the enclosed proxy card and return it in the postage pre-paid envelope 
provided. 

• Vote in Person. Complete a ballot at the virtual annual meeting. 

If you submit a proxy card to us without indicating instructions with respect to specific proposals, we will vote your shares 
consistent with the recommendations of our Board stated in this Proxy Statement. If the proxy card is signed and returned without 
direction, your shares will be voted FOR the director nominees proposed by the Board, and FOR Proposal 2 and AGAINST 
Proposal 3. If any other matters are properly presented at the annual meeting for consideration, then the persons named as the 
Company's designated proxies will be voted as determined by the Board. 

Even if you plan to attend the virtual annual meeting, we encourage you to vote your shares in advance via the Internet, by 
telephone or by signing, dating and returning your proxy card. 

If your shares are held by a Broker in "street name," please follow the instructions you receive from your Broker to vote your 
shares. You may need to contact your Broker to determine whether you will be able to vote electronically via the Internet or by 
telephone. If you want to vote at the Annual Meeting, you may visit www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/BLFY2025; press the 
"Attend Meeting" button and follow the instructions. You may be instructed to obtain a legal proxy from your broker, bank or other 
nominee and to submit a copy in advance of the meeting. Further instructions will be provided to you via email. 
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If you return your proxy by mail, please ensw·e you leave enough time for yow· proxy to be mailed and received by the inspe·ctor of 
election. Also note that if your shares are held through a Broker, such entity may have even earlier deadlines by which to submit 
your vote. Please follow their instructions accordingly. 

Whether or not you plan to attend the virtual annual meeting, please vote promptly by Internet or telephone by following the 
instructions set forth on the enclosed proxy card or by completing, signing, dating and retuTning the enclosed proxy card in the 
postage-paid envelope provided. Your promptness in voting using the proxy card will assist in the expeditious and orderly 
processing of the proxy and will assure that you are represented at the virtual annual meeting even if you cannot attend the 
virtual meeting. 

We are encouraging shareholders to submit their proxies electronically (by Internet or by telephone) if 
possible. 

If you return your proxy card by mail or vote by telephone or Internet, you may nevertheless attend the virtual annual meeting 
and vote your shares in person. 

What do I need for admission to attend the Annual Meeting? 

If you were a shareholder as of the close of business on March 24, 2025 you may attend the meeting. As a registered shareholder, 
you received a proxy card with this proxy statement. The proxy card contains instructions on how to attend the virtual annual 
meeting, including the website along with your control number. You will need your control number for access. 

If you hold your shares through a broker, bank or other nominee (that is, in street name), you will receive instructions from your 
broker, bank or nominee that you must follow in order to submit your voting instructions and have your shares voted at the annual 
meeting. If you want to vote at the Annual Meeting, you may visit www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/BLFY2025; press the 
"Attend Meeting" button and follow the instructions. You may be instructed to obtain a legal proxy from your broker, bank or other 
nominee and to submit a copy in advance of the meeting. Further instructions will be provided to you via email. 

In order to attend the Annual Meeting, you must visit www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/BLFY2025. Upon entry of your 
16-digit contro·l number and other required information, you will receive further instructions via email that provides you access to 
the Annual Meeting and to vote and submit questions during the Annual Meeting. 

As part of the attendance process, you must enter the control number located on your proxy card. If you are a beneficial owner of 
shares register ed in the name of a broker, bank or other nominee, you may also need to provide the registered name on your 
account and the name of your broker, bank or other nominee as part of the attendance process. 

Only the latest-dated, validly executed proxy that you submit will be counted - any proxy may be revoked at any time prior to its 
exercise at the annual meeting by following the instructions under "Can I change my vote?" below. If you have any questions 
regarding this information or the proxy materials, please call Elyse D. Beidner , Executive Vice President, Chief 
Legal Office r and Corporate Secretary for the Company at (201) 939-5000; or Georgeson a t (866) 441-6116. 

What if I return a proxy card but do not make specific choices? 

If you return a signed and dated proxy card without marking any voting selections, your shares will be voted FOR each of the four 
nominees for director, FOR ratification of the appointment ofKPMG LLP as the independent registered public accounting firm for 
the Company for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2025 and AGAINST the shareholder proposal that is to be presented at the 
annual meeting. If any other matter is properly presented at the annual meeting, your proxy holder (one of the individuals named 
on your proxy card) will vote you r shares as determined by a majority of the Board. 

Can I change my vote? 

If your shares are registered in your name, you may revoke your proxy and change your vote prior to the completion of voting at 
the Annual Meeting by: 

4 

• submitting a valid, later dated proxy card in a timely manner that is received no later than the time of the commencement of 
the annual meeting; 
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• submitting a later dated vote by telephone or through the Internet in a timely manner (and in any event no later than the 
commencement of the annual meeting); 

• giving written notice of such revocation to the Company's Corporate Secretary, which written notice is received prior to the 
time of the commencement of the annual meeting; or 

• attending and voting at the virtual annual meeting (although attendance at the annual meeting will not by itself revoke a 
proxy without also voting). 

If your shares are held by a Broker in "street name" and you wish to revoke a proxy, you should contact your Broker and follow its 
procedures for changing your voting instructions. You also may vote at the virtual. annual meeting to revoke an earlier proxy if you 
provide an executed proxy from your Broker indicating that you were the beneficial owner of the shares on the Record Date, and 
that such Broker is giving you its proxy to vote the shares. 

If you submit more than one proxy, only the latest dated validly executed proxy that you submit will count. 

How can I find out the results of the voting at the annual meeting? 

We expect to report the preliminary voting results of the annual meeting within four business days following the annual meeting 
in a Current Report on Form 8-K. Once the independent inspector of election has determined the final voting results of the annual 
meeting, we will file an amendment to the Current Report on Form 8-K reporting the final voting results within four business days 
following such determination. 

Who will pay the costs of solicitation? 

The Company will pay all expenses in connection with the solicitation of proxies for the annual meeting. To aid in the solicitation 
of proxies in conjunction with the annual meeting, the Company has retained Georgeson and will pay a base fee of $13,500, plus 
reimbursement of reasonable out-of-pocket expenses and certain incremental costs, for its proxy solicitation services. Our directors, 
executive officers and other employees may solicit proxies by mail, personally, by telephone, by press release, by facsimile 
transmission or by other electronic means. No additional compensation will be paid to our directors, executive officers or employees 
for such services. 

Georgeson may ask brokerage houses, banks and other custodians and nominees whether other persons are beneficial owners of 
the Company's common stock. If so, the Company will reimburse brokers, banks and other custodians and nominees for their costs 
of sending our proxy materials to the beneficial owners of our common stock. 

What ifl own shares ofthe Company via the ESOP or the 401(k) Plan? 

If you participate in the Blue Foundry Bank Employee Stock Ownership Plan (the "ESOP"), you will receive a proxy card for the 
ESOP that reflects all of the shares you may direct the trustee to vote on your behalf under the ESOP. Under the terms of the 
ESOP, the ESOP trustee votes all shares held by the ESOP, but each ESOP participant may direct the trustee how to vote the 
proportionate interest of shares of our common stock allocated to his or her account. The ESOP trustee, subject to the terms of the 
trust agreement, will vote all unallocated shares of our common stock held by the ESOP and allocated shares for which no voting 
instructions are received in the same proportion as shares for which it has received timely voting instructions, subject to a 
determination that such vote is in the best inter est of ESOP participants. If you hold shares of common stock in the 401(k) Plan, 
you will receive a proxy card that reflects all shares that you may direct the 401(k) Plan trustee to vote on your behalf under the 
401(k) Plan. Under the terms of the 401(k) Plan, you may direct the 401(k) Plan trustee how to vote the shares allocated to your 
account. If the 401(k) Plan trustee does not receive your voting instructions, the 401(k) Plan trustee will be instructed to vote your 
shares in the same proportion as the voting instructions received from other 401(k) Plan participants. The deadline for returning 
your ESOP and 401(k) proxy card is May 8, 2025 at 11:59 p.m., Eastern Time. The telephone and internet voting deadline for 
ESOP participants is also 11:59 p.m., Eastern Time, on May 8, 2025. 
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Why did I receive multiple copies of the proxy card and proxy materials? 

If you receive more than one package of our proxy materials including the proxy card, it may mean that you have multiple 
accounts holding your common shares. These may include accounts with our transfer agent and accounts with a Broker. In order to 
vote aJl of the shares held by you in multiple accounts, you will need to vote the shares held in each account separately. Please 
follow the voting instructions provided on the proxy card and any voting instruction card from your Broker that you received to 
ensure that all of your shares a re voted. 

How can I get assistance with questions relating to the proxy or voting? 

If you have any questions regarding this information or the proxy materials, please call Elyse D. Beidner, Executive Vice 
President, Chief Legal Officer and Corporate Secretary for the Company at (201) 939-5000; or Georgeson at (866) 441-6116. 
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PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS AND STOCK 
OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT 
PRINCIPAL HOLDERS 

Proxy Statement 

Persons and groups who beneficially own in excess of 5% of the shares of common stock are required to ftle certain reports witth the 
SEC regarding such ownership. The following table sets forth, as of March 24, 2025, the shares of common stock beneficially owned 
by our directors and executive officers, individually and as a group, and by each person who was known to us as the beneficial 
owner of more than 5% of the outstanding shares of common stock. The mailing address for each of our directors and executive 
officers is 19 Park Avenue, Rutherford, New Jersey 07070. 

Persons Owning Greater than 5% 

T. Rowe Price Investment Management, Inc. 
100 East Pratt Street 
Baltimore, MD 21201 

Blue Foundry Bank Employee Stock Ownership Plan Trust 
19 Park Avenue 
Rutherford, NJ 07070 

Driehaus Capital Management LLC 
25 East Erie Street 
Chicago, IL 60611 

BlackRock, Inc. 
55 East 52nd Street 
New York NY 10055 

Directors 

J. Christopher Ely 

Robet·t T. Goldstein 

Kenneth Grimbilas 

Elizabeth Varki Jobes, Esq. 

Patrick H. Kinzler 

John F. Kuntz, Esq. 

Mirella Lang 

James D. Nesci 

Jonathan M. Shaw 

Executive Officers who are not Directors 

Kelly Pecoraro 

Aleksander Malkiman 

All directors and executive officers as a group 
(15 ersons) 

* Less than 1%. 

Shares of Common 
Stock Beneficially 
Owned as of the 
Record Date<tl 

2,846,896!3) 

2,259,563(4) 

1,707,776!5) 

1,690,501<6) 

110,933<7) 

118,454<8) 

143,749<9) 

31,12!)<10) 

124,897(11) 

21,255 

91,33202) 

424,82703) 

121 046(14) 

127,92005) 

46,88706) 

Percent of Shares 
of Common Stock 

Outstanding<2J 

12.88% 

10.23% 

7.73% 

7.65% 

... 

* 
* 

* 
* 
.,. 

* 
1.92% 

* 

* 
* 

5.34% 

(1) In accordance with Rule 13d· 3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, a person or entity is deemed to be the beneficial 
owner, for purposes of this table, of any shares of Blue Foundry Bancorp common stock if they have shared voting or investment power with 
respect to such common stock or has a right to acquire beneficial ownership at any time within 60 days from March 24, 2025. As used herein, 
"voting power" is the power to vote or direct the voting of shares and "investment power" is the power to dispose or direct the disposition of 
shares. Except as otherwise noted, ownership is direct and the named individuals and group exercise sole voting and investment power over 
the shares of Blue Foundry Bancorp common stock 

(2) Based on a total of 22,096,649 shares of common stock outstanding as of March 24, 2025. 
(3) As disclosed in Schedule 13F filed with the SEC on February 14, 2025. 

(4) As disclosed in Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on February 14, 2025. 
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(5) As disclosed in Schedule 13F filed with the SEC on February 14, 2025. 
(6) As disclosed in Schedule 13F filed with the SEC on February 7, 2025. 

(7) Includes 10,366 shares held in an individual retirement account and 42,784 vested options. 
(8) Includes 8,500 shares held in an individual retirement account, 27,887 shares held in a 401(k) Plan and 42,784 vested options. 

(9) Includes 41,117 shares held in an individual retirement account and 42,784 vested options. 
(10) Includes 9,627 vested options. 
(11) Includes 4,853 shares held in individual retirement accounts, 3,349 shares held in a Roth individual retirement accounts and 42,784 vested 

options. 

(12) Includes 42,784 vested options. 

(13) Includes 36,882 shares held in an individual retirement account, 8,500 shares held in our 401(k) Plan, 9,375 shares allocated under the Blue 
Foundry Bank's ESOP, 129,029 unvested restricted stock awards, 57,045 unvested performance awards and 162,986 vested options. 

(14) Includes 14,238 shares held in an individual retirement account, 9,100 shares held by his spouse's individual retirement account, 116 !held as 
custodian for his child and 42,784 vested options. 

(15) Includes 4,086 shares allocated under the Blue Foundry Bank's ESOP, 39,583 unvested restricted stock awards, 22,500 unvested 
perfor·mance awards and 50,572 vested options. 

(16) Includes 3,881 shares allocated under the Blue Foundry Bank's ESOP, 15,922 unvested restricted stock awards, 6,250 unvested performance 
awards and 19,656 vested options. 
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Our Hoard of Directors is comprised of nine members. Our Hylaws provide for declassification of the Hoard such that directors 
whose terms expire at this 2025 Annual Meeting shall be elected for a two-year term so that their terms expire at the 2027 annual 
meeting of shareholders and until such directors' successors shall have been elected and qualified. 

Four directors have been nominated for election at the Annual Meeting to serve for a two-year period and until their respective 
successors shall have been elected and qualified. The Board of Directors has nominated Elizabeth Varki Jobes, Patrick Kinzler, 
Mirella Lang and James D. Nesci to serve as directors for two-year terms. Each nominee is currently a director of Blue Foundry 
Ban corp. 

The following sets forth cettain information regarding the nominees, the other current members of our Board of Directors, and 
executive officers who are not directors, including the terms of office of board members. Shares represented by properly executed 
proxies will be voted in favor of these persons unless contrary instructions are provided. If a nominee is unable to serve, the shares 
represented by all such proxies will be voted for the election of such substitute as the Board of Directors may determine. At this 
time, the Board of Directors knows of no reason why any of the nominees might be unable to serve, if elected. Except as indicated 
herein, there are no arrangements or understandings between any nominee or continuing director and any other person pursuant 
to which such nominee or continuing director was selected. Age information is as of December 31, 2024, and term as a director 
includes service with Blue Foundry Bank (the "Bank"). 

With respect to directors and nominees, the biographies contain information regarding the person's business experience and the 
experiences, qualifications, attributes and skills that caused the Board of Directors to determine that the person should serve as a 
director. Each director of Blue Foundry Ban corp is also a director of the Bank. 
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DIRECTOR INFORMATION 
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Tenure (years) 28 10 28 2 13 1 5 6 15 

Experience 
I 

Finance & Ac counting: Experience in finance, 
accounting or audit .Q01j ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... 

Financial Ser vices: Experience in financial @) ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... services, capital markets, investment banking 
~ ~ 

Innovation, T echnology, and Cyber: Experience~ 

1 1 
with information technology, cyber security or ..... ..... ..... ..... 
digital technology _ 

Market Knowledge: Knowledge of the markets 
we serve, including commercial real estate and 
small business ~ ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... 

Executive Ex perience I Lead ership: o 0 o Experience as an executive or leader of a public or C?'O ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... 
private organization 

Risk: Experience with risk management & I ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... 

Legal, Regula tory, or Compliance: Experience 

~ with legal, regulatory, or compliance related ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... 
matters 

Huma n Capital Management: Experience with 
human resources matters including diversity, 
equity, and inclusion li1 ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... 

-- - -
Phila nthropic I Charitable: Community 
involvement or engagement with non-profit 
organizations 

@) ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... ..... 
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DIRECTORS 
The Board of Directors currently consists of nine (9) members and is divided into three classes, with one class of directors elected 
each year until 2027 when the Board becomes declassified. The following table states our directors' names, their ages as of 
December 31, 2024, the years when they began serving as directors of Blue Foundry Bank and the years when their current terms 
expire. 

Position(s) Held With Current 
Blue Foundry Banco~ and Blue Director Term 

Name FoundryBa Age Since Expires 

J. Christopher Ely Vice Chairman 68 1997 2026 

Robert T. Goldstein Director 62 2015 2026 

Kenneth Grimbilas Chairman of the Board 71 1997 2027 

Elizabeth Varki Jobes, Esq. Director 58 2023 2025 

Patrick H. Kinzler Director 66 2012 2025 

John F. Kuntz, Esq. Director 69 2024 2026 

Mirella Lang Director 46 2020 2025 

James D. Nesci President, Chief Executive Officer and Director 52 2019 2025 

Jonathan M. Shaw Director 59 2010 2027 
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The nominees for director are: 

Elizabeth Varki Jobes, Esq. 
Elizabeth Jobes is Chief Compliance Officer at Immunocore, having joined in January 
2024. Most recently, Ms. Jobes worked at Amryt Pharmaceuticals which was sold in 2023. 
She has also had Compliance Officer roles at EMD Serono, Spark Therapeutics, Auxilium 
Pharmaceuticals, Adolor Inc. and Cephalon Inc. Ms. Jobes is a board member of Blue 
Foundry Bank and a past board member of Eyam Vaccines and Immunotherapeutics, and 
Ampio Pharmaceuticals. 

Ms. Jobes obtained her J.D. from Rutgers School of Law and a Bachelor of Arts in Foreign 
Service and International Politics from Pennsylvania State University, State College PA. 

Ms. Jobes is a member of the South Asian Bar Association and is a past board member of 
Women's Way and Support Center for Child Advocates. 

Ms. Jobes' years of combined legal and compliance experience leading large, global 
companies, as well as her service on a public board, brings additional perspective to our 
Board of Directors. 

Patrick H. Kinzler 

12 

Patrick H. Kinzler has been Managing Principal at HLW International LLP, an 
architectural firm, since 2006. His areas of responsibility include Finance, Legal, and 
Information Technology. Mr. Kinzler served as Treasurer of KPMG Consulting I 
BearingPoint from January 2000 until December 2005. From 1997 until 2000, Mr. Kinzler 
served as Assistant Treasurer of SmithKline Beecham. Mr. Kinzler began his corporate 
career in 1986 with PNC Financial Corp., first in the credit training program and then as a 
Corporate Banker in PNC's New York office. His last position was a Manager of Large 
Corporate Banking in the New J ersey marketplace. Mr. Kinzler received a Bachelors 
degree in Business Administration and Accounting from Shippensburg State University 
and an MBA in Finance from Temple University. 

Mr. Kinzler's valuable experience in banking and corporate treasury greatly assists the 
Board of Directors with its assessment of our risk management efforts and operational 
needs. 
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Mirella Lang 

James D. Nesci 

Proposal 1: E lection of Directors 

Mirella Lang leads institutional capital formation at ITE Management, an alternative 
asset management firm. Ms. Lang is a business development leader with over 20 years of 
experience in institutional investment management, investment banking and financial 
institutions across the US. She was most recently a Managing Director on AQR's Business 
Development team, leading fundraising and investor relations with large institutional 
investors and strategic clients of the firm. Prior to AQR, Ms. Lang was a Director in the 
Financial Institutions Group in the investment banking division at UBS, and earlier at 
Merrill Lynch & Co. While in investment banking, Ms. Lang advised banks, asset 
management and insurance companies on corporate initiatives, such as M&A, capital 
raising, restructuring, and leveraged buyouts. 

She earned a Bachelor of Science in Accounting from Washington & Lee University, 
summa cum laude and Phi Beta Kappa, and received an MBA from the University of 
California at Berkeley's Haas School of Business. Ms. Lang serves on the Board of ASSIST, 
a non-profit organization focused on high school exchange education for exceptionally 
gifted international students. 

Ms. Lang's experience with investment management, investment banking and the 
financial institutions industry brings valuable skills to our board. 

James D. Nesci serves as President and Chief Executive Officer of Blue Foundry Bank, a 
position he has held since 2018. In addition, he is a board member of the New Jersey 
Bankers Association. 

Mr. Nesci has been instrumental in developing the Blue Foundry brand. Prior to his role at 
Blue Foundry Bank, he served as Head of National Sales for TD Bank's $20 billion U.S. 
wealth management business. Before joining TD Bank, Mr. Nesci served as Executive Vice 
President and Chief Wealth Management Officer of Provident Bank and was President of 
Beacon Trust, a wholly owned subsidiary of Provident Bank. Prior to this, Mr. Nesci was 
Chief Operating Officer with Wilmington Trust Company, National Wealth Management. 

Mr. Nesci earned two separate MBAs from Columbia Business School and the London 
Business Sehool, respectively, as well as a Bachelors degree in Business Administration in 
Finance from Hofstra University in New York. He also has received his Fellowship 
certificate from the National Association of Corporate Directors (NACD). 

Mr. Nesci's positions as President and Chief Executive Officer foster clear accountability, 
effective decision-making, a clear and direct channel of communication from senior 
management to the full Board of Directors, and alignment on corporate strategy. 

f.>.. THE BOARD UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS A VOTE FOR THE ELECTION OF 
~ ALL NOMINEES. 
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The following directors have terms ending at the 2026 Annual Meeting of Shareholders: 

J. Christopher Ely 
J. Christopher Ely has been a Director of Blue Foundry Bank for over 25 years. Mr. Ely, a 
licensed real estate agent, is President of One Madison Management Corp., a real estate 
management and consulting firm that serves the needs of residential, commercial and 
industrial property owners in Northern New J ersey. 

He received a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration/Accounting from 
Montclair State College, began his career with Price Waterhouse and Co. and earned his 
Certified Public Accounting license. He serves as an Assistant Treasurer for the Glen 
Ridge Congregational Church. 

Mr. Ely chairs the Audit Committees of both the Company and Blue Foundry Bank. 

Mr. Ely provides the Board of Directors with extensive knowledge of accounting, real estate 
and small business management matters. 

Robert T. Goldstein 

14 

Robert T. Goldstein currently serves as the Group Benefit Specialist at Astorino Financial 
Group, Inc. having, previously been an Investment Advisory Representative at the firm. 
Prior to those positions, he was the President and Owner of R.J. Goldstein & Associates, 
Inc., an employee benefits consulting and brokerage firm, which he sold to World 
Insurance Associates, LLC (WIA) in 2017. He remains a Principal at WIA. 

Mr. Goldstein received his Bachelor of Science in Mathematics from Fairfield University. 
He also has received his Fellowship certificate from the NACD. 

Mr. Goldstein offers a valuable perspective and experience with respect to human capital 
and employee benefits matters as well as with respect to developing a successful business. 
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John F. Kuntz, Esq. 
John F. Kuntz, Esq. joined the Board in July 2024. Prior to joining the Company, 
Mr. Kuntz held many executive roles at Provident Bank and its parent company, Provident 
Financial Services, Inc. During his tenure there, he served as General Counsel and 
Corporate Secretary of the parent company. Most recently, he served as Senior Executive 
Vice President and Chief Administrative Officer of Provident Bank where he managed 
several departments, including Loan and Deposit Operations, Credit, Facilities, Marketing, 
Human Resources and Information Technology. Mr. Kuntz participated in a number of 
transactions while at Provident, including taking that bank public and acquiring five 
banks and three wealth management companies. Mr. Kuntz also served as corporate 
secretary of The Provident Bank Foundation and wa.s a member of the Board of Directors 
of Beacon Trust Company, a full-service wealth management company. 

Mr. Kuntz was a member of the American Bankers Association General Counsels Group 
and the Society for Corporate Governance. He obtained his J.D. from New York Law 
School, his B.A. degree from Fairfield University and is licensed to practice law in both 
New Jersey and New York. Through the NACD, Director Kuntz has been certified in 
cybersecurity oversight by Carnegie Mellon University Software Engineering Institute. 

Mr. Kuntz's extensive knowledge and experience in financial, legal, operational and 
administrative matters and his invaluable leadership skills provides additional perspective 
and depth to the Board of Directors. 
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The following directors have terms ending at the 2027 Annual Meeting of Shareholders: 

Kenneth Grimbilas 
Kenneth Grimbilas is the Chairman ofBlue Foundry Boards of Directors and has served as 
a Director for over 20 years. Mr. Grimbilas is the Chief Executive Officer ofTornqvist, Inc., 
a boutique fabrication and machine shop that has served many clients in the 
pharmaceuticals, government, transportation, aerospace, entertainment, and consumer 
goods indust1ies. In addition, Mr. Grimbilas has been a member of the board of the Chilton 
Memorial H ospital Foundation, now Chilton Medical Center, part of Atlantic Health. 

Mr. Grimbilas' success in developing and sustaining a manufacturing business in New 
Jersey provides the Board of Directors with knowledge of business and operational matters 
as well as the Northeastern New Jersey market area. 

Jonathan M. Shaw 

18 

Jonathan M. Shaw is President and Owner of Salon Development Corp, a regional chain of 
hair salons founded in 1964, and President and Owner of Lemon Tree Development, the 
national franchisor of Lemon Tree Hair Salons. Mr. Shaw received a Bachelor of Science 
from Syracuse University. He also has received his NACD Fellowship certificate. 

Mr. Shaw's experience as a business owner and entrepreneur offers a valuable perspective 
on develop:ing a successful business as well as the challenges and risks an organization 
may face as it grows its product offerings and markets into new areas. 

P.roxy Statement 



Proposal 1: E lection of Directors 

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS WHO ARE NOT DIRECTORS 
Kelly Pecoraro, age 56, has been our Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since May 2022. Prior to joining Blue 
Foundry Bank, Ms. Pecoraro served as Executive Vice President, Chief Accounting Officer and Comptroller from January 2019 
until April 2022 at Investors Bank, Short Hills, New Jersey, when Investors Bank was acquired by Citizens Financial Group, Inc. 
Ms. Pecoraro joined Investors Bank in May 2005 as part of the Financial Reporting team, holding various positions prior to 
becoming the Chief Accounting Officer in January 2010. Prior to joining Investors Bank, Ms. Pecoraro served as an audit 
professional at KPMG LLP. Ms. Pecoraro received a Bachelor's degree in Accounting from St. Peter's College. 

Elyse D. Beidner, age 71, has been our Executive Vice President and Chief Legal Officer since 2004. P1ior to joining Blue Foundry 
Bank, Ms. Beidner gained more than 25 years of experience providing legal support for various financial institutions including JP 
Morgan Chase and Bank of America. She earned her Bachelor's degree in French and Spanish from Goucher College, her J uris 
Doctor degree from Widener University School of Law, and her Masters in Corporate Law from New York University School of 
Law. 

Alek sander Malk iman, age 50, has been our Executive Vice President and Chief Technology Officer since March 2022. P1·ior to 
joining Blue Foundry Bank, Mr. Malkiman acted as the Executive Director and Head of IT Infrastructure and Security at CIFC 
Asset Management and as Director of Global Infrastructure and Client Services at lTG. Mr. Malkiman earned a Bachelor of 
Science in Computer and Information Science from Brooklyn College, and later earned an MBA in Information Systems 
Management and Financial Management from the Lubin School of Business at Pace University. 

Keith D. Owes , age 49, began his role as Executive Vice President and Chief Risk Officer in September 2024. Prior to joining Blue 
Foundry Bank, he acted as Chief Risk Officer at the Bancorp Bank, NA and held various senior management positions at Merrill 
Lynch and Bank of America. Mr. Owes brings over 20 years of extensive experience in enterprise risk and organization 
management, coupled with comprehensive, hands-on experience in process optimization, third-party vendor management, 
cybersecurity and strategic planning and implementation. Mr. Owes received a Bachelor's degree in Business Management from 
Howard University. 

Thomas Packwood, age 59, has been our Senior Vice President and Chief Audit Executive since 2011 . Prior to joining Blue 
Foundry Bank, Mr. Packwood held senior positions at Deloitte, U.S.B. Holding Co., USA Eank, and RSM US LLP. Mr. Packwood 
received a Bachelor's degree in Accounting from Villanova University and is a Certified Public Accountant. Additionally, he 
invented and implemented a patented quarterly Risk Assessment and Management System. 

Acela Roselle, age 64, has been ow· Executive Vice President and Human Resources Director since 1999. Ms. Roselle attended 
The Wood Business School in New York and obtained a SHRM PHR Certification through Fairleigh Dickinson University in 2000. 
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Corporate Responsibility Matters 
We recognize and are committed to our corporate responsibility to conduct business in a sustainable and appropriate manner. We 
deeply care about the communities in which we operate. We believe this commitment and focus supports long-term shareholder 
value. 

The Bank conducts its business activities with a view to ensuring that the interests of all stakeholders, including shareholders, 
employees, customers, and communities, are considered. Sustainability matters are discussed at the Board's Nominating and 
Corporate Governance Committee, the Bank's Executive Leadership Committee and the management Sustainability CommHtee, 
where ideas and actions are generated and monitored. The Company also coordinates regularly with the Blue Foundry Chat·itahle 
Foundation to provide joint participation in community service projects. 

The Bank has traditionally prioritized a highly engaged and diverse employee base serving its communities and customers in a 
safe, prudent and risk-disciplined manner. It has developed robust enterprise risk management and compliance functions that 
include cybersecurity and privacy policies. It maintains strong and proactive relationships with its state and federal regulators. 

We have continued to focus on several key priorities as part of our sustainability initiatives: 

• Business ethics are of manifest importance to us. Every director and employee is expected to comply with the Code of Conduct 
and recertifies their compliance on an annual basis. 

• Safeguarding the privacy of customer data has always and continues to be a significant focus. The Bank continues to allocate 
significant resources to the most current technology, including data protection and training and testing related to cyber 
security and data privacy. To that end, we have implemented a strong, multi-layered perimeter to safeguard customer data. 
We regularly conduct tests to ensure that staff remain vigilant with respect to Company and customer information privacy. In 
addition, we regularly monitor the adequacy of our consumer fmancial protection measures. 

• To combat cybersecurity threats, training and education is frequently provided to the Board as well as employees so that they 
remain aware of possible threats to Company and customer information privacy. Through the National Association of 
Corporate Directors, Director Kuntz, the newest member of the Company's Board of Directors, has been certified in 
cybersecurity oversight from the Carnegie Mellon University Software Engineering Institute. 

• To protect our customers and all constituents in our communities, our Security Department officers regularly address 
fmancial fraud, providing suggestions and methods for safeguarding customers' financial assets. 

• Diversity of the Board is important. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee continually assesses the diverse 
attributes (such as geographic, professional, demographic) as well as skill sets of the existing Board and identifies 
opportunities for expanding its skill set. Board-level discussions remain a continuing agenda item. While the Committee does 
not have a formal policy or specific guidelines regarding board diversity, applicable laws, rules, and listing standards are 
monitored regularly to ensure the Board's ongoing compliance. 

Being a "solid citizen" was and has always been an integral part of the Bank's core principles. We have always operated with our 
customers, communities, employees and shareholders top of mind: the Company eliminated corporate-owned vehicles; digitized 
records enterprise-wide to reduce the amount of paper utilized; minimized reliance on printers through increased use of 
technology; converted to electronic statements to reduce the number of paper statements generated and disseminated to customers 
thereby saving paper and emissions from equipment and delivery channels; and increased waste-management and recycling efforts 
in its premises . 

The administrative headquarters were designed with a focus specifically geared toward sustainability. Similar initiatives have 
been utilized in all branch builds and renovations. The Bank continuously seeks to optimize branch strategy by determining the 
appropriate physical footprint while offering an ever-expanding roster of digital banking seTvices to the communities. 

HUMAN CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 
The s uccess of ouT business is highly dependent on our employees; they are dedicated to OUT mission to inspire and enable the 
communities we serve to achieve financial stability and success. We seek to hire and retain well qualified employees to sustain and 
build on our culture of service and performance. Our selection and promotion processes do not discriminate as we focus on placing 
the most qualified candidate in the appropriate position. The Bank maintains a job posting and referral program as well as an 
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Affirmative Action Program, and, in an effort to attract and retain qualified applicants, particularly in areas where a sho1tage of 
personnel exists, the Bank provides additional incentives to employees who assist in the recruitment of new hires. 

Our workforce is 59% female and 41% male. None of our employees are covered by a collective bargaining agreement. 

We encourage the growth and development of our employees and, whenever possible, seek to fill positions by promotion and 
transfer from within. Continual learning and career development are advanced through annual pe1formance and development 
conversations between employees and their managers. The Bank encourages all employees to utilize internally developed training 
programs, customized corporate training engagements and educational reimbursement programs to improve their skills and 
qualifications to enable them to be considered for promotion or advancement. We offer employees an in-house leadership program, 
led by William Paterson University instructors, that includes critical thinking, emotional intelligence, management and lead·ership 
skills. The safety, health, and physical and mental wellness of our employees is a top priority. We promote the health and wellness 
of our employees by strongly encouraging work-life balance, offering flexible and hybrid work schedules, subsidizing health care 
premiums, and sponsoring various wellness programs through which employees are encouraged to incorporate healthy habits into 
their daily routines. The administrative headquarters' office space was designed with the health and well-being of our workforce in 
mind in that it was configured to maximize natural light and provide flexible and collaborative workstations. 

Employee retention is important to our continued success and helps us operate efficiently and achieve our business objectives. We 
provide competitive wages, annual incentive bonuses, a 401(k) Plan with an employer matching contribution, equity ownership in 
our Company via an employee stock ownership plan and equity incentive plan, healthcare and wellness programs, a life assistance 
program, flexible spending accounts, group term life insurance, identity fraud coverage, generous paid time off, 11 paid holidays, 
and an educational assistance program. Our hybrid/remote work schedule has not only assisted with recruitment efforts but has 
reduced employee travel expense by an average of 40%. 

DIVERSITY, INCLUSION AND RESPECT IN THE WORKPLACE 

Women in Banking at Blue Foundry 

Board of 
Directors 

Executive 
Management 

All 
Employees 

000 
Management and staff at all levels of the Company and the Bank are expected to behave in a fair, ethical and lawful manner in all 
circumstances. This includes both internal interactions with other members of the organization and external interactions with 
customers, members of the community, vendors, and applicants for employment. We firmly believe that our high standard of 
ethical behavior will sustain the favorable reputation of Blue Foundry Bank in the marketplace and ensure the Bank remains a 
great place to work, invest in and do business with. 

We communicate our expectations for honest, fair and ethical behavior through numerous policies within the organization. The 
commitment of our directors and executive management team to moral and ethical behavior means that the proper tone is set from 
the top of the organization. This begins with our Code of Conduct which describes the moral, ethical, legal and regulatory 
requirements by which all personnel must conduct themselves. The Code of Conduct establishes the expectation that employees 
conduct themselves with integrity, at all times. ]t provides employees with governing principles to guide their conduct with clients, 
customers, suppliers, vendors, shareholders, co-workers, regulators, markets, and the communities in which we operate. It applies to 
the employees and directors of the Company, the Hank, and their direct and indirect subsidiaries. Importantly, each officer at the Vice 
President level and above, and each director, must also abide by the Conflict of Interest and Confidentiality Policy. This Policy 
recognizes the importance of fostering a culture of transparency, integrity and honesty and, as such, mandates that all such parties 
avoid any actions that appear to interfere with good judgment concerning the Bank's best interests. These Policies are reviewed on an 
annual basis and updated as warranted or appropriate; and all employees and directors are required to certify/recertify their 
acknowledgement with these Policies annually. 
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Blue Foundry Bank is dedicated to ensuring that all personnel decisions are made in accordance with equal employment 
opportunity laws and principles. The Bank prohibits discrimination with respect to all employment actions (including recruit ment, 
selection, training, promotion, transfer, layoff and termination, and job-related social or recreational programs), and with respect 
to any of the terms and conditions of employment. Similarly, the Bank will not tolerate any harassment of a sexual, racial, ethnic, 
age or religious nature, or based on any other personal characteristics protected by law from such harassment, that is directed 
toward any employee or applicant for employment or any other person in the workplace by any other employee or vendors. 

Additional policies that communicate the importance and expectations of honest, ethical and fair behavior include the Insider 
Trading Policy which prohibits directors, officers and other employees from trading shares of the Company's common stock based 
on material non public information. 

To reinforce the importance of the policies above, annual training programs are provided to all employees. These programs help 
employees understand how the policies apply on a day-to-day basis and how to deal with events and situations that may occur. 
Employees are encouraged to report concerns without fear of retaliation and may do so in a confidential manner in accordance with 
our whistleblower policies. 

The Company's diversity can be seen throughout the organization, including members of the Executive Management team. Of our 
seven executives, three are women and two, Acela Roselle and Keith Owes, are members of underrepresented minority groups. 

Community Engagement. A key element of our mission is to encourage the stability and success of our communities. The 
Company continues to support organizations that provide healthcare, economic assistance, education and other vital resources. 
Some of our more significant community-oriented efforts included support of food pantries across all of our markets, local 
healthcare, law enforcement and emergency squads. The Company establishes important relationships in each of its communities 
by participating in, hosting and supporting local events and initiatives. The Company also encourages volunteerism through 
Company and Bank-coordinated "Community Impact" opportunities including donation drives, fundraisers, financial literacy 
classes, trail clean-up days and volunteer efforts at local non-profit organizations. We strive to have all employees participate in at 
least one of the organized opportunities during the year. We also continue to support our communities through the many donations 
made by the Blue Foundry Charitable Foundation, which cultivates partnerships with non-profit organizations and fosters 
development within our diverse communities with a focus on four key giving pillars - Affordable Housing, Education, Youth 
Programs, and Health and Human Services. Through 2024, Blue Foundry Charitable Foundation awarded nearly $1.4 million in 
grants to non-profit organizations in our communities. These grants, spanning in amounts from $875 to $100,000, help address 
community needs by supporting programs that provide affordable healthcare and childcare, safe housing for people experiencing 
homelessness or escaping abusive relationships, constructing affordable housing, and making higher education, the arts and job 
readiness attainable for those living in underserved communities. 

Further information related to Blue Foundry Bank's support of its communities through volunteerism and philanthropic activities 
can be found in the 'In the News' section of Blue Foundry Bank's website: www.bluefoundrybank.com and on Blue Foundry 
Charitable Foundation's website: www.bluefoundrycharitablefoundation.org. 

REFERENCES TO OUR WEBSITE ADDRESS 
References to our website address, www.bluefoundrybank.com, throughout this proxy statement and the accompanying materials 
are for informational purposes only or to fulfill specific disclosure requirements of the SEC's rules. These references are not 
intended to, and do not, incorporate the contents of our websites by reference to this proxy statement or the accompanying 
materials. 
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Corporate Governance 
Blue Foundry is committed to maintaining sound corporate governance guidelines and very high standards of ethical conduct and 
is in compliance with applicable corporate governance laws and regulations. The following are key features of our corporate 
governance practices. 

• Of our current 9 Directors, 8 are independent. 

• The Board and management regularly focus on strategic planning. 

• New directors are onboarded with an orientation package and are assigned an existing member of the Board as their mentor 
during an integration period. 

• The Board follows a robust Director Education Program to keep abreast of significant risks and compliance issues~ laws, 
regulations and requirements applicable to the Company; corporate governance best practices; products and services offered 
by the Company; changes in the financial services industry; enhancements in technology and platforms relating to the 
fmancial services industry; and the delivery and availability of banking products and services. Each director completed 
between 16 and 22 hours of relevant education and training in 2024. 

• Stock ownership and retention policies are in place for directors and executive officers. 

• We have a clawback policy as well as a supplemental clawback policy that apply to the bonus and incentive compensation paid 
to our executive officers. 

• The Board conducts annual self-evaluations for the full board, individual board members and each ofthe board committees. 

• The Board reviews management talent and succession planning at least annually. 

• The Board actively utilizes internal and external experts in the matters of audit, governance, compensation, shareholder 
interests and risk management. 

• The Board understands the importance of maintaining regular, open, and transparent communications with our federal and 
state regulators. 

• We have practices to align executive compensation with long-term shareholder interests; these practices are routinely 
reviewed and appropriately revised by the Compensation Committee in conjunction with an independent compensation 
consultant. 

• We oversee our risk management with a focus on the most significant enterprise risks facing our Company, including 
compliance, credit, legal, liquidity, regulatory, market, operational, cybersecurity, reputational, and strategic risks. 

• We have guidelines governing the use of pre-established trading plans for transactions in our securities. 

ENGAGEMENT 
Our Board and management's active engagement with our shareholders in soliciting their perspectives is critical to providing long­
term value to all of our Company's stakeholders. We are committed to constructive and meaningful communication with our 
shareholders. 

Throughout 2024, management and directors proactively engaged with a number of our institutional shareholders as well as retail 
shareholders. This was accomplished through outreach, meetings, investor presentations and quarterly earnings calls. In addition, 
we host quarterly town hall meetings with our employees, nearly all of whom are shareholders. 

CODE OF ETHICS FOR SENIOR OFFICERS 
Blue Foundry Bancorp has adopted a Code of Ethics for Senior Officers that applies to Blue Foundry Bancorp's principal executive 
officer, principal fmancial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions. The Code of 
Ethics for Senior Officers is available on our website at www.bluefoundrybank.com and can be accessed by clicking "Investor 
Relations" and then "Governance- Governance Documents." The Code is reviewed and re-approved annually. 
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BOARD LEADERSHIP STRUCTURE AND THE BOARD'S ROLE IN RISK 
OVERSIGHT 
Our Board believes that sound corporate governance calls for an independent oversight function. The role of chairman has always 
been filled by an independent director. 

Under the Board of Directors leadership structw·e, the offices of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer are held by 
separate individuals. The Chairman of the Board is Kenneth Grimbilas, who is an independent director and does not serve in any 
executive capacity with the Company. The Company's Chief Executive Officer is James D. Nesci. This current structure provides 
for a greater role of the independent directors in the oversight of Blue Foundry Bancorp and Blue Foundry Bank, and active 
participation of the independent directors in setting agendas and establishing priorities and procedures for the work of the Board. 
The Board conducts regular executive sessions of independent directors. 

To further assure effective independent oversight, the Board of Directors has adopted a number of governance practices, including: 

• a majority independent Board of Directors; 

• regular meetings and executive sessions of the independent directors; 

• annual board, board member, and board committee self-assessments; and 

• annual performance evaluations of the President and ChiefExecutive Officer by the independent directors. 

The Board of Directors recognizes that, depending on the circumstances, other leadership models might be appropriate. 
Accordingly, the Board of Direct ors periodically reviews its leadership structure. 

The entire Board of Directors is actively involved in oversight of risks that could affect the Company. However, the Board 
established a separate standing Enterprise Risk Management Committee to facilitate its risk oversight responsibilities. The full 
Board retains the responsibility for general oversight of risks. The Board satisfies this responsibility through reports by the 
committee chair of each board committee regarding the committees' considerations and actions, through review of minutes of 
committee meetings, and through regular reporting directly from officers responsible for oversight of particular risks within the 
Company. Risks relating to the direct operations of the Bank are further overseen by the Board of Directors of the Bank, whose 
directors are the same individuals who serve on the Board of Directors of Blue Foundry Bancorp. All management committees 
including enterprise risk management, loan and loan oversight, asset liability/investment and information technology, are 
responsible for the establishment of policies that guide management and staff in the day-to-day operation of the Company and the 
Bank. 

BOARD COMPOSITION 
The Board is committed to contjnuing to diversify the composition and skill sets of the Board. For example, in 2024, John F. Kuntz 
was appointed to both Boards, bringing extensive, executive-level experience in the financial services industry as well as in our 
markets, along with a depth of skills in risk management and fmance. Through the National Association of Corporate Directors 
(NACD), Director Kuntz has been certified in cybersecurity oversight by Carnegie Mellon University Software Engineering 
Institute. 

SUNSETTING OF THE CLASSIFIED BOARD 
As a newly-pubHc company, the Board had determined that continuing its classified board structure was important to support the 
Company's stability and oversight during the initial period following its public offering in July, 2021. In 2022, the Board approved 
a plan to phase in the declassification of the Board so that by the 2027 annual meeting of shareholders, a period of five (5) annual 
meetings following the 2021 initial public offering, all directors will be elected for one-year terms. 

In 2023, at the annual shareholder meeting, the Company obtained shareholder approval to implement the declassification of the 
Board. 
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DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE 
The Board of Directors has determined that each of our directors, with the exception of Chief Executive Officer James D. Nesci, is 
"independent" as defined in the listing standards of the NASDAQ Stock Market. Mr. Nesci is not independent because he is one of 
our executive officers. In determining the independence of our directors, the Board of Directors considered relationships between 
Blue Foundry Bank and our directors that are not required to be reported under "- Transactions with Certain Related Persons," 
below. 

ATTENDANCE AT ANNUAL MEETINGS OF SHAREHOLDERS 
Blue Foundry Bancorp does not have a written policy regarding director attendance at annual meetings of shareholders, although 
directors are expected to attend these meetings absent unavoidable scheduling conflicts. All directors attended the 2024 Annual 
Meeting of Shareholders, and we anticipate that all of our directors will attend the 2025 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. 

COMMUNICATIONS WITH THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Any shareholder who wishes to contact our Board of Directors or an individual director may do so by writing to: Blue Foundry 
Bancorp, 19 Park Avenue, Rutherford, New Jersey 07070, Attention: Board of Directors. The letter should indicate that the sender 
is a shareholder and, if shares are not held of record, should include appropriate evidence of stock ownership. Communications are 
reviewed by the Corporate Secretary and are then distributed to the Board of Directors or the individual director, as appropriate, 
depending on the facts and circumstances outlined in the communications received. The Corporate Secretary may attempt to 
handle an inquiry directly (for example, where it is a request for information about Blue Foundry Bancorp or it is a stock-related 
matter). The Corporate Secretary has the authority not to forward a communication if it is primarily commercial in nature, relates 
to an improper or irrelevant topic, or is unduly hostile, threatening, illegal or otherwise inappropriate. At each Board of Directors 
meeting, the Corporate Secretary shall present a summary of all relevant communications received since the last meeting that 
were not forwarded and make those communications available to the Directors on request. 

MEETINGS AND COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
The business of Blue Foundry Bancorp is conducted at regular and special meetings of the Board of Directors and its committees. 
In addition, the "independent" members of the Board of Directors (as defmed in the listing standards of the NASDAQ Stock 
Market) meet in executive sessions. The standing committees of the boards of directors are the Audit Committee, Compensation 
Committee, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, and the Enterprise Risk Management Committee. 

The Board of Directors of Blue Foundry Bancorp held four regular meetings, one annual organizational meeting and eleven special 
meetings during the year ended December 31, 2024, and its annual shareholder meeting on May 16, 2024. The Board of Directors 
of Blue Foundry Bank held twelve regular meetings, one special meeting, and one annual organizational meeting during the year 
ended December 31, 2024. No member of the Board of Directors or any committee thereof attended fewer than 75% of the 
aggregate of: (i) the total number of meetings of the Board of Directors (held during the period for which he or she has been a 
director); and (ii) the total number of meetings held by all committees on which he or she served (during the periods that he or she 
served). 

Audit Commi ttee. The Audit Committee consists of Directors Ely, Grimbilas, Jobes, Kinzler, Kuntz and Lang. Mr. Ely serves as 
Chair of the Audit Committee. Each member of the Audit Committee is "independent" as defined in our Nominating and Corporate 
Governance Committee Charter. The Board of Directors has determined that Mr. Ely qualifies as an "audit committee financial 
expert" as that term is used in the rules and regulations of the SEC. 

Our Board of Directors has adopted a written charter for the Audit Committee, which is available on our website at 
www.bluefoundrybank.com and can be accessed by clicking "Investor Relations" and then "Governance- Governance Documents." 
As more fully described in the Audit Committee Charter, the Audit Committee reviews the financial records and affairs of Blue 
Foundry Bancorp and monitors adherence in accounting and financial reporting to accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. The Audit Committee met ten times during the year ended December 31, 2024. 
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Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee consists of Directors Grimbilas, Ely, Goldstein, Lang and Shaw. 
Mr. Goldstein serves as Chair of the Compensation Committee. No member of the Compensation Committee is a current or former 
officer or employee of Blue Foundry Ban corp or Blue Foundry Bank. The Compensation Committee met six times during the year 
ended December 31, 2024. 

With regard to compensation matters, the Compensation Committee's primary purposes are to discharge the Board's 
responsibilities relating to the compensation of the Chief Executive Officer and other executive officers, to oversee Blue Foundry 
Bancorp's compensation and incentive plans, policies and programs, and to oversee Blue Foundry Bancorp's management 
development and succession plans for executive officers. Blue Foundry Bancorp's Chief Executive Officer is not present during any 
committee deliberations or voting with respect to his compensation. The Compensation Committee may form and delegate 
authority and dutie~ lu ~ubcummiLU:!e~ as it deem~ appropriate. 

The Compensation Committee operates under a written charter which is available on our website at www.bluefoundrybank.com 
and can be accessed by clicking "Investor Relations" and then "Governance- Governance Documents." This charter sets forth the 
responsibilities of the Compensation Committee and reflects the Compensation Committee's commitment to create a compensation 
structure that encourages the achievement of long-range objectives and builds long-term value for our shareholders. 

The Compensation Committee considers a number of factors in its decisions regarding executive compensation, including, but not 
limited to, the level of responsibility and pe1fo1·mance of the individual executive officer, the overall performance of Blue Foundry 
Bancorp and a peer group analysis of other financial institutions in our markets. In order to identifY the appropriate compensation 
level necessary to attract and retain the talent to build the institution, we consulted with our compensation consultant in 
developing our peer group. Our peer group is comprised of institutions of similar complexity, within the tri-state geographic area, 
with a median asset size of approximately $3.5 billion. Additional detail about our compensation consultant, as well as peer group, 
can be found in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis (CD&A) section of the Proxy. 

Ow· executive compensation program is designed to: 

• Attract and retain talented employees in leadership positions by recognizing the importance of these individuals to Blue 
Foundry Bancorp and the Bank. 

• Support ow· strategic performance objectives. Oul' goal is to provide executive officers with a total compensation package 
competitive with the market and industry in which we operate, and to promote the long-term goals and performance of Blue 
Foundry Bancorp. With this in mind, we implemented a formal annual incentive plan in 2020 that pays cash awards to the 
executive officers based on certain performance metrics without encouraging them to take Wlllecessary risks. In addition, at 
the 2022 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, the shareholders approved the 2022 Equity Incentive Plan. We believe the use of 
these plans aligns the interests of management with those of our shareholders. 

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee consists of 
Directors Grimbilas, Goldstein, Kuntz and Shaw with Mr. Shaw serving as Chair. The Nominating and Corporate Governance 
Committee met three times during the year ended December 31, 2024. 

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee operates under a written charter which is available on our website at 
www.bluefoundrybank.com and can be accessed by clicking "Investor Relations" and then "Governance-Governance Documents." 

As more fully described in its charter, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee assists the Board of Directors in 
identifying qualified individuals to serve as Board members, in determining the composition of the Board of Directors and its 
committees, in developing, recommending and overseeing a process to assess Board effectiveness and in developing and 
recommending the Company's corporate governance guidelines. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee also 
considers and recommends the nominees for director to stand for election at the Company's annual meeting of shareholders. 

Enterprise Risk Management Committee. The Enterprise Risk Management Committee consists of Directors Grimbilas, Jobes, 
Kinzler, Kuntz, Lang and Shaw with Mr. Kinzler serving as Chair. The Enterprise Risk Management Committee met four times 
during the year ended December 31, 2024. 

The Enterprise Risk Management Committee has the responsibility ofrisk oversight and determining that significant risks of Blue 
Foundry Bancorp are monitored by the Board of Directors or one of its standing committees. The Enterprise Risk Management 
Committee is responsible for reviewing and monitoring enterprise risk including interest rate, liquidity, operational, compliance, 
strategic and reputational risks. 
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COMMITTEE CHARTERS 
The Audit Committee, the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, the Compensation Committee and the Enterprise 
Risk Management Committee each operate pursuant to a separate written charter adopted by the Board. All of the committee 
charters are available on our website: www.bluefoundrybank.com. The information contained on the website is not incorporated by 
reference or otherwise considered a part of this document. 

NOMINATING AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
PROCEDURES 
It is the policy of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee of the Board of Directors to consider director candidates 
recommended by shareholders who appear to be qualified to serve on the Board of Directors. The Nominating and Corporate 
Governance Committee may choose not to consider an unsolicited recommendation if no vacancy exists on the Board of Directors 
and the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee does not perceive a need to increase the size of the Board of Directors. 
To avoid the unnecessary use of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee's resources, the Nominating and Corporate 
Governance Committee will consider only those director candidates recommended in accordance with the procedures set forth 
below. 

Diversity Considerations. The Board of Directors does not have a formal policy or specific guidelines regarding diversity among 
board members. However, the Board of Directors seeks members who represent a mix of backgrounds that will reflect the diversity 
of our shareholders, employees, and customers, and experiences that will enhance the quality of the Board of Directors' 
deliberations and decisions. As the holding company for a community-oriented bank, the Board of Directors also seeks directors 
who can continue to strengthen Blue Foundry Bank's position in its communities and can assist Blue Foundry Bank with business 
development through business and other community contacts. The Board of Directors is committed to continuing to diversify the 
composition of the Board. 

Process for Identifying and Evaluating Nominees; Director Qualifications. The Board of Directors considers the following 
criteria in evaluating and selecting candidates for nomination: 

• Contribution to Board-Blue Foundry Bancorp endeavors to maintain a Board of Directors that possesses a wide range of 
abilities. Thus, the Board of Directors will assess the extent to which the candidate would contribute to the range of talent, 
skill and expertise appropriate for the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors will also take into consideration the number 
of public company boards of directors, other than Blue Foundry Bancorp's, and committees thereof, on which the candidate 
serves. The Board of Directors will consider carefully the time commitments of any candidate who would concwTently serve 
on the boards of directors of more than two public companies other than Blue Foundry Bancorp. 

• Experience-Blue Found!)' Bancorp is the holding company of Blue Foundry Bank, an insured depository institution. 
Because of the complex and heavily regulated nature of Blue Foundry Bancorp's business, the Board of Directors will consider 
a candidate's relevant financial, regulatOl'J and business experience and skills, including the candidate's knowledge of the 
banking and financial services industries, familiarity with the operations of public companies and ability to read and 
understand fundamental financial statements, as well as real estate and legal experience. 

• Familiarity with and Participation in Local Community-Blue Foundry Bancorp is a community-oriented organization 
that serves the needs of local consumers and businesses. In connection with the local character of Blue Foundry Bancorp's 
business, the Board of Directors will consider a candidate's familiarity with Blue Foundry Ban corp's market area (or a portion 
thereof), including without limitation the candidate's contacts with and knowledge of local businesses operating in Blue 
Foundry Bancorp's market area, knowledge of the local real estate markets and real estate professionals, experience with 
local governments and agencies and political activities, and participation in local business, civic, charitable or religious 
organizations. 

• Integrity - Due to the nature of the financial services provided by Blue Foundry Bancorp and its subsidiary, Blue Foundry 
Bancorp is in a special position of trust with respect to its customers. Accordingly, the integrity of the Board of Directors is of 
utmost importance to developing and maintaining customer relationships. In connection with upholding that trust, the Board 
of Directors will consider a candidate's personal and professional integrity, honesty and reputation, including, without 
limitation, whether a candidate or any entity controlled by the candidate is or has in the past been subject to any regulatory 
orders, involved in any regulatory or legal action, or been accused or convicted of a violation of law, even if such issue would 
not result in disqualification for service under Blue Foundry Bancorp's Bylaws. 
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• Shareh older Interests and Ded ication- A basic responsibility of directors is the exercise of their business judgment to act 
in what they reasonably believe to be in the best long-term interests of Blue Foundry Bancorp and its shareholders. In 
connection with such obligation, the Board of Directors will consider a candidate's ability to represent the best long-term 
interests of Blue Foundry Bancorp and its shareholders, including past service with Blue Foundry Bancorp or Blue Foundry 
Bank and contributions to their operations, the candidate's experience or involvement with other local financial services 
companies, the potential for conflicts of interest with the candidate's other pursuits, and the candidate's ability to devote 
sufficient time and energy to diligently perform his or her duties, including the candidate's ability to personally attend board 
and committee meetings. 

• Indep endence- The Board of Directors will consider the absence or presence of material relationships between a candidate 
and Blue Foundry Bancorp (including those set forth in applicable listing standards) that might impact objectivity and 
independence of thought and judgment. In addition, the Board of Directors will consider the candidate's ability to serve on any 
Board committees that are subject to additional regulatory requirements (e.g. SEC regulations and applicable listing 
standards). If Blue Foundry Bancorp should adopt independence standards other than those set forth in the NASDAQ Stock 
Market listing standards, the Board of Directors will consider the candidate's potential independence under such other 
standards. 

• Gender, Ethnic, and other Diversity - Biue Foundry Bancorp understands the importance and value of diversity, including 
gender, ethnicity, skills, and other status, on a board of directors and will consider highly qualified candidates and their 
demographic backgrounds, including women and individuals from minority groups, to include in the pool from which 
candidates are chosen. The Board of Directors is committed to continuing to diversifY the composition of the Board. 

• Addition al Factors- The Board of Directors will also consider any other factors it deems relevant to a candidate's 
nomination, including the extent to which the candidate helps the Board of Directors reflect the diversity of Blue Foundry 
Bancorp's shareholders, employees, customers and communities. The Board of Directors also may consider the current 
composition and size of the Board of Directors, the balance of management and independent directors, and the need for audit 
committee expertise. 

The Board of Directors identifies nominees by first evaluating the current members of the Board of Directors willing to continue in 
service, includling the current members' hoard and committee meeting att.endance and performance, length of board f;ervice, 

experience and contributions, and independence. Current members of the Board of Directors with skills and experience that are 
relevant to Blue Foundry Bancorp's business and who are willing to continue in service are considered for re-nomination, 
balancing the value of continuity of service by existing members of the Board of Directors with that of obtaining a new perspective. 
If there is a vacancy on the Board of Directors because any member of the Board of Directors does not wish to continue in service or 
if the Board of Directors decides not to re-nominate a member for re-election, the Board of Directors would determine the desired 
skills and experience of a new nominee (including a review of the skills set forth above), may solicit suggestions for director 
candidates from all board members and may engage in other search activities. 

The Board of Directors may consider qualified candidates for director suggested by our shareholders. Shareholders can suggest 
qualified candidates for director by writing to our Corporate Secretary at 19 Park Avenue, Rutherford, New Jersey 07070. The 
Board of Directors has adopted a procedure by which shareholders may recommend nominees to the Board of Directors. 
Shareholders who wish to recommend a nominee must write to Blue Foundry Bancorp's Corporate Secretary and such 
communication must include: 

• A statement that the writer is a shareholder and is proposing a candidate for consideration by the Board of Directors; 

• The name and address of the shareholder as they appear on Blue Foundry Bancorp's books, and of the beneficial owner, if any, 
on whose behalf the nomination is made; 

• The class or series and number of shares of Blue Foundry Bancorp's capital stock that are owned beneficially or of record by 
such shareholder and such beneficial owner; 

• A description of all arrangements or understandings between such shareholder and each proposed nominee and any other 
person or person !'; (including th eir nameR) purRuant to which the nomination(R) are to he made by Ruch Rhareholder; 

• A representation that such shareholder intends to appear in person or by proxy at the meeting to nominate the nominee 
named in the shareholder's notice; 

• The name, age, personal and business address of the candidate and the principal occupation or employment of the candidate; 

• The candidate's written consent to serve as a director; 
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• A statement of the candidate's business and educational experience and all other information relating to such person that 
would indicate such person's qualification to serve on Blue Foundry Bancorp's Board of Directors; and 

• Such other information regarding the candidate or the shareholder as would be required to be included in Blue Foundry 
Bancorp's proxy statement pursuant to SEC Regulation 14A. 

To be timely, the submission of a candidate for director by a shareholder must be received by the Corporate Secretary at least 120 
days prior to the anniversary date of the proxy statement relating to the preceding year's annual meeting of shareholders. If the 
date of the annual meeting is advanced more than 30 days prior to or delayed more than 60 days after the anniversary of the 
preceding year's annual meeting, a shareholder's submission of a candidate shall be timely if delivered or mailed to and received by 
the Corporate Secretary of Blue Foundry Bancorp no later than the 10th day following the day on which public disclosure (by press 
release issued through a nationally recognized news service, a document flied with the SEC, or on a website maintained by Blue 
Foundry Bancorp) of the date of the annual meeting is first made. 

Submissions that are received and that satisfy the above requirements are forwarded to the Board of Directors for further review 
and consideration, using the same criteria to evaluate the candidate as it uses for evaluating other candidates that it considers. 

There is a difference between the recommendations of nominees by shareholders pursuant to this policy and a formal nomination 
(whether by proxy solicitation or in person at a meeting) by a shareholder. Shareholders have certain rights under applicable law 
with respect to nominations, and any such nominations must comply with applicable law and provisions of the Bylaws of Blue 
Foundry Bancorp. See "Shareholder Proposals and Nominations." 

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 

The Audit Committee has issued a report that states as follows: 

• We have reviewed and discussed with management our audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2024. 

• We have discussed with the independent registered public accounting firm the matters required to be discussed by the 
applicable requirements of the Public Comp·any Accounting Oversight Board Auditing Standard. 

• We have received the written disclosures and the letter from the independent registered public accounting firm required by 
PCAOB Rule 3526, "Communication with Audit Committees Concerning Independence," and have discussed with the 
independent registered public accounting firm their independence. 

Based on the review and discussions referred to above, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that the 
audited consolidated financial statements be included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024 
for filing with the SEC. 

This report shall not be deemed incorporated by reference by any general statement incorporating by reference this proxy 
statement into· any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, except 
to the extent that Blue Foundry Bancorp specifically incorporates this information by reference, and shall not otherwise be deemed 
filed under such Acts. 

This report has been provided by the Audit Committee: 

J. Christopher Ely (Chair) 
Kenneth Grimbilas 

E lizabeth Varki Jobes 
Patrick H. Kinzler 

J ohn F. Kuntz 
Mirella Lang 
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OTHER GUIDELINES, PRACTICES AND POLICIES 
S tock Ownersh ip Guidelines. The Board of Directors believes that it is in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders 
to align the financial interests of its senior executive officers and directors with those of shareholders. Accordingly, the Company 
has adopted a Stock Ownership and Retention Policy for executive officers and directors of the Company that requires the 
following minimum dollar investment in Company common stock: 

Position Guideline 

Chief Executive Office r One t imes (lx) of base salary 

Other Executive Officers One times (lx) of base salary 

Non-Employee Directors Three times (3x) the annual retainer paid to the Director for their board membership 

Newly appointed senior executive officers and directors have five years from the time they are appointed, promoted or elected, as 
the case may be, to meet these guidelines. In order to expedite this process, a minimum of 50% of shares (net of taxes) acquired 
through the Company's 2022 Equity Incentive Plan will be required to be held upon each vesting until the guidelines are met. For 
the purpose of determining if the ownership guidelines are met, unvested performance shares and underlying outstanding stock 
options will not be considered. Stock ownership for executive officers and directors is reviewed on an annual basis and the 
Compensation Committee maintains responsibility for the administration of this Policy at its full discretion. 

Executive Officer and Director Hedging and Pledging . The Company has adopted an anti-hedging and anti-pledging policy, 
which prohibits directors and executive officers from engaging in or effecting any transaction designed to hedge or offset the 
economic risk of owning shares of Company common stock. 

Accordingly, any hedging, derivative or other equivalent transaction that is specifically designed to reduce or limit the extent to 
which declines in the trading price of Company common stock would affect the value of the shares of Company common stock 
owned by an executive officer or director is prohibited. Cashless exercises of employee stock options are not deemed short sales and 
are not prohibited. This policy does not prohibit transactions in the stock of other companies. 

The anti-hedging and anti-pledging policy also prohibits directors and executive officers from holding Company securities in a 
margin account or pledging Company securities as collateral for any other loan. 

The Company does not have anti-hedging policies or procedures that are applicable to the Company's employees who are not 
executive officers and as such, hedging transactions by non-executive employees are not prohibited. 

The information provided under this Executive Officer and Director Hedging and P ledging section shall not be deemed 
incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended, except to the extent that the Company specifically incorporates this information by reference. 

Insider Trading Policy. All directors, officers and employees of the Company are required to comply with the Company Policy 
Regarding Insider Trading which expressly prohibits any of them from trading any security (whether the stock of the Company or 
other issuer) while in possession of material, non-public information about the issuer. The Policy likewise prohibits disclosure of any 
material inside information of an issuer to any other person. The Policy also provides additional restrictions in the form of blackout 
periods for directors, senior officers and certain other designated employees. The foregoing slUl11mary of the Policy does not purport to 
be complete and is qualified in its entirety to the full text of the Policy, a copy of which is included in the Company's Form lOK for 
2024 as Exhibit 19. 

TRANSACTIONS WITH CERTAIN RELATED PERSONS 
The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 generally prohibits publicly traded companies from making loans to their executive officers and 
directors, but it contains a specific exemption from such prohibition for loans made by federally insured financial institutions, such 
as Blue Foundry Bank, to their executive officers and directors in compliance with federal banking regulations. Federal 
regulations permit executive officers and directors to receive the same terms that are widely available to other employees as long 
as the director or executive officer is not given preferential treatment compared to the other participating employees. All 
transactions between the Company and its executive officers, directors, holders of 10% or more of the shares of its common stock 
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and affiliates thereof, are on terms no less favorable to the Company than could have been obtained by it in arms-length 
negotiations with unaffiliated persons. Such transactions must be approved by a majority of the independent directors of the 
Company not having any interest in the transaction. In the ordinary course of business, Blue Foundry Bank makes loans available 
to its directors, officers and employees. The aggregate amount of our outstanding loans to an insider and related entities is 
approximately $1.2 million at December 31, 2024, consisting of three loans to a senior officer that were made before the officer 
became an employee of the Bank. These loans were made in the ordinary course of business and did not involve more than the 
normal risk of collectability nor present other unfavorable features, and are considered "transition" loans under Hegulation 0. The 
loans are performing in accordance with their terms. 

Other than described above, we and our subsidiary have not had any transaction or series of transactions, or business 
relationships, nor are any such transactions or relationships proposed, in which the amount involved exceeds $120,000 and in 
which our directors or executive officers have a direct or indirect material interest. 

Pursuant to our Policy and Procedures for Approval of Related Person Transactions, the Audit Committee reviews and approves all 
related party transactions in accordance with, and as required by, the NASDAQ corporate governance listing standards. 

DELINQUENT SECTION 16(a ) REPORTS 
Our executive officers and directors and beneficial owners of greater than 10% of the outstanding shares of common stock are 
required to file reports with the SEC disclosing beneficial ownership and changes in beneficial ownership of our common stock. 
SEC rules require disclosure if an executive officer, director or 10% beneficial owner fails to file these reports on a timely basis. 
Based solely on its review of copies of the reports the Company has received and written representations provided to it from the 
individuals required to file Section 16(a) reports, the Company believes that each individual who, at any time during the fiscal year 
ended December 31, 2024, served us an executive officer or director of the Company has complied with applicable reporting 
requirements for transactions in Company common stock during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024. We believe that no 
executive officer, director or 10% beneficial owner of our shares of common stock failed to file ownership reports on a timely basis. 

COMPENSATION CONSULTANTS 
Independent Compensation Consultan t. Pearl Meyer & Partners, LLC (''Pearl Meyer") our nationally recognized, independent 
compensation consultant, reports directly to the Compensation Committee and provides no other services to the Company, Blue 
Foundry Bank or management. The Committee considered the firm's independence under the relevant SEC and stock exchange 
factors, and determined the firm satisfied the requirements for independence. 

Role of the Independen t Compensation Consultant. Pearl Meyer provides independent compensation consulting services to 
the Committee related to executive officer and board of director compensation. In 2023, in establishing 2024 compensation, Pearl 
Meyer assisted Blue Foundry in review of restricted and performance stock awards to management as well as management base 
salary. Pearl Meyer had previously assisted Blue Foundry in reviewing compensation as well as in the development of its equity 
compensation program that was approved by the Company's shareholders at the 2022 annual meeting and has provided 
competitive market information on equity practices in banks comparable to Blue Foundry Bank. 
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Executive Compensation 
COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
The following section explains our executive compensation program for our named executive officers (''NEOs") listed below. This 
section also describes the Compensation Committee's process for making pay decisions, as well as its rationale for specific decisions 
related to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024. Although our Company qualifies as an "emerging growth company" as defined 
by the SEC, which allows us to take advantage of scaled-back disclosure requirements, we are voluntarily including a more 
extensive narrative about our executive compensation program in an effort to be more transparent. 

Our NEOs for 2024 were: 

Name Position 

James D. Nesci President and Chief Executive Officer 

Kelly Pecoraro Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 
Aleksander Malkiman Executive Vice President and Chief Technology Officer 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Business Overview 

In 2024, the Company remained focused on executing its strategic priorities, delivering loan and deposit growth, and disciplined 
net interest margin management despite a dynamic economic environment. The Company reinforced its commercial banking 
strategy and maintained a strong, diversified balance sheet to support long-term growth. Key performance highlights included: 

• Loan Growth: Total loans increased $22.8 million to $1.58 billion, driven by strong growth in commercial real estate ($27.1 
million), construction ($25.1 million), and commercial and industrial loans ($4.5 million). These gains reflect Blue Foundry's 
continued commitment to supporting businesses and economic development, partially offset by a strategic reduction in 
residential and multifamily loans. 

• Deposit Growth: Total deposits grew $98.4 million (7.91%) to $1.34 billion, with a notable $110.7 million increase in time 
deposits. While customer behavior shifted amid market conditions, driving higher demand for time deposits in 2024, the Bank 
reinforced its ability to attract and retain customers through competitive offerings and relationship banking. 

• Net Interest Margin (NIM): A NIM of 1.90%, which slightly exceeded our targeted NIM, reflects a disciplined approach to 
managing funding costs and asset growth in a challenging rate environment and competitive market. 

Our achievements in 2024 have strengthened the Company's foundation for long-term success. We maintained strong credit 
quality and a well-capitalized balance sheet, ensuring stability in a volatile environment. Non-performing loans remained low at 
0.33% of total loans, with an allowance for credit losses exceeding 2.5 times non-performing loans, reflecting disciplined risk 
management. Continued loan and deposit growth, a strengthening and more diversified commercial portfolio, and a focused 
approach to financial management have well-positioned us to drive value creation. 

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS REGARDING OUR COMPENSATION 
PRACTICES 
At Blue Foundry, our executive compensation program is designed to support the Company's strategic objectives and fmancial 
priorities. In an unpredictable banking environment shaped by interest rate fluctuations, competitive pressures, and regulatory 
considerations, our approach emphasizes sensible growth, prudent risk management, and long-term value creation. From the 
perspective of the Compensation Committee, transparency is essential in how we approach executive compensation decisions. The 
following Q&A provides additional context on key aspects of our executive compensation program, including how we set 
performance targets and measure performance, structure long-term incentives, select our peer group, and ensure executive 
compensation aligns with Company performance and shareholder expectations. 

80 Proxy Statement 



Proposal 1: E lection of Directors 

How are performance targets set each year? 

Performance targets are set to align with business strategy, financial conditions, and market realities. In banking, factors su ch as 
interest rate movements, credit demand, funding costs, and regulatory constraints all influence financial performance in ways that 
make year-over-year comparisons insufficient on their own. For example, net loan growth and deposit growth targets are 
calibrated based on capital availability, risk tolerance, and anticipated economic conditions. Similarly, NIM targets are influenced 
hy external rate trend!'; and competitive pre!';!';Ure!';. By taking a forward-Booking approach, we en!';ure that performance goa)!'; are 
rigorous, achievable, and aligned with sensible growth. 

How do you ensure incentive plan performance targets are rigorous? 

Our performance targets for our incentive plans are determined through a structured process reflecting market conditions, 
regulatory limitations, and internal financial priorities. The Compensation Committee works closely with management to evaluate 
business plans, assess fmancial projections, and consider key risk factors to ensure that targets are both ambitious and achievable. 
Loan and deposit growth targets are critical for long term success and reflect expected economic conditions, capital planning 
considerations, and prudent risk management to support viable growth. NIM targets incorporate interest rate trends and funding 
costs, and ensure that we are growing our balance sheet in a controlled manner to drive long-term financial stability. 

Why do the annual and long-term incentive plans use overlapping performance metrics? 

Our executive compensation program is designed to balance near-term execution with long-term stewardship, ensuring that 
leaders are accountable for both immediate performance and sustained value creation. To achieve this, both the annual cash 
incentive plan and performance-based restricted stock awards incorporate key fmancial metrics- net loan growth, net deposit 
growth, and NIM-to drive strategic consistency and align with the Company's long-term growth objectives. 

The annual incentive plan focuses on short-term financial petformance by measuring key business drivers at the end of each fiscal 
year. This structure encourages the immediate execution of strategic priorities while maintaining financial discipline. In contrast, 
our performance-based restricted stock awards are measured over a three-year performance period and are designed to reinforce 
long-term alignment. After the three-year measurement period, shares earned ba!';ed on achievement of performance metrics 
convert into time-based restricted stock that vests ratably over four years, ensuring that executives remain focused on long-term 
shareholder interests. 

How does the Company's equity granting process align with shareholder interests? 

The Company's long-term incentive strategy has been deliberate, evolving, and consistently aligned with shareholder interests. 
Long-term equity incentives ensure that the executives have a vested interest in the Company's stock performance, promoting 
decisions that drive long-term shareholder value. By holding significant shares, these leaders are more likely to prioritize 
strategies that enhance the overall financial health and market standing of the Company. It also incentivizes strong governance 
practices, including transparent decision-making, effective risk management, and accountability. Such practices are essential for 
maintaining investor confidence and achieving sustainable growth. As a newly public company, long-term equity incentives are a 
critical component of the Company's executive compensation strategy to attract and retain a leadership team that remains focused 
on building a strong foundation to foster long-term value creation. 

Executives received their first equity grants in 2022, in the form of stock options, following shareholder approval of the 2022 
Equity Incentive Plan. These stock options, which vest over seven years, directly link compensation to stock performance - having 
value only if the stock price exceeds the grant date price. In 2023, to better align with market practices, the Compensation 
Committee granted time-vested and performance-based restricted stock, with a seven-year vesting period. The initial performance­
based restricted stock was subject to a one-year performance period, after which any earned shares would be converted into time­
based restricted stock that vests ratably over seven years, reinforcing long-term value creation and retention and exceeding typical 
market practices for vesting periods. The performance metrics for the initial performance grants were not achieved and the grants 
were therefore forfeited . For 2024, the Compen!';ation Committee approved maintaining hoth equity vehicles while adju!';ting the 
vesting period of time vest awards to six years and the measurement period for the perlormance awards to three years, as 
discussed above, and the vesting period to four years after the measurement period- enhancing competitiveness while keeping a 
strong long-term focus. Many of our peers use shorter vesting periods of three to five years, but our approach ensures executive 
rewards remain tied to sustained Company performance and long-term shareholder value. 
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How does the Compensation Committee select a peer group? 

The Compensation Committee selects peers based on a principles-driven approach that ensures executive pay remains competitive 
and reflects the demands of leading publicly traded financial institutions. While asset size is one factor, the peer group is also 
shaped by indlustry alignment, business complexity, regulatory requirements, market presence, and competition for executive 
talent. Our leadership team must have the sophistication to operate in public markets, manage regulatory oversight, and execute 
strategic growth-all of which require henchmarking against institutions with similar challenges. 

In late 2023, the Compensation Committee, with input from Pearl Meyer, approved the 2024 peer group to ensure alignment with 
our size, industry, and competition for talent. This included U.S.-based commercial banks with assets between $1.3 billion and 
$6.7 billion, reflecting our expected growth trajectory and the broader demands on our leadership team at that time. 

Please see the related discussion in this CD&A below for more information about our compensation peer group. 

How does the Board view the alignment of CEO pay with company performance? 

Performance-based compensation is a fundamental principle of our executive pay structure. Our incentive plans are designed to 
align compensation with financial performance, operational execution, and long-term value creation. Annual and long-term 
incentive payouts are directly tied to loan and deposit growth, and NIM- core drivers of financial performance. We believe this 
approach ensures that realized pay aligns with actual results, reinforcing our commitment to responsible fmancial stewardship 
and sustainable growth. 

To this end, the Compensation Committee considers multiple factors when evaluating the CEO's compensation, including a 
comparison of target pay opportunity to both the market and the CEO's realized pay. Since Blue Foundry's public offering in 2021, 
the CEO's realized pay has consistently been lower than his reported and target pay opportunities, reinforcing the connection 
between pay and Company performance. As illustrated below, realized pay includes: 

• Base salary paid; 

• Actual annual bonus paid; and 

• Value of restricted stock vested during the year. 

Reported and Target pay includes: 

• Base salary paid; 

• Target annual bonus; and 

• Equity grants, which consists of the grant date fair market value of stock options granted in 2022 and the grant date fair 
market value of time-based and performance-based restricted stock awards granted in 2023 and 2024. 
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In 2022, Mr. Nesci received a one-time stock option grant which vests over seven years. As a reminder, these stock options, which 
vest over seven years, di1·ectly link compensation to stock performance- having value only if the stock price exceeds the grant date 
price. In order to have the value noted below, the company's stock price would need to be $15.95 upon exercise of the options. In 
2023 and 2024, our CEO's long-term equity incentive was granted using a mix of time-based and pelformance-based restricted 
stock awards. 

CEO Compensation 
Reported and Target Pay vs. Realized Pay 

$4,500 

$4,000 

$3,500 

$3,000 

$2,500 

$2,000 

$1,500 

$1,000 S420 
$284 

$500 

$0 
2022 Reported/I'arge.t. Realized 2022 2023 Reportedll'argcl 202.3 Realized 2024 Reportedffurget 2024 Realiwd 

•n . .., S•lary Annual Incentive • Long· Term Equity lncent.ive 

Note: Dollars in the table are in thousands. 

Best Compensation Practices & Policies 

We believe the following practices and policies within our program promote strong compensation governance and are in the best 
interests of our stockholders and executives: 

./ 

./ 

./ 

./ 

What We Do 

Emphasize variable pay over fixed pay, with a 
significant portion tied to our financial results and 
stock performance 

Maintain a clawback policy 

Maintain anti-hedging and anti-pledging policies 

Provide for "double-trigger" equity awru·d vesting and 
severance benefits upon a change in control 

Use an independent compensation consultant 

What We Don't Do 

x No tax gross ups 

x No repricing or exchange of underwater options without 
stockholder approval 

x No option or stock appreciation rights granted below 
fair mru·ket value 

x No excessive supplemental executive retirement plans 

x No significant perquisites 
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2024 Compensation Highlights 

Our executive compensation program has three primary elements: base salary, annual incentives, and long-term equity incentives. 
Each of these compensation elements serves a specific purpose in our compensation strategy. Base salary is an essential 
component to any market-competitive compensation program. Annual incentives reward the achievement of short-term goals, 
while long-term incentives drive ow· NEOs to focus on long-term sustainable stockholder value creation. Based on our pelformance 
and consistent with the design of our program, the Compensation Committee made the following executive compensation decisions 
for fiscal 2024: 

Base Salaries 

Annual Incentives 

Long-Term Equity­
Based Incentives 

• Approved increases of approximately 3%-5% for the NEOs, excluding the CEO, to improve 
competitive positioning and ensure market alignment. There was no increase to the CEO's base 
salary. 

• Based on ow· financial performance in 2024, the Compensation Committee approved annual 
incentive awards of approximately 68% of target, reflecting execution against key pelformance 
measures. 

• Approved equity grants to each of the NEOs using a mix of time-based and performance-based 
restricted stock awards. 

• 2024 performance-based grants were tied to three-year performance metrics for the performance 
period January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2026, and, if earned, vest over four years beginning 
in 2027. 

• 2024 time-based grants vest over a six-year period. 

WHAT GUIDES OUR PROGRAM 

Executive Compensation Philosophy 

Our executive compensation program is designed to attract, motivate, and retain top talent while aligning leadership incentives 
with shareholder interests and strong governance practices. The program is built on the following key principles: 

• Market Compet itiveness - We provide compensation that is competitive with industry peers to attract and retain highly 
qualified executives who can drive Blue Foundry's fmancial success. 

• Pay-for-Performance - A significant portion of executive compensation is tied to Company performance, ensuring rewards 
are aligned with financial results and long-term value creation. 

• Shareholder Alignment-Our executive compensation program emphasizes equity-based compensation, linking executive 
rewards to shareholder outcomes and fostering an ownership mindset. 

• Strong Governance-The Compensation Committee regularly reviews its practices to ensure they reflect best governance 
standards, mitigate excessive risk-taking, and reinforce accountability. 

• Retention and Stability - We balance performance-based incentives with retention elements to maintain leadership 
continuity and drive sustained financial performance. 

By adhering to these principles, we create a compensation structure that supports long-term growth, promotes responsible 
decision-making, and aligns with the interests of our shareholders. 
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Elements of Compensation 

Our executive compensation philosophy is supported by the following principal elements of pay: 

Pay Element 

Base Salary 

Annual Incentives 

Long-Term 
Incentives 

How It's Paid 

Cash (Fixed) 

Cash (Variable) 

Equity (Variable) 

Purpose 

Provide a competitive base salary rate relative to similar positions in the market and enable the 
Company to attract and retain critical executive talent. 

Reward executives for delivering on annual fmancial objectives that contribute to the creation of 
shareholder value. 

Provide incentives for executives to e xecute on longer-term financial goals that drive the creation of 
shareholder value and support the Company's retention strategy. 

Executive Compensation Decision-Making Process 

The Role of the Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee oversees the executive compensation program for our 
NEOs, ensuring it remains competitive, performance-driven, and aligned with shareholder interests. Composed entirely of 
independent, non-employee directors, the Committee works closely with its nationally recognized independent consultant and with 
management to evaluate the effectiveness of the program. It also administers incentive plans, reviews pay practices and upholds 
strong governance standards. The Committee makes all final compensation and equity award decisions for our NEOs, except for 
the CEO, whose compensation is determined by the independent members of the full Board based on the Committee's 
recommendations. The Compensation Committee operates under a written charter which is available on our website at 
www.bluefoundrybank.com and can be accessed by clicking "Investor Relations" and then "Governance-Governance Documents." 
This charter sets forth the r esponsibilities of the Compensation Committee and reflects the Compensation Committee's 
commitment to create a compensation structure that encourages the achievement of long-range objectives and builds long-term 
value for our shareholders. 

The Role of Management. Members of our management team attend regular Compensation Committee meetings where 
executive compensation, Company and individual performance, and competitive compensation levels and practices are discussed 
and evaluated_ Only the Committee members can vote on decisions regarding NEO compensation and the NEOs are not present 
during those votes. The CEO reviews his recommendations pertaining to the compensation of the other NEOs with the Committee 
providing management input, transparency, and oversight. Approval ofNEO compensation other than CEO compensation is made 
by the Committee. The CEO does not participate in the deliberations of the Committee regarding his own compensation. 
Independent members of the Board make all final determinations regarding CEO compensation. 

The Role of the Independent Consultant. As previously stated, the Compensation Committee engages an independent 
compensation consultant to provide expertise on competitive pay practices, program design, and an objective assessment of any 
inherent risks of any programs. Pursuant to authority granted to it under its charter, the Compensation Committee, also as 
previously stated, has hired Pearl Meyer, a nationally recognized compensation consultant, as its independent consultant. Pearl 
Meyer reports directly to the Compensation Committee and does not provide any additional services to management. The 
Compensation Committee has conducted an independence assessment of Pearl Meyer in accordance with SEC rules. 

The Role of Peer Group Companies. The Compensation Committee aims to establish a competitive total compensation package 
for each NEO, benchmarking against executives in comparable roles at peer companies. In late 2023, the Committee, with input 
from Pearl Meyer, reviewed and approved the peer group used to set 2024 compensation levels, considering publicly available data 
and industry-specific survey data where relevant as well as the Company's growth strategy. 
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The 2024 Compensation Peer Group was seleeted based on factors that reflected the Company's competitive landscape and 
strategic direction at that time. Specifically, it included U.S.-based commercial banks listed on a national exchange, headquartered 
in New England, New Jersey, New York, or Pennsylvania, with similar operations and scope. The peer group included banks with 
market capitalizations around $350 million, total assets ranging fi·om $1.3 billion to $6.7 billion, and total equity between 
$108 million and $701 million (median: $291 million). Applying these criteria, the Compensation Committee approved the 
following peer group of29 companies: 

Arrow Financial Corp. 

Bar Harbor Bankshares 

BCB Bancorp Inc. 

Cambridge Bancorp 

Camden National Corp. 

Codorus Valley Bancorp Inc. 

Enterprise Bancorp Inc. 

ESSA Bancorp Inc. 

Fidelity D&D Ba ncorp Inc. 

Financial Ins titut ions Inc. 

2024 Compensation P eer Group 

First Bank 

FNCB Bancorp Inc. 

Greene County Bancm·p 

HarborOne Bancorp Inc 

Meridian Corp. 

Metropolitan Bank Holding Corp 

Mid Penn Bancorp 

Northfield Bncp (Staten Island) 

Orrstown Financial Services 

Pa rke Bancorp Inc. 

Peapack-Gladstone Financial 

Peoples Financial Services 

Pioneer Bancorp 

Ponce Financial Group 

Princeton Bancorp 

Rhinebeck Bancorp 

The First of Long Island Corp. 

Unity Bancorp Inc. 

Washington Trust Bancorp, Inc. 

The Compensation Committee, in consultation with Pearl Meyer, will review and potentially refine the peer group annually to 
ensure continued relevance in light of our evolving strategic focus and competitive landscape. 

2024 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION DECISIONS 

Base Salary 

Annual salary is the only fixed component of Blue Foundry's executive compensation program. In setting salary, the Committee 
looks at current pay practices, peer group comparisons and general market analysis in consultation with its compensation 
consultant, Pearl Meyer. The Committee then establishes salaries that are competitive to the Peer Group and the external market 
for similar positions. The Committee reviews the salaries on an annual basis. 

As part of the Committee's annual salary review, the CEO's salary was dletermined to be in line with the median when compared 
with the actual proxy data of the Peer Group and benchmark survey information. As a result, no adjustment was made. The Other 
NEOs received increases, as follows. 

Name 2023 Base Sallary 2024 Base Salary % Adjustment 

James D. Nesci $700,000 700,000 - % 

Kelly Pecoraro 400,000 420,000 5% 

Aleksander Malkiman 345,000 355,000 3% 
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Annual Incentive Plan 

Blue Foundry Bank has instituted an Annual Incentive Plan as a short-term incentive plan for our executive officers to incentivize 
personal performance in conjunction with Blue Foundry Bank's overall performance. Payments under the Annual Incentive Plan 
are based on both Blue Foundry Bank's overall performance and the executive's personal performance. 

The Compensation Committee sets target incenbve award opportunities for each of the NEOs based on a percentage of base salary. 
The actual amount of an award is based on the level of business results and personal pelformance and can range from 50% to 150% 
of target based! on performance against pre-established goals. Target award opportunities for 2024 were as follows: 

2024Target 
Award 2024 Target Award 

Name 2024 Base Salary Opportunity (%) Opportunity ($) 

James D. Nesci $700,000 60% $420,000 

Kelly Pecoraro 420,000 60% $252,000 

Aleksander Malkiman 355,000 35% $124,250 

Under the Annual Incentive Plan, financial metrics including Net Loan Growth, Net Deposit Growth, Core Deposit Growth, and 
Net Interest Margin, account for 80% of the total award opportunity. The remaining 20% of the award, which can be paid at 0% -
150%, is based on individual performance, assessed at the discretion of the Compensation Committee. This component ensures 
recognition ofleadership impact, strategic execut ion, and other qualitative contributions that drive long-term success. 

For 2024, the Compensation Committee determined each NEO's annual cash incentive award opportunity by applying the 
specified weightings to the financial pelformance measures and individual pelformance, ensuring a balanced assessment of both 
quantitative results and leadership contribut ions. 'l'he table below outlines the performance goals, actual results, and 
conesponding payouts for each metric for 2024. 

($ in millions) Performance Goals Actual Results 

Threshold Target Superior 
Performance Measures Weight (50%) (lOOo/o) (150%) Result Payout 

Net Loan Growth 25% $ 67 $100 $ 133 $22.8 0% 

Net Deposit Growth 20% 90 135 180 97.5 58% 

Core Deposit Growth 10% 47 70 93 (13.2) 0% 

Net Interest Margin 25% 1.84% 1.87% 2.25% 1.90% 104% 

Individual Performance 20% Discretionary 150% 

Grand Total 100% 

The following table summarizes each NEOs overall achievement and payout under the Ann ual Incentive Plan for 2024: 

2024 
Target Award Overall 

Target Award Opportunity Achievement Actual Award 
Named Executive Officer Opportunity (%) ($) (%Target) Payout($) 

James D. Nesci 60% $420,000 67.6% $283,920 

Kelly Pecoraro 60% 252,000 67.5% 170,040 

Aleksander Malkiman 35% 124,250 67.5% 83,920 
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Equity Incentive P lan 

The Compensation Committee believes that long-term incentives are a critical component of our executive compensation program, 
reinforcing the alignment between leadership decisions and long-term stockholder value creation. Our equity incentives are 
designed to attract and retain top talent, drive sustained performance, and ensure executive compensation remains directly linked 
to shareholder interests. 

To achieve these objectives, the Compensation Committee grants a mix of time-based and performance-based equity awards, 
balancing retention, shareholder alignment, and pay-for-performance principles. Time-based awards provide a strong retention 
mechanism, ensuring leaderslillp continuity, while petformance-based awards directly tie realizable compensation to the 
achievement of key fmancial goals. 

In determining target grants, the Compensation Committee considers market practjces, competitive positioning, and the 
Company's business strategy. The table below shows the target annual long-term equity incentive award values granted during 
fiscal year 2024 for each of the NEOs: 

Time-Based Restricted Stock Performance-Based Restricted Stock 

Shares Value Shares at Target Value 
Named Executive Officer (#) ($) (#) ($) 

James D. Nesci 57,045 541,357 57,045 541,357 

Kelly Pecoraro 17,500 166,075 22,500 213,525 

Aleksander Malkiman 6,250 59,313 6,250 59,303 

Award amounts were determined hased on the closing price of our common stock on the date of grant on February 1, 2024, which 

was $9.49. These amounts do not necessarily reflect the actual economic value that will be realized by the NEO upon the vesting of 
the awards. 

The time-based restricted awards vest ratably over a six-year period, which will incentivize the continued service of our key 
executive talent. 

The number of performance-based shares earned will be determined by the Company's achievement of specific financial targets 
over a three-year measurement period from January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2026. Shares are awarded based on the following 
performance metrics and goals: 

Performance Metrics Weighting Performance Target 

Net Loan Growth 30% $350 million 

Net Deposit Growth 40% $400 million 

Net Interest Margin 30% 2.84% 

Following the completion of the three-year performance period, any performance-based shares that are have been earned (based on 
the satisfaction of the foregoing performance metrics and goals) will convert into time-based restricted stock awards that would 
vest ratably over a four-year service period, beginning in 2027. 
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OTHER PROGRAMS, PRACTICES, POLICIES AND GUIDELINES 
S tock Ownersh ip Guidelines. The Board of Directors believes that it is in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders 
to align the fmancial interests of its executive officers and directors with those of shareholders. Accordingly, the Company has 
adopted a Stock Ownership and Retention Policy for executive officers and directors of the Company that require the following 
minimum dollar investment in Company common stock: 

Position Guideline 

Chief Executive Officer One times (lx) base salary 

Other Executive Officers One times (lx) base salary 

Non-Employee Directors Three times (3x) the annual retainer paid to the Director for the ir board membership 

Newly appointed senior executive officers and directors have five years from the time they are appointed, promoted or elected, as 
the case may be, to meet these guidelines. In order to expedite this process, a minimum of 50% of shares (net of taxes) acquired 
through the Company's 2022 Equity Incentive Plan will be required to be held upon each vesting until the guidelines are met. For 
the purpose of determining if the ownership guidelines are met, unvested performance shares and underlying outstanding stock 
options will not be considered. Stock ownership for executive officers and directors is reviewed on an annual basis and the 
Compensation Committee maintains responsibility for the administration of this Policy at its full discretion. 

"Clawback " Provision . The executive compensation program includes a clawback provision. In the event the Company or Blue 
Foundry Bank is required to restate its financial statements, participants will be required to forfeit any incentive award earned or 
distributed during the period for which the restatement is required in excess of what they would have otherwise received based on 
restated results. The Board has discretion in determining the application of clawbacks and the amounts to be reclaimed under this 
provision. The Board also adopted a supplemental clawback policy in December 2023 reflecting Specific standards provided under 
the Dodd-Frank Act. The supplemental clawback policy is designed to supplement the Company's current existing clawback policy. 
Retirement Plans 

Execut ive Officer and Director Hedging and Pledging. The Company has adopted an anti-hedging and anti-pledging policy, 
which prohibits directors and executive officers from engaging in or effecting any transaction designed to hedge or offset the 
economic risk of owning shares of Company common stock. 

Accordingly, any hedging, derivative or other equivalent transaction that is specifically designed to reduce or limit the extent to 
which declines in the trading price of Company common stock would affect the value of the shares of Company common stock 
owned by an executive officer or director is prohibited. Cashless exercises of employee stock options are not deemed short sales and 
are not prohibited. This policy does not prohibit transactions in the stock of other companies. 

The anti-hedg]ng and anti-pledging policy also prohibits directors and executive officers from holding Company securities in a 
margin account or pledging Company securities as collateral for any other loan. 

The Company does not have anti-hedging policies or procedures that are applicable to the Company's employees who are not 
executive officers and as such, hedging transactions by non-executive employees are not prohibited. 

Policies a nd Practices R elated to the Gra n t of Certain Equity A wards. While Blue Foundry Ban corp does not have a formal 
policy or obligation that requires it to grant or award equity-based compensation on a specific date, the Compensation Committee 
and the Board of Directors have a historical practice of not granting stock options to executive officers during closed quarterly 
trading windows as determined under Blue Foundry Bancorp's insider trading policy. Consequently, Blue Foundry Bancorp has 
not granted, and does not expect to grant, any stock options to any named executive officers within four business days preceding 
the filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission of any report on Forms 10-K, 10-Q or 8-K that discloses material 
non-public information. The Compensation Committee and the Board of Directors do not take material non-public information into 
account when determining the timing of equity awards and do not time the disclosure of material non-public information in order 
to impact the value of executive compensation. 

Deferred Compensation Plan. Blue Foundry Bank has entered into an Executive Deferred Compensation Agreement with 
Mr. Nesci (the "Deferred Compensation Agreement"). Under the Deferred Compensation Agreement, each year Blue Foundry Bank 
will credit a contribution of at least $50,000 to an account for the benefit of Mr. Nesci. The amounts credited to the account will 
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earn an annual rate interest equal to the Prime Rate (as reported in the Wall Street Journal on the first business day of the year) 
plus two percent (2%), compounded monthly. The Board of Directors may, in its discretion, change the rate used to credit interest 
on the account from time to time. Mr. Nesci is always 100% vested in his account under the Deferred Compensation Agreement. 
Mr. Nesci generally will become entitled to a lump sum distribution of his account under the plan within 30 days following a 
separation from service. If Mr. Nesci dies prior to receiving a distribution from the plan, his beneficiary will be entitled to receive 
the account balance in a single lump sum payment. In certain situations that would constitute an unforeseeable emergency, 
Mr. Nesci may be entitled to receive an in-service distribution of a portion of his account under the Deferred Compensation 
Agreement. 

401(k) Plan. Blue Foundry Bank maintains the Blue Foundry Bank 401(k) Plan, a tax-qualified defined contribution plan for 
eligible employees (the "401(k) Plan"). The named executive officers are eligible to participate in the 401(k) Plan on the same terms 
as other eligible employees of Blue Foundry Bank. 

Under the 401(k) Plan, a participant may elect to defer, on a pre-tax basis, the maximum amount of compensation permitted by 
the Internal Revenue Code. For 2024, the salary deferral contribution lii.mit was $23,000, provided, however, that a participant 
over age 50 could contribute an additional $7,500 to the 401(k) Plan for a total of $30,500. In addition to salary deferral 
contributions, Blue Foundry Bank makes safe harbor matching contributions equal to 100% of a participant's salary deferrals, up 
to 4% of the participant's compensation, and 50% of a participant's salary deferrals that exceed 4% but do not exceed 6% of the 
participant's compensation. A participant is always 100% vested in hiis or her salary deferral contributions and safe-harbor 
matching contributions. 

Blue Foundry Bank may also make other discretionary matching contributions and other discretionary employer contributions to 
the 401(k) Plan, including profit sharing contributions, which vest based on a participant's years of ser·vice at the rate of 0% 
through three years of service and 100% after completing three years of service. Eligible employees must be 18 years of age and 
complete 12 months of service (in which they complete at least 1,000 hours of service) to receive profit sharing contributions under 
the 401(k) Plan. 

Employee Stock Ownership Plan. In connection with the conversion and related stock offering, Blue Foundry Bank adopted an 
.h:SOP for eligible employees. The named executive officers are eligible to participate in the .h:SOP on the same terms as other 
eligible employees. Eligible employees begin participation in the ESOP upon the first entry date commencing on or after the 
eligible employee's completion of one year of service and attainment of age 18. 

The ESOP trustee purchased, on behalf of the ESOP, 8.0% of the total number of shares of Blue Foundry Bancorp common stock 
issued in the conversion and related stock offering, or 2,281,800 shares. The ESOP funded its stock purchase with a loan from Blue 
Foundry Bancorp equal to the aggregate purchase price of the common stock. The trustee repays the loan principally through Blue 
Foundry Bank's contributions to the ESOP and any dividends payable on common stock held by the ESOP over the antic1pated 
25-year term of the loan. 

The trustee holds the shares purchased by the ESOP in an unallocated suspense account, and shares will be released from the 
suspense account on a pro-rata basis as the trustee repays the loan. The trustee allocates the shares released among participants' 
accounts based on each participant's proportional share of compensation relative to all participants. Participants vest in his or her 
account balance based on his or her years of service with the Bank, at the rate of 20% per year though the first five years of service, 
so that the participant will be 100% vested after completing five years of service. Participants who were employed by Blue Foundry 
Bank immediately prior to the closing of the stock offering received credit for vesting purposes for years of service prior to adoption 
of the ESOP. Participants also will automatically become fully vested upon attainment of their normal retirement age (age 65), 
death or disability, a change in control, or termination of the ESOP. Generally, participants will receive distributions from the 
ESOP upon terminating employment in accordance with the terms of the plan document. The ESOP reallocates any unvested 
shares forfeited upon a participant's termination of employment among the remaining participants. 

Employment Agreement. Blue Foundry Bank entered into an employment agreement with Mr. Nesci, effective January 1, 2021. 
The employment agreement has a term of three years, which extends automatically for one additional year on each anniversary of 
the effective date of the agreement, so that the remaining term is again three years, unless either Blue Foundry Bank or Mr. Nesci 
give notice to the other party of non-renewal. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event Blue Foundry Bancorp or Blue Foundry 
Bank enters into a transaction that would constitute a change in control, as defined under the employment agreement, the term of 
the agreement will automatically extend so that it would expire no less than three years following the effective date of the change 
in control. 
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The employment agreement specified Mr. Nesci's initial base salary of $700,000. The Board of Directors or the Compensation 
Committee of Blue Foundry Bank will review Mr. Nesci's salary no less than annually and may increase, but not decrease, 
Mr. Nesci's base salary. In addition to the base salary, the agreement provides that Mr. Nesci will participate in an annual bonus 
plan with a target amount determined annually that is not less than 20% of his base salary. Mr. Nesci is also eligible to participate 
in any long-term incentive plan adopted by Blue Foundry. Mr. Nesci is also entitled to participate in all employee benefit plan 
arrangements and perquisites offered to employees and officers of Blue Foundry Bank and the reimbursement of reasonable 
business expenses incurred in the performance of his duties with Hlue Foundry Bank. Hlue Foundry .Bank will also provide 
Mr. Nesci with an annual automobile allowance of $1,100 per month and an annual country club membership allowance of 
$22,050. Both the automobile and country club membership allowances will increase by 5% each year. 

Blue Foundry Bank may terminate Mr. Nesci's employment, or Mr. Nesci may resign from his employment, at any time with or 
without good reason. In the event Blue Foundry Bank terminates Mr. Nesci's employment without cause or Mr. Nesci voluntary 
resigns for "good reason" (i.e., a "qualifying termination event"), Blue Foun dry Bank will pay Mr. Nesci a severance payment equal 
to the greater of (i) the sum of one times Mr. Nesci's base salary plus the target amount of the annual incentive bonus (as set by 
the Board of Directors or the Compensation Committee for the calendar year in which Mr. Nesci's termination occurs) or (ii) the 
sum of Mr. Nesci's base salary that would have been paid during the remaining term of the employment agreement, plus the target 
amount of the annual incentive bonus that would have been paid during the remaining term of the employment agreement. The 
severance payment will be paid as salary continuation in substantially equal installments over the twelve-month period following 
the date of Mr. Nesci's termination of employment. In addition, if Mr. Nesci elects continued bank-provided group health plan 
coverage pursuant to the Consolidated Omnibus Reconciliation Act of 1985, as amended ("COBRA"), Blue Foundry Bank will 
reimburse him for the monthly COBRA premium less the active employee premium for the coverage. Mr. Nesci must sign a 
general release of claims to receive the severance payment. A "good reason" condition for purposes of the employment agreement 
includes a material reduction in base salary or target bonus opportunity, a material reduction in authority, duties or 
responsibilities associated with Mr. Nesci's position with Blue Foundry Bank, a relocation of his principal place of employment 
resulting in Mr. Nesci performing his services outside of certain counties listed in the employment agreement. 

If a qualifYing termination event occurs following a change in control of Blue Foundry Bancorp or Blue Foundry Bank, Mr. Nesci 
would be entitled to (in lieu of the payments and benefits described in the previous paragraph) a severance payment equal to three 
times the sum of (i) his base salary, plus (ii) the greater of his highest actual annual incentive bonus for the three calendar years 
immediately preceding his termination of employment or the target amount of the annual incentive bonus set by the Board of 
Directors or the Compensation Committee for the calendar year in which his termination occurs. If Mr. Nesci's termination of 
employment occurs within two years after the change in control, the severance will be paid in one lump-sum payment on the next 
pay date that is at least seven days following his termination. In addition, if Mr. Nesci elects continued bank-provided group health 
plan coverage pursuant to COBRA, Blue Foundry Bank will reimburse him for the monthly COBRA premium less the active 
employee premium for the coverage. 

The employment agreement terminates upon Mr. Nesci's death. Also, upon termination of employment (other than a termination 
in connection with a change in control), Mr. Nesci will be required to adhere to one-year non-competition and non-solicitation 
restrictions set forth in his employment agreement. 

Change in Cont rol Agreement. Blue Foundry Bank has entered into a Change in Control Agreement with Ms. Pecoraro. The 
change in control agreement has a term of one year that extends each day by one day until either party g:ives the other notice of 
non-renewal. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event Blue Foundry Bancorp or Blue Foundry Bank enters into a transaction 
that would constitute a change in control, as defined under the change in control agreements, the term of the agreement will 
automatically extend so that it would expire no sooner than three years following the effective date of the change in control. 

Upon termination of Ms. Pecoraro's employment by Blue Foundry Bank without "cause" or by Ms. Pecoraro with "good reason" on 
or after the effective date of a change in control of Blue Foundry Bank or Blue Foundry Bancorp, Ms. Pecoraro would be entitled to 
a severance payment equal to three times the sum of her: (i) base salary in effect as of the date of termination or immediately prior 
to the change in control, whichever is higher; and (ii) the highest annual cash bonus earned for the three most recently completed 
performance periods prior to the change in control. The severance will be paid in a lump sum within 30 days following the date of 
termination. In addition, Ms. Pecoraro would receive thirty six consecutive monthly cash payments equal to her monthly COBRA 
premium. 

A "good reason" condition for purposes of the change in control agreement includes a material reduction in base salary, a material 
reduction in authority, duties or responsibilities associated with her position with Blue Foundry Bank, a relocation of her principal 
place of employment resulting in an increase in her commute by 30 miles or more. 
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COMPENSATION RISK MANAGEMENT 
Our Chief Risk Officer evaluated all incentive-based compensation for employees of the Company and the report for the 
Compensation Committee indicating that none of our incentive-based awards individually, or taken together, was reasonably 
likely to have a material adverse effect on Blue Foundry. None of the compensation or incentives for Blue Foundry employees were 
considered as encouraging undue or unwan·anted risk. The Compensation Committee accepted the report. 

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE 
The following table sets forth, for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, certain information as to the total compensation 
paid to James D. Nesci, who serves as our President and Chief Executive Officer, Kelly Pecoraro, who serves as our Executive Vice 
President and Chief Financial Officer and, for 2024, Aleksander Malkiman, who serves as our Executive Vice President and Chief 
Technology Officer. Each of the individuals listed in the table below is referred to as a "Named Executive Officer (NEO)." 

Non-Equity 
Stock Option Incentive All Other 

Name and principal position Year Salary Awards<1l Awards Compensation Compensation<2l Total 

James D. Nesci 2024 $700,000 $1,082,714 $- $283,920 $136,125 $2,202,759 
President and Chief Executive Officer 2023 700,000 2,738,160 126,000 ].31,470 3,695,630 

Kelly Pecoraro 2024 420,000 379,600 170,040 19,148 988,788 
Executive Vice President and 2023 400,000 840,000 42,000 18,306 1,300,306 
ChiefFinancial Officer 

Aleksander Malkiman 2024 355,000 118,625 83,920 18,089 575,634 
Executive Vice President and 
Chief Technology Officer(3) 

(1) The amounts shown in 2024 and 2023 reflect the aggregate grant date fair value of time-vesting and per-formance-vesting awards computed 
in accordance with ASC Topic 718. The grant date fair values of the per-formance-vesting portion of the awards are computed at target 
performance achievement. 'fhe pe1-for m,nce ~hare~, awarded in 2023, with a grant date fair value of$1 ,36!-l,ORO and $420,000 for M1·. Nesci 
and Ms. Pecoraro, respectively, were forfeited on January 1, 2024. 

(2) The compensation represented by the amounts for 2024 and 2023 set forth in the "All Other Compensation" column for the Named Executive 
Officers is detailed in the following table. 

(3) Mr. Mal kim an became a Named Executive Officer in 2024. 

All Other Compensation 

Deferred 
401(k)Plan Compensation Country Life Total All 
Matching Plan Automobile Club Insurance Other 

Name Year Contributions Contributions Usage Membership Premiums Compensation 

James D. Nesci 2024 $17,250 $82,636 $15,316 $19,129 $1,794 $136,125 
2023 16,500 80,328 14,586 18,262 1,794 131,470 

Kelly Pecoraro 2024 17,250 1,898 19,148 
2023 16,500 1,806 18,306 

Aleksander Malkiman 2024 17,250 839 18,0,89 

P.roxy Statement 



Proposal 1: E lection of Directors 

GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS 
At the annual meeting of shareholders held on August 25, 2022, a majority of the shareholders of the Company approved the Blue 
Foundry Bancorp 2022 Equity Incentive Plan ("2022 Equity Plan"). The following table summarizes grants made in 2024 to our 
NEOs. 

Estimated Payouts 
under Equity Incentive All Other 

Estimated. Payouts under Non- Plan Awards Number Stock Grant Date 
Equity lneentive Plan Awards of Shares Awards Exercise Fair Value 

Number of or Base of Stock 
Grant Threshold Target Superior Shares Price of' Awards 

Name Date ($) ($) ($) Threshold TargetU> (#)(2) Awards ($)<3) 

James D. Nesci 2/112024 210,000 420,000 630,000 

211/2024 28,523 57,045 57,045 $9.49 1,082,714 

Kelly Pecoraro 2/112024 126,000 252,000 378,000 

211/2024 8,750 22,500 17,500 9.49 379,600 

Aleksander Malkiman 211/2024 62,125 124,250 186,375 

211/2024 3,125 6,250 6,250 9.49 118,625 

(1) The Performance-Based Restricted Stock Awards granted on February 1, 2024, have a three year measurement period ending on 
December 31, 2026. The shares that have been eamed will then convert into time-based restricted stock awards that vest ratably over a four­
year service period provided the executive remains employed by the Bank or the Company. 

(2) The Restricted Stock Awards granted on February 1, 2024, will ratably vest in one-sixth increments beginning one year from the date of 
grant. 

(3) The grant date fair value of the stock awards granted in 2024 is calculated by multiplying the number of shares by the closing stock price on 
the date of grant. 
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OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END 
The following table shows information regarding all outstanding equity awards held by our NEOs on December 31, 2024. 

Equity 
Incentive 

Plan 
Equity Awards: 

Incentive Market or 
Plan Payout 

Awards Value of 
Number Number of Unearned 

Number of Number of of Shares Market Unearned Shares, 
Securities Securities or Unites Value of Shares, Units or 

Underlying Underlying of Stock Shares or Units or Other 
Unexercised Unexercised Option That Unit of Other Rights That 

Options Options Exercise Option Have Not Stock That Rights That Have Not 
Grant Exercisable Unexercisable Price Expiration Vested Vested Have Not Vested 

Name Date (#) (#)(I) ($) Date(2> (#)U> ($)(4) Vested (#)(3> ($)(4) 

James D. 
Nesci 10/19/2022 81 ,493 488,957 11.69 10/19/2032 

3/6/2023 114,090 1,119,223 

211/2024 57,045 559,611 57,045 559,611 

Kelly 
Pecoraro 10/19/2022 25,286 151,714 11.69 10/19/2032 

3/6/2023 35,000 343,350 

211/2024 17,500 171,675 22,500 220,725 

Aleksander 
Malkiman 10/19/2022 9,828 68,800 11.69 10/19/2032 

3/6/2023 12,500 122,625 

211/2024 6,250 61,313 6,250 61,313 

(1) Stock options and restricted stock awards granted in 2022 and 2023 vest over a seven-year period commencing on the first anniversary of the 
date granted. Restricted stock awards granted in 2024 vest over a six-year period commencing on the first anniversary of the date granted. 

(2) Stock options expire, if unexercised, 10 years after the grant date. 
(3) Amounts shown for represent the number of stock awards that would vest ifpetformance goals are achieved at target. 2023 performance 

grants were forfeited on January 1, 2024. 
(4) Amounts shown are based on th e fair market value of Blue Foundry Bancorp common stock on December 31, 2024 of$9.81. 
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Proposal 1: E lection of Directors 

DIRECTORS' COMPENSATION 
ANNUAL BOARD RETAINER 
Currently, each person who serves as a director of Blue Foundry Bancorp also serves as a director of Blue Foundry Bank. 

Directors currently receive a base annual retainer of$51,000. The Chairman of the Board receives an additional annual retainer of 
$15,000. These retainers are for service on both the Bancorp and Bank Boards pursuant to an expense allocation agreement. 

BOARD COMMITTEE AND COMMITTEE CHAIR RETAINERS 
Committee compensation is detailed below: 

Nomination and 

Audit 
Corporate 

Governance Compensation Enterprise Risk 

Committee Member $10,500 $ 6,000 $ 7,000 $ 6,000 

Committee Chair 20,000 11,500 12,000 13,500 

DIRECTOR EQUITY AWARDS 
At the 2022 annual meeting, shareholders approved the 2022 Equity Plan, which specifically provided for a grant, to each 
non-employee director at the time, of 42,783 shares of restricted stock and 106,959 options which were awarded in 2022. 

During 2024, grants of 19,255 restricted stock awards and 48,133 option awards were made to each director, Ms. Jobes and 
Mr. Kuntz. The awards vest ratably over five years. 

DIRECTOR RETIREMENT PLANS 
Director Retirement Plan. As a mutual institution, in 2007 Blue Foundry Bank entered into a Restated Director Retirement 
Plan with each of directors Ely and Grimbilas. In June 2022 Blue Foundry Bank and Messrs. Ely and Grimbilas amended and 
froze the plans so that there will be no further benefit accruals. As amend!ed, at the later of the director's separation of service as a 
director or attaining age 70, Messrs. Ely and Grimbilas (having satisfied the ten years of service requirement under the plans) will 
receive a monthly benefit equal to $3,643.84 and $4,038.67, respectively, which was the value of the accrued benefit under the 
plans as of the date that the plans were frozen. The benefit will be paid for the greater of the director's life or five years, provided, 
however, that if the director dies within five years of terminating service with the board o.f directors, his beneficiary will continue 
to receive the monthly payments until the end of the five-year period. Each director will be entitled to the same benefit if he 
terminates service on account of becoming disabied if he has completed ten years of continuous service. 

Director Retirement Plan II. As a mutual institution, in 2018 Blue Foundry Bank also established the Boiling Springs Savings 
Bank Director Retirement Plan II (the "Director Retirement Plan") for eligible directors (i.e., a "participant") who are not covered 
under the Director Emeritus Plan. All current directors, other than directors Ely, Grimbilas, Jobes, Lang and Kuntz participate in 
the Director Retirement Plan. In June 2022, Blue Foundry Bank amended and froze the plan so that there will be no further 
benefit accruals under the plan and to provide that no new directors will participate. Under the Director Retirement Plan, as 
amended, a participant who terminates service after completing ten consecutive years of service will receive an annual benefit 
based on the value of the accrued benefit under the plan as of the date the plan was frozen. The annual benefit amounts range 
from $942 to $17,767. The benefits will be paid in substantially monthly installments, for ten years. Following a participant's 
separation from service, Blue Foundry Bank will begin making the payments to the participant on the first business day of the 
month following the later of (i) the day the participant attains age 70 or (ii) the date of the participant's separation from service. 
Each participant is entitled to the same level of benefit upon death or disability or upon a termination of service within 24 months 
following a change in control of Blue Foundry Bank; provided that the benefits paid upon the death of the participant while in 
service and in connection with a change in control will be paid in a lump sum. Benefits paid upon the participant's death or 
disability will be paid the first day of the month following the later of (i) the day the participant attains age 70 or (ii) the date that 
is ten years from the date the participant first became a member of the board of directors. The change in control benefit is paid 
within 30 days of the participant's termination from service following a change in control. 
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DIRECTOR COMPENSATION TABLE 
The total 2024 compensation of our non-employee directors is shown in the following table. 

Fees Earned or Stock Option All Other 
Name Paid in Cash Awards<•> Awards(2) CompensationiS) Total 

J. Christopher Ely $78,000 $ $ $ $ 78,000 

Robert T. Goldstein 69,000 69,000 

Kenneth Grimbilas 95,500 1,638 97,138 

Elizabeth Varki Jobes 67,500 1!)1,587 176,648 435,735 

Patrick H. Kinzler 75,000 75,000 

John F. Kuntz 30,625 191,587 183,387 405,599 

Mirella Lang 74,500 74,500 

Jonathan M. Shaw 74,500 74,500 

(1) Messrs. Ely, Goldstein, Grimbilas, Kinzle r and Shaw and Ms. Lang each has unvested stock awards of25,669; Ms. Jobes and Mr. Kuntz each 
had unvested stock awards of 19,255 as of December 31, 2024. 

(2) Messrs. Ely, Goldstein, Grimbilas, Kinzler and Goldstein and Ms. Lang each has unexercised stock option awards of 106,959 and Ms. Jobes 
and Mt·. Kuntz each has unexea·cised stock option awards of 48,133 as of December 31, 2024. 

(3) Represents payments ofmedical premiums on behalf of Mr. Grimbilas. 
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Blue Foundry Bancorp's independent registered public accounting firm for the year ended December 31, 2024 was KPMG LLP, 
("KPMG"). The Audit Committee has re-appointed KPMG to continue as the independent registered public accounting firm for 
Blue Foundry Bancorp for the year ending December 31, 2025. At the annual meeting, shareholders will consider and vote on the 
ratification of the Audit Committee's engagement of KPMG for the year ending December 31, 2025. A representative of KPMG is 
expected to be available dwing the annual meet ing and may respond to appropriate questions and make a statement if he or she 
so desires. 

The Board of Directors is submitting the appointment of the independent registered public accounting firm to the shareholders for 
ratification as a matter of good corporate practice. Even if the engagement of KPMG is ratified, the Audit Committee, in its 
discretion, may direct the appointment of a different independent registered public accounting firm at any time during the year if 
it determines that such change would be in the best interests of Blue Foundry Bancorp and its shareholders. 

During the Company's fiscal years 2024 and 2023 (i) there were no disagreements with KPMG on any matter of accounting 
principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedures which, if not resolved to KPMG's 
satisfaction, would have caused KPMG to make reference to the subject matter of the disagreement in connection with its reports, 
and (ii) there were no "reportable events" as defined in Item 304(a)(1)(v) of Regulation S-K of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission (the "SEC"). 

Set forth below is certain information concerning aggregate fees for professional services rendered by KPMG during fiscal years 
2024 and 2023, respectively. 

Audit Fees. The aggregate fees billed to the Company for professional services rendered for the audit of the Company's annual 
consolidated financial statements, review of the consolidated financial statements included in the Company's annual report on 
Form 10-K and services that are normally provided in connection with statutory and regulatory filings and engagements were 
$835,000 and $940,000 during fiscal years 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

Audit Related Fees. There were $1,780 aggregate fees billed to the Company by KPMG during the fiscal years 2024 and 2023 
respectively for assurance and related services rendered that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit of and review 
of the consolidated financial statements services. 

Tax Fees. The were no aggregate fees billed to the Company by KPMG for professional services rendered for tax compliance during 
the fiscal years 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

Other Fees. There were no aggregate fees billed to the Company by KPMG for other professional services rendered during fiscal 
years 2024 and 2023. 

Policy on Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Non-Audit Services of Independent Registered Public Accountants. The Audit 
Committee's policy is to pre-approve all audit and non-audit services provided by the independent registered public accountants. 
These services may include audit services, audit-related services, tax services and other services. Pre-approval is provided for up to 
one year, and any pre-approval is detailed as to the particular service or category of services and is subject to a specific budget. The 
Audit Committee has delegated pre-approval authority to its Chair when necessary, with subsequent reporting to the Audit 
Committee. The independent registered public accountants and management are required to rep01t to the Audit Committee 
quarterly regarding the extent of services provided by the independent registered public accountants in accordance with this 
pre-approval policy, and the fees for the services performed to date. 

f"/\ THE BOARD UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS A VOTE FOR THE RATIFICATION 
~ OF KPMG AS INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM FOR 

THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2025. 
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We have been advised that a shareholder who owns of 18,512 shares of the Company's common stock, intends to present the 
following non-binding proposal at the Annual Meeting. If the proposal is properly presented by the proponent, or by a 
representative who is qualified under state law, and the proponent or such representative participates in our Annual Meeting and 
submits the proposal for a vote, then the proposal will be voted upon. 

The text of the Shareholder Proposal and supporting statement appear verbatim as received from the proponent. All statements 
contained in the Shareholder Proposal and supporting statement are the sole responsibility of the proponent. To the extent that 
the Shareholder Proposal may contain assertions about our company or other matters that we believe are incoiTect, we have not 
attempted to refute or correct any such assertions. The response from our board of directors and the recommendation on the 
proposal are set forth immediately following the proposal. 

The name and address of the pt·oponent will be furnished upon receipt by the Corporate Secretary of an oral or written request for 
that information. 

Stockholder Proposal recommending sale or merger of the Company 

RESOLVED that the Stockholders of Blue Foundry Bancorp ("BLFY") strongly recommend that the Board of Directors take all 
necessary steps to merge, or sell, BLFY on terms that will maximize stockholder value. 

BLFY's respon.se to my last year's Stockholder Proposal to sell or merge the Banll stated that the Proposal was '"payback" for BLFY's 
refusal to appoint my friend to the Board. The present Proposal is not based on "payback" but rather based on the poor performance 
ofBLFY. 

My name is Lawrence Seidman (lseidman@;eidman-associates.com); I own 18,512 shares and manage an additional171,021 shares 
in private funds. 

BLFY went public on July 15, 2021. From the calendar year December 31, 2020 to December 31, 2023 BLFY lost approximately 
$72,849,000. For the three months ended Marh 31, 2024, BLFY lost $2,839,000 ($0.13 per share), for the second quarter of 2024, 
BLFY lost $2,344,000 ($0.11 per share), and for the third quarter 2024, BLFY lost $4,041,000 ($0.19 per share). BLFY has lost 
money in 14 of the last 18 quarters and is currently on their seventh quarter in a row of negative earnings. 

BLFY continues to be one of the worst-performing publicly-traded financial institutions with between $1 and $3 billion in assets as 
reported by S&P Global. This poor performance did not stop the Compensation Committee, and the Board, from rewarding 
Mr. Nesci (BLFY's President and Chief Executive Officer) with $3,669,376 and $3,695,630 of total compensation in calendar years 
2022 and 2023 respectively. In addition, BLFY's poor financial performance did not stop the Directors in the calendar year 2022 
from awarding themselves approximately $975,000 in compensation (including stock awards worth $493,716 and option awards 
worth $406,444). It is clear that the Directors and Mr. Nesci are doing very well financially while the Stockholders' suffer. 

BLFY's stock price compares poorly to the KRE bank index for calendar year 2024. The KRE bank index has increased 
approximately 27.02% (as of November 12, 2024) while the BLFY stock price has increased 14.37% in that same time period. 

BLFY is a liability-sensitive bank, therefore, the Federal Reserve's 50 basis point interest rate reduction should have been beneficial 
to BLFY. However, BLFY's net interest margin decreased 14 basis points from the prior quarter to an abysmal 1.82% in the third 
quarter of 2024. Net interest income declined to $9.1 million in the third quarter 2024 from $9.6 million in the second quarter 2024. 
Non-interest income decreased $149,000 and non-interest expense increased $52,000. 
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Proposal 3: Shareh older Proposal 

BLFY has not provided any information on the progress of the "nationally recognized Investment Banking Firm" they represented 
was hired, nor named which Firm was hired. 

A sale, or merger, of BLFY is the only way to serve the interests of all the Stockholders. Please vote for this Proposal to sell or merge 
the Bank. 

fv\ THE BOARD UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS A VOTE AGAINST THE 
~ FOREGOING PROPOSAL FOR THE FOLLOWING REASONS: 

This proposal is unnecessary, and we do not believe that it is in the best interest of shareholders. As we have publicly disclosed, 
your Board of Directors has engaged a nationally recognized investment banking firm to provide advice and assistance in 
connection with assessing a possible merger and acquisition transaction as a means of delivering value to our shareholders. But a 
directive to "just sell the bank" will not maximize value for shareholders. 

fv\ FOR THE ABOVE REASONS, THE BOARD UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS A 
~ VOTE AGAINST THIS PROPOSAL. 
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Bylaw Provisions Regarding Sh a reholde r Proposals and Nomina tions. The Company's Bylaws generally provide that any 
shareholder desiring to make a proposal for new business at a meeting of shareholders or to nominate one or more candidates for 
election as directors at a meeting of shareholders must have given timely notice thereof in writing to the Secretary of the 
Company. The Secretary must receive such written notice no less than ].20 days prior to the anniversary date of the Company's 
proxy materials for the prior year's annual meeting. Based on the April 10, 2025 date of this Proxy Statement, the notice with 
respect to the 2026 annual meeting of shareholders will be required to be provided to the Company by December 11, 2025. 

The notice with respect to shareholder proposals that are not nominations for director must set forth as to each matter such 
shareholder proposes to bring before the annual meeting: (i) a brief description of the business desired to be brought before the 
annual meeting, the reasons for conducting such business at the annual meeting and any material interests in such business of 
such shareholder and any beneficial owner; (ii) t he name and address of such shareholder as they appear on our books and of the 
beneficial owner, if any, on whose behalf the proposal is made; (iii) the class and number of shares of our capital stock which are 
owned beneficially or of record by such shareholder and such beneficial owner; and (iv) a representation as to whether such 
shareholder intends to deliver a proxy statement and form of proxy to sh areholders who in the aggregate own enough shares to 
legally carry the proposal. 

The notice with respect to director nominations must include: (a) as to each person whom the shareholder proposes to nominate for 
election as a director, such information relating to such person that is required to be disclosed in connection with solicitations of 
proxies for election of directors, or is otherwise required, in each case pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Exchange Act, or any 
successor rule or regulation and a written consent of each proposed nominee to be named as a nominee and to serve as a director if 
elected; and (b) as to the shareholder giving the notice: (i) the name and address of such shareholder as they appear on our books 
and of the beneficial owner, if any, on whose behalf the nomination is made; (ii) the class and number of shares of our capital stock 
which are owned beneficially or of record by such shareholder and such beneficial owner; and (iii) a representation as to whether 
such shareholder intends to deliver a proxy statement and form of proxy to shareholders who in the aggregate own a sufficient 
number of shares to elect such nominee. 

Failure to comply with these advance notice requirements will preclude such new business or nominations from being considered 
at the meeting. 

Nothing in this proxy statement shall be deemed to require us to include in ow· proxy statement and proxy relating to an annual 
meeting any shareholder proposal or nomination that does not meet a ll of the requirements for inclusion established by the SEC in 
effect at the time such proposal or nomination is received. 

Requirement for Shareholder Proposal to b e Included in 2026 Proxy Statem ent. Generally, in order to be eligible for 
inclusion in the proxy materials for an annual meeting of shareholders, any shareholder proposal submitted pursuant to SEC Rule 
14a-8 must be received at Blue Foundry Bancorp's executive office, 19 Park Avenue, Rutherford, New Jersey 07070, no later than 
120 days pr ior to the anniversary date of the Company's proxy materials relating to the prior year's annual meeting. Any proposals 
of shareholders intended to be submitted at the 2026 Annual Meeting of Shareholders under SEC Rule 14a-8 must be no later than 
December 11, 2025 in order to be considered for inclusion in the proxy statement and form of proxy for such meeting. Any such 
proposals will be subject to the requirements of the proxy rules adopted under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 

Shareholder Solicitation of .Proxies in Support of Nominees Other Than Company Nominees. A shareholder intending 
to engage in a director election contest at next year's annual meeting must give the Company notice of their intent to solicit p roxies 
by providing the names of its nominees and certain other information 60 days before the anniversary of the prior year's annual 
meeting. This deadline is March 16, 2026. Notice should be provided to our executive office, 19 Park Avenue, Rutherford, New 
J ersey 07070. Any such notice and solicitation will be subject to the requirements of the proxy rules adopted under the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934. 

Proxy Statement 



The Hoard of Directors is not aware of any business to come before the annual meeting other than the matters described above in 
the Proxy Statement. However, if any matters should properly come before the annual meeting, it is intended that the Board of 
Directors, as holders of the proxies, will act as determined by a majority vote. 

Shareholders will be able to obtain, free of charge, copies of all proxy statements, any amendments or supplements thereto and any 
other documents (including the proxy card) when filed by the applicable party with the SEC in connection with the annual meeting 
at the SEC's website (http://www.sec.gov). 
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A copy of Hlue J.<'oundry Hancorp's annual report on J.<'orm 10-K for the year ended December :n, 2024 will be furnished without 
charge to shareholders as of the record date upon written request to the Corporate Secretary, 19 Park Avenue, Rutherford, New 
Jersey 07070 (regular mail or overnight delivery) or by calling (201) 939-5000. 

II 



Important Notice Regarding 
the Availability of Proxy 
Materials 
Hlue .l<'oundry Hancorp's Proxy Statement, including the Notice of the Annual Meeting of Shareholders, and the 2024 Annual 
Report on Form 10-K are each available on the Internet at www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/BLFY2025. 

Rutherford, New Jersey 
AprillO, 2025 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

Elyse D. Beidner 
Corporate Secretary 
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Forward-Looking Statements 

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements, which can be identified by the use of words such as 
"estimate," "project," "believe," " intend," "anticipate," "plan," "seek," "expect" and words of similar meaning. These forward­
looking statements include, but are not limited to: 

stat-ements of our goals, intentions and expectations; 

• stat·ements regarding our business plans, prospects, growth and operating strategies; 

stat·ements regarding the quality of our loan and investment portfolios; and 

estimates of our risks and future costs and benefits. 

These forward-looking statements are based on current beliefs and expectations of our management and are inherently subject 
to significant business, economic and competitive uncertainties and contingencies, many of which are beyond our control. In 
addition, these forward-looking statements are subject to assumptions with respect to future business strategies and decisions that 
are subject to change. We are under no duty to and do not take any obligation to update any forward-looking statements after the 
date of the Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

The following factors, among others, could cause actual results to differ materially from the anticipated results or other 
expectations expressed in the forward-looking statements: 

inflation and changes in the interest rate environment that reduce our margins and yields, or reduce the fair value of 
financial instruments or reduce the origination levels in our lend ing business, or increase the level of defaults, losses and 
prepayments on loans we have made and make whether held in portfolio or sold in the secondary markets; 

• general economic conditions, either nationally or in our market areas, that are worse than expected; 

our ability to access cost-effective funding; 

our ability to meet applicable capital requirements; 

our ability to maintain liquidity, including the percentage of uninsured deposits in our portfolio; 

our ability to manage market risk, credit risk and operational risk in the current economic conditions; 

changes in consumer demand, borrowing and savings habits; 

demand for loans and deposits in our market area; 

changes in the level and direction of loan delinquencies and write-offs and changes in estimates of the adequacy of the 
allowance for credit losses; 

fluctuations in real estate values and both residential and commercial real estate market conditions; 

significant increases in our loan losses; 

our ability to implement changes in our business strategies; 

• competition among depository and other financial institutions; 

adverse changes in the securities markets; 

changes in laws or government regulations or policies affecting financial institutions, including changes in regulatory 
fees and capital requirements; 

changes in monetary or fiscal policies of the U.S. Government, including policies of the U.S. Treasury and the Federal 
Reserve Board; 

our ability to enter new markets successfully and capitalize on growth opportunities; 

• changes in accounting policies and practices, as may be adopted by bank regulatory agencies, the Financial Accounting 
Standards Board, the Securities and Exchange Commission or the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board; 

• our ability to retain key employees; 

technological changes; 
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cyber-attacks, computer viruses and othe r technological risks that may breach the security of our websites or o ther 
systems to obtain unauthorized access to confidential info1mation and destroy data or disable our systems; 

technological changes that may be more difficul t or expensive than expected; 

the ability of third-pa•ty providers to perform the ir obligations to us; 

the ability of the U.S. Government to manage federal debt limits; 

• changes in the financial condition, results of operations or future prospects of issuers of securities that we own; 

our ability to successfully integrate any assets, liabilities, clients, systems and management personnel we have acquired 
or may acquire into our operations and our ability to realize re lated revenue syne rg ies and cost savings within expected 
time frames and any goodwill charges related the reto; 

othe r economic, competitive, governmental, regulatory and operational factors affecting our operat ions, pricing products 
and services described elsewhere in the Annual Report on Form I 0-K; and 

the current or anticipa ted impact of military conflict, terrorism or other geopolitica l events 

Because of tbese and otber uncertainties, our actual future results may be materially different from the results indicated by 
these forward-looking statements. 
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PART I 

ITEM 1. BUSINESS 

Blue Foundry Bancorp 

Blue Foundry Bancorp (the "Company") is a Delaware corporation which became the holding company for Blue Foundry 
Bank (the "Bank") on July 15, 2021, following the completion of the mutual-to-stock conversion of Blue Foundry, MHC. rn 
connection with the conversion, the Company sold 27,772,500 shares of common stock, par value $0.0 I per share, at a price of 
$10 per share, for gross proceeds of $277.7 million. The Company also contributed 750,000 shares of conunon stock and 
$1.5 million in cash to Blue Foundry Charitable Foundation, lnc. Shares of the Company's conunon stock began trading on 
July I 6, 2021 on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the trading symbol "BLFY." 

The Company owns aU of the outstanding common stock of the Bank, and as such, is a bank holding company subject to 
regulation by the Federal Reserve Board. 

Blue Foundry Bank 

The Barnk is a New Jersey-chartered stock savings bank that was organjzed in 1939 as Boiling Springs Savings & Loan 
Association by the combination of the Rutherford Mutual Loan and Building Association, which had been founded in 1876., and 
the East Rutherford Savings, Loan and Building Association. In 1992, Boiling Springs Savings & Loan Association converted to a 
New Jersey-chartered mutual savings bank and became known as Boiling Springs Savings Bank. Boiling Springs Savings Bank's 
name was changed to Blue Foundry Bank in 2019. At December 31, 2024, the Bank had assets of $2.06 billion, net loans of 
$1.57 billion and deposits of $1.34 billion. 

Blue Foundry Bank's principal business consists of originating residential, multifamily, and commercial real estate mortgages, 
construction, commercial and industrial loans and home equity loans and lines of credit in our principal market and surrounding 
areas. In addiition, we occasionally lend outside of our branch network in more densely populated and metropolitan areas, adding 
diversification to our loan portfolio. We attract retail deposits from the general public in the areas surrounding our banking offices, 
through our borrowers, and through our online presence, offering a wide variety of deposit products. We also invest in securities. 
Our revenues are derived primarily from interest on loans and, to a lesser extent, interest on mor1gage-backed and other investment 
securities. Our primary sources of funds are deposits, principal and interest payments on loans and securities and borrowings. 

Blue Foundry Bank is subject to comprehensive regulation and examination by the New Jersey Department of Banking and 
Insurance ("NJDOBI") and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC"). Our website address is www.bluefoundrybank.com. 
Infom1ation on this website is not and should not be considered a part of this Annual RepOit on Form 10-K. 

Market Area 

Our market area is primarily northern New Jersey. As of December 31, 2024, the Bank operates 20 full service banking 
offices in Bergen, Essex, Hudson, Middlesex, Morris, Passaic, and Union ·counties in New Jersey. The administrative offices of the 
Company and Bank are located at 7 Sylvan Way, Suite 200, Parsippany, New Jersey 07054. Our telephone number is 
(201) 939-5000. 

The economy in our primary market area benefits from being varied and diverse, with a broad economic base. New Je rsey, 
counted among the wealthiest states in the nation with an estimated population of 9.29 million, is considered one of the most 
attractive banking markets in the United States. Within our primary market areas, the Bank had less than l % of bank deposit 
market share as of June 30, 2024, the latest date for which statistics are available. 

We believe that we have developed products and services that meet the financial needs of our current and future customer 
base; however, we plan, and believe it is necessary, to continuously evaluate our products and service offerings in light of evolving 
expectations and make the appropriate enhancements to ensure we remain competitive in our market area. Our marketing strategies 
focus on the strength of our knowledge of local consumer and small to medium size business markets, as well as expanding 
relationships with current customers and reachjng out to develop new, profitable business relationships. 
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Com petition 

We face significant competition for deposits and loans. 0UI" most direct competition for deposits has come historically from 
the numerous financial institutions operating in our market area (including other community banks and credit unions), many of 
which are significantly larger than we are and have greater resources. We also face competition for depositor funds from othe r 
sources such as financial technology companies, online banks, brokerage firms, money market funds and mutual funds, as well as 
from securities offered by the Federal Government, such as Treasury bills . Additionally, money center banks, such as Bank of 
America, JP Morgan Chase, Wells Fargo and Citi, and large regional banks, such as TD Bank, M&T Bank and PNC Bank, have a 
significant presence in our market area. 

Our competition for loans: comes primarily from the competitors referenced above and from other fmancial service providers, 
such as mortgage companies and mortgage brokers. Competition for loans also comes from the increasing numbe r of 
non-depository financial service companies participating in the mortgage market, such as insurance companies, securities firms, 
financial technology companies, specialty finance firms and technology companies. 

We expect competition to remain intense in the future as a result of legislative, regulatory and technological changes and the 
potential of consolidation in the financial services industry. Technological advances, for example, have lowered barriers to entry, 
allowed banks to expand their geographic reach by providing services over the internet a11d made it possible for non-depository 
institutions, including financial technology companies, to offer products and services that traditionally have been provided by 
banks. 

The flow of deposits is also significantly influenced by the general economic conditions. We offer a variety of deposit 
products that allow us to respond to customer demands and to be competitive in obtaining deposits. Our ability to attract and 
maintain deposits and the rates we pay on deposits will continue to be affected by market conditions. 

During the last four months of 2024, the Federal Reserve reduced the federal funds rate three times, tota ling I 00 basis points, 
to 4.50% at the end of the year. By year end 2024, inflation had declined to 2.9% from 3.4% at December 31, 2023. 

Lending Activities 

Historically, our lending activities have emphasized residential real estate loans and multifamily housi.ng loans and such loans 
continue to comprise the largest p01tion of our loan portfolio. We have shifted our focus to engage in more commercial-like 
lending to inc lude commercial mOitgage loans, construction loans and commerc ial and indllstrial ("C&I") loans. C&l loans inc lude 
C&I revolvers, term loans and Small Business Administration ("SBA") 7a loans. Subject to market conditions and our asset­
liability analysis, we expect to continue to focus on commercial real estate and traditional C&I lending as part of our effort to 
diversify the loan portfolio and increase the overall yield earned on our loans. We compete for loans by offering high quality 
personalized service, providing convenience and fl exibility, timely responses on loan applications, and by offering competitive 
pricing. Additionally, we have taken the opportunity to participate in unsecured consumer loans with credit enhancements. These 
loans provide a reasonable yield with low exposure to credit loss. 

Loan Portfolio Composition. The following table sets forth the composition of the loan portfolio at the dates indicated. 

Residential 

Multifamily 

Commercial real estate 

Construction and land 

Junior liens 

Commercial and Industrial 

Consumer and other 

Total loans 

6 

December 3 1. 2024 December 31. 2023 

Amount Percent Amount Percent 

(Dollars in thousands) 

$ 518,243 32.72% $ 550,929 35.30% 

671,116 42.38 682,564 43.74 

259,633 16.40 232,505 14.90 

85,546 5.40 60,4 14 3.87 

25,422 1.61 22,503 1.44 

16,3 ll 1.03 11,768 0.75 

7,211 0.46 47 

$ 1,583,482 I 00.00% $1 ,560,730 100.00% 
--- ---
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Loan Maturity. The following tables set fotth cettain information at December 31, 2024 regarding the dollar amount of loan 
principal repayments becoming due during the periods indicated. The tables do not inc lude any estimate of prepayments that 
significantly shorten the average loan life and may cause actual repayment experience to differ from that shown below. The 
amounts shown below include unearned loan origination fees and costs, a111d unamortized premium and discounts, net. 

Amounts due in 

More than one More than five 
One year year through years through More than 
or less five years fifteen years fifteen years Total 

(ln thousands) 

Residential $ 328 $ 7,255 $139,312 $371,348 $ 518,243 

Multifamily 29,916 65,789 444,215 131,196 671,116 

Commercial real estate 14,231 109,126 118,426 17,850 259,633 

Construction 79,246 6,300 85,546 

Junior liens 457 2,632 22,333 25,422 

Commercial and industrial 2,941 9,741 2,916 713 16,3 11 

Consumer and other 40 8 7,163 7,211 

Total loans $126,702 $198,676 $7 14,664 $543,440 $1,583,482 

Fixed vs. Adjustable Rate Loans. The following table sets forth the dollar amount of a ll loans at December 31, 2024 that are 
due after December 31, 2025 and have either fixed interest rates or floating or adjustable interest rates. The amounts shown below 
include unearned loan origination fees and costs and unamortized premium and discounts, net. 

Fixed 
Floating or 
A djustable 

Rates Rates Total 

(In thousands) 

Residential $347,078 $170,837 $ 517,915 

Multifamily 100,968 540,232 641,200 

Commercial real estate 104,760 140,642 245,402 

Construction 6,300 6,300 

Junior liens 7,765 17,657 25,422 

Commercial and industrial 7,284 6,086 13,370 

Consumer and other 7,171 7,171 

Total loans $575,026 $881,754 $ 1,456,780 

Residential Real Estate Loans. Our residential loan portfolio consists of mortgage loans that enable bonowers to purchase or 
refinance existing homes, most of which serve as the primary residence of the borrower. At December 31, 2024, residential real 
estate loans totaled $518.2 minion, or 32.7% of our total loan portfolio, and consisted of $347.1 million of fixed-rate loans and 
$170.8 million of adjustable-rate loans. 

We offer fixed-rate and adjustable-rate residential real estate loans with maturities up to 30 years. The residential mmtgage 
loans we a re currently originating are generally underwritten according to Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac guidelines and we refer to 
loans that conform to such guidelines as "conforming loans." We generally originate both fixed and adjustable-rate mortgage loans 
in amounts up to the maximum conforming loa111 limits. We currently originate loans above the conforming limits up to a maximum 
amount of $3.0 million, which are referred to as ' jumbo loans." We generally underwrite jumbo loans, whether originated or 
purchased, in a manner similar to conforming loans. At December 3 1, 2024, our largest l'esidential loan totaled $3.7 millio n, is 
secured by single family home located on approximately 53 acres of property and was not performing in accordance with its 
original terms. 

Our adjustable-rate residential real estate loans have interest rates that are fixed for an initial period ranging from three to ten 
years. After the initial fixed period, the interest rate on adjustable-rate residential real estate loans is generally reset periodjcalJy 
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based on a contractual spread or margin above the average yield on U.S .. Treasury securities. Our adjustable-rate residential real 
estate loans can have initial and periodic caps of up to 2.0% on interest rate changes, with a current cap on total increases of 6 .0% 
over the life of the loan. 

We originate residential mortgage loans with loan-to-value ratios of genera lly up to 80% to 90% of the appraised value, 
depending on the size of the loan. We may originate loans with loan-to-value ratios that exceed 90% depending upon the product 
type. Mortgage insurance is required for aU mortgage loans that have a loan-to-value ratio greater than 80%. The required 
insurance coverage amount varies based on the loan-to-value ratio and term of the loan. We only permit borrowers to purchase 
mortgage insurance from companies that have been approved by Blue Foundry Bank. 

We generally do not offer "interest only" mortgage loans on residential properties or loans that provide for negative 
amortization of principal, such as "Option ARM" loans, where the borrower can pay less than the interest owed on the loan, 
resulting in ao increased principal balance during the life of the loan. Additionally, we do not offer "subprime loans" (loans that are 
made with low down-payments to borrowers with weakened credit histories typically characterized by payment delinquencies, 
previous charge-offs, judgments, bankruptcies, or borrowers with questionable repayment capacity as evidenced by low credit 
scores or high debt-burden ratios) or Alt-A loans (defined as loans having less than full documentation). 

Multifamily Loans. At December 3 1, 2024, we had $671.1 million in multifamily loans, representing 42.4% of our total loan 
portfolio. Our multifamily loans are secured primarily by apartment buildings having five or more units, most of which are located 
in our primary market area. 

Currently, we originate multifamily loans with maximum terms of 10 years based on amortization periods between 25 and 
30 years. We have a portfolio of legacy multifamily loans with terms up to 30 years. We generally limit loan-to-value ratios to less 
than 75% of the appraised value of the property for multifamily loans. Oll!r multifamily loans are offered with fixed and adjustable 
rate interest terms. All multifamily loans are subject to our underwriting procedures and guidelines. 

Repayment of multifamily loans is primarily dependent on cash flow from the collateral property sufficient to satisfy 
operating expenses and debt service. Future increases in interest rates, increases in vacancy rates on multifamily residential or 
commercial build ings and other economic events, such as unemployment rates, which are outside the control of the borrower, or 
the Bank, could negatively impact the future net operating income of such properties. Similarly, government regulations, such as 
the existing New York City Rent Regulation and Rent Stabilization laws, could limit future increases in the revenue from these 
buildings. As of December 3 1, 2024, the Company has approximately $107.7 million, or 7.4% of total loans, in New York 
multifamily loans that have some form of rent stabilization or rent control. At December 3 1, 2024, our largest multifamily loan 
totaled $23.8 million and was performing in accordance with its original terms. 

Commercial Real Estate Loans. At December 3 1, 2024, we had $259.6 million in commercial real estate loans, representing 
16.4% of our total loan portfolio. Our commercial real estate loans are secured primarily by industrial facilities, retail facilities and 
other commercial properties, most of which are located in our primary market area. Of these loans, $77 .0 million are owner­
occupied. 

At December 3 1, 2024, our total commercial real estate loan portfolio was comprised of less than 2% in office space, none of 
which was in New York City. 

Commercial real estate loans are underwritten to asset specific guideljnes in accordance to policy with the loan-to-value ratio 
limit generally being 75% of the appraised value of the property. At December 31, 2024, our largest commercial real estate loan 
totaled $23.9 million and was secured by a grocery-anchored shopping center. At December 3 1, 2024, this loan was performing in 
accordance with its original terms. 

Construction Loans. We make construction loans, primarily to contractors and builders of multifamily and mixed-use 
projects and other commercial and industrial real estate projects. At December 3 1, 2024, our construction loans totaled 
$85.5 million, representing 5.4% of our total loan portfolio and our largest construction loan totaled $21.9 million, secured by a 
mid-rise apartment complex surrounding a four-story parkjng deck. At December 31, 2024, this loan was performing in accordance 
with its original terms. Once a construction project is satisfactorily completed, we look to provide permanent financing. 

Junior Liens and Consumer Loans. We generally offer consumer loans to customers residing in our market area. Our 
consumer loans and junior liens consist primarily of home equity loans and lines of credit. At December 3 1, 2024, junior liens 
totaled $25.4 million, or 1.6% of our total loan portfolio and consumer loans totaled $7.2 million, or 0.5% of the total loan 
portfolio. The portfolio included a consumer loan participation that was entered into during the year. 
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Home equity loans and lines of credit are multi-purpose loans used to finance various home or personal needs, where a 
one-to-four fam ily primary or secondary residence serves as collateral. We generally originate home equity loans and lines of 
credit of up to $500,000 with a maximum loan-to-value ratio of 80% (75% if the loan is for a condo) and terms of up to 20 years. 
Home equity lines of credit have adjustable rates of interest that are based on the prime rate, as published in The Wall Street 
Journal. Home equity lines of credit are secured by residential real estate in a first or second lien position. 

The procedures for underwriting consumer loans include assessing the applicant's payment history on other indebtedness, the 
applicant's ability to meet existing obligations and payments on the proposed loan, and the loan-to-value ratio of the collateral 
property. Although the applicant's creditworthiness is a primary consideration, the underwriting process also includes a 
comparison of the value of the collateral, if any, to the proposed loan amount. 

We participate or purchase consumer loans from a national company that specializes in loans to professionals. In underwriting 
the loans, we review credit scores, debt service coverage, debt to income, years in industry and other factors. We also receive a 3% 
loss pool and implied corporate credit support to replace or repay defaulted transactions. 

Commercial and Industrial Loans. We typically originate commercial business loans on the basis of the borrower's ability to 
make repayment from the cash flow of the borrower's business, the exper ience and stability of the borrower's management team, 
earnings projections, and the value and marketability of any collateral securing the loan. Business loans and lines of c redit 
inherently have more risk of loss than real estate secured loans, in part because business loans may be more complex to underwrite 
than mortgages, and some of the loans or portions thereof may be unsecured. These loans are more likely to be reliant on the 
cashflow and solvency of the business. The value of collateral may not be adequate to cover the value of the loan and may be 
severely impacted by the performance of the business. If a decline in economic conditions or other issues cause difficulties for our 
business borrowers or we fai I to evaluate the credit of the loan accurately when we underwrite the loan, it could result in 
delinquencies or defaults and a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations or financial condition. Commercial 
and industrial loans are generally secured by a variety of collateral, primarily accounts receivable, inventory and equipment. As a 
result, the availability of funds for the repayment of commercial and industrial loans may be substantially dependent on the success 
of the business itself and the general economic environment in our market area. Therefore, commercial and industrial loans that we 
originate may have greater credit risk than residential real estate loans or, generally, consumer loans. Jn addition, commercial and 
industrial loans generally require substantially greater evaluation and oversight efforts. 

The Bank is a certified SBA lender and is a participant in SBA lending programs which typically provides guarantees of up to 
75% of the principal on the underlying loans. We provide loans under the 7(a) Loan Program, the SBA's most common loan 
program. We may sell a portion of these loans in. the secondary market. 

At December 3 1, 2024, we had $ 16.3 million of commercial and industrial loans. Commercial and industrial loans represent 
1.0% of our total loan portfolio. We offer term loans, lines of credit and revolving lines of credit with varying maturity terms to 
small businesses in our market area to finance short-term working capital needs such as accounts receivable and inventory. Our 
commercial lines of credit are typically structured with variable rates. We generally obtain personal guarantees with respect to all 
commercial and industrial loans. At December 31, 2024, the average loan size of our commercial and industrial loans was 
$8 16 thousand, and our largest outstanding commercial and industrial loan balance was a $5.4 million conventional C&J term loan 
to a meal deli very organization . This loan was performing in accordance with its repayment terms at December 3 1, 2024. 

Originations, Purchases and Participations of Loans 

Loan origination activities are conducted by our commercial and consumer bankers and throughout the branch network. We 
market, network and call on prospective customers and centers of influence to originate loans. We also obtain referrals from 
existing and former customers and from accountants, real estate brokers, builders and attorneys. All loans that we originate or 
purchase are underwritten pursuant to our policies and procedures, which, for residential loans, generally incorporate Fannie Mae 
and Freddie Mac underwriting guidelines to the extent applicable. We ·originate both adjustable-rate and fixed-rate loans. Our 
ability to originate fixed or adjustable-rate loans depends upon the relative customer demand for such loans, which is affected by 
current market interest rates as well as anticipated future market interest rates. Our loan origination and purchase activity may be 
adversely affected by a rising interest rate environment, which typically results in decreased loan demand. 

We consider a number of factors in originating multifamily and commercial real estate loans. We evaluate the qualifications 
and financial condition of the borrower (including credit history), profitability and expertise, as well as tbe value and condition of 
the mortgaged property securing the loan. When evaluating the qualifications of the borrower, we consider the financial resources 
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of the borrower, the borrower's experience in owning or managing similar property and the borrower's payment history with us 
and other financia l institutions. [n evaluating the property securing the loan, we consider a number of factors, including the net 
operating income of the mortgaged property before debt service and depreciation, the debt service coverage ratio (the ratio of net 
operating income to debt service) to ensure that it is at least l.25x, subject to certain exceptions, and the ratio of the loan amount to 
the appraised value of the mo 1tgaged property. All loans are appraised by outside independent and qualified appraisers that are 
duly approved in accordance with Blue Foundry Bank policy. Loans are monitored on an ongoing basis, based on policy 
requirements, often requiring updated financial statements. 

During the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, loan originations totaled $116.0 million and $119.6 million, 
respectively. 

The Bank may purchase residential loans through its residential loan purchase program to supplement ongmations. All 
residential loans purchased were within New Jersey and were underwritten to FNMA standards, a comparable underwriting 
standard as internally-originated loans. Loan purchases totaled $21.6 million and $6.8 million for the years ended December 31, 
2024 and 2023, respectively. 

We purchase whole loans and participate jn loans originated by other institutions. Generally, our analysis for purchase and 
participation transactions follows underwriting policies as if we originated the loan d irectly . However, for loans that we participate 
in, we are subject to the lead financial institution's policies and practices related to items such as, monitoring, collection and 
default. At December 31, 2024 the outstanding balances of our loan participations where we are not the lead lender totaled 
$175.5 million, or 11.1% of our loan portfolio. All such loans were performing at December 31, 2024 in accordance with their 
o riginal repayment terms. 

Credit Policy and P rocedures 

Loan Approval Procedures and Authority . Our lending activities follow written, non-discriminatory, underwriting standards 
and loan origination policies established by management and approved by our Board of Directors. The Board of Directors has 
granted loan approval authority to certain officers up to prescribed limits, depending on the officer's ti tle, experience, and the type 
of loan. 

Loan approval authorities are dictated by factors such as the loan type, loan size, cumulative credit exposure (to a particular 
relationship) and the presence of any policy exceptions. All loans are independently underwritten. Commercial loans are further 
reviewed and acknowledged by the Chief Credit Officer or designee. Loans are then presented for approval to the appropriate 
authority. Under our current policy, no loan may be approved by a single officer. At a minimum, two officers are required to 
approve a loan, at least one of whom is a voting member of the Loan Committee. Depending upon certain factors, such as the size 
of the loan request, escalating loan approval authorities may be required. In such cases, approval by the Loan Committee or Loan 
Oversight Committee may be required. For commercial loans, a minimum of three approvals are required (two of which must 
include the Head of Commercial Banking or Head of Consumer Banking and Chief Credit Officer), with a third approval from any 
voting member of the Loan Committee. 

Loans to One Borrower. Pursuant to New Jersey law, the aggregate amount of loans that the Bank is permitted to make to any 
one borrower or a group of related borrowers is generally limited to 15% of the Bank's capital, surplus fund and undivided profits 
(25% if the amount in excess of 15% is secured by "readily marketable collateral"). At December 31, 2024, based on the 15% 
limitation, the Bank's loans-to-one-borrower limit was approximately $45.4 million, our internal policy limit was $40.9 million, 
representing 90% of the 15% limit. On the same date, the Bank had no borrowers with outstanding balances in excess olf this 
amount. At December 31, 2024, our largest loan relationship with a single borrower was for $33.6 million, which consisted of one 
loan secured by non-residential, non-owner occupied real estate and seven loans secured by multifamily real estate, each of which 
was perfo rming in accordance with its terms. 

Delinquencies and Asset Quality 

Delinquency Procedures. When a borrower fails to make a required monthly loan payment by the last day of the month, and 
upon expiration of any applicable grace period, a late notice is generated stating the payment and late charges due. Until such time 
as payment is made collection efforts continue with additional phone calls and escalating collection notices. Loan delinquencies 
more than 30 days past due are reported to the Board of Directors monthly. 
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If repayment is doubtful or not possible, a notice of intent to foreclo·se will be issued for residential loans, or an acceleration 
notice will be issued for commercial loans, and the account will be administered by our Asset Recovery Depa1tment with oversight 
and guidance from our counseL Once issued for residential loans, the notice of intent to foreclose typically allows the borrower a 
period to cure the default. Once issued for commercial loans, a grace period may be granted in accordance w.ith the loan's terms. If 
payment is made and the loan is brought current, foreclosure proceedings are discontinued, and the borrower is permitted to 
continue to make payments. If the borrower does not cure the default, we wi ll initiate foreclosure proceedings. 

Loans Past Due and Non-Performing Assets. Loans are reviewed on a regular basis. Management determines that a loan is 
impaired or non-performing when it is probable at least a portion of the loan will not be collected in accordance with the original 
terms due to a deterioration in the financial condition of the borrower or the value of t he underlying collateral if the loan is 
collateral-dependent. When a loan is determined to be impaired, the measurement of the loan in the allowance for credit losses on 
loans is based on present value of expected future cash flows, except that all collateral-dependent loans are measured for 
impairment based on the fair value of the collateral less selling costs. Non-accrual loans are loans for which collectability is 
questionable and, therefore, interest on such loans will no longer be recognized on an accrual basis. All loans that become 90 days 
or more delinquent are placed on non-accrual status unless the loan is well secured and in the process of collection. At 
December 31, 2024 and 2023, there were no loans 90 days past due and still accruing. When loans are placed on non-accrual status, 
unpaid accrued interest is fully reversed, and further income is recognized only to the extent received on a cash basis or cost 
recovery metlhod. 

Other Real Estate Owned ("REO"). When we acquire real estate as a result of foredosure or a deed-in-lieu transaction, the 
real estate is classified as real estate owned. The real estate owned is recorded at the lower of carrying amount or fair value, less 
estimated costs to sell. Soon after acquisition, we order a new appraisal to· determine the current market value of the property. Any 
excess of the recorded value of the loan over the market value of the property is charged against the allowance for credit losses on 
loans. Subsequent remeasurement resulting in a charge-off would be expensed in the current period. After acquisition, all costs 
incurred in maintaining the property are expensed. Costs relating to the development and improvement of the property, however, 
are capitalized to the extent of estimated fair value less estimated costs to sell. At December 31, 2024, the Company had no REO 
and had one residential loan with a carrying value of $593 thousand in REO at December 3 L, 2023. 

Delinquent Loans. The following table sets forth our loan delinquencies, including non-accrual loans, by type and amount at 
the dates indicated. 

December 31. 2024 December 31, 2023 

60-89 Days 9{) Days o r More 60-89 Days 90 Days or Mo re 

Number of Principal Number of Principal Number of Principal Number of Principal 
Loans Balance Loans Balance Loans Balance Loans Balance 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Residential 2 $3 15 2 $3,892 $752 3 $3,926 

Junior liens 1 149 1 49 

Commercial and Industrial 563 2 15 3 39 

Total 3 $878 5 $4,056 $752 7 $4,014 
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Non-Performing Assets. The table below sets forth the amounts and categories of our non-performing assets at the dates 
indicated. 

Non-Performing Assets: 
Non-accrual Loans: 

Residential 

Multifami ly 

Junior liens 

Commercial and Industrial 

Total non-performing loans 

Real estate owned 

Total non-performing assets 

Total non-performing loans to total loans 

Total non-performing loans to total assets 

Total non-performing assets to total assets 

December 31 , 2024 December 3 I , 2023 

(Dol.lars in thousands) 

$4,377 $5,884 

146 

149 49 

578 39 

5,104 6,118 

593 

$5,104 $6,711 

0.33% 0.39% 

0.25% 0.30% 

0.25% 0.33% 

Classified Assets. Federal regulations provide for the classification of loans and other assets, such as debt and equity securities 
considered to be of lesser quality, as substandard, doubtful or loss. An asset is considered Slllbstandard if it is inadequately protected 
by the current net worth and paying capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any. Substandard assets include those 
characterized by the distinct possibility that the insured institution will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected. 
Assets classified as doubtful have all of the weaknesses inherent in those classified substandard, with the added characteristic that 
the weaknesses present make collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of currently existing facts, conditions, and values, highly 
questionable and improbable. Assets classified as loss are those considered uncollectible and of such little value that they are 
charged-off. Assets which do not currently expose the insured institution to sufficient risk to warrant classification in one of the 
aforementioned categories but possess weaknesses are designated as special mention by our management. 

When an insured institution classifies problem assets as either substandard or doubtful, it may establ ish specific allowances in 
an amount deemed prudent by management to cover probable accrued losses. General allowances represent loss allowances which 
have been established to cover probable accrued losses associated with !·ending activities, but which, unlike specific allowances, 
have not been allocated to particular problem assets. When an insured institution classifies problem assets as " loss," it is required 
to charge-off such amount. An institution' s determination as to the classification of its assets and the amount of its valuation 
allowances is subject to review by the regulatory authorities, which may require the establishment of additional general or specific 
loss allowances. 

In connection with the filing of our periodic reports with the FDIC and in accordance with our classification of assets policy, 
we regularly review the problem loans in our portfolio to determine whether any loans require classification in accordance with 
applicable regulations. 

The following table sets forth our amounts of special mention and classified loans as of December 3 1, 2024 and 2023. 

Special mention 

Substandard 

Doubtful 

Loss 

Total 
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December 31 , 2024 December 3 I , 2023 

( In thousands) 

$ 6,503 

5,222 

$11,725 

$1,567 

6,118 

$7,685 



At December 3 1, 2024, special mention loans included one mixed-use, multifamily loan totaling $5.4 m illion, one commercial 
real estate loan totaling $828 thousand, two resi.dential loans totaling $264 thousand and one junior lien totaling $43 thousand. As 
of December 31, 2024, these loans were aU performing with terms. At December 31, 2024, substandard loans represent six 
residential loans totaling $4.4 million, three commercial and industrial loans totaling $578 thousand, one multifamily loan totaling 
$118 thousand and one junior lien loan totaling $149 thousand. At December 31, 2023, special mention loans included two 
res identia l family loans totaling $663 thousand and one commercial real estate loan totaling $904 thousand. Substandard loans at 
December 31, 2023, included nine residential loans totaling $5.9 million, one multifamily real estate loan totaling $ 146 thousand 
and one junior lien loan totaling $49 thousand. 

Allowance for Credit Losses 

Under ASU 2016-13, the Company's methodology for determining the allowance for credit losses on loans is based upon key 
assumptions, including the lookback period, historical loss experience, economic forecasts over a reasonable and supportable 
forecast period, reversion period, prepayments and qualitative adjustments. The allowance is measured on a pool basis when 
similar risk characteristics exist. Loans that do not share common risk characteristics are evaluated on an individual basis and are 
excluded from the collective evaluation. See Note !-Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for a description of the 
adoption of ASU 2016- 13 and the Company's allowance methodology. 

In addition, the NJDOBl and the FDIC periodically review our allo-wance for credit losses on loans and as a result of such 
reviews, they may require us to adjust our allowance for credit losses on loans or recognize loan charge-offs. 

The following table sets forth activity in our allowance for credit losses on loans for the periods indicated. 

Allowance for credit losses on loans at beginning of period 

T mpact of adoption 20 16-1 3 

Provision (recovery of provision) for credit losses on loans 

Charge-offs: 

Residential 

Consumer and other 

Total charge-offs 

Recoveries: 

Consumer and other 

Total recoveries 

Net charge-offs 

Allowance for credit losses on loans at end of period 

Allowance for credit losses on loans to non-performing loans at end of period 

Allowance for credit losses on loans to total loans outstanding at end of period 

Net charge-offs to average loans outstanding during period 
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Y car Ended December 3 1, 

2024 2023 

(Dollars in thousands) 

$14,154 $13,400 

668 

(1,144) 146 

( 18) 

(56) (46) 

(56) (64) 

11 4 

11 4 

(45) (60) 

$12,965 $14,154 

254.02% 231.35% 

0.83 0.91 
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Allocation of Allowance for Credit Losses on Loans. The following tables set forth the allowance for credit losses on loans 
allocated by loan category and the percent of the allowance in each category to the total allocated allowance at the dates indicated. 
The allowance for credit losses on loans allocated to each category is not necessarily indicative of future losses in any particular 
category and does not restrict the use of the allowance to absorb losses in other categories. 

December 31, 2024 December 31 , 2023 

Percent of Percent of Loans Percent of Percent of Loans 
Allowance to in Category to Allowance to in Category to 

Amount Total Allowance Total Loans Amount Total Al lowance Total Loans 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Residential $ 1,989 15.34% 32.72% $ 1,968 13.90% 35.30% 

Multifamily 6,609 50.98% 42.38% 7,046 49.79% 43.74% 

Commercial real estate 3,641 28.08% 16.40% 3,748 26.48% 14.90% 

Construction and land 460 3.55% 5.40% 1,222 8.63% 3.87% 

Junior liens 109 0.84% 1.61% 76 0.54% 1.44% 

Commercial and industrial 157 1.21% 1.03% 94 0.66% 0.75% 

Consumer and other (1) -% 0.46% -% -% 

Total allowance for credit losses on loans $ 12,965 100.00% 100.00% $ 14, 154 100.00% 100.00% 

( I ) Consumer and other includes the consumer loan participation that provided credit enhancement, which based upon our analysis was 
sufficient to cover the expected credit losses under that portfolio. 

Investment Activities 

General. The goals of our investment policy are generally to provide liquidity, mitigate interest rate risk, ensure the safety of 
principal, provide earnings and meet pledging requirements. Subject to loan demand and our interest rate risk analysis, we may 
increase the balance of our securities portfolio. 

Our investment policy was adopted and is reviewed annually by the Board of Directors. All investment decisions are made by 
senior management in accordance with board-approved policies. The Treasurer provides an investment schedule detailing the 
investment portfolio, which is regularly reviewed by the Board of Directors. 

Our current investment policy permits, with certain limitations, investments in: U.S. Treasury securities; securities issued by 
the U.S. government and its agencies or government sponsored enterprises including mortgage-backed securities and collateralized 
mortgage obli.gations issued by Fannie Mae, Ginnie Mae and Freddie Mac; corporate and municipal bonds; private label mortgage­
backed securities and privately issued asset-backed securities; certificates of deposit in other financial institutions; federal funds 
and money market funds. 

At December 31, 2024, our securities portfolio consisted of investment-grade securities. Approximately 60% of the portfolio 
is either 100% guaranteed by the U.S. government or implicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government. The remaining 40% consisted 
of corporate bonds, municipal bonds, privately issued asset-backed securities and other inv·estrnent securities. Approximately 90% 
of our securities portfolio was classified as available-for-sale, with the remaining I 0% classified as held-to-maturity. 
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Portfolio Maturities and Yields. The following table sets fot1h the stated matunttes and weighted average yields of 
investment securities at December 3 1. 2024. Weighted average yields on tax-exempt securities presented exclude the tax 
equivalent yield. Cenain securities have adjustable interest rates and will reprice at leas.t annually within the various maturity 
ranges. These repricing schedules are not reflected in the table below. Weighted average yield calculations on investment securities 
available-for-sale do not give effect to changes in fair value that are reflected as a component of equity. 

More than One Year More than Five 
One Year or Less to Five Years Years to Ten Years More than Ten Years Total 

Weighted Weightccl Weighted Weighted Weighted 
Amot1ized Average Amot1ized Average Amortized Average Amortized Average Amortized Fair Average 

Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Value Yield 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Available-for-sale: 

U.S . Treasury Note $34,324 4.53% $ - %$ 6,935 1.28% $ - %$ 41,259 40,139 3.99% 

Corporate Bonds 17,539 3.07% 18,332 4.76% 33,251 5.69% 6,000 3.75% 75,122 73,154 4.72% 

U.S. Government agency obligations -% 874 1.41 % -% -% 874 812 1.41% 

State and municipal obligations 742 2.24% 3,792 2.46% 833 1.49% 990 2.10% 6,357 6,024 2.26% 

Mortgage-backed securities: 

Residential 21 2.34% 28,136 3.39% 129,538 2.58% 14,059 1.97% 171 ,754 149,041 2.70% 

Multifamily 2,274 5.16% 11,837 4.78% 5,665 2.52% - % 19,776 18,743 4.18% 

Asset-backed securities 5,000 6.69% 1,517 0.90% 2,795 5.95% -% 9,3 12 9,1 15 5.53% 

Total avai !able-for-sale $59,900 4.28% $64,488 3.88% $179,017 3.16% $21,049 2.48% $324,454 $297,028 3.49% 

Securities held-to-maturity: 

Corporate bonds $ - % $ - %$ 18,600 4.06% $ - %$ 18,600 16,414 4.06% 

Asset-backed securities - % 14,574 1.62% - % - % 14,574 13,581 1.62% 

Total held-to-maturity $ - % $14,574 1.62%$ 18,600 4.06% $ - % $ 33,174 $ 29,995 2.99% 

Other Investments. At December 31, 2024, other investments primarily consisted of membership and activity-based shares in 
FHLB stock. As a member of FHLB, we are required to purchase stock in the FHLB, which stock is carried at cost and classified 
as other investment securities. Other investments also consist of, to a much lesser extent, an investment in a financial technology 
fund carried at net asset value and shares in a cooperative that provides community banking core technology solutions, carried at 
cost. 

Sources of Funds 

GeneraL Deposits have traditionally been our primary source of funds for our lending and investment activities. We also use 
borrowings, primarily FHLB advances, to supplement cash flows, as needed. In addition, funds are derived from principal and 
interest payments on loans and securities, loan and security prepayments and maturities, brokered deposits, income on other 
earning assets and retained earnings. While cash flows from loans and securities payments can be a relative ly stable sources of 
funds, deposit inflows and outflows can vary widely and are influenced by prevailing interest rates, market conditions and 
competition. 

Deposit Accounts. The majority of our deposits are from depositors who reside in our JPrimary market area. We attract deposit 
customers by offering a broad selection of deposit products for individuals and businesses, designed to meet a wide spectrum of 
savings needs. 

The terms of our deposit accounts depend on several factors, including the minimum balance required, the duration for which 
funds must remain on deposit in the account, desired customer behaviors and interest rate. When setting these terms, we take into 
account the products, features and rates offered by competitors, our liquidity needs, profitability and the preferences of our 
customers. 

We may supplement customer deposits with brokered and listed deposits. At December 31, 2024 and 2023, brokered deposits 
totaled $155.0 million and $ 125.0 million, respectively. There were no listed deposits at December 31, 2024, while listed deposits 
totaled $11.4 million at December 31, 2023. 
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The flow of deposits is influenced significantly by general economic conditions, changes in money market and other 
prevailing interest rates and competition. The variety of depos it accounts offered allows us to be competitive in obtaining funds 
and responding to changes in consumer demand!. Based on experience, we believe that our deposits are relatively stable. However, 
the ability to attract and maintain deposits and the rates paid on these deposits, has been and wiU continue to be significantly 
affected by market conditions. 

The following table sets forth the distribution of total depos its by account type at the dates indicated. 

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023 

Amount Percent Amount Percent 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Non-interest bearing deposits $ 26,001 1.94% 27,739 2.23% 

NOW and demand accounts 369,554 27.51 361,139 29 .01 

Savings 240,426 17.90 259,402 20.84 

Time deposits 707,339 52.65 596,624 47 .92 

Total $1,343,320 100.00% $1,244,904 100.00% 
-- ---

As of December 31, 2024, the aggregate amount of uninsured deposits (amounts in excess of the maximum amount for federal 
deposit insurance) was $270.8 million, o r 20.16% of total deposits. Uninsured deposits totaling $83.8 million were deposits of the 
Company and its subsidiaries and $39.3 million were municipal deposits covered by supplemental insurance on such deposits 
under New Jersey's Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act. 

The following table sets forth the maturity of time deposits in excess of $250,000 at December 3 1, 2024. 

Maturity Period: 

Three months or less 

Over three through six months 

Over six through twelve months 

Over twelve months 

Total 

(in thou~ands) 

$ 81,044 

36,96 1 

16,457 

27 1 

$ 134,733 

Borrowings. Our borrowings consist of advances from the FHLB. At December 31, 2024, we had the ability to borrow 
approximately $6 14.0 mi llion under our credit facilities with the FHLB, of which $339.5 million was advanced. Borrowings from 
the FHLB are secured by loans pledged at the FHLB. We can borrow at the Federal Rese rve Bank ("FRB") Discount Window up 
to the amount of collateral pledged. At December 31,2024, we had $107.7 miUion pledged at the FRB. We also have an unsecured 
line of $30.0 million with a correspondent bank. 

Subsidiary Activities 

Blue Foundry Bancorp has one direct subsidiary, Blue Foundry Bank. 

At December 3 1, 2024, Blue Foundry Bank had one active corporate subsidiary, Blue Foundry Investment Company, a New 
Jersey corporation formed to manage and invest in securities. The Bank also has two inactive subsidiaries, TrackView LLC and 
Blue Foundry, LLC, each a limited liability company formed under New Jersey law to hold certain real estate owned. 

Employees and Human Capital Resources 

At December 3 1, 2024 we employed 184 e mployees, nearly all of whom are full -time and of which approximately 59% are 
women. At December 31, 2023, we employed 179 employees. As a financial institution, approximately 40% of our employees are 
employed at our branch offices, and another 4% are employed at our customer care call center. The success of our business is 
highly dependent on our employees, who provide value to our customers and communities through their dedication to our mission, 
which is he lping customers achieve financial security. Our workplace culture is grounded in a set of core values- a concern for 
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others, trust, respect, hard work, and a dedication to our customers. We seek to hire well-qualified employees who are also a good 
fit for our value system. Our selection and promotion processes are without bias and include the active rec ruitment of minorities, 
women, individuals with disabilities and veterans, without regard to race, color, religion, sex, LGBTQ+, national origin, disability 
or protected veteran status. 

We encourage and support the growth and deve lopment of our employees and, wherever possible, seek to fill positions by 
promotion and transfer from within the organization. Continual training and career development is advanced through regular 
performance discussions between employees and their managers, internaUy developed training programs, customized corporate 
training engagements and educational reimbursement programs. Reimbursement is available to employees enrolled in 
pre-approved degree or certification programs at accredited institutions that teach skills or knowledge relevant to our business. 

The Bank offers employees a comprehensive health benefits package and structures its bonus program to create meaningful 
performance-based incentives. To encourage retirement savings, the Bank provides a 40 I (k) match on up to 6% of an employee's 
salary. Eligible employees are automatically enrolled in the plan and 3% of the employee's total taxable compensation is withheld 
with annual 1% escalations up to 6%. Employees may opt out at any time. In addition, our Employee Stock Ownership Plan 
("ESOP") gives employees an opportunity to accumulate shares of our common stock and is 100% funded by the Company. 

The safety, health and wellness of our employees is a top priority. We promote the health and wellness of our employees by 
strongly encouraging work-life balance, offering flexible work schedules and sponsoring various wellness programs. Our 
state-of-the-art administrative offices offer our employees access to an onsite gym at no cost and access to a shuttle to and from 
public transportation. Our offices are equipped with stand-up desks, and the mindfulness room provides a place for employees to 
take a quiet break from their busy day. Nursing moms have access to a lactation room equipped with a refrigerator and sink for 
the ir privacy and convenience. 

Supervision and Regulation 

The Company and the Bank operate in the highJy, regulated banking industry. This regulation establishes a comprehensive 
framework of activities in which a bank holding company and New Jersey savings bank may engage and is intended primarily for 
the protection of the Deposit Insurance Fund and depositors. 

Set forth below is a brief description of certain material regulatory requirements that are appl icable to the Bank and the 
Company. T he description is not intended to be a complete list or description of such statutes and regulations and their effects on 
the Bank and the Company. 

Blue Foundry Bank 

As a New Jersey-chartered savings bank, the Bank is subject to comprehensive regulation by the NJDOBI, as its chartering 
authority and, as a federally ins ured nonmember institution, by the FDIC. The Bank is a member of the FHLB and its deposits are 
insured up to applicable limits by the FDIC. The Bank is required to fi le reports with, and is periodically examined by, the FDIC 
and the NJDOBI concerning its activities and financial condition and must obtain regulatory approvals before entering into certain 
transactions, including mergers with or acquisitions of other financial institutions. The regulatory structure also gives the 
regulatory authorities extensive discretion in connection with their SU!pervisory and enforcement activities and examination 
policies, including policies regarding classifying assets and establishing an adequate allowance for cred~t losses on loans for 
regulatory purposes. 

New Jersey Banking Laws and Supervision 

Activity Powers. The Bank derives its lendling, investment and othe r activity powers primarily from the New Jersey Banking 
Act and its re lated regulations. Under these laws and regulations, savings banks, including tlhe Bank, generally may invest in: 

rea] estate mortgages; 

consumer and commercial loans; 

specific types of debt securities, including certain corporate debt securities and obligations of federal, state and local 
governments and agencies; 

certain types of corporate equity securities; and 

certain other assets. 
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A savings bank may also make other investments pursuant to "leeway" authority that permits investments not otherwise 
permitted by the New Jersey Banking Act. Leeway investments must comply with a number of limitations on the individual and 
aggregate amounts of leeway Lnvestmeots. A savings bank may also exercise trust powers lllpon approval of the NJDOBL Savings 
banks also may exercise those powers, rights, benefits or privileges authorized for national banks or out-of-state banks or for 
federal or out-of-state savings banks or savings associations, provided that before exercising any such power, right, benefit or 
privilege, prior approval by the NJDOBI by regulation or by specific authorization is required. The exercise of these lending, 
investment and activity powers is limited by federal law and regulations. See "Federal Bank Regulation Activities and 
Investments" below. Certain corporate transactions by a savings bank, such as establishililg branches and acquiring other banks, 
require the prior approval of the NJDOBI. 

Loans-to-One-Borrower Limitations. With certain specified exceptions, a New Jersey-chartered savings bank may not make 
loans or extend credit to a single borrower or to entities related to the borrower in an aggregate amount that would exceed I 5% of 
the bank's capital funds. A savings bank may lend an additional LO% of the bank's capitam funds if secured by collateral meeting 
the requirements of the New Jersey Banking Act. The Bank currently complies with applicable loans-to-one-borrower limitations. 

Dividends. Under the New Jersey Banking Act, a stock savings bank may declare and pay a dividend on its capital stock only 
to the extent that the payment of the dividend would not impair the capital stock of the savings bank. In addition, a savings bank 
may not pay a dividend unless the savings bank would have a surplus of not less than 50% of its capital stock after the payment of 
the dividend or, alternatively, the payment of the dividend would not reduce the surplus. Federal law may also limit the amount of 
dividends that may be paid by the Bank. See "Federal Bank Regulation-Prompt Corrective Regulatory Action" below. 

Minimum Capital Requirements. Regulations of the NJDOBI impose on New Jersey-chartered depository institutions, 
including the Bank, minimum capital requirements generally similar to those imposed by the FDIC on insured state banks. See 
"Federal Bank Regulation-Capital Requirements." 

Examination and Enforcement. The NJDOBI may examine the Bank as it deems advisable. It typically examines the Bank at 
least every two years, typically alternating exams with the FDIC such that the Bank is subject to regulatory examination every 
year. Regulated institutions are assessed for expenses incurred by the NJDOBI. 

The NJDOBI has authority to enforce applicable law and prevent practices that may cause harm to an institution, including the 
issuance of cease and desist orders and civil money penalties and removal of directors, officers and employees. The NJDOB[ also 
has authority to appoint a conservator or receiver for a savings bank under certain circumstances such as insolvency or unsafe or 
unsound condition to transact business. 

Federal Bank Regulation 

Supervision and Enforcement Authority. The Bank is subject to extensive regulation, exam.ination and supervision by the 
FDIC as its primary federal prudential regulator and the insurer of its deposits. The regulatory structure gives the FDIC extensive 
discretion in connection with its supervisory and enforcement activities and examination policies, including policies with respect to 
the classification of assets and the establishment of an adequate allowance for credit losses on loans for regulatory purposes. 

The Bank must file reports with the FDIC concerning its activities and financial condition. It must also obtain prior FDIC 
approval before entering into certain corporate transactions such as establishing new branches and mergers with, or acquisitions of, 
other financial institutions. There are periodic examinations by the FDIC to evaluate the Bank's safety and soundness and 
compliance with various regulatory requirements. 

The FDIC maintains substantial enforcement authority over regulated institutions. That includes, an1ong other things, the 
ability to assess civil money penalties, issue cease and desist orders and remove directors and officers. In general, enforcement 
actions against institutions may be initiated in response to violations of laws and regulations or unsafe or unsound practices; the 
FDIC may also bring enforcement actions against directors and officers on these bases and for breaches of fiduciary duty. The 
FDIC may also appoint itself as conservator or receiver for an insured bank under specified circumstances, including: 
(I) insolvency; (2) substantia l dissipation of assets or earnings through violations of law or unsafe or unsound practices; (3) the 
existence of an unsafe or unsound condition to transact business; (4) insufficient capital; or (5) the incurrence of losses that will 
deplete substantially all of the institution's capital with no reasonable prospect of replenishment without federal assistance. 

Capital Requirements. Under FDIC regulations, the Bank must meet several minimum capital standards: a common equity 
Tier 1 capital to risk-based assets ratio, a Tier 1 capital to risk-based assets ratio, a total capital to risk-based assets ratio, and a Tier 
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I capital to total assets leverage ratio. The capital requirements are based on recommendations of the Basel Committee on Banking 
Supervision and certain requirements of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the "Dodd-Frank 
Act"). The FDIC also bas authority to establish individual minimum capital requirements in appropriate cases upon determination 
that an institution's capital level is, or is likely to become, inadequate in light of the particular circumstances. 

The capital standards require the maintenance of common equity Tier I capital, Tier I capital and total capital to risk­
weighted asset ratios of at least 4.5%, 6% and 8%, respectively, and a leverage ratio of at l·east 4% Tier l capital. Common equity 
Tier 1 capital is generally defined as common shareholders' equity and retained earnings. Tier 1 capital is generally defined as 
common equity Tier I and Additional Tier I capital. Additional Tier I capital generally includes certain noncumulative perpetual 
preferred stock and related surplus and minority interests in equity accounts of consolidated subsidiaries. Total capital includes 
Tier 1 capital (common equity Tier 1 capital plus Additional Tier 1 capital) and Tier 2 capital. Tier 2 capital is comprised of capital 
instruments and related surplus meeting specified requirements, and may include cumulative preferred stock and long-term 
perpetual preferred stock, mandatory convertible securities, intermediate preferred stock and subordinated debt. Also included in 
Tier 2 capital is the allowance for credit losses on loans limited to a maximum of 1.25% of risk-weighted assets and, for 
institutions that have exercised an opt-out election regarding the treatment of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income 
("AOCI"), up to 45% of net unrealized gains on available-for-sale equity securities with readily determinable fair market values. 
Institutions that have not exercised the AOCT opt-out have AOCI incorporated into common equity Tier I capital (including 
unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale-securities). The Bank exercised the opt-out election regarding the treatment of 
AOCT. Calculation of all types of regulatory capital is subject to deductions and adjustments specified in the regulations. 

In determining the amount of risk-weighted assets for purposes of calculating risk-based capital ratios, a bank's assets, 
including certain off-balance sheet assets (e.g., recourse obligations, direct credit substitutes, residual interests), are multiplied by a 
risk weight factor assigned by the regulations based on perceived risks inherent in the type of asset. Higher levels of capital are 
required for asset categories believed to present greater risk. For example, a risk weight of 0% is assigned to cash and U.S. 
government securities, a risk weight of 50% is generally assigned to prudently underwritten first lien residential mortgages, a risk 
weight of 100% is assigned to commercial and consumer loans, a risk weight of 150% is assigned to certain past due loans and a 
risk weight of between 0% to 600% is assigned to permissible equity interests, depending on certain specified factors. 

In addition to establishing the minimum regulatory capital requirements, the regulations limit capital distributions and certain 
discretionary bonus payments to management if an institution does not hold a "capital conservation buffer" of 2.5%, effectively 
resulting in the following minimum ratios: (l) a common equity Tier I capital ratio of 7.0%, (2) a Tier I capital to risk-based assets 
ratio of 8.5%, and (3) a total capital ratio of I 0.5%. 

Federal legislation enacted in 2018 required the federal banking agencies, including the FDIC, to adopt a rule implementing a 
simplified "community bank leverage" ratio alternative for institutions with assets of less than $ 10 billion that meet other specified 
criteria. Pursuant to federal legislation enacted in 2020, the community bank leverage ratio was set at 9% for 2022 and thereafter. 
A qualifying community bank that exercises the election and has capital equal to or exceeding the applicable percentage is 
considered compliant with all applicable regulatory capital requirements. Qualifying institutions may elect to utilize the community 
bank leverage ratio in lieu of the generally applicable risk-based capital requirements. 

A qualifying institution may opt in and out of the community bank leverage ratio framework on its quarterly call report. As of 
December 31, 2024, the Bank has not opted into the community bank leverage ratio framework. 

At December 31, 2024, the Bank exceeded each of its applicable capital requirements. 

Standards for Safety and Soundness. As required by statute, the federal banking agencies have adopted final regulations and 
Interagency Guidelines Establishing Standards for Safety and Soundness. The guidelines set forth the safety and soundness 
standards the federal banking agencies use to identify and address problems at insured depository institutions before capital 
becomes impaired. The guide! ines address internal controls and information systems, internal audit systems, credit underwriting, 
loan documentation, interest rate exposure, asset growth, asset quality, earnings and compensation, fees and benefits. The agencies 
have also established standards for safeguarding customer information. If the appropriate federal banking agency determines that 
an institution fails to meet any standard prescribed by the guidelines, the agency may require the institution to submit to the agency 
an acceptable plan to achieve compliance with the standard. 

Activities and Investments. Federal law provides that a state-chartered bank insured by the FDIC generally may not engage as 
a principal in any activity not permissible for a national bank to conduct or make any equity investment of a type or in an amount 
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not authorized for national banks, notwithstanding state law, subject to certain exceptions. For example, state-chartered banks may, 
with FDIC approval, continue to exercise state authority to invest in common or preferred stocks listed on a national securities 
exchange or the Nasdaq Market and to invest in shares of investment companies registered under the Investment Company Act of 
1940. The maximum permissible investment is 100% of Tier L capital, as specified by the FDIC's regulations, or the maximum 
amount permitted by New Jersey law, whichever is less. Such grandfathered authority terminates upon a change in the institution's 
charter or a clhange in control. 

In addition, the FDIC is authorized to permit a state-chartered bank or savings bank to engage in state-authorized activities or 
investments not pennissible for national banks (other than non-subsidiary equity investments) if it meets all applicable capital 
requirements and it is determined that the activities or investments involved do not pose a significant risk to the Deposit Insurance 
Fund. The FDIC has adopted procedures for institutions seeking approval to engage in such activities or investments. In addition, a 
nonmember bank may control a subsidiary that engages in activities as principal that would only be permitted for a national bank to 
conduct in a "financial subsidiary" if a bank meets specified conditions and deducts its investment in the subsidiary for regulatory 
capital purposes. 

Interstate Banking and Branching. Federal law permits well capitalized and well managed bank holding companies to 
acquire banks in any state, subject to Federal Reserve Board approval, certain concentration limits and other specified conditions. 
Interstate mergers of banks are also authorized, subject to regulatory approval and other specified conditions. In addition, banks 
may establish de novo branches on an interstate basis at any location where a bank chartered under the laws of the branch location 
host state may establish a branch. 

Prompt Corrective Regulatory Action. Federal law requires, among other things, that federal bar1k regulatory authorities take 
"prompt corrective action" with respect to banks that do not meet mini mum capital requirements. For these purposes, the law 
establishes five capital categories: well capitalized, adequately capitalized, undercapitalized, significantly undercapitalized and 
critically undercapitalized. 

The FDIC has adopted regulations to implement the prompt corrective action legislall:ion. An institution is considered "well 
capitalized" if it has a total risk-based capital ratio of 10.0% or greater, a Tier I risk-based capital ratio of 8.0% or grearer, a 
leverage ratio of 5.0% or greater and a common equity Tier I capital ratio of 6.5% O·r greater. An institution is considered 
"adequately capitalized" if it has a total risk-based capital ratio of 8.0% or greater, a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 6.0% or 
greater, a leverage ratio of 4.0% or greater and a common equity Tier 1 capital ratio of 4.5% or greater. An institution is considered 
"undercapital'ized" if it has a total risk-based capital ratio of less than 8.0%, a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of less than 6.0%, a 
leverage ratio of less than 4.0% or a common equity Tier I capital ratio of less than 4.5%. An institution is considered 
"significantly undercapitalized" if it has a total risk-based capital ratio of less than 6.0%, a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of Jess 
than 4.0%, a leverage ratio of less than 3.0% or a common equity Tier 1 capital ratio of less than 3.0%. An institution is considered 
"critically undercapitalized" if it has a ratio of tangible equity (as defined in the regulations) to total assets equal to or less than 
2.0%. At December 3 1, 2024, the Bank was classified as a "well capitalized" institution under these definitions. 

At each successive lower capital category, an insured depository institution is subject to additional operating restrictions, 
including limits on growth and a prohibition on the payment of dividends and other capital distributions. Furthermore, if an insured 
depository institution is classified in one of the undercapitalized categories, it is required to submit a capital restoration plan to the 
appropriate federal banking agency. An undercapitalized bank's compliance with a capita l restoration plan must be guaranteed by 
any company that controls the undercapitalized institution in an amount equal to the lesser of 5.0% of the institution's total assets 
when deemed undercapitalized or the amount necessary to achieve the status of adequately capitalized. If an "undercapitalized" 
bank fai ls to submit an acceptable capital restoration plan, it is treated as if it is "significantly undercapitalized." "Significantly 
undercapitalized" banks must comply with one or more of a number of possible additional restrictions, including an o rder by the 
FDIC to sell sufficient voting stock to become adequately capitalized, reduce total assets, cease receipt of deposits from 
correspondent banks, dismiss directors or officers, or to limit interest rates paid on deposits, compensation of executive officers or 
capital distributions by the parent holding company. "Critically undercapitalized" institutions are subject to additional measures 
including, subject to a narrow exception, the appointment of a receiver or conservator within 270 days after they are determined to 
be critically undercapitalized. 

A bank that is classified as well-capitalized, adequately capitaUzed or undercapitalized may be treated as though it were in the 
next lower capital category if the FDIC, after notice and opportunity for hearing, determines that an unsafe or unsound condition, 
or an unsafe or unsound practice, warrants such treatment. 
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Transaction with Affiliates and Regulatioll WI Loans to Insiders and Regulation 0. Transactions between banks and their 
affi liates are governed by federal law. Generally, Section 23A of the Federal Reserve Act, applicable to FDIC-insured state 
nonmember banks by Section 18(j) of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, and the Federal Reserve Board's Regulation W prorubit a 
bank and its subsidiaries from engaging in a "covered transaction" with an affi liate if the aggregate amount of covered transactions 
outstanding with that affiliate, including the proposed transaction, would exceed an amount equal to I 0.0% of the bank's capital 
stock and surplus. The aggregate amount of covered transactions outstanding with all affiliates is limited to 20.0% of the bank's 
capital stock and surplus. The term "covered transaction" includes, among other things, making loans to, purchasing assets from, 
and issuing guarantees to an affiliate, as well as other similar transactions. In addition, loans or other extensions of credit by a bank 
to an affi liate are required to be collateral ized according to the requirements set forth in Section 23A of the Federal Reserve Act. 
Section 23B of the Federal Reserve Act applies to "covered transactions," as well as to certain other transactions, and requires that 
all such transactions be on terms and under circumstances that are substantially the same as, or at least as favorable to, the 
institution as prevailing market terms for comparable transactions with or involving a non-affiliate. Section 23B transactions also 
inc lude the bank's providing services and selling assets to an affiliate. 

A bank's loans to its executive officers, directors, any owner of 10% or more of its stock (each, an insider) and any of certain 
entities controlled by any such person (an insider's related interests), as well as loans to :insiders of affiliates and such insiders' 
related interests, are subject to the conditions and limitations imposed by Section 22(h) of the Federa l Reserve Act and its 
implementing regulation, Regulation 0 , as made applicable to FDIC-insured state nonmember banks by Section 18U) of the 
Federal Depo·sit Insurance Act and FDIC regulations. Under these restricti·ons, the aggregate amount of the loans to any insider and 
the insider's related interests may not exceed the loans-to-one-borrower limit applicable to national banks, which is comparable to 
the loans-to-one-borrower limit applicable to the Bank's loans . See "New Jersey Banking Laws and Supervision-Loans-to-One 
Borrower Limitations." All loans by a bank to all insiders and insiders' related interests in the aggregate may not exceed the bank's 
unimpaired capital and unimpaired surplus. Loans to an executive officer, other than loans for the education of the officer's 
children and certa in loans secured by the officer's residence, may not exceed the greater of $25,000 or 2.5% of the bank's 
unimpaired capital and surplus, and in no event may exceed $100,000. Regulation 0 requires that any proposed loan to an insider, 
or a related interest of that insider, be approved in advance by a majority of the Board of Directors of the bank, with any interested 
directors not participating directly or indirectly in the voting, if that loan, combined with previous loans by the bank to the inside r 
and his or her related interests, exceeds specified amounts. Generally, such loans must be made on substantia lly the same terms as, 
and follow credit underwriting procedures that are not less stringent than, those that are prevailing at the time for comparable 
transactions with non-insiders or non-employees. Regulation 0 contains a general exception for extensions of credit made pursuant 
to a benefit or compensation plan of a bank that is widely available to employees of the bank and that does not give any preference 
to insiders of the bank over other employees. As of December 3 1, 2024, the Bank does not have any loans deemed to be Regulation 
0 loans. 

In addition, federal law prohibits extensions of credit to a bank's insiders and their re lated interests by any other institution 
that has a correspondent banking relationship with the bank, unless such extension of credit is on substantia lly the same terms as 
those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other pers·ons and does not involve more than the normal risk of 
repayment or present other unfavorable features. 

Federal Insurance of Deposit Acco~tnts. The Bank is a member of the Deposit fnsurance Fund, which is administered by the 
FDIC. Deposit accounts in the Bank are insured up to a maximum of $250,000 for each separately insured depositor for each 
account ownership category. 

The FDIC assesses all insured depository institutions. An institution's assessment rate depends upon the perceived risk to the 
Deposit Insurance Fund of that institution, with less risky institutions paying lower rates. Currently, assessments for institutions of 
less than $10 bill ion of total assets are based on financial measures and supervisory ratings derived from statistical models 
estimating the probability of failure within three years. Assessment rates (inclusive of possible adjustments) ranged from 2 .5 to 
32 basis points of each institution's total assets less tangible capital effective January 1, 2023. 

Insurance of deposits may be terminated by the FDIC upon a finding that the institution has engaged in unsafe or unsound 
practices, is in an unsafe or unsound condition to continue operations or has violated any applicable law, regulation, order or 
regulatory condition imposed in writing. We do not know of any practice, condition or violation that might lead to termination of 
the Bank's deposit insurance. 

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act ("FDICTA"). The Bank, having over $500 million in total assets, 
is subject to requirements of Section 112 of FDICIA ("FDICIA 112"). The primary purpose of FDICIA 112 is to provide a 
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framework for early risk identification in financial management through an effective system of internal controls. Annual reporting 
requirements under FDTCJA 112 are as follows: ( I) annual audited financ ial statements; (2) management report stating 
management's responsibility for preparing the institution's annual financial statements, establishing and maintaining an adequate 
internal control struc ture and procedures for financial reporting and for complying with laws and regulations, and assessment by 
management of the institution' s compliance with such laws and regula tions; and (3) for insured depository institutions with 
consolidated total assets over $1.0 billion or more, such as the Bank, the independent public accountant who audits the institut ion's 
financial statements shall examine, attest to, and report separately on the assertion of management concerning the effectiveness of 
the institution's internal control structure and procedures for financial reporting. 

Privacy Regulations. Federal law and reg ulations generally require that the Bank disclose its privacy policy, including 
identifying with whom it shares a customer's "non-public personal informalion," to customers at the time of establishing the 
customer re lationship. In addition, financ ial institutions are generally required to furn ish the ir customers a privacy notice annually. 
However, a provision of the Fixing America's Surface Transportation Act enacted in 2015 provides an exception from the annual 
notice requirement if a financial institution does not share non-public personal information with non-affiliated third parties (other 
than as permitted under certain exceptions) and its polic ies and practices regarding disclosure of non-public personal information 
have not changed since the last distribution of its policies and practices to its customers . Jn addition, the Bank is required to 
provide its customers with the ability to "opt-out" of having their personal information shared with unaffiliated third parties and to 
not disclose account numbers or access codes to non-affiliated third parties for marketing purposes. 

Community Reinvestment Act. Under the Community Reinvestment Act ("CRA"), as implemented by the FDIC, a state 
nonmember bank has a continuing and affi rmative obligation, cons istent with its safe and sound operation, to he lp meet the c redit 
needs of its entire community, including low- and moderate-income neighborhoods. The CRA does not establish specific lending 
requirements or programs for financial institutions nor does it limit an institution's discretion to develop the types of products and 
services that it believes are best suited to its particular community, consistent with the CRA. The CRA requires the FDIC, in 
connection w ith its examination of each state nonmember bank, to assess the institution's record of meeting the credit needs of its 
community and to take such record into account in its evaluation of certain applications by such institution, including applications 
to establish branches and acquire other financial institutions. The CRA currently requires the FDIC to provide a written evaluation 
of an institution's CRA performance utilizing a four-tiered descriptive rati ng system. The Bank's most recent FDIC CRA rating in 
June 2024 was "Satisfactory." On October 24, 2023, the FDIC, the Federal Reserve Board, and the Office of the Comptroller of the 
Currency issued a final rule to strengthen and modernize the CRA regulations. Under the final rule, banks with assets of at least 
$2 billion as of December 31 in both of the prior two calendar years will be a "large bank." The agencies will evaluate large banks 
under four performance tests: the Retail Lending Test, the Retail Services and Products Test, the Community Development 
Financing Test, and the Community Development Services Test. Under the new regulations, the applicability date for the majority 
of the provisions is January I, 2026, and additional requirements will be applicable on January I, 2027. On March 29, 2024, a 
federal court in the Northern District of Texas issued a preliminary injunction of the new CRA regulations, enjoining the federal 
banking agencies from enforcing the regulations against the plaintiff bank industry trade groups, and extending the regulations' 
implementation dates day-for-day for each day the injunction is in place. 

Consumer Protection and Fair Lending R'egulations. The Bank is subject to a variety of federal and New Jersey statutes and 
regulations that are intended to protect consumers and prohibit discrimination in the granting of credit. These statutes and 
regulations provide for a range of sanctions for non-compliance with their terms, including imposition of cease-and-desist orde rs 
and civil money penalties, and referral to the U.S. Attorney General for prosecution of a civil action seeking actual and punitive 
damages and injunctive relief. Section 5 of the Federal Trade Commission Act prohibits 11.1nfair and deceptive acts and practices 
against consumers and is enforced by the FDIC. Other federal laws also prohibit unfair, deceptive or abusive acts or practices 
against consumers, and those can be enforced against the Bank by the state attorneys general. 

Federal Home Loan Bank System 

The Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank System, which consists of 11 regional Federal Home Loan Banks. The 
Federal Home Loan Banks provide a central c redit facility primarily for member institutions. The Bank, as a member of the FHLB, 
is required to acquire and hold shares of capital stock in the FHLB. The Bank was in compliance with this requirement at 
December 31, 2024. 

Holding Company Regulation 

Federal Holding Company Regulation. The Company is a bank holding company registered with the Federal Reserve Board 
and is subject to regulations, examination, supervision and reporting r·equirements applicable to bank holding companies. In 
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addition, the Federal Reserve Board has enforcement authori ty over the Company and its non-savings bank subsidiaries. Among 
other things, this authority permits the Federal Reserve Board to restrict or prohibit activities that are determined to be a serious 
risk to the subsidiary savings bank. 

A bank holding company is generally prohibited from e ngaging in non-banking activities, or acquiring direct or indirect 
control of more than 5% of the voting securi ties of any company engaged in non-banking activities. One of the principal exceptions 
to this prohibition is for activities the Federal Reserve Board has determined to be so closely related to banking or managing or 
controlling banks as to be a proper incident thereto. Some of the principal activities that the Federal Reserve Board has determined 
by regulation to be so c losely related to banking are: (I) making or servicing loans; (2) performing certain data processing services; 
(3) providing d iscount brokerage services; (4) acting as fiduciary, investment or financial advisor; (5) leasing personal or real 
property; (6) making investments in corporations or projects designed primarily to promote ·community welfare; and (7) acquiring a 
savings and loan association whose direct and indirect activities are limited to those permitted for bank holding companies. 

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 authorizes a bank holding company that meets specified conditions, including that its 
depository institution subsidiaries are ·'well cap:italized" and "well managed," to opt to become a "financial holding company." A 
"financial holding company" may engage in a broader range of financial activi ties than a bank holding company. Such activities 
may include insurance underwriting and investment banking. The Company has no plans to elect "financial holding company" 
status at this time. 

CapitaL Federal legislation required the Federal Reserve Board to establish minimum consolidated capital requirements for 
bank holding companies that are as stringent as those applicable to their insured depository subsidiaries. However, subsequent 
federal legislation exempted from the applicability of the consolidated capital requirements bank holding companies with less than 
$3.0 billion in consolidated assets, such as the Company, unless otherwise advised by the Federal Reserve Board. 

Source of Strength. Federal law provides that bank holding companies must act as a source of strength to their subsidiary 
depository institution. The expectation is that the bank holding company will provide capital, liquidity and other support for the 
institution in times of financial stress. 

Stock Repurchases and Dividends. A bank holding company is generally required to give the Federal Reserve Board prior 
written notice of any purchase or redemption of its outstanding equity securities if the gross consideration for the purchase or 
redemption, when combined with the net consideration paid for all such purchases or redemptions during the preceding 12 months, 
is equal to I 0% or more of the holding company's consolidated net worth. T he Federal Reserve Board may disapprove such a 
purchase or r·edemption if it determines that the proposal would constitute an unsafe and unsound practice, or would violate any 
law, regulation, Federal Reserve Board order or directive, or any condition imposed by, or written agreement with, the Federal 
Reserve Board. There is an exception to this approval requirement for well-capitalized bank holding companies that meet certain 
other conditions. 

Additionally, under the prompt corrective action laws, the ability of a bank holding company to pay dividends may be 
restricted if a subsidiary bank becomes undercapitalized. 

Notwithstanding the above, the Federal Reserve Board has issued a supervisory bulletin regarding the payment of dividends 
and repurchase or redemption of o utstanding shares of stock by bank holding companies. In general, the Federal Reserve Board's 
poHcy is that djvidends should be paid only out of current earnjngs and only if the prospective rate of earnings retention by the 
bank holding company appears consistent with the organization's capital needs, asset quality and overall financial condition. The 
supervisory bulletin provides for prior consultation with and review of proposed dividends by the Federal Reserve Board in certain 
cases, such as where a proposed dividend exceeds earnings for the pe1iod for which the d ividend would be paid (e.g., calendar 
quarter) or where the company's net income for the past four quarters, net of dividends previously paid over that period, is 
insufficient to fully fund a proposed dividend. 

The supervisory bulletin also indicates that a bank holding company should notify the Federal Reserve Board, under certain 
circumstances, prior to redeem:ing or repurchasing common stock or perpenial preferred stock. The specified circumstances include 
where a holding company is experiencing financial weaknesses or where the repurchase or redemption would result in a net 
reduction, as of the end of a quarter, in the amount of such equity instruments outstanding compared with the beginning of the 
quarter in which the redemption or repurchase occurred. Even outside of these circumstances, the Federal Reserve Board expects as 
a matter of practice to have notice and opportunity for non-objection before such an action is taken. The supervisory bulletin 
indicates that such notification is to allow Federal Reserve Board supervisory review of, and possible objection to, the proposed 
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repurchases or redemption. These regulatory policies could affect the ability of the Company to pay dividends, engage in stock 
repurchases or otherwise engage in capital distributions. 

Acquisition. The Change in Bank Control Act provides that no person may acquire control of a bank holding company, such 
as the Company, without the prior non-objection or approval of the Federal Reserve Board. Control, as defined under the Change 
in Bank Control Act and its implementing regulations, means the power, directly or indirectly, to direct the management or policies 
of a company, or the ownership, control or power to vote 25% or more of any class of voting securities of the company. 
Acquisition of I 0% or more of any class of a bank holding company's voting securities constitutes a rebuttable presumption of 
control under certain circumstances, including where, as is the case with the Company, the issuer has registered securities under 
Section 12 of the Exchange Act. 

In addition, the Bank Holding Company Act provides that no company may acquire control of a bank or bank holding 
company within the meaning of that statute without having fi rst obtained the approval of the Federal Reserve Board. A company 
that acquires control of a bank or bank holding company for purposes of the Bank Holding Company Act becomes a "bank holding 
company" sulbject to registration, examination and regulation by the Federal Reserve Board. 

New Jersey law establishes similar filing and prior approval requirements as to the NJDOBT for direct o r indirect acquisitions 
of New Jersey chartered institutions. 

Federal Secu rities Laws 

The Company's common stock is registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Company is subject to the 
information, proxy solicitation, insider trading restrictions and other requirements under the Exchange Act. 

Emerging Growth Company Status. We are an emergi ng growth company. For as long as we continue to be an emerging 
growth company, we have elected to take advantage of exemptions from various reporting requirements applicable to other public 
companies blllt not to "emerging growth companies," including, but not limited to, reduced disclosure obligations regarding 
executive compensation in our periodic reports and proxy statements, and exemptions from the requirements of holding a 
non-binding advisory vote on executive compensation and shareholder approval of any golden parachute payments not previously 
approved. As. an emerging growth company, we also will not be subject to Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 
which would require that our independent auditors review and attest as to the effectiveness of our internal control over fina.ncial 
reporting. We have also elected to use the extended transition period to delay adoption of new or revised accounting 
pronouncements applicable to public companies until such pronouncements are made applicable to private companies. If the 
Company were to subsequently elect not to use this extended transition period, such election would be irrevocable. Due to our use 
of the extended transition period, our financial statements may not be comparable to the financial statements of public companies 
that comply with such new or revised accounting standards. 

A company loses emerging growth company status on the earlier of: ( I ) the last day of the fiscal year of the company during 
which it had total annual gross revenues of $1.07 billion or more; (2) the last day of the fiscal year of the issuer following the 
fifth anniversary of the date of the first sale of common equity securities of the company pursuant to an effective registration 
statement under the Securities Act; (3) the date on which such company has, during the previous three-year period, issued more 
than $1.0 billion in non-convertible debt; or (4) the date on which such company is deemed to be a " large accelerated filer" under 
Securities and Exchange Commission regulations (generally, a " large accelerated filer" is defined as a corporation with at least 
$700 million of voting and non-voting equity held by non-affiliates). 

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 was enacted to improve corporate responsibility, provide for enhanced penalties for 
accounting and auditing improprieties at publicly traded companies and protect investors by improving the accuracy and reliability 
of corporate disclosures pursuant to the securities laws. The Company has policies, procedures and systems designed to comply 
with this Act and its implementing regulations. 

TAXATION 

Federal Taxation 

General. The Company and the Bank are subject to federal income taxation in the same general manner as other corporations, 
with some exceptions discussed below. The following discussion of federal taxation is intended only to summarize material federal 
income tax matters and is not a comprehensive description of the tax rules applicable to the Company and the Bank. 
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Method of Accounting. For federal income tax purposes, the Company currently reports its income and expenses 011 the 
accrual method of accounting and uses a tax year ending December 31 for filing its federal income tax returns. 

Net Operating Loss Carryovers. Effective with the passage of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, net operating loss carrybacks are no 
longer permitted, and net operating losses are allowed to be carried forward indefinitely. Net operating loss carryforwards arising 
from tax years beginning after January I, 2018 are limited to offset a maximum of 80% of a future year's taxable income. At 
December 31, 2024, the Company had $42.4 mmion in net operating loss carryovers. The Company contributed $9.0 million to the 
Blue Foundry Charitable Foundation in 2021 and the deferred benefit has a five-year carryforward limitation. 

Capital Loss Carryovers. Generally, a financial institution may carry back capital losses to the preceding three taxable years 
and forward to the succeeding five taxable years. Any capital loss carryback or carryover is treated as a short-term capital loss for 
the year to wlilich it is carried. As such, it is grouped with any other capita[ losses for the year to which carried and is used to offset 
any capita l gains. Any loss remaining after the five-year carryover period that has not been deducted is no longer deductible. At 
December 31, 2024, the Company had no capital loss carryovers. See discussion on Deferred Tax valuation Allowance on the next 
page of this document. 

Corporate Dividends. We may generally exclude from our income 100% of dividends received from the Bank as a member of 
the same affi I iated group of corporations. 

Audit of Tax Returns. The Company's federal income tax returns have not been audited in the last three years. 

State Taxation 

New Jersey State Taxation. Jn 2014, tax legislation was enacted that changed the manner in which financial institutions and 
their affiliates are taxed in New Jersey. Taxable income is apportioned to New Jersey based on the location of the taxpayer's 
customers, with special rules for income from certain financial transactions. The location of the taxpayer's offices and branches are 
not relevant to the determination of income apportioned to New Jersey. The state of New Jersey applies a surtax based on the tax 
base within the state, applying a 6.5%, 7.5% or 9% rate. Given the Company has available net operating losses for the period, the 
statutory rate that would apply to the tax base in 2022 is 6 .5%. An alternative tax on apportioned capital, capped at $5.0 million for 
a tax year, is imposed to the extent that it exceeds the tax on apportioned income. The New Jersey alternative tax rate was 0.05% 
for 2019, 0.025% for 2020 and was completely phased out as of January I, 2021. Qualified community banks and thrift institutions 
that maintain a qualified loan portfolio are entitled to a specially comput,ed modification that reduces the income taxable to New 
Jersey. The Company had New Jersey net operating loss carryforwards totaling $41.6 million, the majority of which will expire in 
18 years. 

The Company's New Jersey State income tax returns were subject to an audit for the years 2015 through 2018, which 
concluded in January 2022 without findings. 

New York State Taxation. The Company files New York State tax returns on a calendar year basis. New York State imposes a 
corporate income tax, based on net income allocable to New York State at a rate of 6.5%. Jn April 202 1, legislation increased the 
corporate franch ise tax rate to 7.25% for tax years beginning on or after January I , 202 1 and before January I , 2024 for taxpayers 
with a business income base greater than $5 million. In addition, the scheduled phase-out of the capital base tax was delayed. The 
rate of the capital base was to have been 0% starting in 2021. The legislation imposed a tax rate of 0.1875% for tax years beginning 
on or after January 1, 2021 and before January 1, 2024, with the 0% rate to take effect in 2024. New York State also imposes the 
Metropoli tan Transportation Authority ("MTA'') Tax Surcharge rate of 30% a llocable to business activities carried on in the 
Metropoli tan Commuter Transportation District. The MTA surcharge was made permanent in 2024. 

New York City Taxation. The Company is also subject to the New York City Financial Corporation Tax calculated, subject to 
a New York City income and expense allocation, on a similar basis as the New York State Tax, at a rate of 8.85%. 

Pennsylvania State Taxation. The Bank is subject to Pennsylvania Mutual Thrift [nstitutions Tax imposed at the rate of 
11.5% on net taxable income of mutual thrift institutions in Pennsylvania, including savings banks without capital stock, building 
and loan associations, savings and loan associations, and savings institutions having capita l stock. 

Delaware State Taxation . As a Delaware business corporation not earning income in Delaware, the Company is exempt from 
Delaware co!jporate income tax but is required to file an annual report with and pay franchis·e taxes to the state of Delaware. 

Blue Foundry Bancorp I Form I 0-K 25 



Comzecticut State Taxation. The Company is subject to Corporate Income Tax in Connecticut at a rate of 7.5% but is not 
expected to be taxpaying in this jurisdiction. 

Deferred Tax Valuation Allowance 

At December 3 1, 2021, the Company determined that a full valuation allowance was required on both its federal and state net 
deferred tax assets. 

Management assesses the available positive and negative evidence t·O estimate whether sufficient future taxable income will 
be generated to permit use of the existing deferred tax assets. A significant piece of objective negative evidence evaluated was the 
cumulative loss incurred over the three-year period ended December 31, 2024. Such objective evidence limits the ability to 
consider other subjective evidence, such as our projections for future growth. 

For the year ended December 3 1, 2024, a valuation allowance of $25.1 million has been maintained against our net defen·ed 
tax asset. The amount of the deferred tax asset considered realizable could be adjusted if estimates of future taxable income 
increased or uf objective negative evidence in the form of cumulative losses is no longer present and adclitional weight is given to 
subjective evidence such as our projections for growth. 

ITEM IA. RISK FACTORS 

Risks Related to Interest Rate Risk 

Future changes in interest rates may reduce any future profits. 

Like most financial institutions, whether we are profitable or not depends to a large extent upon our net interest income, which 
is the difference between our interest income on interest-earning assets, such as loans and securities, and om interest expense on 
interest-bearing liabilities, such as deposits and borrowed funds. Accordingly, our results of operations depend largely on 
movements in market interest rates and our ability to manage our interest-rate sensitive assets and liabilities in response to these 
movements. Factors such as inflation, recession and instability in financial markets, among other factors beyond our control, may 
affect interest rates. For the year ended December 31,2024, we recorded a loss of $11.9 million. 

Our financial condition and results of operations are significantly affected by changes in market interest rates, and the degree 
to which these changes disparately impact short-term and long-term interest rates and influence the behavior of our customer base. 
Our results of operations substantially depend on our net interest income, which is the difference between the interest income we 
earn on our interest earning assets and the interest expense we pay on our interest-bearing liabilities. A flattening yield curve, or 
one that inverts, could negatively impact our net interest margin and earnings. 

lf the Federal Reserve lowers market interest rates current levels, our net interest income could also be negatively affected if 
competitive pressures prevent us from reducing rates on our deposits, while the yields on our assets decrease through loan 
prepayments and interest rate adjustments. Conversely, if the Federal Reserve raises interest rates, our inte rest-bearing liabilities 
may be subject to repricing or maturing more quickly than our interest-earning assets. If s hort-term rates increase rapidly, we may 
have to increase the rates we pay on our deposits and borrowed funds more quickly than we can increase the interest rates we earn 
on our loans and investments, resulting in a negative effect on interest spreads and net interest income. In addition, the effect of 
rising rates could be compounded if deposit customers move funds into higher yielding accounts or are lost to competitors offering 
higher rates on their deposit products. 

Changes in interest rates also affect the value of our interest-earning assets and in particular our secun tJes portfolio. 
Generally, the value of securities fluctuates inversely with changes in interest rates. At December 31, 2024, our avaiJable-for-sale 
debt securities portfolio totaled $297.0 million with net unrealized losses of $27.4 million and are rep01ted as a separate component 
of stockholders' equity. Therefore, decreases in the fai r value of securities available-for-sale resulting from increases in interest 
rates could have an adverse effect on stockholders' equity. At December 31, 2024, our he ld-to-maturity debt securities portfolio 
totaled $33.2 million with net unrealized losses of $3.2 million. The net unrealized losses on our held-to-maturity securities are not 
recorded in the financial statements until realized upon sale. The Company does not intend to sell held-to-maturity securities, nor 
does it foresee being required to sell them before the anticipated recovery or maturity. 

Volatility and uncertainty related to inflation and the effects of inflation, which may lead to increased costs for businesses and 
consumers and potentially contribute to poor business and economic conditions generally, may also enhance or contribute to some 
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of the risks discussed herein. For example, higher inflation, or volati lity and uncertainty related to inflation, could reduce demand 
for the Company' s products, adversely affect the creditworthiness of the Company' s borrowers or result in lower values for the 
Company's investment securities and other interest-earning assets. 

Any substantial change in market interest rates could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, liquidity and 
results of operations. While we pursue an asset/liability strategy designed! to mitigate our risk from changes in interest rates, such 
changes can still have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. At December 31, 2024, our net 
portfolio value would decrease by $70.1 million if there was an instantaneous 200 basis point increase in market interest rates.. For 
fu rther discussion of how changes in interest rates could impact us, see "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial 
Condition and Results of Operations-Market Risk." 

Risks Related to Lending Activities 

Because we intend to increase our commercial real estate and commercial loan originations, our lending risk will 
increase. 

Commercial real estate and commercial loans gene rally have more risk than residential mortgage loans. Because the 
repayment of commercial real estate and commercial loans depends on the successful management and operation of the borrower's 
properties or !'elated businesses, repayment of such loans can be affected by adverse conditions in the real estate market or the local 
economy. Commercial real estate and commercial loans may also involve relatively large loan balances to individual borrowers or 
groups of related borrowers. A downturn in the real estate market or the local economy could adversely impact the value of 
properties securing the loan or the revenues from the borrower's business thereby increasing the risk of non-performing loans. 
Also, many of our multifamily and commercial real estate and commercial business borrowers have more than one loan 
outstanding with us. Consequently, an adverse development with respect to one loan or one credit relationship can expose us to a 
significantly greater risk of loss compared to an adverse development with respect to a residential mortgage loan. Further, unlike 
residential mortgages or multifamily and commercial real estate loans, commercial and industrial loans may be secured by 
collateral other than real estate, such as inventory and accounts receivable, the value of which may be more difficult to appraise, 
may be more susceptible to fluctuation in value at default, and may be more difficult to realize upon enforcement of our remedies. 
As our commercial real estate and commercial loan portfolios increase, the corresponding risks and potential for losses from these 
loans may also increase. 

If our allowance for credit losses on loans is not sufficient to cover actual loan losses, our earnings and capital could 
decrease. 

Lending is inherently risky and we are exposed to the risk that our bon·owers may default on their obligations. A borrower's 
default on its obligations may result in lost principal and interest income and increased operating expenses as a result of the 
allocation of management's time and resources to the collection and work-out of the loan. In cet1ain situations, where collection 
efforts are unsuccessful or acceptable work-out arrangements cannot be reached, we may have to charge-off the loan in whole or in 
part, or sell it at a discount. I n such situations, we may acquire real estate or other assets, if any, that secure the loan through 
foreclosure or other similar available remedies, the amount owed under the defaulted loan may exceed the value of the assets 
acquired, and post-default remedies may be unavailable or unfeasible. 

We make various assumptions and judgments about the collectability of our loan portfolio, including the creditworthiness of 
our borrowers and the value of the real estate and other assets serving as collateral for our moans. In determining the amount of the 
a llowance for credit losses on loans, we review our loans and our loss and delinquency experience, and we evaluate other factors 
including, among other things, current economic conditions. If our assumptions are incorrect, or if delinquencies or 
non-performing loans increase, our allowance for credit losses on loans may not be sufficient to cover losses in our loan portfolio, 
which would require additions to our allowance, which could materially decrease our net income. Our allowance for credit losses 
on loans was 0.83% of total loans and 254.02% of non-performing loans at December 3 1, 2024. 

In addition, bank regulators periodically review our allowance for credit losses on loans and, based on their judgments and 
information available to them at the time of their review, may require us to increase our allowance for credit losses on loans or 
recognize further loan charge-offs. An increase in our allowance for credit losses on loans or loan charge-offs as required by these 
regulatory authorities may reduce our net income and our capital, which may have a material adverse effect on our financial 
condition and results of operations. 
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If our non-performing assets increase, our earnings will be adversely affected. 

At December 31 , 2024, ow· non-performing assets, which consist of non-performing loans, were $5.1 million, or 0.25 % of 
total assets. Our non-performing assets adversely affect our net income in various ways: 

we record interest income only on the cash basis or cost-recovery method for non-accrual loans and we do not record 
interest income for other real estate owned; 

• we must provide for expected loan losses through a current period charge to the provision for credit losses on loans; 

non-interest expense increases when we write down the value of properties in our other real estate owned portfolio to 
reflect changing market values; 

there are legal fees associated with the resolution of problem assets, as well as carrying costs, such as taxes, insurance 
and maintenance fees; and 

the resolution of non-performing assets requires the active involvement of management, which can distract them from 
more profitable activity. 

lf additional borrowers become delinquent and do not pay their loans and we are unable to successfully manage our 
non-performing assets, our losses and troubled assets could increase significantly, which could have a material adverse effect on 
our financial condition and results of operations. 

R isks Related to Loan Underwriting 

Adjustable-Rate Loans. While we anticipate that adjustable-rate loans will better offset the adverse effects of an increase in 
interest rates as compared to fixed-rate loans, an increased monthly payment required of adjustable-rate loan borrowers in a rising 
interest rate environment could cause an increase in delinquencies and defaults. The marketability of the underlying property also 
may be adversely affected in a high interest rate environment. Tn addition, although adjustable-rate loans make our asset base more 
responsive to changes in interest rates, the extent of this interest sensitivity is somewhat limited by the annual and lifetime interest 
rate adjustment limits on adjustable-rate loans. To help minimize the risks associated with rising interest rates and the subsequent 
risk of default, we often perform a stress analysis during underwriting. 

Multifamily and Commercial Real Estate Loans. Loans secured by commercial and multifamily real estate generally have 
larger balances and involve a greater degree of risk than residential real estate loans. Of primary concern in commercial real estate 
and multifamily lending is the borrower's creditworthiness and the feasibi lity and cash flow potential of the asset. Payments on 
loans secured by income producing properties often depend on the successful operation and management of the properties. As a 
result, repayment of such loans may be subject to adverse conditions in the real estate market or the economy to a greater extent 
than residential real estate loans. To monitor cash flows on income properties, we generally require borrowers and loan guarantors, 
if any, to provide annual financial statements on commercial real estate and mu ltifamily loans. Tn reaching a decision whether to 
make a commercial real estate or multifamily loan, we consider the net operating income of the property, the borrower's expertise, 
credit history and profitability and the value of the underlying property. At times, we may also perform a global cash flow analysis 
of the borrower. We generally have required that the prope11ies securing these real estate moans have debt service coverage ratios 
(the ratio of net operating income to debt service) of at least 1.25x. We require a Phase One environmental report on all 
commercial real estate loans in excess of $1.0 million or when we believe there is a possibility that hazardous materials may have 
existed on the site, or the site may have been impacted by adjoining properties that handled hazardous materials. Further in 
situations where environmental risks may be present, we utilize the services of an independent and qualified environmental 
consultant to assess any underlying risks. 

Construction Loans. Our construction loans are based upon our estimates of costs to complete a project and the value of the 
completed project. Typically, said reviews are conducted by third party' s approved by the bank. Underwriting is focused on the 
borrowers' financial strength, credit history and demonstrated ability to produce a quality product and effectively market and 
manage its operations. 

Construction lending involves additional risks when compared to permanent residential lending because funds are advanced 
upon the collateral of the project, which is of uncertain value before its completion. Because of the uncertainties inherent in 
estimating construction costs, it is difficult to evaluate accurately the total funds required to complete a project and the related 
loan-to-value ratio. ln addition, generally during the term of a construction loan, interest may be funded by the borrower or 
disbursed from an interest reserve set aside from the construction loan budget. These loans often involve the disbursement of 
substantial funds with repayment substantially dependent on the success of the ultimate project and the abi lity of the borrower to 
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sell or lease the property or obtain permanent take-out financing, rather than the ability of the borrower or guarantor to repay 
principal and interest. ff the appraised value of a completed project proves to be overstated, we may have inadequate collateral for 
the repayment of the loan upon completion of construction of the project and may incur a loss. We use a discounted cash flow 
analysis to determine the value of any construction project of five or more units. Our ability to continue to originate a significant 
amount of construction loans is dependent on the strength of the general real estate market in our market areas. 

Junior Liens and Consumer Loans. Consumer loans may entail greater risk than residential mortgage loans, as they can be 
unsecured, subordinately secured or secured by assets that depreciate rapidly. Repossessed collateral for a defaulted consumer loan 
may not provide an adequate source of repayment for the outstanding loan and a resulting deficiency often does not warrant further 
substantial collection efforts against the borrower. Consumer loan collections depend on the borrower's continuing financial 
stability, and therefore are likely to be adversely affected by various factors, including job loss, divorce, illness or personal 
bankruptcy. Furthermore, the application of various federal and state laws, including federal and state bankruptcy and insolvency 
laws, may limit the amount that can be recovered on such loans. 

Commercial and Industrial Loans. Unlilke residential real estate loans, which generally are made on the basis of the 
borrower's ability to make repayment from his or her employment or other income, and which are secured by real property whose 
value tends to be more readily ascertainable, commercial and industrial loans are of higher risk and typically are made on the basis 
of the borrower's ability to make repayment from the cash flows of the borrower's business and the collateral securing these loans 
may fluctuate in value. Our commercial and industrial loans are originated primarily based on the identified cash flows of the 
borrower and secondarily on the underlying collateral provided by the borrower. Most often, collateral for commercial and 
industrial loans consists of accounts receivable, inventory and/or equipment. Credit support provided by the borrower for most of 
these loans is based on the liquidation of the pledged collateral and enforcement of a personal guarantee. Furthermore, collateral 
securing such loans may depreciate over time, may be difficult to appraise and may fl uctuate in value. As a result, the availability 
of funds for tlhe repayment of commercial and industrial loans may depend substantia lly on the success of the business itself. 

Risks Related to Economic Conditions 

Declines in value may adversely impact our investment portfolio. 

As of December 31, 2024, the Company had approximately $330. L miiJion in its investment portfolio, with $297.0 million 
designated as. available-for-sale and $33.2 million designated as held-to-maturity. For securities available-for-sale, ASU 2016-13 
requires entities to determine if impairment is related to credit loss or non-credit loss. If an assessment of the security indicates that 
a credit loss exists, the present value of cash flows expected to be collected from the security are compared to the amortized cost 
basis of the security, and if the present value of cash flows is less than the amortized cost basis, a credit loss exists and an 
allowance is created, limited by the amount that the fair value is less than the amortized cost basis. Held-to-maturity securities are 
evaluated under the allowance for credit losses model. Held-to-maturity securities are charged off against the allowance when 
deemed to be uncollectible and adjustments to the allowance are reported as a component of credit loss expense. If the credit loss 
expense is significant enough it could affect the ability of Blue Foundry Bank to upstream dividends to the Company, which could 
have a material adverse effect on our liquidity and our ability to pay dividends to shareholders and could also negatively impact our 
regulatory capital ratios. 

The geographic concentration of our loa n portfolio and lending activities makes us vulnerable to a downturn in our 
local market area. 

Our loan portfolio is concentrated primarily in New Jersey. This makes us vulnerable to a downturn in the local economy and 
real estate markets. Adverse conditions in the local economy such as unemployment, inflation, recession, regulatory changes, a 
catastrophic event or other factors beyond our control could impact the ability of our borrowers to repay their loans, which could 
impact our net interest income. Decreases in local real estate values caused by economic conditions, recent changes in tax and rent 
regulation laws or other events could adversely affect the value of the property used as colftateral for our loans, which could cause 
us to realize a loss in the event of a foreclosure. Further, deterioration in local economic conditions could drive the level of loan 
losses beyond the level we have provided for in our allowance for credit losses on loans, which in turn could necessitate an 
increase in our provision for loan losses and a resulting reduction to our earnings and capital. 
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A worsening of economic conditions in our market a rea could reduce demand for our products and services and/or 
result in incr eases in our level of non-performing loans, which could adversely affect our operations, financial condition 
and earnings 

Local economic conditions have a significant impact on the ability of our borrowers to repay loans and the value of the 
collateral securing loans. A deterioration in economic conditions, especially local conditions, could have the following 
consequences, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, Liquidity and results of 
operations, and could more negatively affect us compared to a financial institution that operates with more geographic diversity: 

demand for our products and services may decline; 

loao delinquencies, problem assets and foreclosures may increase; 

• col]ateral for loans, especially real estate, may decline in value, thereby reducing customers' future borrowing power and 
reducing the value of assets and collate ral associated with existing loans; and 

the net wo1th and liquidity of loan guarantors may decline, impairing their ability to honor commitments to us. 

Moreover, a significant decline in general economic conditions caused by inflation, recession, acts of terrorism, civil unrest, 
an outbreak of hostilities or other international or domestic calamities, an epidemic or pandemic, unemployment or other factors 
beyond our control could further impact these local economic conditions and could further negatively affect the financial results of 
our banking operations. 

A lack of liquidity could adversely affect the Company's financial condition and results of operations. 

Liquidity is essential to the Company's business. The Company relies on its ability to generate deposits and effectively 
manage the repayment of its liabilities to ensure that there is adequate liquidity to fund operations. An inability to raise fu nds 
through deposits, borrowings, the sale and maturities of loans and securities and other sources could have a substantial negative 
effect on liquidity. The Company's most important source of funds is its ·deposits. Deposit balances can decrease when customers 
perceive a lternative investments as providing a better risk adjusted return, which are strongly influenced by such external factors as 
the direction of interest rates, local and national economic conditions and the availability and attractiveness of alternative 
investments. Further, the demand for deposits may be reduced due to a variety of factors such as negative trends in the banking 
sector, the level of and/or composition of our uninsured deposits, demographic patterns, changes in customer preferences, 
reductions in consumers' disposable income, the monetary policy of tlhe Federal Reserve or regulatory actions that decrease 
customer access to particular products. If customers move money out of bank deposits and into other investments such as money 
market funds, the Company would lose a relatively low-cost source of funds, which would increase its funding costs and reduce net 
interest income. Any changes made to the rates offered on deposits to remain competitive with other financial institutions may also 
adversely affect profitability and liquidity. Othe r primary sources of funds consist of cash flows from operations, maturities and 
sales of investment securities and/or loans, brokered deposits, borrowings from the FHLB and/or FRB discount window, and 
unsecured borrowings. The Company also may borrow funds from third-party lenders, such as other financial institutions. The 
Company's access to funding sources in amounts adequate to finance or capitalize its activities, o r on terms that are acceptable, 
could be impaired by factors t hat affect the Company directly or the financial services industry or economy in general, suc h as 
dis ruptions in the financial markets or negative views and expectations about the prospects for the financial services industry, a 
decrease in the level of the Company's business activity as a result of a downturn in markets or by one or more adverse regulatory 
actions against the Company or the financial sector in general. Any decline in available funding could adversely impact the 
Company's ability to originate loans, invest in securities, meet expenses, or to fulfill obligations such as meeting deposit 
withdrawal demands, any of which could have a material adverse impact on its liquidity, business, financia l condition and results 
of operations. 

Inflationary pressures and r ising prices may affect our results of operations and financial condition. 

After peaking in 2022, inflation moderated in 2023 but remained above the Federa l Reserve's 2% target throughout 2024. 
Inflation may present a significant risk as it can lead to increased costs and reduced purchasing power for consumers. Small to 
medium-sized businesses may be impacted more during periods of high inflation as they are not able to leverage economies of 
scale to mitigate cost pressures compared to larger businesses. Consequently, the ability o.f our business customers to repay their 
loans may deteriorate, and in some cases this deterioration may occur quickly. Furthermore, a prolonged period of inflation could 
cause wages and other operating costs to increase. These factors could adversely affect our results of operations and financial 
condition. 
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Interruption of our customers' supply chains and federal funding could negatively impact their business and 
operations and impact their ability to repay their loans. 

Any material interruption in our customers' supply chains, such as a material interruption of the resources required to conduct 
their business, such as those resulting from interruptions in service by third-patty providers, trade restrictions, including increased 
tariffs or quotas, embargoes or customs restrictions, reductions in federal subsidies or grants, social or labor unrest, natural 
disasters, epidemics or pandemics or political disputes and military conflicts, that cause a material disruption in our customers' 
supply chains, could have a negative impact on their business and ability to repay their borrowings with us. In the event of 
disruptions in our customers' supply chains, the labor and materials they rely on in the ordinary course of business may not be 
available at reasonable rates or at all. Additionally, changes in distribution of federal funds or freezing of federal funds, incllllding 
reductions in federal workforce causing unemployment, could have an adverse effect on the ability of consumers and businesses to 
pay debts and/or affect the demand for loans and deposits. 

The failure to address the Federal debt ceiling in a timely manner, downgrades of the U.S. credit rating and uncertain 
credit and financial market conditions may affect the stability of securities issued or guaranteed by the Federal 
government, which may affect the valuation or liquidity of our investment securities portfolio and increase future 
borrowing costs. 

As a result of uncertain political, credit and financial market conditions, including the potential consequences of the federal 
government defaulting on its obligations for a period of time due to federal debt ceiling limitations or other unresolved political 
issues, investments in financial instruments issued or guaranteed by the federal government pose credit default and liquidity risks. 
Given that fllture deterioration in the U.S. credit and financial markets is a possibility, no assurance can be made that losses or 
significant deterioration in the fair value of our U.S. government issued or guaranteed investments wil l not occur. At December 3 1, 
2024, we had approximately $41.3 million, $874 thousand and $17I.8 million invested in U.S. Treasury securities, U.S. 
government agency securities and residential mortgage-backed securities issued or guaranteed by government-sponsored 
enterprises, respectively. Downgrades to the U.S. credit rating could affect the stability of securities issued or guaranteed by the 
federal government and the valuation or liquidity of our portfolio of such investment securities, and could result in our 
counterparties requiring additional collateral for our borrowings. Further, unless and until U.S. political, credit and financial market 
conditions have been sufficiently resolved or stabilized, it may increase our future borrowing costs. 

Risks Related to Growth 

Our business strategy includes growth, and our financial condition and results of operations could be negaovely 
affected if we fail to grow or fail to manage our growth effectively. 

Our business strategy includes growth in assets, deposits and the scale of our operations. Achieving our growth targets will 
require us to attract customers that currently bank at other financial institutions in our market, thereby increasing our share of the 
market, and to expand the size of our market area. Our ability to successfully grow will depend on a variety of factors, inciiJlding 
our ability to attract and retain experienced bankers, the continued availability of desirable business opportunities, the competitive 
responses from other financial institutions in our market area and our ability to manage our growth. Growth opportunities may not 
be available or we may not be able to manage our growth successfully. If we do not manage our growth effectively, our financial 
condition and operating results could be negatively affected. 

Building market share through de novo branching may cause our expenses to increase faster than revenues. 

We may open de novo branches in contiguous markets. There are considerable costs involved in de novo branching as new 
branches generally require time to generate sufficient revenues to offset their initial start-up costs, especially in areas in which we 
do not have an established presence. Accordingly, any new branch can be expected to negatively impact our earnings until the 
branch attracts a sufficient number of deposits and loans to offset expenses. It cannot be assured that new br.anches opened will be 
successful even after they have been established. 

New lines of business or new products and services may subject us to additional risks. 

From time to time, we may implement new lines of business or o-ffer new products and services within existing lines of 
business. In addition, we will continue to invest in research, development, and marketing for new products and services. There are 
substantial risks and uncertainties associated with these efforts, particularly in instances where the markets are not fully developed. 
In developing and marketing new lines of business and/or new products and services we may invest significant time and resources. 
Initial timetables for the development and introduction of new lines of business and/or new products or services may not be 
achieved and price and profitability targets may not prove feasible. Furthermore, if customers do not perceive our new offerings as 
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providing significant value, they may fail to accept our new products and services. External factors, such as compliance with 
regulations, competitive alternatives, and shifting market preferences, may also impact the successful implementation of a new line 
of business or a new product or service. Furthennore, the burden on management and our information technology in introducing 
any new line of business and/or new product or service could have a s ignificant impact on the effectiveness of our system of 
internal controls. Failure to successfully manage these risks in the development and implementation of new lines of business or 
new products or services could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. 

Sever e weather , acts of terrorism, geopolitical and other externa l events could impact ou r ability to cond uct business. 

Weather-related events have adversely impacted our market area in recent years, especially areas located near coastal waters 
and flood prone areas. Such events that may cause significant flooding and other storm-related damage may become more common 
events in the future. Financial institutions have been, and continue to be, targets of terrorist threats aimed at compromising 
operating and communication systems and the metropolitan New York area, including New Jersey, remain central targets for 
potential acts of terrorism. Such events could cause significant damage, impact the stability of our facilities and result in additional 
expenses, impair the ability of our borrowers to repay their loans, reduce the value of collateral securing repayment of our loans, 
and result in the loss of reve nue. While we have established and regularly test disaster recovery procedures, the occurrence of any 
such event could have a material adverse effect on our business, operations and financial condition. Additionally, financial markets 
may be adversely affected by the current or anticipated impact of military conflict, including the Russia and Ukraine war, terrorism 
or other geopolitical events. 

Risks Related to Competition 

Strong c ompetition within ou r market area may limit ou r growth and profita bility. 

Competition in the banking and financial services industry is intense. ln our market area, we compete with commercial banks, 
savings institutions, mortgage brokerage firms, credit unions, finance companies, mutual funds, insurance companies, and 
brokerage and investment banking firms operating locally and elsewhere. Some of our competitors have greater name recognition 
and market presence that benefit them in attracting business, and offer certain services that we do not or cannot provide. Our 
smaller asset size also makes it more difficult to compete, as many of our competitors are larger and can more easily afford to 
invest in the marketing and technologies needed to attract and retain customers. In addition, larger competitors may be able to price 
loans and deposits more aggressively than we do, which could affect our ability to grow and remain profitable on a long-term basis. 
Our profitability depends upon our continued ability to successfully compete in our market area. If we must raise interest rates paid 
on deposits or lower interest rates charged on our loans, our net interest margin and profitability could be adversely affected. For 
additional info rmation see " Business of Blue Foundry Bank-Competition ." 

The financial services industry could become even more competitive as a result of continuing legislative, regulatory and 
technological changes and continued industry consolidation. Banks, securities firms and insurance companies can merge under the 
umbrella of a financial holding company, which can offer virtually any type of financial service, including banking, securities 
underwrit ing, insurance (both agency and underwriting) and merchant banking. Also, technology has lowered barriers to entry and 
made it possible for non-banks to offer products and services traditionally provided by banks, such as automatic transfer and 
automatic payment systems. Many of our competitors have fewer regulatory constraints and may have lower cost structures. 
Additionally, due to their size, many competitors may be able to achieve economies of scale and, as a result, may offer a broader 
range of products and services than we can as well as better pricing for those products and services. 

R isks Related to Operations a nd Security 

We face significant operationa l risks because the nature of the fina ncia l ser vices business involves a high volu m e of 
t ransactions. 

We operate in diverse markets and rely on the ability of our employees and systems to process a high nrumber of transactions. 
Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from our operations, including but not limited to, the risk of fraud by employees or 
persons outside our company, the execution of unauthorized transactions by employees, errors relating to transaction processing 
and technology, breaches of our internal control systems and compliance requirements. Insurance coverage may not be available 
for such losses, or where available, such losses may exceed insurance hmits. This risk of loss also includes the potential legal 
actions that could arise as a res ult of operational. deficiencies or as a result of non-compliance with applicable regulatory standards, 
adverse business decisions or their implementation, or customer attrition due to potential negative publicity. In the event of a 
breakdown in our internal control systems, improper operation of systems or improper employee actions, we could suffer financial 
loss, face regulatory action, and/or suffer damage to our reputation. 
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Cyber-attacks or other security breaches could adversely affect our operations, net income or reputation. 

We regularly collect, process, transmit and store significant amounts of confidential information regarding ouJ customers, 
employees and others and concerning our own business, operations, plans and strategies. ln some cases, this confidential or 
proprietary information is collected, compiled, processed, transmitted or stored by third parties on our behalf. 

Information security risks have generally increased in recent years because of the proliferation of new technologies, the use of 
the Internet and telecommunications technologies to conduct financial and other transactions and the increased sophistication and 
activities of perpetrators of cyber-attacks and phishing. Phishing, a means for identity thieves to obtain sensitive personal 
information through fraudulent e-mail, text or voice mail, is an emerging threat targeting the customers of financial entities. A 
failure in or breach of our operational or information security systems, or those of our third-party service providers, as a result of 
cyber-attacks or information security breaches or due to employee eJTOr, malfeasance or other disruptions could adversely affect 
our business, result in the disclosure or misuse of confidential or proprietary information, damage our reputation, increase our costs 
and/or cause losses. 

If this confidential or proprietary information were to be mishandled, misused or lost, we could be exposed to significant 
regulatory consequences, reputational damage, civil litigation and fi nanc ial loss. 

Although we employ a variety of physical, procedural and technologi·cal safeguards to protect this confidential and proprietary 
information from mishandling, misuse or loss, these safeguards do not provide absolute assurance that mishandling, misuse or Joss 
of the information will not occur, and that if mis handling, misuse or loss of information does occur, those events will be promptly 
detected and addressed. Similarly, when confidential or proprietary information is collected, compiled, processed, transmitted or 
stored by third parties on our behalf, our policies and procedures require that the third party agree to maintain the confidentiality of 
the information, establish and maintain policies and procedures designed to preserve the confidentiality of the information, and 
permit us to confirm the third party's compliance with the terms of the agreement. As information security risks and cyber threats 
continue to evolve, we may be required to expend additional resources to continue to enhance our information security meas ures 
and/or to investigate and remediate any information security vulnerabilities . 

Risks associated with system failures, interruptions, or breaches of security could negatively affect our earnings. 

Information technology systems are critical to our business. We use various technology systems to manage our customer 
relationships, general ledger, securities, deposits, and loans. We have established policies and procedures to prevent or limit the 
impact of system failures, interruptions, and securi ty breaches, but such events may still occur and may not be adequately 
addressed if they do occur. In addition, any compromise of our systems could deter customers from using our products and 
services. Although we rely on security systems to provide the security and authentication necessary to effect the secure 
transmission of data, these precautions may not protect our systems from compromises or breaches of security. 

In addition, we outsource a majority of our data processing to third-party providers. If these third-party providers encounter 
difficulties, or if we have difficulty communicating with them, our ability to adequately process and account for transactions could 
be affected, and our business operations could be adversely affected. Threats to information security a lso exist in the processing of 
customer information through various other vendors and their personnel. 

The occurrence of any system failures, interruptions, or breaches of security could damage our reputation and result in a loss 
of customers and business, subject us to additional regulatory scrutiny or expose us to litigation and possible financial liability. 
Any of these events could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and resu Its of operations. 

The inability to stay current with technological change could adversely affect our business model. 

Financia l institutions continually are reqUJired to maintain and upgrade technology in order to provide the most current 
products and services to their customers, as well as create operational efficiencies. This technology requires personnel resources, as 
well as significant costs to implement. Failure to successfully implement technological change could adversely affect the 
Company's business, resul ts of operations and financial condition. 

Our operations rely on certain third party vendors. 

We rely on certain external vendors to provide products and services necessary to maintain our day-to-day operations. These 
third party vendors are sources of operational and informational security risk to us, including risks assodated with operational 
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errors, information system interruptions or breaches and unauthorized disclosures of sensitive or confidential client or customer 
information . If these vendors encounter any of these issues, or if we have difficulty communicating wit h them, we coul1d be 
exposed to disruption of operations, loss of service or connectivity to customers, reputational damage, and litigation risk that could 
have a material adverse effect on our business and, in tum, our financial condition and resulls of operations. 

In addition, our operations are exposed to risk that these vendors will not perform in accordance with the contracted 
arrangements under service level agreements. While we have selected these external vendors carefully, we do not control their 
actions. The failure of an external vendor to perform in accordance with the contracted arrangements under service level 
agreements, because of changes in the vendor's organizational structure, financial condit ion, suppott for existing products and 
services or strategic focus or for any other reason, could be disruptive to our operations, which could have a material adverse effect 
on our business and, in turn, our financial condition and results of operations. Replacing these external vendors could also entail 
significant delay and expense. 

We depend on our managem ent team, many of whom are new to the Bank, to implem ent our business strategy and 
execute successful operations and we could be ha rmed by the loss of their services. 

We depend upon the se1vices of the members of our senior management team to implement our business strategy and execute 
our operations. Over the last several years we have hired certain senior level management to implement the Bank's new focus and 
direction. Our future success will depend, to a significant extent, on the ability of our new management team to operate effectively, 
both individually and as a group. We must successfully manage issues that may result from the integration of the new members of 
our senior management. Members of our senior management team and bankers who have expertise and key business relationships 
in our markets could be difficult to replace. The loss of these persons or our inability to hire additional qua lified personnel, could 
impact our ability to implement our business strategy and could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and our 
ability to compete. 

While our Board of Directors takes an active role in cybersecurity risk tolerance, we rely to a large degree on 
m anagement and outside consultants in overseeing cybersecurity risk management. 

Our Board of Directors takes an active role in the cybersecurity risk tolerance of the Company and all members receive 
cybersecurity training annually. The Board reviews the annual risk assessments and approves information technology pol icies, 
which include cybersecurity. Furthermore, our Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing all audit findings related to 
information technology general controls, intemal and external vulnerability, and penetration testing. We also engage outside 
consultants to support our cybersecurity efforts. However, our directors do not have significant experience in cybersecurity risk 
management outside of the Company and therefore, its ability to fulfi ll its oversight function remains dependent on the input it 
receives from management and outside consultants. 

Our cost of operations is: high relative to our revenues. 

Our non-interest expense totaled $52.6 million and $51.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, 
respectively. We continue to analyze our expenses and achieve efficiencies where available. Although we strive to generate 
increases in both net interest income and non-interest income, our efficiency ratio remains lligh. Our efficiency ratio was 133.71 % 
and 117.93% for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

The cost of additional finance and accounting systems, procedures and controls in order to satisfy our new public 
company reporting requirements will increase our expenses. 

As a result of the completion of the stock offering, we became a public reporting company. We expect that the obligations of 
being a public company, including the substantial public reporting obligations, will require significant expenditures and place 
additional demands on our management team. We have made, and will continue to make, changes to our internal controls and 
procedures for financial reporting and accounting systems to meet our reporting obligations as a public company. However, the 
measures we take may not be sufficient to satisfy our obligations as a public company. Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 
requires annual management assessments of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. Any failure to 
achieve and maintain an effective internal control environment could have a material adverse effect on our business. In addition, 
we may need to hire additional compliance, accounting and financial staff with appropriate public company experience and 
technical knowledge, and we may not be able to do so in a timely fashion. As a result, we may need to rely on outside consultants 
to provide these services for us until qualified personnel are hired. These obligations will increase our operating expenses and 
could divert our management's attention from our operations. 
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We are a community ba nk and our ability to maintain our reputation is critical to the success of our business and the 
failure to do so may materia lly adversely affect our performance. 

We are a community bank and our reputation is one of the most valuable assets of our business. A key component of our 
business strategy is to rely on our reputation for customer service and knowledge of local markets to expand our presence by 
capturing new business opportunities from existing and prospective customers in our market area and contiguous areas. As such, 
we strive to conduct our business in a manner that enhances our reputation. This is done, in part, by recruiting, hiring and retaining 
employees who share our core values of being an integral pa1t of the communities we serve, delivering superior service to our 
customers and caring about ouT customers. If our reputation is negatively affected by the actions of our employees, by our inability 
to conduct om operations in a manner that is appealing to current or prospective customers, or otherwise, our business and 
operating results may be materially adversely affected. 

Our risk management framework may not be effective in mitigating risk and reducing the potential for significant 
losses. 

Our risk management framework is designed to minimize risk and loss to us. We seek to identify, measure, monitor, report 
and control our exposure to risk, including strategic, market, liquidity, compliance and operational risks. While we use broad and 
diversified risk monitoring and mitigation techniques, these techniques are inherently limited because they cannot anticipate the 
existence or future development of currently unanticipated or unknown risks. Recent economic conditions and heightened 
legislative and regulatory scrutiny of the financial services industry, among other developments, have increased our level of risk. 
Accordingly, we could suffer losses if we fail to properly anticipate and manage these risks. 

Risks Related to Regulatory Matters 

Changes in laws, regula tions and the regulatory policies of the Federal government, and the cost of regula tory 
compliance with new laws and regulations may adversely affect our operations and/or increase our costs of operations. 

We are subject to extensive regulation, supervision and examination by our banking regulators. Such regulation and 
supervision govern the activities in which a financial institution and its holding company may engage and are intended primarily 
for the protection of insurance funds and the depositors and borrowers of Blue Foundry Bank rather than for the protection of our 
shareholders. Regulatory authorities have extensive discretion in their supervisory and enforcement activities, including the ability 
to impose restrictions on our operations, classify our assets and determine the level of our allowance for credit losses. These 
regulations, along with the currently existing tax, accounting, securities, deposit insurance and monetary laws, niles, standards, 
policies, and interpretations, control the methods by which financial instirutions conduct business, implement strategic initiatives, 
and govern financial reporting and disclosures. As a smaller institution, we are disproportionately affected by the ongoing 
increased costs of compliance with banking and other regulations. Any change in such regulation and oversight, whether in the 
form of regulatory policy, new regulations, legislation or supervisory action, may have a material impact on our operations. 
Further, changes in accounting standards can be both difficult to predict and involve judgment and discretion in their interpretation 
by us and our independent accounting firm. These changes could materially impact, potentially retroactiveay, how we report our 
financial condition and results of operations. 

Additionally, Congress and the administration through executive orders control fiscal policy through decisions on taxation and 
expenditures. Depending on the industries and markets involved, changes to tax law and increased or reduced public expenditures 
could affect us directly or the business operatio111s of our customers. 

We are subject to stringent capital requirements, which may adversely impact our return on equity, require us to raise 
additional capital, or restrict us from paying dividends or repurchasing shares. 

Federal regulations establish minimum capital requirements for insured depository institutions, including minimum risk-based 
capital and leverage ratios and define what constitutes "capital" for calculating these ratios. The regulations also establish a 
"capital conservation buffer" of 2.5%, effectively resulting in the following minimum ratios: (I) a common equity Tier I capital 
ratio of 7.0%, (2) a Tier 1 to risk-based assets capital ratio of 8.5%, and (3) a total capital ratio of 10.5%. An institution will be 
subject to limitations on paying dividends, repurchasing its shares and paying discretionary bonuses, if its capital levels fall below 
the buffer amount. 
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Non-compliance with the USA PATRIOT Act, Bank Secrecy Act, or othe r laws and regulations could result in fines or 
sanctions. 

The USA PATRIOT and Bank Secrecy Acts require financial institutions to develop programs to prevent financial institutions 
from being used for money laundering and terrorist activities. If such activities are detected, financial institutions are obligated to 
file suspic ious activity reports with the U.S. Treasury's Office of Financial Crimes Enforcement Network. These rules require 
financial institutions to establish procedures for identifying and verifying the identity of customers seeking to open new financial 
accounts. Failure to comply with these regulations could result in fines or sanctions, including restrictions on conducting 
acquisitions or establishing new branches. During the last year, several banking institutions have received large fines for 
non-compliance with these laws and regulations. The policies and procedures we have adopted that are designed to assist in 
compliance with these laws and regulations may not be effective in preventing violations of these laws and regulations. 

Changes in management's estimates and assumptions may have a mated a l impact on ou1· consolidated financial 
statements and our financia l condition or operating results . 

In preparing the periodic reports we file under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), 
including our consolidated financial statements, our management is required under applicable rules and regulations to make 
estimates and assumptions as of specified dates. These estimates and assumptions are based on management's best estimates and 
experience at such times and are subject to substantial risk and uncertainty . Materially different results may occur as circumstances 
change and additional information becomes known. Areas requiring significant estimates and assumptions by management include 
our evaluation of the adequacy of our allowance for credit losses, the determination of our deferred income taxes, and our fair 
value measurements. 

Various factors may make takeover attempts more difficult to achieve. 

Ce11ain provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws and state and federal banking laws, including regulatory 
approval requirements, could make it more diftkult for a third party to acqujre control of Blue Foundry Bancorp without our Board 
of Directors' approval. Under federal law, subject to certain exemptions, a person, entity or group must notify the Fede ral Reserve 
Board before acquiring control of a bank holding company. There also are provisions in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws 
that may be used to delay or block a takeover attempt, including a provision that prohibits any person from voting more than 10% 
of our outstanding shares of common stock. Furthermore, shares of restricted stock and stock options that we may grant to 
employees and directors, stock ownership by our management and directors, shares held by the employee stock ownership plan and 
other factors may make it more difficult for companies or persons to acquire control of Blu·e Foundry Bancorp without the consent 
of our Board. of Directors. Taken as a whole, these statutory provisions and provisions in our certificate of incorporation and 
bylaws could. result in our being less attractive to a potential acquirer and thus could adversely affect the market price of our 
common stock 

Our New York State multifamily loan portfolio could be adversely impacted by changes in legislat ion or regulation. 

Multifami ly loans generally involve a greater risk than residential real estate loans because of legislation and govenunent 
regulations involving rent control and rent stabilization, which are outside the control of the borrower or the Bank. This could 
impair the value of the collateral securing the loan or the future cash flow of such properties. For example, New York State passed 
the Housing Stability & Tenant Protection Act, impacting one mjliion rent-regulated apartment units. The Legislation, limjted rent 
increases from material capital improvements, eliminated the ability for apartments to exit rent regulation, d id away with vacancy 
decontrol and high-income deregulation and repealed the 20% vacancy bonus. As of December 3 1, 2024, the Company has 
approximately $108 mjllion, or 6.8% of total loans, in New York multifamily loans that have some form of rent stabilization or 
rent control. Of these loans, only 32% and 14% reprice or mature in 2025 and 2026, respectively, with the remainder maturing or 
repricing in 2,027 through 2032. 

ITEM lB. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS 

None. 

ITEM 1 C. CYBERSECURITY 

Risk Man agement and Strategy 

Our risk management program is designed to identify, assess and mitigate risks across various aspects of our company, 
including financial, operational, regulatory, reputational and legal . Cybersecurity is a critical component of this program, given the 
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increasing reBiance on technology and potential of cyber threats. Our Chief Information Security Officer is primarily responsible 
for this cyber security component and is a key member of the risk management organization, reporting directly to the Chief Risk 
Officer. 

Our objective for managing cybersecurity risk is to avoid or minimize the impacts of external threat events or other efforts to 
penetrate, disrupt or misuse our systems or information. The structure of ·Our information s.ecurity program is designed around the 
National Institute of Standards and Technology ("NIST'') Cybersecurity Framework, regulatory guidance and other industry 
standards. In addition, we leverage certain industry and government associations, third-party benchmarking, audits and threat 
intelligence feeds to facilitate and promote program effectiveness. Our Chief Information Security Officer and our Chief 
Technology Officer, who reports directly to ou r President and Chief Executive Officer, among with key me mbers of their teams, 
regularly collaborate with peer banks, industry groups and policymakers to discuss cybersecurity trends and issues and identify 
best practices.. The information security program is periodically reviewed by such personnel with the goal of addressing changing 
threats and conditions. 

We employ an in-depth, layered, defensive strategy that embraces a "trust by design" philosophy when designing and/or 
implementing new products, services and technology. We leverage people, processes and technology as part of our efforts to 
manage and ma intain cybersecurity controls. We also employ a variety of preventative and detection tools designed to monitor, 
block and provide alerts regarding suspicious activity, as well as to report on suspected advanced persistent threats. We have 
established processes and systems designed to mitigate cyber risk, including regular and on-going education and training for 
employees, preparedness simulations and tabletop exercises and recovery a nd resilience tests. We engage in regular assessments of 
our infrastructure, software systems and network architecture, using internal cybersecurity risks, associated with external service 
providers and our supply chain. We also actively monitor our email gateways for malicious phishing email campaigns and monitor 
remote connections as a significant portion of our workforce has the option to work remotely. We leverage internal and external 
auditors and independent external partners to periodically review our processes, systems and controls, including with respect to our 
information s·ecurity program, to assess their design and operating effectiveness and make recommendations to strengthen our risk 
management program. 

We maintain a Cyber Incident Response Procedure that provides a documented framework for responding to actual and 
potential cybersecurity incidents, including timely notification of and escalation to the appropriate Board-approved management 
committees and to the Enterprise Risk Committee of our Board of Directors. The Cyber Incident Response Procedure is 
coord inated through the Chief Information Security Officer and key members of management are embedded into the Plan by its 
design. The Cyber Incident Response Procedure facilitates coordination across multiple parts of our organization and is evaluated 
at least annually. 

Notwithstanding our defensive measures and processes, the threat posed by cyber-attacks is severe. Our internal systems, 
processes and controls are designed to mitigate loss from cyber-attacks and, while we have experienced cybersecurity incidents in 
the past, to date, risks from cybersecurity threats have not materially affected our company. For further discussion of risks from 
cybersecurity threats, see the section captioned "Cyber-attacks or other security breaches could adversely affect our operations, net 
income or reputation" in Item I A. Risk Factors. 

Cybersecurity Governance 

Management Committee Oversight 

The Company has established an Information Risk Management Subcommittee, chaired by the Chief Information Security 
Officer and supported by leaders from departments across the Company. The Cybersecurity function is provided by qualified 
financial service technology professionals, with extensive certifications and/or advanced degrees in cybersecurity. Cybersecurity 
knowledge is expanded across all areas of Information Technology and is foundational in the approach from planning to execution. 
The subcommittee focuses on slfategic and tactical delivery, policy oversight, and the assessment and management of material 
risks from cybersecurity threats. Policies are also shared with the Enterprise Risk Management Committee to provide an additional 
second line review in alignment with Enterprise Risk functions. All Information Security activity is lead by the Chief Information 
Security Officer, which inc ludes developing and implementing the information security program and reporting cyber security 
matters to the Board. The Chief Information Security Officer has many years of experience leading cybersecurity governance and 
operations in financial services, supported by staff cybersecurity specialists. Management provides cybersecurity statistics and 
details to the Board quarterly. 
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Board Committee Oversight 

The Company' s Board Enterprise Risk Committee provides oversight of the cyber program. The Committee consists of Board 
members, cha ired by an independent director. Committee members have extensive experience in various disciplines including risk 
management, communications, litigation, banking and transactional matters, and regulatory compliance. The Board Committee 
receives regular reports informing on the effectiveness of the overall cybersecurity program and the detection, response, and 
recovery from significant cyber incidents. Cybersecurity metrics are reported quarterly to the Committee and Key Risk Indicators 
are reported. 

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES 

At December 31, 2024, the Company and the Bank conducted business through 20 fu ll-service branch offices, located in 
northern New Jersey and the Company' s administrative offices located at 7 Sylvan Way, Parsippany, New Jersey. The Company' s 
principal executive office is located at 19 Park Avenue, Rutherford, New Jersey. 

We own five properties and lease 16 properties at December 31, 2024. The aggregate net book value of premises and 
equipment was $29.5 million at December 31, 2024. 

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

Periodically, we are involved in claims and lawsuits, such as claims to enforce liens, condemnation proceedings on properties 
in which we hold security inte rests, claims involving the making and servicing of real property loans and other issues incide nt to 
our business. At December 3 1, 2024, we were not a party to any pending legal proceedings that we believe would have a material 
adverse effect on our fmancial condition, results of operations or cash flows. 

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES 

Not Applicable. 
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PART II 

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER 
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES 

The Company's common stock is listed on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the trading symbol "BLFY." Trading in 
the Company's common stock commenced on J uly 16, 2021. As of December 3 1, 2024, there were 1,118 stockholders of record. 
Certain shares of Blue Foundry Bancorp are held in "nominee" or "street'' name and accordingly, the number of beneficial owners 
of such shares is not known or included in the foregoing number. 

The Company has not declared any dividends to holde rs of its common stock and we do not currenlly anticipate paying 
dividends on our common stock in the near future. Our Board of Directors has the authority to declare dividends on our shares of 
common stock, and may determine to pay dividends in the future, subject to financial condition, results of operations, tax 
considerations, industry standards, econo mic conditions, statutory and regulatory requireme nts that affect the payment of dividends 
by the Bank to the Company, and other relevant factors. No assurances can be given that any cash dividends will be paid or that, if 
paid, will not be reduced or eliminated in the future. 

Issuer P urchases of Equity Securities 

The following table reports information regarding repurchases of our common stock during the quarter ended December 31, 
2024 and the stock repurchase plans approved by our Board of Directors. 

As part of Publicly Yet to be Purchased 
Total Number of Average Price paid Announced Plans Under the Pla ns or 

Period Shares Purchased (1) Per Share or Programs Programs {1) 

October 164,900 $10.01 164,900 37,603 

November 157,151 $ L 1.07 157,151 1,019,872 

December 158,800 $10.42 158,800 861,072 

Total 480,851 $ 10.49 480,851 

( I) On February 2 1, 2024, the Company adopted its fourth program to repurchase up to 1,203,545 shares, or 5%, of its outstanding common 
stock. On November 8, 2024, the Company adopted its fifth repurchase program, which authorized the purchase of 5%, or 1,139,420 shares, 
of its outs tandjng common stock commencing upon the completion of the Company's fourth stock repurchase program on November 7, 
2024. The fifth repurchase program has no expiration date. 

ITEM 6. [RESERVED] 

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF 
OPERATIONS 

This section is intended to assist in the understanding of the financial! performance of the Company and its subsidiary through 
a discussion of our financial condition as of December 31, 2024, and our results of operations for the years ended December 3 1, 
2024 and 2023. This section should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and notes to the 
consolidated financial statements that appear at the end of this repon. 

Business Strategy 

The Company's goal is to position ourselves to prosper in an evolving financial services landscape and enhance our position 
as one of the leading community banking institutions in our market. We intend to continue to provide a broad array of banking and 
other financial services to retail, commercial and small business customers while growing our presence in our markets and 
expanding our franchise. ln recent years, we have focused on, and invested heavily in, our technology and infrastructure to improve 
our delivery channels and create competitive products and services, a strong workforce and an enhanced awareness of our banking 
brand in our market area. 

As a result, we believe we are well positioned to capitalize on the opportunities available in our market by focusing on the 
following core strategies. 

Blue Foundry Bancorp l Form I 0-K 39 



Grow funding sources with an emphasis on core deposits to improve cost and mix and improve our Loan/Deposit ratio. The 
Company's core banking strategy is to target small and medium-sized businesses and to continue the transition to relationship 
driven business and retail customers to grow the deposit base. The focus on small and medium-sized businesses wiU seek to attract 
and develop customers whose businesses are growing. As these customers grow, they can become full-service relationships that 
provide both lower-cost core deposits and lending opp01tunities. Blue Foundry's market area has many small and medium-sized 
business opportun ities to attract, onboard and leverage. Opportunities also exist to gain the banking relationships of business 
owners, as well as their employees. We have broadened our business customer offerings and have a full suite of cash management 
products for businesses. We anticipate steadily increasing deposit accounts each year. Critical to succeeding will be the ability to 
leverage technology, uti lize management information, assign responsibility and accountability and develop a steady stream of 
referral opportunities to build quality relationships. 

Grow and further diversify the loan portfolio. The Company's overall strategy for loan growth and revenue generation will 
primarily be driven by further diversification into commercial lending, particularly owner-occupied commercial real estate and 
commercial and industrial lending. Our market area includes a sizable number of small to medium-sized businesses, which are 
potentially full-service relationships that can provide both core deposits and lending opportunities. We intend to pursue these 
commercial relationships through our branch network and the commercial bankers that we have recruited and continue to recruit, 
who build relationships with the privately-owned businesses managed and/or operating within the market and those located in areas 
targeted for expansion. We look to partner with our customers in their journey to build their businesses. We believe pursuing this 
strategy will a llow us to both grow and diversify our business mix while providing us with the best opportunities to drive strong 
financial returns. Further, our investment in technology is intended to facilitate the delivery of consumer and business solutions 
without the need for traditional sales channels. 

Improve operating leverage and efficiency. The Company seeks to achieve meaningful balance sheet growth to absorb 
narrowing margins and operating costs. Improving operating leverage and efficiency will assist in increasing revenue and 
managing operating expenses to reach necessruy and expected performance targets. 

We will continue to reduce redundant tasks and streamline workflows to provide a consistently better customer experience. 
Management will continue to foster a culture of continuous improvement where each employee is empowered to find ways to make 
every process more efficient and effective in their daily routines. Benefits include increased employee engagement, customer 
satisfaction and loyalty and greater efficiency and productivity. As the Bank grows, processes must continue to be scaled, allowing 
for growth, as well as addition of incremental capabilities without requiring similar growth in infrastructure or staffing. 

Leveraging technology to enable revenue growth will continue to be a strategic focus. The Bank will continue to explore and 
evaluate technology offerings from FinTechs to identify partnering opportunities to enhance systems, infrastructure, processes, 
and/or organizational structure to improve delivery channels or ensure regulatory compliance. The Company recognizes that 
technology must be nimble and quick, and touch-points must be customer friend ly. The Bank also wants to ensure that all system 
options and capabilities are utilized to more efficiently and effectively make better use of all resources. 

Critical Accounting Policies 

Certain of our accounting policies are important to the presentation of our financial condition, since they require management 
to make difficult, complex or subjective judgments, some of which may relate to matters 'that are inherently uncertain. Estimates 
associated wilth these policies are susceptible to mateiial changes as a result of changes in facts and circumstances. Facts and 
circumstances that could affect these judgments include, but are not limited to, changes in interest rates, changes in the 
performance of the economy and changes in the financial condition of borrowers. The Company has identified the allowance for 
credit losses on loans and income taxes to be critical accounting policies. These accounting policies are discussed in detail in 
Note 1 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part II, Item 8. 

Comparison of Operating Results for the Years E nded December 31, 2024 and 2023 

GeneraL The Company recorded a net loss for the year ended December 31, 2024 of $1 1.9 million compared to net loss of 
$7.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2023. The increased loss was largely driven by a decrease of $4.4 million in net 
interest income. 

Interest Income. Interest income increased $6.3 million, or 8.0%, to $85.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2024 
from $79.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2023. Interest income from loans and securities increased $4.5 million and 
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$1.0 million, respectively. While the average balance of loans and secunt1es decreased $ 16.4 million and $20.3 mi llion, 
respectively, the yie ld on loans and securities increased as loans and securities were originated at higher rates during the year. 
Additionally, the average balances of cash and cash equivalents increased $12.0 million and the yield on cash and cash equivalents 
increased 18 basis points during 2024. 

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased $10.7 million, or 28.8%, to $47.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2024 
compared to $37.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2023. The increase in interest expense was driven by an increase of 
$12.7 million in interest expense on deposits partially offset by a decrease of $2.0 million in interest expense on borrowings. 
During 2024, the cost of time deposits and interest-bearing core deposits increased by 121 basis points and 13 basis points, 
respectively, while the cost of FHLB advances decreased by 12 basis points. The average balance of interest-bearing deposits 
increased $52.6 million as we grew deposits, however, interest-bearing core deposits (checking, savings and money market 
accounts) decreased by $ 11 2.0 million and average time deposits increased $164.6 million. The average balance of FHLB advances 
decreased $48.0 million. 

Net Interest Income and Margin. For the year ended December 31, 2024 net interest income was $37.6 million, a decrease 
of $4.4 million or 10.4%, compared to $41.9 million for same period in 2023. 

Net interest margin for the year ended December 31, 2024 decreased by 19 basis points to 1.90% from 2.09% for the year 
ended December 31, 2023. During the year, the increase in cost of interest-bearing liabilities outpaced the increase in yield on 
interest-eaming assets. The cost of average interest-bearing liabilities increased 65 basis points to 2.95% for the year ended 
December 31, 2024 from 2.30% for the year ended December 31, 2023, while the yield on average interest-earning assets increased 
38 basis points to 4.32% for the year ended December 31, 2024 from 3.94% for the year ended December 31, 2023. The total cost 
of deposits and total cost of funds increased 90 basis points and 64 basis points, respectively. 

Provision for Credit Losses. The Company recorded a release of provision for credit losses of $1.4 million for the year ended 
December 31 , 2024 compared to a release of provision for credit losses of $441 thousand for the year ended December 31, 2023. 
The net re lease of provision in 2024 consisted of a release of provision of $ 1.1 million on loans, $ 146 thousand for commitments 
and letters of credit and $60 thousand on held-to-maturity securities. During 2024, credit quality improved with reductions in 
non-performing loan balances of $1.0 million, coupled with modest growth in the loan portfolio. 

Non-inte rest Income. Non-interest income was relatively stable at $1.8 million for both years ended December 31,2024 and 
2023. There was a slight decrease of $ 11 thousand, or 0.6%. During 2024, fees and service charges were up minimally and the 
Company recorded a gain on sale of an REO property of $123 thousand; however, there was a reduction in gain on sale of loans 
and a lack of gain on sale of securities. 

Non-interest Expense. Non-interest expense totaled $52.6 million and $51.6 milLion for the year ended December 31, 2024 
and 2023, respectively, an increase of $1.0 million or 2.0%. The increase was primarily driven by increases in compensation and 
benefits costs of $994 thousand and in FDIC premiums of $56 thousand, offset in part by a decrease in data processing of 
$471 thousand and professional services of $1 18 thousand. 

Income Tax Expense. The Company's current tax position reflects rhe previously established full valuation allowance on its 
deferred tax assets. At December 31, 2024 and 2023 the valuation allowance on deferred tax assets was $25.1 million and 
$24.0 million, respectively. The Company did not record a tax benefit for the loss incurred during 2024 and 2023 because a full 
valuation allowance was required on its deferred tax assets. 

Analysis of Net Interest Income 

Net interest income represents the difference between income on interest-earning assets and expense on interest-bearing 
liabilities. Net interest income depends on the relative amounts of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities and the 
rates of interest earned on such assets and paid on such liabilities. 

Average Balances and Yields. The followi ng table presents information regarding average balances of assets and liabilities, 
the total dollar amounts of interest income and dividends from average interest-earning assets, the total dollar amounts of interest 
expense on average interest-bearing liabilities, and the resulting annualized average yields and costs. The yields and costs for the 
periods indicated are derived by dividing income or expense by the average balances of assets or liabilities, respectively, for the 
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periods presented. Average balances have been calculated using daily balru1ces. Non-accrual loans are included in average balances 
only. Amortization of loan origination fees are included in interest income on loans and are not material. 

Year Ended December 3 1, 

2024 2023 

Average Average 
Average Yield/ Average Yield/ 
Balance Interest Cost Balance Interest Cost 

(Dollars in thousands) 
Assets: 

Loans (l) $1 ,553,143 $70,185 4.52% $1 ,569,590 $65,685 4.18% 

Mortgage-backed securities 173,691 4,276 2.46% 172,405 3,693 2.14% 

Other investment securities 174,172 6,440 3.70% 195,754 6,010 3.07% 

FHLB stock 18,038 1,756 9.73% 2 1,249 1,582 7.45% 

Cash and cash equivalents 58,261 2,794 4.80% 46,245 2,135 4.62% 

Total interest earning assets 1,977,305 85,451 4.32% 2,005,243 79,105 3.94% 

Non-interest earning assets 59,832 56,297 

Total assets $2,037,137 $2,06 1,540 

Liabilities and shareholders' equity: 

NOW, savings, and money market deposits $ 610,172 7,803 1.28% $ 722,149 8,339 1.15% 

Time deposits 665,740 29,027 4.36% 501,124 15,777 3.15% 

interest bearing deposits 1,275,912 36,830 2.89% 1,223,273 24,116 1.97% 

FHLB advances 348,306 11,071 3.18% 396,265 13,070 3.30% 

Total interest bearing liabilities 1,624,218 47,901 2.95% 1,6 19,538 37,186 2.30% 

Non-interest bearing deposits 24,980 25,227 

Non-interest bearing other 42,345 43,868 

Total liabilities 1,691,543 1,688,633 

Total shareholders' equity 345,594 372,907 

Total uabilities and shareholders' equity $2,037,137 $2,061,540 

Net interest income $37,550 $41,919 

Net interest rate spread (2) 1.37% 1.64% 

Net interest margin (3) 1.90% 2.09% 
(I) Average loan balances are nel of deferred loan fees and costs, premiums and discounts and includes non-accrual loans. 
(2) Net interest rate spread represents the difference between the yield on interest-earning assets and the cost of interest-bearing liabilities. 
(3) Net interest margin represents net interest income divided by average interest-earning assets. 
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Rate/Volume Table 

The following table sets forth the effects of changing rates and volumes on net interest income. The rate column shows the effects 
attributable to changes in rate (changes in rate multiplied by prior volume). The volume column shows the effects atuibutable to 
changes in volume (changes in vol ume multiplied by prior rate). The net column represents the sum of the p1ior columns. Changes 
attributable to changes in both rate and volume that cannot be segregated have been allocated proportionally based on the changes due 
to rate and the changes due to volume. There were no out-of-period items or adjustments excluded from this table. 

Year Ended December 31, 
2024 vs. 2023 

increase (Decrease) 
Due to 

Volume Rate Net 

(ln thousands) 

Interest income: 

Loans $ (781) $5,28 1 $ 4,500 

Mortgage-backed securities 27 556 583 

Other investment securities (663) 1,093 430 

FHLB stock (238) 412 174 

Cash and cash equivalents 556 103 659 

Total interest-earning assets $( 1 ,099) $7,445 $ 6,346 

Interest expense: 

Interest-bearing deposits $ 3,872 $8,842 $12,714 

FHLB advances ( 1,576) (423) (I ,999) 

Total interest-bearing liabilities 2,296 8,419 10,,715 

Net decrease in net interest income $(3,395) $ (974) $ (4,369) 

Comparison of Financial Condition at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 

Total Assets. Total assets increased $15.7 million to $2.06 billion at December 3 1, 2024. 

Cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents was $42.5 million at December 31, 2024 and $46.0 million at 
December 31, 2023. 

Securities Available-For-Sale. Securities available-for-sale increased $13.3 million, or 4.7%, to $297.0 million at 
December 31, 2024 from $283.8 million at December 31, 2023 due to purchases and a $3.3 million improvement in the unrealized 
loss position on the portfolio, partially offset by amortization, maturities and calls during the year. 

Securities Held-To-Maturity. Securities held-to-maturity totaled $33.1 milEon at December 3 L, 2024 decreasing 
$178 thousand from $33.3 mi Ilion at December 31, 2023, primarily due to amortization, partially offset by a reduction i11 the 
provision for credit losses on HTM securities. 

Other investments. Other investments decreased $2.6 million, or 12.6%, to $17.8 milLion at December 31, 2024 from 
$20.3 million at December 31, 2023. The change was due to a decrease in Federal Home Loan Bank of New York stock as a result 
of a reduction in FHLB bon·owings. 

Gross Loans. Gross loans held for investment increased $22.8 million, or 1.5%, to $ 1.58 billion at December 31, 2024 from 
$1.56 billion at December 31, 2023. Commercial real estate loans increased $27.1 million, construction loans increased 
$25.1 milliorn, consumer loans increased $7.2 million and commercial and industrial loans increased $4.5 million, while the 
residential and multifamily loan po•tfolios decreased $32.7 million and $ 11.4 million, respectively. Loan fundings totaled 
$108.4 milEon during 2024, including originations of $35.7 million in commercial real estate loans, $33.7 million in construction 
loans, $12.2 million in multifamily loans and $11.2 million in commercial and industrial loans. In addition, the Company 
purchased $21.6 million of conforming residential mortgages in New Jersey and participated in an $8.0 million consumer loan 
during the year. 
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The following table presents loans allocated by loan category: 

Residential 

Multifamily 

Commercial real estate 

Construction 

Junior liens 

Commercial and industrial 

Consumer and other 

Total loans 

The table below presents the balance of non-performing assets on the dates indicated: 

Residential 

Multifamily 

Junior liens 

Commercial and industrial 

Total 

Other real estate owned 

Total non-performing assets 

December 31. December 3 1, 
2024 2023 

(In thousands) 

$ 5 18,243 $ 550,929 

671 ,116 682,564 

259,633 232,505 

85,546 60>,414 

25,422 22,503 

16,311 11,768 

7,211 47 

1,583,482 1,560,730 

December 3 1, December 3 1, 
2024 2023 

(ln thousands) 

$4,377 

149 

578 

$5,104 

$5,104 

$5,884 

146 

49 

39 

$6,118 

593 

$6,71 1 

Other Assets. Other assets decreased $10.8 million, or 40.0%, to $16.3 million at December 31,2024 from $27.1 million at 
December 31 , 2023 due to the timing of the settJ ement of a matured security in 2023. 

Total Deposits. Total deposits increased! $98.4 million or 7.9% to $1.34 bi llion at December 3 1, 2024 compared to 
$1.24 billion at December 31, 2023, largely due to an increase in customer deposits. Core deposits (defined as non-interest bearing 
deposits, NOW and demand accounts, and savings accounts) represented 47.3% of total deposits compared to 48.8% at 
December 31, 2023, as time deposits increased $ 110.7 million. The increase in time deposits includes $30.0 million in brokered 
deposit<;, bringing the total brokered deposit balance to $ 155.0 million at December 31, 2024. Uninsured and uncollateralized 
deposits from third-party customers were $ 147.6 million, or II % of deposits, at the end of December 31, 2024. 

The following table presents the totals of deposit accounts by account type, at the dates. shown below: 

December 31, December 3 1 , 
2024 2023 

(In thousands) 

Non-interest bearing deposits 

NOW and demand accounts ( I) 

Savings ( I) 

Time deposits 

Total deposits 

( I) Money market accounts arc included within the NOW and demand accounts and savings captions. 
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$ 26,001 $ 27,739 

369,554 361,139 

240,426 259,402 

707,339 596,624 

$ 1,343,320 $ 1,244,904 



Borrowings. The Company had $339.5 million of borrowings at December 31, 2024, a decrease of $58.0 million, or 14 .6%, 
from $397.5 million at December 31, 2023. DUling the year, we were able to pay off maturing borrowings as deposit growth 
outpaced asset growth. Borrowings consisted solely of Federal Home Loan Bank of New York advances; $224.0 million of which 
are associated with longer-dated swap agreements. See Note 12, Derivatives, of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in 
"Part II, Item 8- Financial Statements." 

Total Shareholders' Equity. Total shareholders' equity decreased by $23.4 mi llion, or 6.6%, to $332.2 mjllion at 
December 31, 2024 compared to $355.6 million at December 31,2023. The decrease was driven by the Company's repurchase of 
1,920,940 of its shares at a cost of $ 19.4 million and the net loss of $ 11.9 million. These decreases were partially offset by 
improvements in accumulated other comprehensive loss and the cost of equity compensation already reflected in equity. Treasury 
shares totaling 406,950 were used to fund the shareholder-approved restricted stock grants. 

Off-Balance Sheet. To help manage our interest rate position, the Company had $349.0 million in interest rate hedges at 
December 31, 2024, with a weighted average duration of 2.4 years. This represents an increase of $90.0 million from December 31, 
2023, when interest rate hedges totaled $259.0 million with a weighted average duration of 3.2 years. See Note 12, Derivatives, of 
Notes to Consolidated Financia l Statements in "Part II, Item 8- Financial Statements." 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

Liquidity is the ability to meet current and future financial obligations of a short-term and long-term nature. Our primary 
sources of funds consist of deposit inflows, principal and interest payments on loans and securities, maturities of securities and 
FHLB advances and other borrowings. While maturities and scheduled amortization of loans and securities are predictable sources 
of funds, deposit flows, calls of investment securities and borrowed funds and prepayments on loans are greatly influenced by 
generaJ interest rates, economic conditions and competition. Additionally, deposit flows are impacted by general deposit behavior. 
Our primary use of funds is for the origination and purchase of loans and the purchase of securities. 

Management regularly adjusts our investments in liquid assets based upon an assessment of (1) expected loan demand, 
(2) expected deposit flows, (3) yields available on interest-earning deposits and securities, and (4) the objectives of our interest-rate 
risk and investment policies. 

The Bank has entered into derivative financial instruments to reduce risk associated with interest rate volatility by matching 
repricing terms of assets and liabi li ties. These derivatives had an aggregate notional amount of $349.0 million and $259.0 million 
at of December 3 1, 2024 and 2023, respectively. See Note 12, Derivatives, of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
in "Part ll, Item 8- Financial Statements." 

At December 31, 2024, we had outstanding commitments to originate loans of $20.9 million and unused lines of credit of 
$84.6 millio111. We anticipate that we will have sufficient funds available to meet our current loan origination commitments. 
Certificates of deposit that are scheduled to mature in less than one year from December 31, 2024 totaled $697.2 million. 
Management expects, based on historical experience, that a substantial portion of the maturing certificates of deposit will be 
retained. However, if a substantial portion of these deposits is not retained, we may utilize wholesale funding or raise interest rates 
on customer deposits to attract new accounts, which may result in higher levels of interest expense. Available borrowing capacity 
at December 3 1, 2024 was $270.6 million with FHLB. We also had the ability to borrow up to $107.7 million at the FRB's 
Discount Window and a $30.0 million available line of credit with a correspondent bank at December 31, 2024. Additionally, 
63.4% of the Bank's investment securities are unencumbered and could be used as collateral for additional borrowing capacity. 

We are a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet lisk in the normal course of business to meet the financing 
needs of our customers. These financial instruments include commitments to originate loans, unused Lines of credit and standby 
letters of credit, which involve elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the consolidated 
balance sheets. Our exposure to credit loss is represented by the contractual amount of the instruments. We use the same credit 
policies in making commitments that we do for on-baJance sheet instruments. Management believes that our current sources of 
liquidity are more than sufficient to fulfill our obligations as of December 31, 2024, pursuant to off-balance-sheet a1Tangements 
and contractual obligations. 

Blue Foundry Bancorp is a separate legaJ entity from Blue Foundry Bank and must provide for its own liquidity to fund 
dividend payments, stock repurchases, and other corporate risk factors. The Company's primary source of liquidity is the issuance 
of stock and the receipt of dividend payments from the Bank in accordance with applicable regulatory requirements . At 
December 31,2024, Blue Foundry Bancorp (unconsolidated) had liquid assets of $41.3 million. 
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The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the NJDOBI and the FDIC. At December 31, 
2024, the Bank exceeded a ll applicable regulatory capital requirements, and was considered "well capital ized" under regulatory 
guidelines. See "Item 1. Business-Supervision and Regulation-Federal Banking Regulation-Capital Requirements" and 
Note 19 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

ITEM 7 A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK 

Qualitative Analysis. Our most significant form of market risk is interest rate risk because, as a financial institution, the 
majority of our assets and liabilities are sensitive to changes in interest rates. Therefore, a principal part of our operations is to 
manage interest rate risk and limit the exposure of our financial condition and results of operations to changes in market interest 
rates. Our Asset/Liability Committee ("ALCO")/Investment Committee, which consists of members of management, is responsible 
for evaluating the interest rate risk inherent in our assets and liabilities, for determining the level of risk that is appropriate, given 
our business strategy, operating environment, capital, liquidity and performance objectives, and for managing this risk consistent 
with the policy and guidelines approved by our Board of Directors. We cmrently utilize a third-party modeliing program, prepared 
on a quarterly basis, to evaluate our sensitivity to changing interest rates and assess liquidity requirements and modify our lending, 
investing and deposit gathering strategies accordingly. On a quarterly basis, our Board reviews various ALCO reports that estimate 
the sensitivity of the economic value of equity and net interest income under various interest rate scenarios. 

We have sought to manage our interest rate risk in order to minimize the exposure of our earnings and capital to changes in 
interest rates. We have implemented the following strategies to manage our interest rate risk: growing target deposit accounts; 
utilizing our investment securities portfolio and interest rate swaps as part of our balance sheet asset and liability and interest rate 
risk management strategy to reduce the impact of movements in interest rates on net interest income and economic value of equity, 
which can create temporary valuation adjustments to equity in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income; continuing the 
diversification of our loan portfolio by adding more commercial loans, which typically have shorter matmities and/or balloon 
payments. By following these strategies, we believe that we are better positioned to react to increases and decreases in market 
interest rates. 

Other than cash flow hedging on interest expense, we generally do not engage in hedging activities such as engaging in 
futures or options, or investing in high-risk mortgage derivatives such as collateralized mortgage obligation residual interests, real 
estate mortgage investment conduit residual interests or stripped mortgage-backed securities. 

The Bank has entered into derivative financial instruments to reduce risk associated with interest rate volatility. These 
derivatives are used to manage differences in the amount, timing and duration of the Bank's known or expected cash receipts and 
its known or expected cash payments principally related to the Bank's wholesale fundings. These derivatives had an aggregate 
notional amol!.lnt of $349.0 million as of December 31, 2024. 

Quantitative Analysis. As noted, we use a third-party industry standard asset/liability model to complete om quarterly 
interest rate risk reports. The model projects net interest income based on various interest rate scenarios and horizons. We use a 
combination of analyses to monitor our exposure to changes in interest rates. 

Our net interest income sensitivity analysis determines the relative balance between the repricing of assets, liabilities and 
off-balance sheet positions over various horizons. This asset and liability analysis includes expected cash flows from loans and 
securities, using forecasted prepayment rates, reinvestment rates, as well as contractual and forecasted liability cash flows. This 
analysis identifies mismatches in the timing of asset and liability cash flows but does not necessarily provide an accurate indicator 
of interest rate risk because the rate forecasts and assumptions used in the analysis may not reflect actual experience. The economic 
value of equity ("EVE") analysis estimates the change in the net present value ("NPV") of assets and liabilities and off-balance 
sheet contracts over a range of immediate rate shock interest rate scenarios. ln calculating changes in EYE, for the various 
scenarios we forecast loan and securities prepayment rates and deposit decay rates. 

Computations of prospective effects of hypothetical interest rate changes are based on numerous assumptions inclUJding 
relative levels of market interest rates, loan prepayments and deposit decay, and should not be relied upon as indicative of actual 
results. 

A basis point equals one-hundredth of one percent, and I 00 basis points equals one percent. An increase in interest rates from 
3% to 4% would mean, for example, a 100-basis point increase in the "Basis Point Change in Interest Rates" column below. 
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The following table sets forth, at December 31 , 2024, the calculation of the estimated changes to the Bank's net interest 
income, at the Bank level, that would result from the specified immediate changes in the United States Treasury yield curve . For 
purposes of this table, LOO basis points equals 1%. 

Net Interest Income 

Change in Interes t Rates (basis points) Amount Change Perc ent 

(Dollars in thousands) 

+200 $48,719 1,209 2.5% 

+100 48, 153 643 1.4 

0 47,510 

-100 49,117 1,607 3.4 

-200 50,419 2,909 6.1 

The following table sets forth, at December 31, 2024, the calculation of the estimated changes in our NPY, at the Bank Level, 
that would result from the specified immediate changes in the United States Treasury yield curve. For purposes of this table, 
I 00 basis points equals I%. 

NPV 

Est imated Increase NPV as a Percent of Portfolio 

Estimated 
(Decrease) Value of Assets 

Change in Interes t Rates (basis points) NPV Amount Percent NPV Ratio Change 

(Dollars in thousands) 

+200 $H7,583 $(70,082) (37.3)% 5.7% (3.4) 

+L00 ti52,321 (35,344) (18.8) 7.4 (1.7) 

0 t87,665 9. I 

-100 220,891 33,226 17.7 10.7 1.6 

-200 253,350 65,684 35.0 12.3 3.2 

The table above indicates that at December 31, 2024, in the event of an instantaneous LOO basis point increase in interest rates, 
the Bank would experience a 19% decrease in NPV. In the event of an instantaneous I 00 basis point decrease in interest rates, the 
Bank would experience a 18% increase in NPY. 

Certain shottcomings are inherent in the methodologies used in the above interest rate risk measurements. Modeling changes 
require making certain assumptions that may or may not reflect the manner in which actual yields and costs respond to changes in 
market interest rates. The above tables assume that the composition of our interest sensitive assets and liabilities existing at the date 
indicated remains constant uniformly across the yield curve regardless of the duration or repricing of specific assets and Liabilities. 
Accordingly, although the table provides an indication of our interest rate risk exposure at a particular point in time, the data does 
not reflect any actions we may take in response to changes in interest rates. In addition, such measurements are not intended to and 
do not provide a precise forecast of the effect of changes in market interest rates on our NPV and will differ from actual results. 
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors 
Blue Foundry Bancorp: 

Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Blue Foundry Bancorp and subsidiaries (the Company) as of 
December 31, 2024 and 2023, the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive loss, changes in shareholders' 
equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31, 2024, and the related notes (collectively, 
the consolidated financial statements). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for 
each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31, 2024, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

Change in Accounting Principle 

As discussed in Note I to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has changed its method of accounting for the 
recognition and measurement of credit losses as of January I, 2023 due to the adoption of ASC Topic 326, Financial Instruments­
Credit Losses. 

Basis for Opinion 

These consolidated financia l statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public 
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company 
in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission and the PCAOB. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether 
due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over 
financial reporting. As part of our audits, we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting but 
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a 
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financiam statements. Our audits also included 
evaluating the accounting principles used andl significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

Is/ KPMG LL P 

We have served as the Company's auditor since 2022. 

New York, New York 
March 27, 2025 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
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BLUE FOUNDRY BANCORP 
Consolidated Balance Sheets 

(Ln thousands, except share data) 

ASSETS 

Cash and casb equivalents 

Securities available-for-sale, at fair value 

Securities held-to-maturity (fai r value of $29.995 at December 3 1, 2024 arnd $28,323 at December 3 1, 
2023, and a llowance for credit losses of $98 at December 31, 2024 and $158 at December 31, 2023) 

FHLB stock and other investments 

Loans receivable, net of allowance for credit losses of $ 12,965 at December 3 L, 2024 and $ 14, 154 at 
December .31, 2023 

Real estate owned, net 

Interest and dividends receivable 

Premises and equipment, net 

Right-of-use assets 

Bank owned life insurance 

Other assets 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 

Liabilities 

Deposits 

Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank 

Advances by borrowers for taxes and insurance 

Lease liabilities 

Other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Shareholders' equity 

50 

Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 10,000,000 authorized; none issued 

Common stock $0.01 par value; 70,000,000 shares authorized; 28,522,500 shares issued at 
December 31,2024 and December 31, 2023; 22,522,626 and 24,509,950 shares outstanding at 
December 31,2024 and December 31,2023, respectively 

Additional paid-in capital 

Retained earnings 

Treasury Stock, at cost: 5,999,874 shares at December 31,2024 and 4,012,550 shares at 
December 3 1, 2023 

Unallocated common shares held by Employee Stock Ownership Plan 

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 

Total shareholders' equity 

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
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December 3 1, December 3 I, 
2024 2023 

$ 42,502 $ 46,025 

297,028 283,766 

33,076 33,254 

17,791 20,346 

1,570,517 1,546,576 

593 

8,0 14 7,595 

29,486 32,475 

23,470 25, 172 

22,519 22,034 

16,280 27,127 

$2,060,683 $2,044,963 

$1,343,320 $1,244,904 

339,500 397,500 

9,356 8,929 

25,168 26,777 

11,141 11,213 

1,728,485 1,689,323 

285 285 

277,304 273,991 

152,429 164,340 

(59,699) (40,016) 

(19,167) (20,080) 

( 18,954) (22,880) 

332,198 355,640 

$2,060,683 $2,044,963 



lnterest income: 

Loans 

Taxable investment income 

Non-taxable investment income 

Total interest income 

Interest expense: 

Deposits 

Borrowed funds 

Total interest expense 

Net interest income 

Release of credit losses 

BLUE FOUNDRY BANCORP 
Con sol ida ted Statements of Operations 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Net interest income after release of credit losses 

Non-interest income: 

Fees and service charges 

Gain on securities, net 

Gain on sale of loans 

Other income 

Total non-interest income 

Non-interest expense: 

Compensation and benefits 

Occupancy and equipment 

Data processing 

Advertising 

Professional services 

Federal deposit insurance 

Other ex.pense 

Total non-interest expense 

Loss before income tax expense 

Income tax expense 

Net loss 

Basic and diluted loss per share 

Weighted average shares outstanding-basic 

Weighted average shares outstanding-diluted 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

For the Y car Ended 
December 31, 

2024 2023 

70,185 $ 65,685 

15,122 12,990 

144 430 

85,451 79,105 

36,830 24,116 

11,071 13,070 

47,901 37,186 

37,550 41,919 

(1,350) (441) 

38,900 42,360 

1,203 1, 164 

20 

36 231 

555 390 

1,794 1,805 

29,433 28,439 

8,878 8,350 

5,648 6,119 

292 354 

2,903 3,021 

855 799 

4,596 4,480 

52,605 51,562 

(ll,9 11) (7,397) 

(11,911) $ (7,397) 

(0.55) $ (0.31) 

21,477,429 23,925,724 

21,477,429 23,925,724 
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BLUE FOUNDRY BANCORP 
Con sol ida ted Statements of Comprehensive Loss 

(ln thousands) 

Net loss 

Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax (I): 

Unrealized gain on securities available-for-sale: 

Unrealized gain arising during the period 

Reclassification adjustment for gain included in net income 

Unrealized gain (loss) on cash flow hedge: 

Unrealized (loss) gain arising during the period 

Reclassification adjustment for loss (gain) included in net income 

Post-Retirement plans: 

Net actuarial loss 

Total other comprehensive income, net of tax ( 1): 

Comprehensive loss 

( I) Includes a deferred tax valuation allowance equal to the net tax benefit. 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
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Year Ended 
December 3 I , 

2024 2023 
(In thousands) 

$(11,911) $(7,397) 

3,273 5,504 

(20) 

3,273 5,484 

(5,574) 1,963 

6,355 (5,472) 

781 (3,509) 

(1. 28) ( 136) 

(128) ( 136) 

3,926 1,839 

$ (7 ,985) $(5,558) 



BLUE FOUNDRY BANCORP 
Consolidated! Statements of Changes in Shareholders ' Equity 

Year Ended December 31,2024 and 2023 
(ln thousands, except share data) 

Common Accumulated Unallocated 

Stock Additional Other Common Total 
Paid-In Retained Treasury Comprehensive Stock Held Shareholders' 

Shares Par Value Capital Earnings Stock Income (Loss) by ESOP Equity 

(In thousands, except share data) 

Balance at January I, 2023 27,523,219 $285 $279,454 $ 171 ,763 $(12,072) $(24,7 19) $(20,993) $393,718 

Cumulative effect of adopting ASU 
2016-13 (18) (18) 

Cumulative effect of adopting ASU 
2022-02 (8) (8) 

Net loss (7,397) (7,397) 

Other comprehensive income 1,839 1.839 

Purchase of Treasury stock (3,717,949) (36,268) (36,268) 

Treasury stock allocated to restricted 
stock plan, net of forfeitures 704,680 (8,324) 8.324 

Compensation cost for stock options 
and restricted stock 2,879 2,879 

ESOP shares committed to be released 
(91 ,272 shar·es) ( 18) 9 13 895 

Balance at December 3 1, 2023 24,509,950 $285 $273,991 $164,340 $(40,016) $(22,880) $(20,080) $355.640 

--
Net loss ( I I ,911) ( 11,911) 

Other comprehensive loss 3,926 3,926 

Purchase of Treasury stock (I ,945,241) ( 19,444) (19,444) 

Treasury stock allocated to restricted 
stock plan, net of forfeitures (42,083) 169 (239) (70) 

Compensation cost for stock options 
and restricted stock 3,166 3,166 

ESOP shares committed to be released 
(91 ,272shares) (22) 9 13 891 

Balance at December 31, 2024 22,522,626 $285 $277,304 $152,429 $(59,699) $( 18,954) $(19,167) $332.198 
--

See accompanying notes to the consoUdated financia l statements. 
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BLUE FOUNDRY BANCORP 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

(ln thousands) 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Net loss 

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash (used in) provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization of premises and equipment 

Change in right-of-use asset 

(Accretion) amortization of: 

Defe rred loan fees, costs, premiums and discounts, net 

Premiums and discounts on securities, net 

Re lease of provision for credit losses/l oan losses 

Gain on sales and calls of securities, net 

Proceeds from sales of loans held for sale 

Gains on sale of loans, net 

Orig ination of loans he ld for sale 

Loss on premises and equipment 

Net gain on sale of real estate owned 

Increase in BOLl cash surrender value 

ESOP and stock-based compensation expense 

Increase in interest and dividends receivable 

Decrease (increase) in other assets 

Increase (decrease) in other liabilities 

Change in lease liability 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 

54 

Net payments (originations) of loans 

Purchases of mortgage and consumer loans 

Proceeds from sale of real estate owned 

Purchases of securities available-for-sale 

Proceeds from sales and calls of securities available-for-sale 

Principal payments and maturities on securities available-for-sale 

Purchases of other investments 

Purchases of Federal Home Loan Bank stock 

Redemption of Federal Home Loan Bank stock 

Proceeds from bank owned Life insurance 

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 

Purchases of premises and equipment 

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities 
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$ 

Y e.ar Ended December 3 I, 

2024 2023 

(In thousands) 

(1 1,911) $ (7,397) 

3,126 2,870 

2,875 2,822 

( 168) (598) 

725 1,044 

( l ,350) (44 1) 

(20) 

486 5,479 

(36) (231) 

(450) (5,248) 

3 13 

( 123) 

(485) (458) 

4,057 3,774 

(419) (702) 

10,648 (7,498) 

867 (2,892) 

(2,782) (2,635) 

5,063 (12, 118) 

6,910 (8,854) 

(29,539) (6,804) 

716 

(89, 108) (15,524) 

11 ,674 

78,632 39,085 

(150) 

(47,120) (57,200) 

49,793 52,875 

582 

38 
(140) (5,571) 

(30,006) 10,301 



Cash flows from financing activities 

Net char~ge in deposits 

BLUE FOUNDRY BANCORP 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

(ln thousands) 

Proceeds from advances from Federal Home Loan Bank 

Repayments of advances from Federal Home Loan Bank 

Net decrease (increase) in advances by borrowers for taxes and insurance 

Purchase of treasury stock 

Net cash provided by financing activities 

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow informa tion 

Cash paid during the period for: 

Interest 

Inco me taxes 

Supplemental noncash disclosures 

Transfers of loans to other real estate owned 

Y c.ar Ended December 3 I, 

2024 2023 

(In thousands) 

98,416 (43,958) 

1,006,000 2,292,000 

( I ,064,000) (2,205,000) 

427 (373) 

( 19,423) (36,009) 

21,420 6,660 

(3,523) 4,843 

46,025 41 ,182 

$ 42,502 $ 46,025 

$ 48,042 $ 36,314 

136 96 

Lease liabilities arising from obtaining right-of-use assets ______________ 1,173 

593 

2,088 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. 
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BLUE FOUNDRY BANCORP 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2024 andl 2023 

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Principles of Consolidation 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include tl1e accounts of Blue Foundry Bancorp (the "Company"), and its 
wholly owned subsidiary, Blue Foundry Bank (the "Bank"), and the Bank's wholly owned subsidiaries, TrackView LLC and Blue 
Foundry Investment Company (collectively, the "Company"). All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in 
consolidation. Blue Foundry Bancorp owns 100% of the common stock of Blue Foundry Bank. 

Business 

The Company provides a wide range of banking services to individual and business customers through branch offices in New 
Jersey. The Company is subject to competition from other fi nancial institutions and to the regulations of certain federal and state 
agencies, and undergoes periodic examinations by those regulatory authoriJties. 

On July 15, 202 1, the Company became ilie holding company for the Bank when Blue Foundry, MHC completed its conversion 
into the stock holding company form of organization. In com1eclion with the conversion, the Company sold 27,772,500 shares of 
common stock at a price of $10 per share, for gross proceeds of $277.7 mHlion. The Company contributed 750,000 shares of 
common stock and $ L.5 million in cash to Blue Foundry Charitable Foundation, Inc. and established an Employee Stock 
Ownership Plan ("ESOP") acquiring 2,281,800 shares of common stock. Shares of the Company's common stock began trading on 
July 16, 2021 on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the trading symbol "BLFY." 

Basis of Financial Statement Presentation 

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles. The aud ited consolidated financial statements reflect all normal and recurring adjustments, which are, in the opinion of 
management, considered necessary for a fair presentation of the financial condition and results of operations for the periods 
presented. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the statement of financial condition and revenues and expenses 
for the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. We may reclassify prior year financial statements to conform to the 
current presentation. The results of operations and other data presented for the year ended December 3 1, 2024 are not necessarily 
indicative of the results of operations that may be expected for subsequent periods. 

Segment Reporting 

As a community-focused financial institution, substantially all of the Company's operations involve the delivery of loan and 
deposit products to customers. Management makes operating decisions and assesses performance based on an ongoing review of 
these community banking operations, which constitute the Company's only operating segment for financial reporting purposes. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and deposits with other financial institutions with maturities fewer than 90 days. 

Securities 

Debt securities are classified as held-to-maturity and carried at amortized cost when management has the positive intent and ability 
to hold them to maturity. Securities to be held for indefinite periods of time and not intended to be held-to-maturity are classified 
as available-for-sa le and carried at fair value. U nrealized holding gains and losses on securities available-for-sale are excluded 
from earnings with unrealized holding gains and losses reported in other comprehensive income, net of tax adjusted for deferred 
tax valuation allowances, until realized. Securities available-for-sale are those which management intends to use as part of its asset/ 
liability management strategy and which may be sold in response to changes in interest rates, resultant prepayment risk and other 
factors related to interest rate risk. Gains and losses on sales are recognized on a trade-date basis using the specific identification 
method. 
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BLUE FOUNDRY BANCORP 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FlNANClAL STATEMENTS 

December 31 , 2024 andl 2023 

Premiums and discounts on securities are amorti.zed/accreted to income using the level yield method or a method that approximates 
level yield. Premiums are amortized over the remaining period to the earliest call date or contractual maturity, adjusted for 
anticipated prepayments. Discounts on securities are accreted to income over the remaining period to the contractual maturity, 
adjusted for anticipated prepayments. Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis. 

Allowance for Credit Losses on Securities 

The Company adopted the Current Expected Credit Losses ("CECL") methodology on January 1, 2023. 1\.SU 2016-13, which 
eliminates the concept of other-than-temporary impairment and instead requires entities to determine if impairment is related to 
credit loss or non-credit loss. In making the assessment of whether a loss is from credit or other factors, management considers the 
extent to which fair val ue is less than amortized cost, any changes to the rating of the security by a rating agency and adverse 
conditions related to the security, among other factors. If this assessment indicates that a credit loss exists, the present value of cash 
flows expected to be collected from the security are compared to the amortized cost basis of the security. If the present value of 
cash flows is less than the amortized cost basis, a credit loss exists and an allowance is created, limited by the amount that the fair 
value is less than the amortized cost basis. 

For Available-for-Sale Debt Securities 

On a quarterly basis the Company evaluates the AFS debt securities for impainnent. Securities that are not 100% guaranteed or 
implicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government, that are in an unrealized loss position are reviewed to determine if a securities loss 
were due to credit impairment factors. The primary factors considered in evaluating whether an impairment exists include: (a) the 
extent to which the fair value is less than the amor1ized cost basis, (b) the financial condition, credit rating and future prospects of 
the issuer, (c) whether the debtor is current on contractually obligated interest and principal payments, and (d) whether the 
Company intends to sell the security and whether it is more likely than not that the Company will not be required to sell the 
security. 

If a determination is made that an AFS debt security is impaired, the Company will estimate the amount of the unrealized loss that 
is attributable to credit and all other non-credit related factors. The credit related component will be recognized as a provision for 
credit losses through an allowance for securities credit losses. The securities provision for credit losses will be limited to the 
difference between the security's amortized cost basis and fair value and any future changes may be reversed, limited to the 
amount previously expensed, in the period they occur. The non-credit related component will be recorded as an adjustment to 
accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax. 

For Held-to-Maturity Debt Securities 
The allowance for credit losses on held-to-maturity debt securi ties is initially recognized upon acquisition of the securities, and 
subsequently remeasured on a quarterly basis. Expected credit losses on held-to-maturity debt securities through the life of the 
financial instrument are estimated and recognized as an allowance for credit losses on the balance sheet with a corresponding 
adjustment to current earnings . Subsequent favorable or unfavorable changes in expected cash flow will decrease or increase the 
allowance for credit losses through a charge to the provision for credit losses. 

Management measures expected credit losses on held-to-maturity securities on a collective basis by major security type. The 
held-to-maturity portfolio is classified into the following major security types: corporate bonds and asset-backed securities. 

At each reporting period, the Company evaluates whether the securities in a segment continue to exhibit similar risk characteristics 
as the other securities in the segment. ff the risk charactetistics of a security change, such that they are no Longer similar to other 
securities in the segment, the Company will evaluate the security with a different segment that shares more similar risk 
characteristics. 

The Company has a non-accrual policy that results in a timely reversal of interest receivable, therefore the Company made the 
e lection to ex·clude accrued inte rest receivable on securities from the estimate of credit losses. 
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BLUE FOUNDRY BANCORP 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2024 andl 2023 

FHLB stock and Other Investments 

Other investments consists primarily of membership and activity-based shares in the FHLB of New York. Members are required to 
own a certain a mount of stock based on the level of borrowings and other factors. FHLB stock is carried at cost, which 
approximates fair value, classified as a restricted security, and periodically evaluated for impairment based on ultimate recovery of 
par value. Both cash and stock dividends are reported as income. Other investments also consists of, to a much lesser extent, an 
investment in a financial technology fund can·ied at net asset value ("NA V") and shares in a cooperative that provides community 
banking core techno logy solutions carried at cost. The fair value of the financial technology fund investment is estimated using the 
NA V of the Company's ownership interest in p.artners' capital, which approximates fair value . Increases or decreases in NA V are 
recorded in other income. 

Loans Receivable 

Loans receivable are stated at unpaid principal balance, net of deferred fees, costs, premiums and discounts and the allowance for 
credit losses on loans. Interest on loans is recognized based upon the principal amount outstanding. Loan fees and certain direct 
loan orig ination costs are defe1Ted, and the net fee or cost is recognized in interest income using the level yield method over the 
contractual life of the individual loans, adjusted for actual prepayments. 

The loan portfolio is categorized according to collateral type, loan purpose, lien position, or borrower type (i.e., commercial, 
consumer). The categories used include residential, multifamily, commercial real estate, construction and land, junior liens, 
commercial and industrial, and consumer and other. 

For all loan classes, the accrual of income on loans, including impaired loans, is generally discontinued when a loan becomes 
90 days delin.quent or when certain factors indicate reasonable doubt as to the ability of the borrower to meet contractual principal 
and/or interest obligations. Loans on which the accrual of income has been discontinued are designated as nonaccrual loans. All 
previously accrued interest is reversed and income is recognized subsequently only in the period received, provided the remaining 
principal balance is deemed collectible. A nonaccrual loan is not returned to an accrual status until principal and interest payments 
are brought current and factors indicating doubtful collection no longer exist. 

Principal and interest payments received on non-accrual loans for which the remaining principal balance is not deemed collectible 
are appl ied as a reduction to principal and interest income is not recognized. If the principal balance on the loan is later deemed 
collectible and the loan is returned to accrual status, any interest payments that were applied to principal while on non-accrual are 
recorded as an unearned discount on the loan, classified as deferred fees, costs and discounts, and are recognized into interest 
income using the level-yield method over the remaining contractual life of the individual loan, adjusted for actual prepayments. 

Allowance for Credit Losses 011 Loans 

Under the CECL model, the almowance for credit losses on fi nancial assets is a valuation allowance esti mated at each balance sheet 
date in accordance with U.S. GAAP and is deducted from the fi nancial assets' amortized cost basis to present the net amount 
expected to be collected on the financial assets. 

The Company estimates the a llowance for credit losses on loans based on the underlying assets' amortized cost basis, which is the 
amount at which the financing receivable is originated or acquired, adjusted for applicable accretion or amortization of premium, 
discount, net deferred fees or costs, collection of cash, and charge-offs. In the event that collection of principal becomes uncertain, 
the Company has policies in place to write-off accrued interest receivable by reversing interest income in a timely manner. 
Therefore, the Company has made a policy election to exclude accrued interest from the amortized cost basis and therefore 
excludes it from the measurement of the allowance for credit loss. 

Changes in expected credit losses are reflected through a charge to the provision for credit losses. The Company's estimate of the 
allowance for credit loss reflects losses expected over the remaining contractual life of the assets. When the Company deems all or 
a portion of a financial asset to be uncollectible, the appropriate amount is written off and the allowance for credit losses is reduced 
by the same amount. The Company applies judgment to determine when a fi nancial asset is deemed uncollectible. When avai !able 
information confirms that specific loans, securities, other assets, or portions thereof, are uncollectible, these amounts are 
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charged-off against the allowance for credit losses. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance for credit losses 
when received. 

The Company measures expected credit losses of financial assets on a collective portfolio segment basis when the financial assets 
share similar risk characteristics. The Company generally measures expected credit losses using discounted cash flows ("DCF") 
models at the portfolio segment level, whereby the total shortfall in comparing the portfolio segment DCFs. to the amortized cost 
basis reflects management's estimate of expected credit losses. 

Our CECL models for loans include the following major items: 

• a historical loss period, which represents a full economic credit cycle utilizing loss experience including peer bank 
historical loss data, to calculate probabilities of default at the portfolio segment level; 

macroeconomic variable forecasts, including the national holllsing price index, unemployment, and gross domestic 
product, to adjust probabilities of default over a reasonable and supportable forecast period of one year, based on 
management's current review of the reliability of extended forecasts; 

a reversion period of one year to adjust probabilities of default (after the reasonable and supportable forecast period) to 
historical means using a straight-line approach; 

a risk index that measw·es loss given defaults as a function of probabilities of default at the portfolio segment Level; 

expected prepayment rates based on our historical experience and benchmark assumptions where internal data is limited; 
and 

incorporation of qualitative factors not captured within the modeled results. 

For collaterall dependent financial assets where the Company has determined that forec losure of the collateral is probable and 
where the borrower is experiencing financial difficulty, the allowance for credit loss is measured based on the difference between 
the frur value of the collateral and the amortized cost basis of the asset as of the measurement date. Fair value is calculated based 
on the value of the underlying collateral less an appraisal discount and the estimated cost to sell. 

Allowance for Credit Losses on Off-Balance-Sheet Exposures 

The Company records changes in the allowance for credit losses on off-balance-sheet credit exposures through a charge to 
provision for credit losses. The al lowance for credit loss on off-balance-sheet credit exposures is estimated by portfolio segment at 
each balance sheet date under the CECL model using the same methodologies as portfolio loans, taking into consideration 
management's assumption of the likelihood that funding will occur, and is included in other liabilities on the Company's 
consolidated balance sheets. 

Premises and Equipment 

Premises and equipment, including leasehold improvements, are generally stated at cost less accumulated depreciation, 
amortization and fair value adjustments. Depreciation and amortization is computed primari ly using the straight-l ine method over 
the estimated useful lives of the assets or leases. Repair and maintenance items are expensed and major improvements are 
capitalized. Upon retirement or sale, any gain or loss is credited or charged to operations. Construction in progress represents costs 
incurred to develop assets for future use. 

Leases and Lease Obligations 

The Company enters into leases in the normal course of business prilmarily for financial centers, administrative and office 
operations locations, and information technology equipment. The Company's leases have remaining terms ranging from less than 
one to 15 years, some of which include renewal or termination options to extend the lease for up to 10 years. The Company's 
leases do not include residual value guarantees or covenants. The Company includes lease extension and termination options in the 
lease term if, after considering relevant economic factors, it is reasonably certain the Company will exercise the option. In addition, 
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the Company has elected to account for any non-lease components in its real estate leases as part of the associated lease 
component. The Company has also elected not to recognize leases with original lease terms of 12 months or less (short-term leases) 
on the Company' s balance sheet. 

Leases are classified as operating or finance leases at the lease commencement date. Lease expense for operating leases and short­
term leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Right-of-use assets represent our right to use an underlying 
asset for the lease term and Lease Liabilities represent our obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease. Right-of-use 
assets ("ROU") and lease liabilities are recognized at the lease commencement date based on the estimated present value of lease 
payments over the lease term. 

The Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at lease commencement to calculate the present value of lease payments when 
the rate implicit in a lease is not known. The Company's incremental borrowing rate is based on the FHLB .advance rate, adjusted 
for the lease term and other factors. 

Bank Owned Life Insurance 

The Company has purchased life insurance policies on certain key individuals. Bank owned life insurance is recorded at the 
amount that can be realized under the insurance contract at the balance sheet date, which is the cash surrender value adjusted for 
other charges or other amounts due that are probable at settlement. 

Income Taxes 

Income taxes are accounted for using the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and ljabilities are recognjzecl for the future 
tax consequences attributable to differences between the fi nancial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and 
their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable 
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. 

The Company evaluates the realizability of deferred tax assets at least annually in accordance with ASC 740-10-30-S(e), and may 
determine that it is more-likely-than-not that a portion, or all, of the assets would require a valuation allowance. Based on. this 
evaluation, the Company maintained a full valuation allowance on its net deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2024 and 2023. 

The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the 
enactment date. The measurement of deferred tax assets is reduced by a valuation allowance for the amount of the deferred tax 
asset that is more likely than not to be realized. 

A tax position is recognized as a benefit only if it is "more likely than not" that the tax position would be sustained in a tax 
examination, with a tax examination being presumed to occur. The amount recognized is the largest amount of tax benefit that is 
greater than 50% likely of being realized on examination. For tax positions not meeting the "more likely than not" test, no tax 
benefit is recorded. 

The Company recognizes interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters in other operating expenses. 

Treasury Stock 

Repurchases of Company common stock are classified as treasury stock shares carried at cost and presented as a reduction of 
shareholders' equity. Treasury stock is not considered outstanding for share count purposes and are excluded from average 
common shares outstanding fo r basic and diluted earnings per share. Reissued treasury stock at an amount greater (less) than paid 
to repurchase the shares will result in a gain (loss) on the reissuance of the shares. The gain or loss will be recognized in 
shareholders' equity. A gain on the reissuance of treasury shares are credited to additional paid-in capital. A loss on the reissuance 
of treasury shares are debited to additional paid- in capital to the extent previous net gains from the same class of stock are included 
in additiona l paid-in capital. Losses in excess of gains in additional paid-in capital are charged to retained earnings. 
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The Company uses derivative financial instruments as components of its market risk management, principally to manage interest 
rate risk. At the inception of a derivative contract, the Company designates the derivati ve as one of three types based on the 
Company' s intentions and belief as to likely effectiveness as a hedge. These three types are (1) a hedge of the fair value of a 
recognized asset or liabili ty or of an unrecognized firm commitment ("fair value hedge"), (2) a hedge of a forecasted transaction or 
the variability of cash flows to be received or paid related to a recognized asset or liability ("cash flow hedge"), or (3) an 
instrument with no hedging designation ("stand-alone derivative"). For a fair value hedge, the gain or loss on the derivative, as well 
as the offsettiing loss or gain on the hedged item, are recognized in current earnings as fair values change. For a cash flow hedge, 
the gain or loss on the derivative is reported in other comprehensive income and is reclassified into earnings in the same periods 
during which the hedged transaction affects earnings. For both types of hedges, changes in the fair value of derivatives that are not 
highly effective in hedging the changes in fair value or expected cash flows of the hedged item are recognized immediately in 
current earnings. Changes in the fair value of derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are reported currently in 
earnings, as non-interest income. As of December 31, 2024, and December 31,2023, the Company's derivatives are all designated 
in cash flow hedge relationships. 

Net cash settlements on derivatives that qualify for hedge accounting are recorded in interest income or interest expense, based on 
the item being hedged. Net cash settlements on derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are reported in non-interest 
income. Cash flows on hedges are classified in the cash flow statement the same as the cash flows of the items being hedged. 

The Company formally documents the relationship between derivatives and hedged ite ms, as well as the risk-management 
objective and the strategy for undertaking hedge transactions at the inception of the hedging relationship. This documentation 
includes designating specific swap agreements to specific assets and liabilities on the balance sheet or to specific firm 
commitments or forecasted transactions. 

When hedge accounting is discontinued, subsequent changes in fair valll!e of the derivative are recorded as non-interest income. 
When a fair value hedge is discontinued, the hedged asset or liability is no longer adjusted for changes in fair value and the existing 
basis adjustment is amortized or accreted over the remaining life of the asset or liability. When a cash flow hedge is discontinued 
but the hedged cash flows or forecasted transactions are still expected to occur, gains or losses that were accumulated in other 
comprehensive income are amortized into earnings over the same periods which the hedged transactions will affect earnings. 

The Company is exposed to losses if a counterparty fails to make its payments under a contract in which the Company is in the net 
receiving position. The Company anticipates that the counterparties will be able to fully satisfy their obligations under the 
agreements. A ll the contracts to which the Company is a party settle monthly or quarterly. In addition, the Company obtains 
collateral above certain thresholds of the fair value of its hedges for each counterparty based upon their credit standing and the 
Company has netting agreements with the dealeJrS with which it does business. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

GAAP establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy 
gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and 
the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements). A financial instrument's level within the fair value hierarchy is 
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fai r value measurement. 

Retirement Benefits 

The Company provides certain healthcare benefits, subject to certain limitations, to eligible retirees, based upon years of service 
and a retirement date prior to January I, 2019. The Company also provides supplementa l retirement benefits to certain directors. 
The Company measures the cost of these benefits based upon various estimates and assumptions. Costs are recognized as directors 
render service. 
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Employee Stock Ownership Plan 

The cost of shares issued to the ESOP, but not yet allocated to participants, is shown as a reduction of shareholders' equity. 
Compensation expense is based on the market price of shares as they are committed to be released to participant accounts. 
Dividends on allocated ESOP shares reduce retained earnings; dividends on unearned ESOP shares reduce the ESOP's debt and 
accrued interest. 

Share-Based Compensation 

The Company maintains an equity incentive plan under which restricted stock and stock options may be granted to employees and 
directors. 

The Company recognizes the cost of employee services received in exchange for awards of equity instruments based on the grant­
date fair value of those awards in accordance with ASC 718, "Compensation-Stock Compensation". The Company estimates the 
per share fair value of option grants on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model using assumptions for the 
expected dividend yield, expected stock price volatility, risk-free interest rate and expected option term. These assumptions are 
subjective in nature, involve uncertainties and, therefore, cannot be dete1·mined with precision. The Black-Scholes option pricing 
model also contains certain inherent limitations when applied to options that are not traded on public markets. 

The per share fair value of options is highly sensitive to changes in assumptions. In general, the per share fair value of options will 
move in the same direction as changes in the expected stock price volatility, risk-free interest rate and expected option term, and in 
the opposite direction as changes in the expected dividend yield. For example, the per share fair value of options will generally 
increase as expected stock price volatility increases, risk-free interest rate increases, expected option term increases and expected 
dividend yield decreases. The use of different assumptions or different option pricing models could result in materially different 
per share fair values of options. 

The Company recognizes compensation expense for the fai r values of these awards, which have time vesting, on a straight-line 
basis over the requisite service period of the awards. The Company's accounting policy is to recognize forfeitures as they occur. 

The Company also grants performance-based awards that are dependent on the achievement of certain metrics over a defined 
measurement period ending. At the end of the performance period, the nlllmber of actual shares to be awarded may vary between 
0% and 100% of target amounts. The awards then convert to time-based awards. 

Comprehensive Income (Loss) 

Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net income (loss) and other comprehensive income (loss). Other comprehensive income 
(loss) includes unrealized gains and losses on both securities available-for-sale and derivatives, net of the related tax effect. Also 
included are changes in the unfunded status of the Company's defined benefit plans, net of the related tax effect, which are 
recognized as separate components of shareholders' equity. 

Loss Contingencies 

Loss contingencies, including claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business, are recorded as liabilities w hen 
the likelihood of loss is probable and an amount or range of loss can be reasonably estimated. Management does not believe t here 
are such matters that will have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements. 

Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share represents income available to common shareholders divided by the weighted-average number of common 
shares outstanding during the period. Unallocated ESOP shares are not deemed outstanding for earnings per share calculations. 
ESOP sha res committed to be released are considered to be outstanding for purposes of the earnings per sha re computation. ESOP 
shares that have not been legally released, but that relate to employee services rendered during an accounting period (interim or 

62 Blue Foundry Bancorp I Form I 0-K 



BLUE FOUNDRY BANCORP 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FlNANCl AL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2024 andl 2023 

annual) ending before the related debt service payment is made, are considered committed to be released. Diluted earnings per 
share reflects additional common shares that would have been outstanding if di lutive potential common shares had been issued, as 
well as any adjustment to income that would result from the assumed issuance. Potential common shares that may be issued by the 
Company relate to outstanding stock options awards and are determined using the treas.ury stock method. When applying the 
treasury stock method, we add: ( I ) the assumed proceeds from option exercises and (2) the average unamortized compensation 
costs related to unvested shares of restricted stock and stock options. We then divide this sum by our average stock price to 
calculate shares repurchased. The excess of the number of shares issuable over the number of shares assumed to be repurchased is 
added to basic weighted average common shares to calculate diluted EPS. 

Adoption of New Accounting Standards 

As an "emerging growth company" as defined in Title l of the Jumpstart Our Business Startups (JOBS) Act prior to December 31, 
2019, the Company elected to use the extended transition period to delay the adoption of new or reissued accounting 
pronouncements applicable to public companies until such pronouncements were made applicable to private companies. 

Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2023-07. In November 2023, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the 
"FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") ASU No. 2023-07, "Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to 
Reportable Segment Disclosures". The amendments in this ASU require improved reportable segment information on an annual 
and interim basis, primarily through enhanced disclosures about significant segment expenses and information used to assess 
segment performance by the Company's chief operating decision maker ("CODM"). The Company's CODM is its President and 
Chief Executive Officer. This update is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 
2023, and int·erim periods for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. ASU 2023-07 sho~1ld be applied retrospectively to 
a ll prior periods presented in the financial statements. The adoption of ASU 2023-07 did not have a material effect on the 
Company's financial position, results of operations or financial statement disclosures as the Company operates one operating 
segment. See Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements. 
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The amortized cost of securities available-for-sale and their estimated fair values at December 3 1, 2024 and 2023 are as follows: 

Gross Gross Estimated 
Amonized Unrealized Unrealized Fair 

Cost Gains Losses Value 

(In thousands) 

December 31 , 2024 

U.S. Treasury Notes $ 41,259 $ 40 $ (1,160) $ 40,139 

Corporate Bonds 75, 122 389 (2,357) 73,154 

U.S. Government agency obligations 874 (62) 8 12 

Obligations issued by U.S. states and their political subdivisions 6,357 (333) 6,024 

Mortgage-backed securities: 

Residential 17 1,754 9 (22,722) 149,041 

Multifamily 19,776 (I ,033) 18,743 

Asset-backed securities 9,312 (197) 9,115 

Total $324,454 $438 $(27,864) $297,028 
--

December 31 , 2023 

U.S. Treasury Notes $ 36,935 $- $ (1,875) $ 35,060 

Corporate Bonds 82,248 56 (5,68 1) 76,623 

U.S. Government agency obligations 11,519 (379) 11 , 140 

Obligations issued by U.S. states and their political subdivisions 6,423 (228) 6,195 

Mortgage-backed securities: 

Residential 149,808 (21,266) 128,542 

Multifamily 12,522 (999) II ,523 

Asset-backed securities 15,0LO (327) 14,683 

Total $314,465 $ 56 $(30,755) $283,766 
--

64 Blue Foundry Bancorp I Form I 0-K 



BLUE FOUNDRY BANCORP 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31 , 2024 andl 2023 

The amortized cost of securities held-to-maturity, allowance for credit losses and their estimated fair values at December 31, 2024 
and 2023, are as fo llows: 

December 31 , 2024 

Asset-backed securities 

Corporate bonds 

Total 

Allowance for credit loss 

December 31 , 2023 

Asset-backed securities 

Corporate bonds 

Total 

Allowance for credit loss 

Gross Gross Estimated 
Amortized Unrecognized Unrecognized Fair 

Cost Gains Losses Value 

$ 14,574 

18,600 

$33,174 

(98) 

$33,076 

$14,812 

18,600 

$33,412 

(158) 

$33,254 

(In thousands) 

$-

$-

$-

$-
--

$ (993) 

(2, 186) 

$(3,179) 

$(1,496) 

(3,593) 

$(5,089) 

$13,581 

16,414 

$29,995 

$ 13,316 

15,007 

$28,323 

At December 3 1, 2024 and 2023, the allowance for credit losses on secunties held-to-maturity totaled $98 thousand and 
$ 158 thousand respectively, and related to the corporate bonds. The asset-backed secmities are in an AAA or A I tranche 
determined by a third party. No loss is expected on these securities. 

During the year ended December 31, 2024, there were no sales or calls of securities available-for-sale. During the year ended 
December 31, 2023, proceeds from sales of securi ties available-for-sale totaled $9. 1 million, resulting in gross realized gai ns of 
$49 thousand and gross realized losses of $29 thousand. CaUs of secmities available-for-sale totaled $2.5 million, resulting in no 
gains or losses during the year ended December 31,2023. 

Securities pledged at December 3 1, 2024 and 2023, had a can·ying amount of $ 11 9.8 million and $ 11.7 million, respectively. 
Unencumbered securities can be pledged to secure borrowings, public deposits and derivatives, as needed. 
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The amortized cost and fair value of debt securities are shown below by contractual maturity at December 3 1, 2024. Expected 
maturities on mortgage and asset-backed securities generally exceed 20 years; however, they may differ from contractual 
maturities as borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without penalties. 

Available-for-sale 

Due in one year or less 

Due from one year to five years 

Due from five to ten years 

Due after ten years 

Mottgage-backed and asset-backed securities 

Total 

Held-to-maturity 

Due from five to ten years 

Asset-backed securities 

Total 

(I) Excludes the allowance for credit losses on held-to-mantrity securities at December 3 1, 2024. 

Credit Indicators 

Amortized Cost ( I) Estimated Fair Value 

(In thousands) 

$ 52.605 $ 52,381 

22,998 22,809 

41,019 39,287 

6,990 5,652 

123,612 120,129 

200,842 176,899 

$324,454 $297,028 

$ 18,600 $ 16,414 

18,600 16,414 

14,574 13,581 

$ 33,174 $ 29,995 

Credit ratings are a key measure for estimating the probability of a bond's default and for monitoring credit quality on an on-going 
basis. For bonds other than U.S. Treasuries and bonds issued or guaranteed by U.S. government agencies, credit ratings issued by 
one or more nationally recognized statistical rating organization are considered in conjunction with an assessment by the 
Company's management. Investment grade reflects a credit quality of BBB- or above. None of the Company's securities are on 
non-accrual status, nor are any past due. 

The table below indicates the credit profile of the Company's debt securities held-to-maturity at amortized cost at December 31, 
2024 and December 31, 2023. 

December 3 I, 2024 AAA A I BBB+ BBB BBB- Total 

(In thousands) 

Corporate bonds $ - $ - $1,600 $16,000 $1,000 $18,600 

Asset-backed securities 8,677 5,897 14,574 

Total $8,677 $5,897 $1,600 $16,000 $1,000 $33, 174 

December 3 I, 2023 AAA A I BBB+ BBB BBB- Total 

(In thousands) 

Corporate bonds $ - $ - $1,600 $1 1,000 $6,000 $ 18,600 

Asset-backed securities 8,844 5,968 14,812 

Total $8,844 $5,968 $1,600 $1 1,000 $6,000 $33,412 
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At December 3 1, 2023, there was one security with a value of $2.0 million included in the BBB rating that had a split rating. 

The following table summarizes available-for-sale securities with unrealjzed losses at December 31 , 2024 and 2023, aggregated by 
major security type and length of time in a continuous loss position. 

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total 

Unrealized Estimated Unrealized Estimated Number of Unrealized Estimated 
Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Securities Losses Fair Value 

(Dollars in thousands) 

December 31 , 2024 

U.S. Treasury Note $- $ $ (1,160) $ 5,776 $ (1,160) $ 5,776 

Corporate Bonds (2,357) 39,286 19 (2,357) 39,286 

U.S. Government agency obligations (62) 812 2 (62) 812 

Obligations issued by U.S. states and their 
political subdivisions (333) 6,024 5 (333) 6,024 

Mortgage-backed securities: 

Res idential (64) 18,888 (22,658) 112,396 47 (22,722) 131,284 

Multifamily (56) 11,237 (977) 7,506 5 (1,033) 18,743 

Asset-backed securities (197) 4 ,115 2 (197) 4,115 

Total available-for-sale $(120) $30,125 $(27,744) $175,915 81 $(27,864) $206,040 

December 31 , 2023 

U.S. Treasury Note $- $ $ (1,875) $ 35,060 4 $ (1,875) $ 35,060 

Corporate Bonds (7) 8,260 (5,674) 6 1,156 30 (5,681) 69,416 

U.S. Government agency obligations (380) 11,140 3 (380) 11,140 

Obligations issued by U.S. states and their 
political subdivisions (228) 6,195 5 (228) 6,195 

Mortgage-backed securities: 

Residential 2 (21 ,266) 128,535 48 (2 1,266) 128,537 

Multifamily (999) 11,524 6 (999) I 1,524 

Asset-backed securities (21) 4,991 (305) 4 ,680 3 (326) 9,671 

Total available-for-sale $ (28) $13,253 $(30,727) $258,290 99 $(30,755) $271,543 
-- -

Of the 8 1 available-for-sale securities in an unrealized loss position at December 31, 2024, 55 are comprised of U.S. Govenunent 
agency obligations, Treasury notes, and mortgage-backed securities. These securities were all issued by U.S. Govenunent­
sponsored entities and agencies. For corporate bonds, obligations issued by U.S. states and their political subdivisions and asset­
backed securities in an unrealized loss position, the decline in fair value is attributable to changes in interest rates and liquidity, not 
credit quality . The Company does not intend to sell these securities, nor does it foresee being required to sell them before the 
anticipated recovery or maturity. 
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The fo llowing table summarizes held-to-maturity securities with unrealized losses at December 31, 2024 and December 3 1, 2023 
aggregated by major securi ty type and length of time in a continuous loss position. 

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total 

Unrealized Estimated Unrealized Estimated Number of Unrealized Estimated 
Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Securities Losses Fair Value 

(Dollars in thousands) 

December 31 , 2024 

Corporate Bonds $- $- $(2, 186) $16,414 9 $(2, 186) $16,4 14 

Asset-backed securities (993) 13,58 1 2 (993) 13.,58 1 

Total held-to-maturi ty $- $- $(3, 179) $29,995 II $(3, 179) $29,995 
---

December 31 , 2023 

Corporate Bonds $- $- $(3,593) $15,007 9 $(3,593) $ 15,007 

Asset-backed securities ( 1,496) 13,316 2 (1,496) 13,316 

Total held-to-maturity $- $- $(5,089) $28,323 11 $(5,089) $28,323 
- - - = 

The held-to-maturity secunttes in an unrealized loss position at December 31, 2024, are corporate bonds and asset-backed 
securities, which experienced a decline in fair value attributable to changes in interest rates and liquidity, not credit quality. The 
Company also does not intend to sell these securities, nor does it foresee being required to sell them before the anticipated recovery 
or maturity. 

FHLB Stock and Other Investments 

At December 31, 2024 and 2023, other investments primarily consisted of investments in FHLB stock and, to a much lesser extent, 
investments in a financial technology fund and a community banking cot-e provider cooperative. Other investments carried at fair 
value totaled $ 17.6 million and $20.2 million at December 3 1, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The investment in a financial 
technology fund is carried at net asset value ("NAY") and totaled $226 thousand at December 31, 2024 and $109 thousand at 
December 31, 2023. The Company recorded a net increase in the NA V of $33 thousand and $78 thousand for the years ended 
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, as a component of other income. The Company 's unfunded commitments re lated to the 
financial technology fund totaled $670 thousand at December 31, 2024. 
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NOTE 3 - LOANS RECEIVABLE, NET 

A summary of loans receivable, net, at December 31, 2024 and 2023 is as follows: 

December 31. 2024 December 3 I . 2023 

( In thousands) 

Residential 

Multifamily 

Commercial real estate 

Construction 

Junior liens 

Commercial and industrial 

Consumer and other 

Total loans 

Less: Allowance for credit losses on loans (1) 

Loans receivable, net 

( I ) For more i nformation, see Note 4 - Allowance for Credit Losses. 

$ 518,243 

67 1, 11 6 

259,633 

85,546 

25,422 

16,31 1 

7,211 

1,583,482 

12,965 

$1,570,517 

$ 550,929 

682,564 

232,S.05 

60,4 14 

22,5.Q3 

11,768 

47 

1,560,730 

14,154 

$1,546,576 

Loans are recorded at amortized cost, which includes principal balance, net deferTed fees or costs, premiums and discounts. The 
Company elected to exclude accrued interest receivable from amortized cost. Accrued interest receivable is reported separately in 
the consolidated balance sheets and totaled $6.7 million and $6.1 million at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, 
respectively. Loan origination fees and certain direct loan origination co·sts are deferred and the net fee or cost is recognized in 
interest income as an adjustment of yield. At both December 3 1, 2024 and December 3 1, 2023, net deferTed loan fees totaled 
$2.0 million. 

The portfolio classes in the above table have unique risk characteristics wil:h respect to credit quality: 

Payment on multifamily and commercial real estate mortgages is driven principally by operating results of the managed 
properties or underlying business and secondarily by the sale or refinance of such properties. Both primary and secondary 
sources of repayment and the value of the properties in liquidation, may be affected to a greater extent by adverse 
conditions in the real estate market or the economy in general. 

Properties underlying construction loans often do not generate suffic ient cash flows to service debt and thus repayment is 
subject to the ability of the borrower and, if applicable, guarantors, to complete development or construction of the 
property and carry the project, often for extended periods of time. As a result, the performance of these loans is 
contingent upon future events whose probability at the time of origination is uncertain. 

• Commercial and industrial ("C&1") loans include C&1 revolving lines of credit, term loans, SBA 7a loans and to a lesser 
extent, Paycheck Protection Program ("PPP") loans. Payments on C&I loans are driven principally by the cash flows of 
the businesses and secondarily by the sale or refinance of any collateral securing the loans. Both the cash flow and value 
of the collateral in liquidation may be .affected by adverse genera l economic conditions. 

• The ability of borrowers to service debt in the residential, junior liens and consumer loan portfolios is generally subject 
to personal income which may be impacted by general economic conditions, such as increased ~Unemployment levels. 
These loans are predominately collateralized by first and second liens on single family properties. Tf a borrower cannot 
maintain the loan, the Company's ability to recover against the collateral in sufficient amount and in a timely manner 
may be significantly influenced by market, legal and regulatory conditions. 

Credit Quality Indicators 

The Company categorizes loans into risk categories based on relevant information about the quality and realizable value of 
collateral, if any, and the ability of borrowers to service their debts such as: current financial information, historical payment 
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experience, credit documentation, public information, and current economic trends, among other factors. The Company analyzes 
loans individually by classifying the loans by credit risk. This analysis is performed whenever credit is extended, renewed, or 
modified, or when an observable event occurs indicating a potential decline i.n credit quality, and no less than annually for large 
balance loans. The Company u:sed the following definitions for risk ratings for loan cla.;;sification: 

70 

Pass - Loans classified as pass are loans performing under the original contractual terms, do not currently pose any identified 
risk and can range from the highest to pass/watch quality, depending o n the degree of potential risk. 

Special Mention- Loans classified as special mention have a potential weakness that deserves management's close attention. 
If left uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of the repayment prospects for the loan or the 
Company's credit position at some future date. 

Substandard- Loans classified as substandard are inadequately protected by the curTent sound wo11h and paying capacity of 
the obligor, or of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans so classified have a well-defined weakness or weaknesses that 
jeopardize the repayment and liquidation of the debt. They are characterized by a distinct possibility that the Company will 
sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected. 

Doubtful - Loans classified as doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in those classified as Substandard, with the added 
characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full , on the basis of currently known facts, conditions, and 
values, highly questionable and improbable. 

Loss - Assets classified as loss are considered uncollectible and of such little value that their continuance as bankable assets is 
not warranted. This classification does not mean that the asset has absolutely no recovery or salvage value, but rather thal it is 
not practical or desirable to defer writing off the asset even though partial recovery may be effected in the future. 
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The following table presents the risk category of loans by class of loan and vintage as of December 3 1, 2024: 

Term Loans by Origination Year 

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 Prc-2020 
Revolving 

Loans Tota l 

(in thousands) 

Residential 

Pass $ 24,396 $ 12,941 $ 90,735 $101,928 $13,851 $269,751 $- $ 513,602 

Special mention 264 264 

Substandard 225 4, 152 4 ,377 

Total 24,396 12,941 90,960 101,928 13,851 274, 167 518,243 

Multifamily 

Pass 15,690 16,933 272,345 147,322 34,541 178,799 665,630 

Special mention 5,368 5 ,368 

Substandard 11 8 118 

Total 15,690 16,933 277,713 147,322 34,54 1 178,917 671, 11 6 

Commercial real estate 

Pass 35,728 26,636 115,871 14,489 14,633 51,448 258,805 

Special mention 828 828 

Total 35,728 26,636 115,871 14,489 14,633 52,276 259,633 

Construction 

Pass 6,300 26,409 35,342 17,495 85,546 

Total 6,300 26,409 35,342 17,495 85,546 

Junior liens 

Pass 5,833 4,655 5, 154 1,102 222 8,264 25,230 

Special mention 43 43 

Substandard 149 149 

Total 5,833 4,655 5,154 1,102 222 8,456 25,422 

Commerc ial a nd industrial 

Pass 7,603 5,730 95 2,305 15,733 

Substandard (1) 563 15 578 

Total 7,603 6,293 95 2,320 16 ,3 11 

Consumer and other 

Pass 7, 186 25 7,211 

Total 7 ,186 25 7,211 

Total gross loans $102,736 $93,867 $525,135 $284,656 $63,247 $513,816 $ 25 $1,583,482 

( l ) Balance in 2021 represents PPP loans which carry the federal guarantee of the SBA. 
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The following table presents the risk category of loans by class of loan and vintage as of December 31, 2023: 

Term Loans by O rigination Year 

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 Prc-2019 
Revolving 

Loans Tota l 

( in thousands) 

Residential 

Pass $13,338 $ 98,007 $109,193 $14,315 $18,460 $291,069 $- $ 544,382 
Special mention 663 663 
Substandard 5,884 5,884 

Total 13,338 98,007 109,193 14,315 18,460 297,616 550,,929 

Multifamily 

Pass 17,144 281 ,906 158,705 35,407 56,739 132,517 682,418 

Substandard 146 146 

Total 17, 144 28 1,906 158,705 35,407 56,739 132,663 682,564 

Commercial real estate 
Pass 26,610 118,247 14,785 15,080 5,386 51 ,493 231,60 1 

Special mention 904 904 

Total 26,610 118,247 14,785 15,080 5,386 52,397 232,505 

Construction 

Pass 22,798 21,067 16,549 60,,414 

Total 22,798 2 1,067 16,549 60,414 

Junior liens 

Pass 5,359 5,234 1,232 296 1,773 8,560 22,454 

Substandard 49 49 

Total 5,359 5,234 1,232 296 1,773 8,609 22,503 

Commercial and industrial 

Pass 7,055 105 4,492 77 11,729 

Substandard ( I) 39 39 

Total 7,055 105 4,531 77 11,768 

Consumer and other 

Pass 25 22 47 

Total 25 22 47 

Total gross loans $92,329 $524,566 $304,995 $65,175 $82,358 $491 ,285 $ 22 $1,560,730 

( I ) Ba lance re presents PPP loans which carry the federal guarantee of the SBA. 
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Past Due and Non-accrual Loans 

The following table presents the recorded investment in past due and curre nt loans by loan portfolio class as of December 31, 2024 
and 2023: 

December 31 , 2024 

Residential 

Multifamily 

Commercial real estate 

Construction 

Junior liens 

Commercial and industrial 

Consumer and other 

Total 

December 31 , 2023 

Res idential 

Multifamily 

Commercial real estate 

Construction 

Junior liens 

Commercial and industrial 

Consumer and other 

Total 

30-59 
Days 

Past Due 

$3,085 

303 
774 

$4,162 
--

$ 887 

60-89 
Days 

Past Due 

$315 

563 

$878 
--

$752 

90 Days 
and Grea ter 

Past Due 
Total 

Past Due 
( In thousands) 

$3,892 

149 

15 

$4,056 
--

$3,926 

49 

39 

$7,292 

303 
774 

149 

578 

$9,096 
--

$5,565 

49 

39 

Current 

$ 510,951 

670,813 

258,859 

85,546 

25,273 
15,733 

7,211 

$1,574,386 

$ 545,364 
682,564 

232,505 

60,414 
22,454 

11,729 
47 

Total 
Loans 

Receivable 

$ 5 18,243 

671,116 

259,633 

85,546 
25,422 

16,311 

7,21 1 

$1,583,482 

$ 550,929 
682,564 

232,505 
60,,414 

22,503 

11 ,768 
47 

$ 887 $752 $4,014 $5,653 $1,555,077 $1,56n,730 
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The following table presents information on non-accrual loans at December 31, 2024 and 2023: 

Amortized Cost 
Amortized Cost Basis of Non-

I nlcrcst I ncornc Rasis of l .oans accrua l l .oans 
Recognized on ~ 90 Days Past Without 

Non-accrual Due and Still Related 
Non-accrual Loans Accruing Allowance 

(In thousands) 

December 31 , 2024 

Residential $4,377 $ II $- $4,377 

Multifamily 4 

Junior liens 149 2 149 

Commercial and industrial 578 578 

Total $5,104 $ 17 $- $5,104 

December 31 , 2023 

Residential $5,884 $- $- $5,884 

Multifamily 146 146 

Junior liens 49 49 

Commercial and industrial 39 39 

Total $6,118 $- $- $6,1 [8 

The Company had no loans held-for-sale at December 31, 2024 and 2023. Gains and losses on sales of loans are specifically 
identified and accounted for in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 

Modifications made to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty may include principal forgiveness, interest rate reductions, othe r 
than insignificant payment de]ays, terms extensions or a combination thereof intended to minimize economic loss and to avoid 
foreclosure or repossession of collateral. If the borrower has demonstrated performance under the previous terms and our 
underwriting process show the borrower has the capacity to continue to perform under the restructured terms, the loan will 
continue to accrue interest. 

The following table presents the amortized cost basis at December 31, 2024, of loan modifications to borrowers experiencing 
financial difficulty during 2024, disaggregated by type of modification. 

Junior liens 

Commercial and industrial 

Tota l 

Junior liens 

Commercial and industrial 

74 

Payment Term 
Delays Extensions 

Total 
Principal 

(Dollars in thousands) 

$-

563 

$563 
--

Types of Modifications 

Term extension of 68 months 

Deferral of three payments 
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The following table presents the amortized cost basis at December 3 1, 2023, of loan modifications to borrowers experiencing 
financial difficulty during 2023, disaggregated by type of modification. 

Residential 

Total 

Residential 

Payment Term 
Delays Extensions 

Total 
Principal 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Term extensions of 3 to 12 months 

$2,719 

$2,719 

Types of Modifications 

$369 

$369 

Amortize past due balances over tlhe remaining life of the loans 

$3,088 

$3,088 

% of Total 
Class of 
Loans 

0.56% 

0.20% 

The Company closely monitors the performance of modified loans to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty to understand the 
effectiveness of its modification efforts. The following table presents the payment status and amortized cost basis at December 31, 
2024, of loans that were modified during the 12-month period ended December 31, 2024. 

Current 
60-89 Days 

Past Due Total 

(In thousands) 

Junior liens $ 43 $- $ 43 

Commercial and industrial 563 563 

Total $ 43 $563 $606 

The following table presents the payment status and amortized cost basis at December 31 , 2023, of loans that were modified during 
the 12-month period ended December 31,2023. 

Current Total 

(In thousands) 

Residentia l $3,088 $3,088 

Total $3,088 $3,088 

The Company had $3.7 million and $4.0 million in consumer mortgage loans secured by residential real estate properties for which 
foreclosure proceedings are in process at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. At December 31, 2024, the Company had no 
real estate owned and had one residential loan with a carrying value of $593 thousand in real estate owned at December 31, 2023. 
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NOTE 4 - ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES 

Allowance for Credit Losses - Loans 

The allowance for credit losses on loans is summarized in the following table: 

Balance at beginning of period 

Impact of adopting ASU 2016-13 and ASU 2022-02 

Charge-offs 

Recoveries 

Net charge-offs 

(Recovery of) provis ion for credit loss on loans 

Balance at end of period 

2024 2023 

(Ln thousands) 

$14,154 $13.400 

668 

(56) (64) 

11 4 

(45) (60) 
( 1, 144) 146 

$12,965 $14,154 

The following tables present the activity in the Company's allowance for credit losses by class of loans for 2024 and 2023: 

(Recovery of) 
Balance at Provision for Balance at 

December 3 I. Credit Loss - December 31. 
2023 Charge-offs Recoveries Loans 2024 

(ln thousands) 

Res idential $ 1,968 $- $- $ 21 $ 1,989 

Multifamily 7 ,046 (437) 6,609 

Commercial real estate 3,748 (107) 3,641 
Construction 1,222 (762) 460 
Junior liens 76 33 109 

Commercial and industrial 94 63 157 

Consumer and other (56) 11 45 

Total $14, 154 $(56) $ II $( 1,144) $12,965 
-- --

Consumer and other charge-offs relate to overdrafts, which were originated in the fourth quarter of 2023 or in 2024, as it is our 
policy to charge these off within 60 days of occt.~rrence. 

Impact of 
Balance at adopting ASU (Recovery of) Balance al 

December 3 1 , 2016- 13 and Provis ion for December 3 1. 
2022 ASU 2022-02 Charge-offs Recoveries Loan Loss 2023 

(In thousands) 

Res idential $ 2,264 $ ( 183) $ (18) $- $ (95) $ 1,968 

Multifamily 5,491 2,057 (502) 7,046 

Commercial real estate 3,357 146 245 3,748 
Construction 1,697 (832) 357 1,222 

Junior liens 451 (405) 30 76 

Commercial and industrial 47 (23) 70 94 
Consumer and other 1 (46) 4 41 

Unallocated 93 (93) 

Total $13,400 $ 668 $ (64) $ 4 $ 146 $14,154 
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During 2023, one residential loan, that was originated in 2006, had a cha rge-off of $ 18 tho usand and the loan was transferre d to 
other real estate owned in the third quarter of 2023. Consumer and other c harge-offs relate to overdrafts, which were originated in 
the fourth quarter of 2022 or in 2023, as it is our policy to charge these off within 60 days of occurrence. 

The foiJowing table represents the allocation of allowance for credit losses on loans and the related recorded investment, including 
deferred fees and costs, in loans by loan portfolio segment, disaggregated based on the impairment methodology at December 3 1, 
2024 and 2023. 

Loans Allowance for Credit Losses on Loans 

December 31 , 2024 

Residential 

Multifamily 

Commercial real estate 

Construction 

Junior Liens 

Commercial and industrial ( I) 

Consumer and other (2) 

Total 

Lndividually Collectively 
Evaluated Evaluated 

$3,960 $ 514,283 

671,116 

259,633 

85,546 

25,422 

563 15,748 

7,211 

$4,523 $1,578,959 

Indiv idually Collectively 
Total Evaluated Evaluated 

(In thousands) 

$ 518,243 $- $ 1,989 

671' 116 6,609 

259,633 3,641 

85,546 460 

25,422 109 

16,3 11 157 

7,21 1 

$1,583,482 $- $ 12,965 
--

( I) includes PPP loans which cany the federal guarantee of the SBA and do not have an allowance for credit losses. 

Total 

$ 1,989 

6,609 

3,641 

460 

109 

157 

$12,965 

(2) Consumer and other loans included overdrafts for which it is our policy to charge off overdrafts within 60 days of occurrence. It also 
includes the consumer loan patticipation that provided credit enhancement, which based upon our analysis was sufficient to cover the 
expected credit losses under that portfolio. 

Loans Allowance for Loan Losses 

December 31 , 2023 

Residentia l 

Multifamily 

Commercial real estate 

Construction 

Junior liens 

Commercial and industrial (1) 

Consumer and other 

Total 

Individuall y Collecti vely 
Evaluated Evaluated 

$5,721 

146 

49 

$5,916 

$ 545,208 

682,4 18 

232,505 

60,414 

22,454 

11,768 

47 

$1,554,814 

Individually Collectively 
Total Evaluated Evaluated 

(ln thousands) 

$ 550,929 $- $ 1,968 

682,564 7,046 

232,505 3,748 

60,414 1,222 

22,503 76 

11 ,768 94 

47 

$1,560,730 $- $ 14,154 

(I) Includes PPP loans which carry the federal guarantee of the SBA and do not have an allowance for credit losses. 

Allowance for Credit Losses - Securities 

Total 

$ 1,968 

7,046 

3,748 

1,222 

76 

94 

$14,154 

T he Company recorded an allowance for credit losses on securities of $ 170 thousand upon adoption of ASU 2016-13 on January I, 
2023. At December 3 1, 2024 and 2023, the balance of the a llowance for credit losses on securities was $98 thousand and 
$158 thousand, respectively. For 2024 and 2023, the Company recorded a decrease in provision for credit losses on 
held-to-maturity securities of $60 thousand and $12 thousand, respectively. Accrued interest receivable on securities is reported as 
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a component of accrued interest receivable on the consolidated balance sheet and totaled $ 1.4 mi llion and $1.5 million at 
December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. The Company made the election to exclude accrued interest receivable from the 
estimate of credit losses on securities. 

Allowance for Credit Losses - Off-Balance-Sheet Exposures 

The allowance for credit losses on off-balance-sheet exposures is reported in other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. 
The liability represents an estjmate of expected credit losses arising from off-balance-sheet exposures such as letters of credit, 
guarantees and unfunded loan commitments andl unfunded lines. The process for measuring lifetime expected credit losses on these 
exposures is consistent with that for loans as discussed above, but is subject to an additional estimate reflecting the likelihood that 
funding will occur. No liability is recognized for off-balance-sheet credit exposures that are unconditionally cancellable by the 
Company. Adjustments to the liability are reported as a component of provision for credit losses. 

The Company recorded a decrease in the allowance for credit losses for off-balance-sheet exposures of $8 11 thousand upon 
adoption on January I, 2023. At December 31. 2024 and December 31, 2023, the balance of the allowance for credit losses for 
off-balance-sheet exposures was $ 157 thousand and $303 thousand, respectively. The Company recorded a recovery of provision 
for credit loss on off-balance-sheet exposures of $146 thousand and $575 thousand for 2024 and 2023, respectively, in provision 
for credit losses. 

NOTE 5 - PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT 

Premises and equipment, net, at December 31,2024 and 2023, are StJm_marized as follows; 

Land 

Buildings andl improvements 

Leasehold improvements 

Furnishings and equipment 

Construction in progress 

Accumulated depreciation and amortization 

2024 2023 
(In thousands) 

$ 3,058 $ 3.058 

18,598 18,549 

15,325 15,404 

11,251 11 ,304 

72 8 

48,304 48,323 

(18,818) (15,848) 

$29,486 $ 32,475 

Construction-in-progress consists of deposits made related to the construction of branch improvements and the purchase of 
furnishings and equipment. 

Depreciation and amortization of premises and equipment was $3.1 mill ion and $2.9 million for the years ended December 31, 
2024 and 2023 respectively. 

NOTE 6 - LEASES 

The Company leases certain office space, land and equipment under operating leases. These leases have o rig inal terms ranging 
from one year to 40 years. Operating lease liabilities and right-of-use assets are recognized at the lease commencement date based 
on the present value of the future minimum lease payments over the lease term. 
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The Company had the following related to leases: 

Right-of-use assets 

Lease liabilities 

Weighted average remaining lease term for operating leases 

Weighted average discount rate used in the measurement of lease liabilities 

December 3 1, 

2024 2023 

(Dollars in thousands) 

$ 23,470 $ 25,172 

25,168 26,777 

9.4 years 

2.54% 

10.3 years 

2.40% 

The following table is a summary of the Company's components of net lease cost for the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023. 
The variable lease cost primarily represents variable payments such as common area maintenance and utilities. 

Operating lease cost 

Finance lease cost 

Variable lease cost 

Tolal lease cosl 

The following table presents supplemental cash flow information related to operating leases: 

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of operating lease liabilities: 

Operating cash flows from operating leases 

Operating lease liabilities arising from obtaining right-of-use assets (non-cash): 

Operating leases 

Year Ended 
December 3 I , 

2024 2023 

(In thousands) 

$3,517 $3,461 

4 

310 267 

$3,827 $3,732 
--- ---

Year Ended 
December 31 , 

2024 2023 

(In thousands) 

$3,734 $3,512 

$1, 173 $2,088 

Future undiscounted lease payments for operating leases with initial terms of one year or more as of December 31, 2024 are as 
follows: 

2024 

2025 

2026 

2027 

2028 

Thereafter 

Total undiscounted lease payments 

Less: imputed interest 

Total 
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(In thousands) 

$ 3,297 

3,299 

3,[93 

2,856 

2,771 

12,812 

28,228 

3,060 

$25, [68 
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Deposits at December 3 1, 2024 and December 31, 2023 are summarized as follows: 

Weighted 

December 3 1, 2024 
Average 

Rate 

Weighted 

December 31, 2023 
Average 

Rate 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Non-interest bearing deposits $ 26,001 -% $ 27,739 -% 

NOW and demand accounts 369,554 1.39% 36 1,139 1.38% 

Savings 240,426 1.15% 259,402 1.05% 

Time deposits 707,339 4.27% 596,624 4. 13% 

Total $1,343,320 2.81% $1,244,904 2.60% 

Money market accounts are included within the NOW and demand accolllnts and savings captions. Included in time deposits are 
brokered deposits totaling $ 155.0 million at December 31 , 2024 and $ 125.0 million at December 31,2023. 

Time deposits mature as follows for the year ending December 31: 

(In thousands) 

2025 $697.168 

2026 4,616 

2027 2,514 

2028 2,012 

2029 1,029 

$707,339 

The aggregate amount of time deposits that meet or exceed $250,000 at December 3 1, 2024 and 2023, were $ 135.7 million and 
$101.0 million, respectively. Related party (principal officers, directors, and their affi liates) deposits as of December 31 , 2024 and 
2023, totaled $2.7 million and $2.3 million respectively. 

Interest expense on deposits is summarized as follows (in thousands): 

NOW and demand accounts 

Savings 

Time deposits 

Total 

NOTE8 - BORRO~NGS 

Year Ended 
December 31, 

2024 2023 

( In thousands) 

$ 5,051 

2,752 

29,027 

$36,830 

$ 5,267 

3,072 

15,777 

$24,116 

Advances from the FHLB are fixed-rate, term borrowings with remaining maturities ranging from one month to 18 months. At 
December 3 1, 2024, FHLB advances totaled $339.5 million with a weighted average interest rate of 4.47% and at December 3 1, 
2023, FHLB advances totaled $397.5 million with a weighted average interest rate of 4 .90%. Each advance is payable at its 
maturity date with a prepayment penalty if repayment is made prior to the maturity date. Advances are secured by loans pledged at 
the FHLB totaling $614.0 million and $717.5 million as of December 31,2024 and 2023, respectively. 
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2026 
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Rate Range 

1 .50% - 4. 84% 

4.80% - 4. 80% 

Weighted Average Rate ( I) 

4.42% 

4.80% 

4.47% 

( I) The weighted average rate excludes the effect of our derivative contracts. See Note 12- Derivatives. 

NOTE 9 - BENEFIT PLANS 

401(k) Plan 

Amount 

(ln thousands) 

$289,500 

50,000 

$339,500 

The Company has a savings plan under Section 40 I (k) of the Internal Revenue Code, which covers substantially all employees 
upon employment wbo have attained the age of 18. Under the plan, employee contributions are partially matched by the Company 
at its sole d:iscretion. Company contributions for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 were $810 thousand and 
$7 11 thousand, respectively. 

SERPs, Directors' Plan and Other Postretirement Benefits Plan 

The Company maintains an Executive Supplemental Income Retirement Plan ("SERP") for certain employees and a Director 
Retirement Plan ("DRP"). As t he SERP and DRP plans are unfunded, the re are no plan assets associated with these plans. During 
2022, the DRP plan was amended to curtail the plan to the current participants and to establish fixed payments to the participant in 
the plan. 

The Company provides certa in health insurance benefits for retired employees and directors meeting plan e ligibility requirements. 
Effective January I, 2019, the employee postretirement health benefit plan was curtailed, leaving only 12 retired participants and 
beneficiaries remaining in the plan. Active participants who met certain requirements received payments in lieu of future benefits. 
The plans are unfunded as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the obligation is included in other liabilities as an accrued 
postretirement benefit cost. 
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The following table sets forth lhe changes in be nefit obligation, changes in plan assets and a reconciliation of the unfunded status 
and the assumptions used in detem1ining the ne t periodic cost included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for 
the Company's post retirement plans. The measurement date for the post retirement plans was December 31 for each year 
presented. 

Change in benefit obligation: 

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year 

Service cost 

Interest cost 

Actuaria l (gain) loss 

Benefits paid 

Projected benefit obligation at e nd of year 

Reconciliation of plan assets: 

Fair value of p lan assets at beginning of year 

Employer contributions 

Benefits and Seulements paid 

Fair value of p lan assets at end of year 

Unfunded status 

SERP and DRP Post Retirement 

2024 2023 2024 2023 ---
(In thousands) 

$2,903 $2,814 $ 1,047 $1.072 

102 100 

151 141 48 51 

( 16) 126 153 4 

(288) (278) (9 1) (80) 

$2,852 $2,903 $1,157 $1.047 
--- --- --- ---

288 278 91 80 

(288) (278) (91) (80) 

$ - $ - $ - $ -

--- --- --- ---
$2,852 $2,903 $1,157 $1,047 

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income at December 3 1, ignoring tax effects, consist o f: 

Unrecognized net actuarial loss (gain) 

Unrecognized prior service cost 

Total accumulated other comprehensive loss (gain) 

SERP and DRP Post Retirement 

2024 2023 2024 2023 

(In thousands) 

$313 $375 $(431) $(625) 

10 15 

$323 $390 $(431) $(625) 
-- -- -- --

The weighted average assumprjons used in the determination of benefit obligations as of December 31 were as fo llows: 

Discount rate 

SERP and DRP 

2024 2023 

Post Retirement 

2024 2023 

5.18% 4.60% 5.34% 4.71% 

T he weighted-average assumptions used in the determination of net periodic benefit cost were as follows: 

Discount rate 

Expected rate of return on plan assets 
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SERP and DRP 

2024 2023 

Post Retirement 

2024 2023 

4.54% 4.74% 4.64% 4.86% 
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The components of net periodic benefit cost and other amounts recognized in other comprehensive income were as follows for the 
years ended December 3 1, 2024 and 2023: 

SERPand DRP Post Retirement 

2024 2023 2024 2023 

{In thousands) 

Service cost $ 102 $ 100 $- $-

Interest cost 151 141 48 51 

Prior Service Cost 5 5 

Amortization: 

Net loss (gain) 46 30 (42) (42) 

Net periodic benefit cost $304 $276 $ 6 $ 9 
-- -- -- --

The components of net periodic benefit cost other than the service cost component are included in "other non-interest expense" in 
the Statement of Operations. The estimated net loss and prior service cost for the post-retirement plans that will be amortized from 
accumulated other comprehensive income into net periodic benefit cost during 2025 are $ 13 thousand and $5 thousand, 
respectively. 

The benefits expected to be paid in each of the next five years and the aggregate for the five years thereafter are as follows: 

2025 

2026 

2027 

2028 

2029 

Years 2030 - 2034 

NOTE 10- STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION 

Employee Stock Ownership Plan 

SERP and DRP Post-Retirement 

$287 

266 

248 

230 

229 

981 

(In thousands) 

$ 95 

96 

97 

97 

97 

469 

The Company maintains an Employee Stock Ownership Plan ('ESOP"), a tax-qualified plan designed to invest primarily in the 
Company's common stock. The ESOP provides employees with the opportunity to receive a funded retirement benefit from the 
Bank, based primarily on the value of the Company' s common stock. 

The ESOP borrowed funds from the Company to purchase 2,281,800 shares of stock at $10 per share. The loan is secured by the 
shares purchased, which are held until allocated! to participants. Shares are released for allocation to participants as loan payments 
a re made. Loan payments are principally funded by discretionary cash contributions by the Bank, as well as dividends, if any, paid 
to the ESOP on unal located shares. When loan payments are made, ESOP shares are allocated to participants at the end of the plan 
year (December 31) based on relative compensation, subject to federal tax law limits. Participants receive the allocated vested 
shares at the end of employment. Dividends on allocated shares, if any, increase participants accounts. 

At December 3 1, 2024 and 2023, the principal balance on the ESOP loan was $ 19.9 million and $20.6 mi llion, respectively. 
Contributions to the ESOP during the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, totaled $655 thousand and $635 thousand, 
respectively. ESOP compensation expense is recognized over the service period and represents the fair value of shares allocated 
during the year. For the yeru·s ended December 3 1, 2024 and 2023, ESOP compensation expense was $892 thousand and 
$895 thousand, respectively. 
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Shares held by the ESOP were as follows: 

Shares allocated to participants 

Unallocated shares 

Total ESOP shares 

Fair value of unallocated shares 

December 3 1, 2024 December 3 I , 2023 

(Dollars in thousands) 

365,088 

1,9 16,7 12 

2,281,800 

$ 18,803 

273,816 

2,007,984 

2,281,800 

$ 19,400 

The fair value of the unallocated shares was computed using the closing trading price of the Company's common stock on each 
date. 

Equity Incentive Plan 

At the annual meeting held on August 25, 2022, shareholders of the Company approved the Blue Foundry Bancorp 2022 Equity 
Incentive Pla11 ("Equity Plan") which provides for the granting of up to 3,993, I 50 shares (J, 140,900 restricted stock awards and 
2,852,250 stock options) of the Company's common stock. 

Restricted shares granted under the Equity Plan generally vest in equal installments, over a service period between five and seven 
years beginning one year from the date of grant. Additionally, certain restricted shares awarded can be performance vesting 
awards, which may or may not vest depending upon the attainment of certain corporate financial targets. The vesting of the awards 
accelerate upon death, d isability or an involuntary termination at or following a change in control. The product of the number of 
shares granted and the grant date closing market price of the Company's common stock determine the fair value of restricted shares 
under the Equity Plan. Management recognizes compensation expense for the fair value of time-based restricted shares on a 
straight-line basis over the requisite service period. Performance based awards a re expensed based on the fair value of the shares 
and the probability of achieving the pe1formance goals. 

During 2024, the Company granted to directors and employees, under the 2022 Equity Incentive Plan, 213,880 restricted stock 
awards with a total grant-date fair value of $2.1 million. These grants vest in equal installments between one year and six years 
from the date of grant. The Company also issued 193,070 performance-based restricted stock awards to its officers with a total 
grant date fair value of $1.80 million. Vesting of the performance-based restricted stock units will be based on achievement of 
certain levels of loan growth, deposit growth and net interest margin and will convert to a four-year time vest after the three-year 
measurement period ending December 3 I , 2026. At the end of the performance period, the number of actual shares to be awarded 
may vary between 0% and I 00% of target amounts. 

During the first quarter of 2024, 347,640 of performance-based restricted stock awards were forfeited when none of the 
performance target metrics were met. This forfeiture amount of perfo rmance shares is included in the total forfeited restricted 
shares for the year ended December 31, 2024, as shown in the table below. 

The fo llowing is a summary of the Company's restricted stock shares activity and related information for the year ended 
December 31, 2024: 

Outstanding - December 31, 2023 

Granted 

Vested 

Forfeited 

Outstanding - December 31, 2024 
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Number of Shares Weighted Average 
Awarded Grant Date Fair Value 

944,262 

406,950 

(115,415) 

(449,033) 

786,764 

$11.88 

9.57 

11.76 

11.75 

$ 10.78 
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Expected future expense relating to the non-vested restricted shares outstanding as of December 31, 2024 is $7.3 million over a 
weighted average period of 4.5 years. 

Stock options granted under the Equity Plan generally vest in equal insta llments, over a service period between five and seven 
years beginning one year from the date of grant. The vesting of the options accelerate upon death, disability or an involuntary 
termination at or following a change in control. Stock options were granted at an exercise price equal to the fair value of the 
Company's common stock on the grant date based on the closing market price and have an expiration period of ten years. 

During the twelve months ended December 3 1, 2024, the Company granted the 96,266 stock options. The fair value of stock 
options granted during 2024 were estimated utilizing the Black-Scholes option pricing model: an expected life of 6.5 years, risk­
free rate of 4 .. 11 %, volatility of 32.63% and a dividend yield of 0.82%. Due to the limited historical informat ion of the Company's 
stock, management considered the weighted historical volatility of the Company and simiJar entities for an appropriate period in 
determining the volatility rate used in the estimation of fai r value. The expected life of the stock option was estimated using the 
simplified method. The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in e ffect at the time of grant. The Company 
recognizes compensation expense for the fai r values of these awards, which have straight- line vesting, on a straight-line basis over 
the requisite service period of the awards. Upon exercise of vested options, management expects to draw on treasury stock as the 
source for shares. There were no stock options granted during the year ended December 31, 2023. 

The following is a summary of the Company's s tock option activity and related information for the year ended December 31, 2024: 

Number of 
Stock Options 

Outstanding- December 31, 2023 2,475,363 

Granted 96,266 

Forfeited (241,969) 

Expired (37,974) 

Outstanding - December 31,2024 2,291,686 

Exercisable- December 3 1, 2024 7 15,582 

Weighted 
Avcr~gc 

Grant Date 
Fair Value 

$4.12 

3.74 

4.23 

4.23 

$4.09 
--

Wci~htcd 
Average 

Exercise Price 

$11.65 

9.95 

11.73 

11.73 

$ 11.57 
---

Weighted 
Average 

Remaining 
Contractual 
Life (years) 

8.8 

9.4 

8.8 

Expected future expense relating to the non-vested options outstanding as of December 31, 2024 is $6.0 million over a weighted 
average period of 4.3 years. 

The following table presents the share-based compensation expense for tbe years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023. 

2024 2023 

(ln thousands) 

Stock option expense 

Restricted stock expense 

Total share-based compensation expense 
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$1,461 

1,704 

$3,165 
---

$1,598 

1,281 

$2,879 
---

85 



BLUE FOUNDRY BANCORP 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31 , 2024 andl 2023 

NOTE 11 - INCOME TAXES 

There was no current and deferred income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2024, and 2023 due to the net loss for 
both years. Tlhere was no tax benefit due to the full valuation allowance on the net deferred tax assets. 

A reconciliatjon between the actual income tax expense and the expected federal income tax expense on net operating losses 
(computed by multiplying income before income tax expense times the applicable statutory federal income tax rate) for the years 
ended December 3 1, 2024 and 2023, is as follows: 

Loss before income tax benefit 

Applicable statutory federal income tax rate 

Computed "expected" federal income tax benefit 

Increase (decrease) in federal income tax expense resulting from: 

State income taxes, net of federal benefit 

Valuation allowance 

Tax-exempt income 

Bank owned life insurance 

Non-deductible compensation 

ESOP fair market value adjustment 

Stock compensation 

Other items, net 

Total 
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2024 2023 
(In thousands) 

$(1 1,9ll) $(7,397) 

21.00% 21.00% 

$ (2,501) $(1 ,553) 

(835) (487) 

3,311 2,016 

(37) (90) 

( 102) (98) 

14 54 

(4) (4) 

145 150 

9 12 

$ $ 
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The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at 
December 31 , 2024 and 2023, are as follows: 

2024 2023 

(ln thousands) 

Deferred tax assets: 

Allowance for credit losses on loans and REO $ 3,688 $ 4,064 

Allowan.ce for losses held-to-maturity securities 23 38 

Net unrealized losses on securities available-for-sale 6,472 8,087 

Accrued post retirement benefits 1,128 1,173 

Accrued interest receivable 169 144 

Accrued bonus 607 244 

Stock compensation 962 602 

Premises and equipment 393 184 

Finance lease liability 7,075 7,527 

Charitable contribution carryover 2,533 2,533 

Federal net operating loss carryforward 8,896 6,935 

State net operating loss carryforward 2,956 2,345 

Other 253 61 

Total gross deferred tax assets 35,155 33,937 

Valuation allowance (25,121) (24,105) 

Gross deferred tax assets after valuation allowance 10,034 9,832 

Deferred tax liabilities: 

Net unrealized gains on derivatives 2,689 2,131 

Deferred loan fees, net 563 559 

Unrealized actuarial gains on post retirement benefits 99 66 

Finance lease right-of-use asset 6,597 7,076 

Other 86 

Total gross deferred tax liabilities 10,034 9,832 

Net deferred tax asset $ $ 

Management assesses the available positive and negative evidence to estimate whether sufficient future taxable income will be 
generated to permit use of the existing defen·ed tax assets. A significant piece of objective negative evidence evaluated was the 
cumulative loss incurred over the three-year period ended December 31, 2024. Such objective evidence limits the ability to 
consider other subjective evidence, such as our projections for future growth. 

On the basis of this evaluation, for the year ended December 3 1, 2024, a valuation a llowance of $25. 1 million has been maintained. 
The amount of the deferred tax asset considered realizable could be adjusted if estimates of future taxable income increased or if 
objective negative evidence in the form of cumulative .losses is no longer present and additional weight is given to subjective 
evidence such as our projections for growth. Net deferred tax assets are included in other assets. 

At December 31, 2024, the Company had federal net operating loss ("NOL") carryforwards of $42.4 mmion with no expiration 
date. Under the provisions of the 2017 Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, use of our federal NOL carryforwards will be limited to 80% of 
taxable income in future periods. The Company also had New Jersey net operating loss carryforwa.rds of $41.6 million, the 
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majority of which expire in 18 years. At this time, we believe it is more likely than not the benefit from both the federal and state 
NOL carryforwards will not be realized. As such, we have provided a valuation a llowance of $ 11.9 million on the deferred tax 
assets related to the NOL carryf01wards. The Company contributed $9.0 million to the Blue Foundry Charitable Foundation in 
2021 and the defen·ed benefit has a five-year cm-ryforward limitation. 

Retained earnings at December 3 1, 2024 and 2023, includes approximately $ 14.6 million, for which no provision for income tax 
has been made. This amount represents an allocation of income to bad debt deductions for tax purposes only. Events that would 
result in taxation of these reserves include the failure to qualify as a bank for tax purposes, distributions :in complete or partial 
liquidation, stock redemptions and excess distributions to stockholders. 

The Company and its subsidiary are subject to U.S. federal income tax as well as state income taxes, primarily New Jersey. The 
Company is no longer subject to examination by Federal taxing authorities for tax years before January 1, 2020, and State taxing 
authorities for tax years before January I , 2019. Currently, the Company is not under examination by any taxing authori ty. The 
Company's New Jersey state tax returns for the tax years ended December 3 1, 2015 through 2018 were audited during 2021. The 
completion of this examination did not have a material impact on the Company's effective tax rates and financial s. 

NOTE 12 - DERIVATIVES 

The Company util izes interest rate swap agreements as part of its asset/liability management strategy to help manage its interest 
rate risk position. The notional amount of the interest rate swaps does not represent amounts exchanged by the parties. The amount 
exchanged is determined by reference to the notional amount and the other terms of the individual interest rate swap agreements. 

Inte rest rate swaps with notional amounts totaling $349.0 million and $259.0 million at December 31,2024 and 2023, respectively, 
were designated as cash flow hedges of ce1tain FHLB advances and brokered deposits. They were determined to be highJy 
effective during all periods presented. The Company expects the hedges to remain highly effective during the remaining terms of 
the swaps. 

Summary information about the interest-rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges as of the dates presented is as follows: 

Notional amounts 

Weighted average pay rates 

Weighted average receive rates 

Weighted average maturity 

Gross unrealized gain included in other assets 

Gross unrealized loss included in other liabilities 

Unrealized gains (losses), net 

December 3 I. 2024 December 3 1 , 2023 

(Dollars in thousands) 

$349,000 $259,000 

3.12% 2.91 % 

4.62% 5.49% 

2.4 years 3.2 years 

$ 8,8 17 $ 9,047 

453 1,465 

$ 8,364 $ 7,582 

The Company held $9.0 mi llion and $8.1 million at December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively, of cash collateral pledged from the 
counterparty for these interest-rate swaps and had no securities pledged to the counterparty. 

Interest income or expense recorded on these swap transactions is reported as a component of interest expense on FHLB advances 
or brokered deposits. Interest income for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 totaled $6.4 million and $5.5 million, 
respectively. At December 3 1, 2024, the Company expected $3.8 million of the unrealized gain to be reclassified as a reduction to 
interest expense during 2025. 
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The effect of cash flow hedge accounting on accumulated other comprehensive income for the years ended December 31 , 2024 and 
2023 are as follows: 

Year Ended December 31, 2024 

Interest rate contracts 

Year Ended December 31, 2023 

Interest rate contracts 

(I) Net of tax, adjusted for deferred tax valuation allowance. 

Amount of (Loss) Gain 
Recognized in OCI on Location of Gain (Loss) Reclassified 

Derivative (I) from OCI into Jncome/(Expense) 
(In thousands) 

$ 781 Interest Expense 

$(3,509) Interest Expense 

NOTE 13- ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

Amount of Gain 
Reclassified from OCI to 

I ncome/(Ex pense) 

$6,355 

$5,472 

Accumulated other comprehensive income represents the net unrealized holding gains on securities available-for-sale, derivatives 
and the funded status of the Company's benefit plans, as of the consolidated balance sheet dates, net of the related tax effect. 

The following table presents the components of other comprehensive income (loss) both gross and net of tax, inclusive of a 
deferred Lax valuation allowance, for Lhe periods indicaLed. 

Year Ended December 31 , 
2024 2023 

Before Tax After Before Tax After 
Tax Effect (I) Tax Tax Effect (I) Tax 

(In thousands) 
Components of Other Comprehensive Income (Loss): 

Unrealized gain on securities available-for-sale: 

Unrealized gain arising during the period $ 3,273 $- $ 3,273 $ 5,504 $- $ 5,504 

Reclassification adjustment for gains included in net 
income (20) (20) 

Total 3,273 3,273 5,484 5,484 

Unrealized gain on cash flow hedge: 

Unrealized (loss) gain arising during the period (5,574) (5,574) 1,963 1.963 

Reclassification adjustment for losses (gains) included in 
net income 6,355 6,355 (5,472) (5.472) 

Total 781 781 (3,509) (3.509) 

Post-Retirement plans: 

Net actuarial loss (128) (l28) (136) (136) 

Total (128) ( 128) (136) ( 136) 

Total other comprehensive income: $ 3,926 $- $ 3,926 $ 1,839 $- $ 1,839 
-- --

(I) The 2024 and 2023 periods include a deferred tax valuation allowance. 
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The following is a summary of the changes in accumulated other comprehensive income by component, net of tax, inclusive of a 
deferred tax valuation allowance, for the periods indicated: 

Unrealized Unrealized 
Gains and Gains and 

(Losses) on (Losses) on Post-
Cash Flow Available-for- Retirement 

Hedges sale Securities Plans Total 

(In thousands) 

Balance at December 3 I , 2023 $ 7,582 $(30,699) $ 237 $(22.880) 

Other comprehensive (loss) income before reclassification (5,574) 3,273 (2.301) 

Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income 6,355 (128) 6.227 

Net current period other comprehensive gain (loss) 78 1 3,273 ( 128) 3.926 

Balance at December 3 I , 2024 $ 8,363 $(27,426) $ 109 $( 18.954) 
--

Unrealized Unrealized 
Gains and Gains and 

(Losses) on (Losses) on Post-
Cash Flow Available-for- Retirement 

Hedges sale Securities Plans Total 

(In thousands) 

Ralance at December 3 1, 2022 $11 ,091 $(36, 183) $ 373 $(24,719) 

Other comprehensive income (loss) before :reclassification 1,963 5,504 7.467 

Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (5,472) (20) (136) (5.628) 

Net current period other t:omprehensi ve gain (loss) (3,509) 5,484 (136) 1.839 

Balance at December 3 I , 2023 $ 7,582 $(30,699) $ 237 $(22.880) 
--

The following table presents information about amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) to the 
consolidated statements of ope•·ations for the periods indicated: 

Details about Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive Income Components 

Unrealized gain (loss) on securities available-for-sale: 

Realized! gains on securities available-for-sale 

(Losses) and gains on cash flow hedges: 

Interest rate contracts 

Amortization of benefit plan items: 

Net actuarial loss 

Total tax effe,ct 

Total reclassification for the period, net of tax 

Year Ended December 3 1, 

2024 2023 
(In thousands) 

$ $ 20 

(6,355) 5,472 

128 136 

$(6,227) $5,628 

Affected Line Item in the Statement 
Where Net income is Presemed 

Gain (loss) on sales and calls of securi ties 

Interest expense 

Compensation and benefits 

Income tax expense 
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NOTE 14 - FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

Fair value is the exchange price that would be received for an a-;set or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) in the principal or most 
advantageous. market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market pa11i·cipants on the measurement date. l'here 
are three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fajr values: 

Level 1- Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the entity has the ability to access as of 
the measurement date. 

Level 2 - Signil1cant other observable inputs other than Level 1 prices such as quoted prices for similar assets or tiabitities; quoted 
prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data. 

Level 3 - Significant unobservable inputs that reflect a company's own assumptions about the assumptions that market participants 
would use in pricing an asset or liability. 

The Company used the following methods and significant assumptions to estimate fair value: 

Securities: For securities avai lable-for-sale and equity securities, fair value was estimated using a market approach. The majority of 
the Company's securities are fixed income instruments that are not quoted on an exchange, but are traded in active markets. Prices 
for these instruments are obtained through third party data service providers or dealer market participants with which the Company 
has historicaHy transacted both purchases and sales of securities. Prices obtained from these sources include market quotations and 
matrix pricing. Matrix pricing, a Level 2 input as defined by ASC 820, is a mathematical technique used principally to value 
certain securities to benchmark or comparable securities. The Company evaluates the quality of Level 2 matrix pricing through 
comparison to similar assets with greater liquidity and evaluation of projected cash flows . The Company also holds equity 
securities and debt instruments issued by the U.S. government and U.S. government sponsored agencies that are traded in active 
markets with readily accessible quoted market prices that are considered Level l inputs. 

Derivatives: The fair values of derivatives are based on valuation models using observable market data as of the measurement date 
(Level 2). Tlhe Company's derivatives are traded in an over-the-counter market where quoted market prices are not always 
available. Therefore, the fair values of deri vatives are determined using quantitative models that utilize multiple market inputs. The 
inputs will vary based on the type of derivative. but could include interest rates, prices and indices to generate continuous yield or 
pricing curves, prepayment rates, and volatility factors to value the position. The majority of market inputs are actively quoted and 
can be validated through external sources, including brokers, market transactions and third-party pricing services. 

Impaired Loans: The fair value of impaired loans with specific allocations of the allowanc·e for credit losses on loans is generally 
based on recent real estate appraisals. These appraisals may utilize a single valuation approach or a combination of approaches 
including comparable sales and the income approach. Adjustments are routinely made in the appraisal process by the independent 
appraisers to adjust for differences between the comparable sales and income data available. Such adjustments are usually 
significant and typically result in a Level 3 classification of the inputs for determining fair value. 

Other real estate owned (OREO): Property acquired through foreclosure or deed in lieu of foreclosure is carried at estimated fair 
value less estimated selling costs of the acquired property. Fair value of OREO is generally based on independent appraisals of the 
collateral. 
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The following table summarizes the fair value of assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2024: 

Measured on a recurring basis: 
Financial assets 

Securities available-for-sale: 

U.S. Treasury Notes 

Corporate Bonds 

U.S. Government agency obligations 

Obligatio ns issued by U.S. states and their political 
subdivisions 

Mortgage-backed securities: 

Residential 

Multifamily 

Asset-backed securities 

Total securities available-for-sale 

Derivatives 

Total financial assets measured on a recurring basis 

Financial Liabilities 

Derivatives 

Fair Value Measurements at December 3 1, 2024, Using 

Quoted Prices 
in Active Significant 

Markets for Significant Other Unobservable 
Identical Assets Observable Inputs Inputs 

Total (Level I) (Level 2) (Level 3) 

$ 40,139 

73,154 

812 

6,024 

149,041 

18,743 

9,ll5 

297,028 

8,8 17 

$305,845 

$ 453 

$40,139 

812 

40,95 1 

$40,95 1 

$ 

(In thousands) 

$ $-

73,154 

6,024 

149,041 

18,743 

9,115 

256,077 

8,8 17 

$264,894 $-

$ 453 $-
--
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BLUE FOUNDRY BANCORP 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2024 andl 2023 

The following table summarizes the fair value of assets and liabilities as of December 3 1, 2023: 

Fair Value Measurements at December 3 1, 2023, Using 

Quoted Prices 
in Active Significant 

Markets for Significant Other Unobservable 
Identical Assets Observable Inputs Inputs 

Total (Level I) (Level 2) (Level3) 

Measured on a recurring basis: 
Financial assets 

Securities available-for-sale 

U.S. Treasury Notes 

Corporate Bonds 

U.S. Government agency obligations 

Obligations issued by U.S. states and their political 
subdivisions 

Mortgage-backed securities: 

Residential 

Multifamily 

Asset-backed securities 

Total securities available-for-sale 

Derivatives 

Total financia l assets measured on a recurring basis 

Financial Liabilities 

Derivatives 

Measured on a nonrecurring basis: 

Nonfinancial assets 

Real estate owned 

Other Fair Value Disclosures 

$ 35,060 

76,623 

11,140 

6,195 

128,542 

ll,523 

14,683 

283,766 

9,047 

$292,813 

$ 1,465 

$ 593 

(In thousands) 

$35,060 $ $-

76,623 

11,140 

6,195 

128,542 

11,523 

14,683 

46,200 237,566 

9,047 

$46,200 $246,613 $-

$ $ 1,465 $-

$ $ $593 

Fair value estimates, methods and assumptions for the Company's financial instruments that are not recorded at fair value on a 
recurring or non-recurring basis are set forth below. 

Securities held-to-maturity: The Company's debt securities held-to-maturity portfolio is carried at amortized cost less allowance 
for credit losses. The fair values of debt securities held-to-maturity are provided by a third-party pricing service. The pricing 
service may use quoted market prices of comparable instruments or a variety of other forms of analysis, incorporating inputs that 
are currently observable in the markets for similar securities. Inputs that are often used in the valuation methodologies include, but 
are not limited to, benchmark yields, credit spreads, default rates, prepayment speeds and non-binding broker quotes. 

Loans, net: Fair values are estimated for portfolios of loans with similar financial characteristics. Loans are segregated by type such 
as residential mortgage and consumer. Each loan category is further segmented into fixed and adjustable rate interest terms and by 
performing and non-performing categories. Est]mated fair value of loans is determined using a discounted cash flow model that 
employs an exit discount rate that reflects the current market pricing for loans with similar characteristics and remaining maturity, 
adjusted for esti mated credit losses inherent in the por1folio at the balance sheet date. 
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BLUE FOUNDRY BANCORP 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FlNANClAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2024 andl 2023 

Time Deposits: The fair value of time deposits is based on the discounted value of contractual cash flows. The discount rate is 
estimated using rates for currently offered depos its of similar remaining maturities. 

Federal Home Loan advances: The fa ir value of borrowings is based on securities dealers' estimated fair values, when available, or 
estimated using discounted cash flow analysis. The discount rates used approximate the rates offered for similar borrowings of 
similar remaining terms. 

The following tables present t he book value, fai r value, and placement in the fair value hierarchy of financial instruments not 
recorded at fair values in their entirety on a recurring basis on the Company's balance sheet at December 31, 2024 and 2023 . The 
fair value measurements presented are consistent with Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement, in which fair value represents exit 
price. 

These tables exclude financial instruments for which the carrying amount approximates fair value. Financial instruments for which 
the carrying amount approximates fair value include cash and cash equivallents, other investments, non-maturity deposits, overnight 
borrowings, and accrued interest, and are excluded from the table below. 

The carrying amounts and fair value of financial instruments not carried at fair value, at December 31, 2024 and December 31, 
2023 are as follows: 

Measured on a non-recurring basis: 
Financial assets 

Corporate bonds 

Asset-backed securities 

Securities held-to-maturity 

Loans, net of allowance for credit losses 

Financial liabilities 

Time Deposits 

Federal Home Loan Bank advances 

Measured on a non-recurring basis: 
Financial assets 

Corporate bonds 

Book Value 

$ 18,600 

14,574 

33,174 

1,570,517 

707,339 

339,500 

Book Value 

$ 18,600 

Asset-backed securities 14,812 

Securities held-to-maturity 33,412 

Loans, net of allowance for loan losses 1.546,576 

Financial liabilities 

Time Deposits 596,624 

Federal Home Loan Bank advances 397,500 
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Fair Value Measurements at 
December 3 1, 2024, Using 

Quoted Prices 
in Active 

Markets for 
Identical Asse.ts 

(Levell ) 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2) 

(In thousands) 

$- $ 16,414 

13,581 

29,995 

705,5 14 

340,131 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inpu ts 
(Level3) 

$ 

1,468,929 

Fair Value Measurements at 
December 3 1, 2023, Using 

Quoted Prices 
in Active 

Markets for 
Identical Assets 

(Levell ) 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2) 

(In thousands) 

$- $ 15,007 

13,316 

28,323 

592,676 

405,015 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level3) 

$ 

1,332, 138 



BLUE FOUNDRY BANCORP 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2024 andl 2023 

NOTE 15 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

The Company extends credit to meet the fi nancing needs of its customers through commitments and lines of credit. In addition we 
routinely enter into other commitments in the normal course of business. 

The following commitments exist at December 31, 2024 and 2023, which are not reflected in the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements: 

December 31. 2024 December 3 I , 2023 

Origination of mortgage loans: 

Fixed rate 

Variable rate 

Origination of commercial and industrial loans 

Undisbursed home equity credit lines 

Undisbursed construction credit lines 

Undisbursed commercial credit lines 

Performance standby letters of credit 

Overdraft protection credit lines 

Commitments to purchase investments 

(In thousands) 

$ 1,540 $ 

19,368 

41,278 

25,805 

445 

671 

17,049 

670 

380 

2,372 

15,323 

37,551 

32,283 

452 

671 

22,378 

820 

These instruments involve elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the consolidated financial 
statements. The Company uses the same credit policies and collateral requirements in making commitments and conditional 
obligations as it does for on-balance-sheet loans. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses 
and may require payment of a fee. Since the commitments may expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts 
do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Company has no exposure to credit loss if the customer does not 
exercise its rights to borrow under the commitment. The Company evaluates each customer's creditworthiness on a case-by-case 
basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Company upon extension of credit, is based on management's 
credit evaluation of the borrower. 

The Company issues financial standby letters of credit that are within the scope of ASC 460, Guarantees. These are irrevocable 
undertakings of the Company to guarantee payment of a specified financial obligation. Most of the Company's standby letters of 
c redit arise in connection with lending relationships and generally have terms of one year or less, o r are issued in lieu of security 
deposits. The maximum potential future payments the Company could be required to make equals the contract amount of the 
standby letters of credit. 

NOTE 16- REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS AND OTHER INCOME 

All of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers in the scope of ASC 606 is recognized within non-interest income in 
the Statement of Operations. 

The following table presents the Company's sources of revenue from contracts with customers for the years ended December 31, 
2024 and 2023, respectively. 

Service charges on deposits 

Interchange income 

Total revenue from contracts with customers 
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Year Ended December 31. 

2024 2023 

(In thousands) 

$886 

59 

$945 

$856 

51 

$907 
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BLUE FOUNDRY BANCORP 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31, 2024 andl 2023 

Service Charges on Deposit Accounts: T he Company earns fees from its deposit cus tomers for transaction-based account 
maintenance. Transaction based fees, which include services such as ATM use fees, stop payment charges, s tatement rendering and 
wire transfer fees, are recognized at the time the transaction is executed as that is the point in time the Company fulfills the 
customer's request. Account maintenance fees, which relate primarily to monthly maintenance, are earned over the course of a 
mo nth, representing the period over which the Company satisfies the performance obligation. 

Interchange Income: The Company earns interchange fees from debit cardholder transactions conducted through a payment 
network. Interchange fees from debit cardholder transactions represent a percentage of the underlying transaction value and are 
recognized dai ly, concurrently with the transaction processing services provided to the cardholder. In addition, the Company earns 
interchange fees from credit cardholder transactions through its partnership with a third party. 

NOTE 17- STOCK TRANSACTIONS 

The Company's stock repurchase programs authorize the repurchase of shares in open market or private transactions, through 
block trades or pursuant to any trading plan that may be adopted in accordance with Rule 10b5-1 of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission. The timing and amount of any repurchases will depend on a number of factors, including the availability of stock, 
general market conditions, the trading price of the stock, alternative uses for capital, the Company's liquidity, and the Company's 
financial performance. Open market purchases will be made in accorda nce with Rule I Ob-18 of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission and other applicable legal requirements. Repurchased shares will be held as treasury stock and will be available for 
general corporate purposes. The repurchases may be suspended, terminated or modified at any time for any reason, including 
market conditions, the cost of repurchasing shares, the availabil ity of alternative investment opportunities, liquidity, and other 
factors deemed appropriate. These factors may also affect the timing a nd amount of share repurchases. The Company is not 
obligated to repurchase any particular number of shares or any shares in any specific time period. 

The Company announced its second share repurchase program on April ti9, 2023, which authorized the purchase of an additional 
5% of its publicly-held shares of common stock, or 1,335,126 shares. The second repurchase plan commenced immediately upon 
the completion of the first repurchase plan_ On August 16, 2023, the Company announced its third share repurchase prog ram, 
which authorized the purchase of an additional 5% of its publicly-held shares of common stock, or I ,268,382 shares. The third plan 
commenced immediately upon completion of the second repurchase plan. 

On February 2 1, 2024, the Company adopted its fourth program to repurchase up to 1,203,545 shares, or 5 %, of its outstanding 
common stock. The fourth p lan commenced immediately upon completion of the third repurchase plan. On November 8, 2024, the 
Company adopted a program to repurchase up to I , 139,420 shares, or 5%, of its outstanding common stock commencing upon the 
completion of the Company's existing stock repurchase program. 

During the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company repurchased 3, 717,949 shares of its common stock outstanding at an 
average price of $9.68 for a total of $36.0 million pursuant to the stock repurchase program. During the year ended December 31, 
2024, the Company completed the purchase of 1,945,241 shares authorized in the plans for an average price of $9.90 per share for 
a total cost of $19.3 million. At December 31, 2024, 861,072 shares remain available to repurchase in the third plan. 

For the year ended December 31, 2024, shares repurchased include 24,301 shares purchased in connection with the vesting of 
shares of restricted stock under our 2022 Equity Incentive Plan for the withholding of shares to pay income taxes. These shares are 
repurchased pursuant to the terms of the 2022 Equity Incentive Plan and therefore are not part of the Company's repurchase 
program. 

NOTE 18-EARNINGSPERSHARE 

Basic earning per share ("EPS") represents income available to common shareholders divided by the weighted-average number of 
common shares outstanding dming the pe1iod. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other 
contracts to issue common shares (such as stock options) were exercised or converted into additional common shares that would then 
share in the earnings of the entity. Diluted EPS is computed by dividing net income attributable to common shareholders by the 
weighted-average number of common shares outstanding for the period, plus the effect of potential dilutive common share 
equivalents. 
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December 31, 2024 andl 2023 

Shares held by the ESOP not allocated to employees in accordance with the terms of the ESOP, referred to as "unallocated ESOP 
shares", are not deemed outstanding for eamings per share calculations. 

Net loss applicable to common shares 

Shares 

Average number of common shares outstanding 

Less: Average unallocated ESOP shares 

Average number of common shares outstandi11g used to calculate basic earnings per common 
share 

Common stock equivalents 

Average number of common shares outstanding used to calculate diluted earnings per common 
share 

Loss per common share 

Basic 

Diluted 

For the Year Ended December 3 1, 

2024 2023 

(Income I n thousands) 

$ (11,911) $ (7,397) 

23,439,653 

1,962,224 

21,477,429 

21,477,429 

25,979,126 

2,053,402 

23,925,724 

23,925,724 

$ 

$ 

(0.55) $ 

(0.55) $ 

(0.31) 

(0.3 1) 

Excluded from the earnings per share calculation are anti-dilutive equity awards for the years ended December 31, 2024 and :2023 
totaling I, 138,653 and 1 ,406,993, respectively. Due to the Company's net loss for the year ended December 31,2024 and 2023, the 
assumed vesting of outstanding restricted stock units had an antidilutive effect on diluted erurnings per share. 

NOTE 19- REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS 

Banks and bank holding companies are subject to regulatory capital requirements administered by federal banking agencies. 
Capital adequacy guidelines, and additionally for the Bank, prompt corrective action regulations, involve quantitative measures of 
assets, liabilities, and certain off balance sheet items calculated under regulatory accounting practices. Banking regulations require 
maintaining certain capital levels and may limit the dividends paid by the Bank to the Company. The Bank has not paid dividends 
to the Company in the past. Capital amounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgements by regulators. Failure to 
meet capital requirements can initiate regulatory action. The net unrealized gain or loss on available-for-sale securities is not 
included in computing regulatory capital. As of December 31, 2024, the Bank meets all capital adequacy requirements to which 
they are subject. 

Prompt corrective action regulations provide five classifications: well capitalized, adequately capitalized, undercapitalized, 
significantly undercapitalized, and critically undercapitalized, although these terms are not used to represent overall financial 
condition. If adequately capitalized, regulatory approval is required to accept brokered deposits. If undercapitalized, capital 
distributions are limited, as is asset growth and expansion, and capital restoration plans are required. At December 31, 2024 and 
2023, the most recent regulatory notifications categorized the Bank as we11 capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt 
corrective action. There are no conditions o r events since that notification that management believes have changed the institution's 
category. 
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The following table presents the regulatory capital, assets and risk based capital (common equity Tier I, Tier I and Total capital) 
ratios for the Bank at December 3 1, 2024 and 2023: 

December 31, 2024 

Common equity tier 1 

Tier 1 capital 

Total capital 

Tier 1 (leverage) capital 

December 31 , 2023 

Common equity tier 1 

Tier I capital 

Total capital 

Tier I (leverage) capital 

NOTE 20 - SEGMENT REPORTING 

Minimum Capital 
Adequacy With Capital For Classification as 

Bank Actual Minimum Capital Adequacy Buffer Well Capitalized 

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ra'lio 

(Dollars in thousands) 

$289,614 19.26% $ 67,673 4.50% $105,269 7.00%$ 97,749 6.50% 

289,614 19.26% 90,230 6.00% 127,826 8.50% 120,307 8.00% 

302,834 20.14% 120,307 8.00% 157,903 10.50% 150,384 10.00% 

289,614 13.98% 82,862 4.00% N/A N/A 103,577 5.00% 

$296,238 20.13%$ 66,2 19 4.50% $ 103,008 7.00%$ 95,650 6.50% 

296,238 20.13% 88,292 6.00% 125,081 8.50% 117,723 8.00% 

310,853 21.12% 117,723 8.00% 154,512 10.50% 147,154 10.00% 

296,238 14.3 1% 82,798 4.00% N/A N/A 103,497 5.00% 

We conduct our operations through a single business segment. Substantially all of our interest and fees on loans and long-lived 
assets relate to our operations. Pursuant to FASB ASC 280, Segment Reporting, operating segments represent components of an 
enterprise for which separate financial information is available that is regularly evaluated by the chief operating decision maker in 
determining how to allocate resources and in assessing performance. The chief operating decision maker uses a variety of measures 
to assess the performance of the business as a whole, depending on the nature of the activity. The Company generates revenue from 
several business channels. Those streams are organized by the types of partners we work with to reach our customers, with success 
principally measured based on interest and fees on loans, loan receivables, active accounts and other sales metrics. Detailed 
profitability information of the nature that could be used to allocate resources and assess the perf01mance and operations for each 
sales platform ind ividually, however, is not used by our chief operati ng decision maker. Expense activities, including funding 
costs, credit losses and operaUng expenses, are not measured for each platform but instead are managed for the Company as a 
whole. 
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The following table represents segment information for the years ended December 3 1, 2024 and 2023: 

Interest income: 

Loans 

Taxable investment income 

Non-taxable investment income 

Total interest income 

Interest expense: 

Deposits 

Borrowed funds 

Total interest expense 

Net interest income 

Release of credit losses 

Net interest income after release of credit losses 

Non-interest income: 

Fees and service charges 

Other income 

Total non-interest income 

Non-interest expense: 

Compensation and benefits 

Occupancy and equipment 

Data processing 

Other expense 

Total non-interest expense 

Loss before income tax expense 

Income tax expense 

Net loss 

Our segment assets represent our assets as presented on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 
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For Lhe Year Ended December 31 , 

2024 2023 

$ 70,185 $65,685 

15, 122 12,990 

144 430 

85,451 79,105 

36,830 24,116 

11 ,07 1 13,070 

47,90 1 37,186 

37,550 4 1,9 19 

( 1,350) (441) 

38,900 42,360 

1,203 1,164 

591 641 

1,794 1,805 

29,433 28,439 

8,878 8,3.50 

5,648 6,119 

8,646 8,6.54 

.52,605 51,5,62 

( 11 ,911) (7,397) 

$( 11 ,9 11) $ (7,397) 
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NOTE 21- CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PARENT COMPANY 

The condensed financial statements of Blue Foundry Bancorp (parent company only) are presented below: 

Condensed Balance Sheets 
December 3 I, 2024 December 3 1 , 2023 

Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Investment in banking subsidiary 

ESOP loan receivable 

Other investments 

Other assets 

Total Assets 

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity: 

Total liabilities 

Total stockholders' equity 

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity 

Condensed Statements of Comprehensive Loss 

Income: 

Interest on ESOP loan receivable 

Other income 

Total income 

Expenses: 

Other expenses 

Total expenses 

Loss before income tax benefit 

Income tax benefit 

Loss before undistributed earnings of subsidiary 

Equity in undistributed earnings of banking subsidiary 

Net loss 

Comprehensive loss: 

Net loss 

Other comprehensive income 

Comprehensive loss 
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(In thousands) 

$ 41,297 $ 61,358 

270,904 273,9 15 

19,932 20,588 

226 109 

446 476 

$332,805 $356,446 

$ 607 $ 806 

332,198 355,640 

$332,805 $356,446 

Year Ended December 3 1 , 

2024 2023 

( In lhousands) 

$ 669 $ 690 

23 

669 713 

3,411 3 .. 650 

3,411 3,650 

(2,742) (2.937) 

(183) 

(2,742) (2.754) 

(9, 169) (4,643) 

$(11,911) $(7 .. 397) 

$(11,911) $(7.397) 

3,926 1,839 

$ (7,985) $(5.558) 



BLUE FOUNDRY BANCORP 
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

December 31 , 2024 andl 2023 

Condensed Statements of Cash F lows 

Cash flows from operating activities: 

Net loss 

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiary 

ESOP and stock-based compensation expense 

Decrease in other assets 

Decrease in other liabilities 

Net cash used by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 

Purchase of other investments 

Repayment of ESOP loan 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities: 

Issuance of common stock 

Purchase of treasury stock 

Net cash used in financing activities 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

NOTE 22- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Year Ended 
December 31 , 

2024 2023 
(In thousands) 

$(11,911) $ (7.397) 

9,169 4,643 

1,327 1.241 

63 696 

(290) (918) 

(1,642) (1.735) 

(150) (30) 

656 635 

506 605 

498 

(19,423) (36.006) 

(18,925) (36.006) 

(20,061) (37.136) 

61,358 98,494 

$ 4 1,297 $ 61.358 

As defined in FASB ASC 855, "Subsequent Events", subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet 
date but before financial statements are issued or available to be issued. Financial statements are considered issued when they are 
widely distributed to stockholders and other financial statement users for general use and reliance in a form and format that 
complies with U.S. GAAP. The Company performed an evaluation and determined that there are no subsequent events to report. 
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL 
DISCLOSURES 

None. 

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures 

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Principal Executive Officer and Principal 
Financial Officer, we evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined 
in Rule 13a-l5(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based upon that 
evaluation, the Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by 
this report, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective. 

(b) Management's Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Repo1ting 

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, as such 
term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including 
our Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer, we evaluated the effectiveness of our internal control over 
financial reporting based on criteria established in " Internal Control -Integrated Framework (20 13)" issued by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on this assessment, management, including our Principal 
Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer, concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective and 
met the criteria of the "Internal Control- Integrated Framework (2013)" as of December 31, 2024. 

(c) Attestation Repo1t of the Registered Public Accounting Firm 

Not applicable because the Company is an emerging growth company. 

(d) Changes in Internal Controls 

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended December 3 1, 
2024 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. 

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION 

During the fourth quarter of 2024, none of our directors or officers adopted or terminated any contract, instruction or written 
plan for the purchase or sale of the Corporation's securities that was intended to satisfy the affirmative defense conditions of 
Rule 10b5-l(c) or any "non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement," as that term is used in SEC regulations. 

ITEM 9C. DISCLOSURE REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTION THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONS 

Not applicable. 
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PART ill 

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by ret:erence to the Proxy Statement for the Company's 2025 
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days of the Company's 
fiscal year end. 

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

The info rmation required by this item is incorporated herein by reference to the Proxy Statement for the Company's 2025 
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days of the Company's 
fiscal year end. 

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSIDP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNER AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED 
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by ret:erence to the Proxy Statement for the Company's 2025 
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days of the Company's 
fiscal year end. 

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans 

Set forth below is information as of December 31, 2024 regarding equity compensation plans categorized by those plans that 
have been approved by the Company's stockholders. There are no plans that have not been approved by the Company's 
stockholders. 

Plan 

2022 Equity Incentive Plan 

Total 

Number of Sec uri ties 
to be Issued Upon 

Exercise of 
Outstanding OJJLions Weighted Avcra~e 

and rights ( I ) Exercise Price (L) 

2,291 ,686 $1 I .57 

2,291,686 $11.57 

Number of Sec uri ties 
Remaining Available 
for Issuance Under 

Plan (3) 

739,386 

739,386 

( I) Consists ·Of outstanding stock options to purchase 2,291,686 shares of common stock granted under the Company's stock-based 
compensation plans. 

(2) The weighted average exercise price re flects: a weighted exercise price of $ 11 .64 for 2, 195,420 stock options granted in 2022 and a weighted 
exercise price of $9.95 for 96,266 stock options granted in 2024 under the Company's stock-based compensation plans. There were no g rants 
in 2023. 

(3) Represents the number of available shares that may be granted as stock options and other stock awards under the Company's stock-based 
compensation plans. 

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE 

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by ret:erence to the Proxy Statement for the Company's 2025 
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days of the Company's 
fiscal year end. 

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCO UNTING FEES AND SERVICES 

Our independent registered public accounting firm is KPMG LLP, New York, New Yo·rk, Auditor Firm ID: 185. 

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by refe rence to the Proxy Statement for the Company's 2025 
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days of the Company's 
fiscal year end. 
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PART IV 

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES 

The following exhibits are either filed as part of this report or are incorporated herein by reference: 

(a)(l) Financial Statements 

The following financial statements are included under Part U, Item 8 of this report: 

I. Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. 

2. Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition as of December 31, 2024 and 2023. 

3. Consolidated Statements of Operations for the Fiscal Years Ended December 31,2024 and 2023. 

4. Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss for the Fiscal Years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023. 

5. Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders' Equity for the Fiscal Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023. 

6. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Fiscal Years Ended December 3 1, 2024 and 2023. 

7. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 

(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules 

No financial statement schedules are filed because the required information is not applicable or is included in the 
consolidated financial statements or related notes. 

(a)(3) Exhibits 

3.1 Amended and Restated Ce11ificate of Incorporation of Blue Foundry Bancorp (Incorporated by reference to the 
Registrant' s Annual Report on Form 10-K dated December 31,2023 (File No. 001-40619)) 

3.2 Bylaws of Blue Foundry Bancorp ([ncorporated by reference to the Registrant' s Registration Statement on Form S-1 
(File No. 333-254079) 

4 Form of Common Stock Certificate of Blue Foundry Bancorp (Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's 
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-254079) 

4.2 Description of Blue Foundry Bancorp's Securities (Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Annual Report on 
Form 10-K dated December 31,2021 (File No. 001-40619) 

I 0.1 Employment agreement between Blue Foundry Bank and James Nesci (Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's 
Annual Report on Form 10-K dated December 31,2022 (File No. 001-40619) 

10.2 Blue Foundry Bank Executive Deferred Compensation Agreement for James Nesci (Incorporated by reference to the 
Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K dated December 31,2022 (File No. 001-40619) 

I 0.3 Change in Control Agreement between Blue Foundry Bank and Kelly Anne Pecoraro (Incorporated by reference to the 
Registrant's Annual Report on Form I 0-K dated December 31, 2022 (File No. 00 1-40619) 

10.4 Blue Foundry Bank Restated Director Retirement Plan for Kenneth Grimbilas (Incorporated by reference to the 
Registrant' s Annual Report on Form 10-K dated December 31 , 2022 (File No. 001-40619) 

I 0.5 Amendment to the Blue Foundry Bank Restated Director Retirement Plan for Kenneth Grimbilas (Incorporated by 
reference to th~ Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K dated December 31, 2022 (File No. 00 1-40619) 

10.6 B lue Foundry Bank Restated Director Retirement Plan for J. Christopher Ely (Incorporated by reference to the 
Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K dated December 31,2022 (File No. 001-40619) 

I 0.7 Amendment to the Blue Foundry Bank Restated Director Retirement Plan for J. Christopher Ely (Incorporated by 
reference to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form I 0-K dated December 31, 2022 (File No. 00 1-40619) 

10.8 Blue Foundry Bank Director Retirement Plan II (Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Annual Report on 
Form 10-K dated December 31,2022 (File No. 001-40619) 
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10.9 

10.10 

19 

21 

23. 1 

31.1 

31.2 

32. 1 

97 

101 

104 

Amendment to the Blue Foundry Bank Director Retirement Plan II (Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's 
Annual Report on form I 0-K dated December 31 , 2022 (File No. 00 1-40619) 

Blue Foundry Bancorp 2022 Equity Incentive Plan (Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the Proxy Statement 
for the 2022 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (File No. 001-40619)) 

Insider Trading Policy 

S ubsidiaries of B lue Foundry Bancorp 

Consent of KPMG LLP (Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm) 

Certification of Principal Executive O fficer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 

Certification of Principal Executive Officer and P1incipal Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes­
Oxley Act of 2002 

Clawback Policy ([ncorporated by reference to the Registrant's Annual Report on Fonn 10-K dated December 31, 2023 
(File No. 001-40619)) 

Tihe following materials from the Company's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024, formatted in lnline 
XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language): (i) the Consolidated Statements of Operations, (ii) the Consolidated 
Statements of Financial Condition; (iii) the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income, (iv) the Consolidated 
Statements of Shareholder's Equity, (v) the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and (vi) the Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 

Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as In line XBRL and contained in Exhibit I 0 I) 

ITEM 16. FORM 10-K SUMMARY 

Not applicable. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this 
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 

Dated: March 27, 2025 

BLUE FOUNDRY BANCORP 

By: Is/ James D. Nesci 

James D. Nesci 
Chief Executive Offi.cer 
(Principal Executive Officer) 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on 
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated 

By: 

Dated: 

By: 

Dated: 

By: 

Dated: 

By: 

Dated: 

By: 

Dated: 

106 

/s/ James D. Nesci 

James D. Nesci 
Chief Executive Officer 
(Principal Executive Officer) 
March 27, 2025 

lsi Patrick H. Kinzler 

Patrick H. Kinzler, Director 
March 27, 2025 

lsi Robert T. Goldstein 

Robe1t T. Goldstein, Director 
March 27, 2025 

/s/ Jonathan M. Shaw 

Jonathan M. Shaw, Director 
March 27, 2025 

/s/ Mirella Lana 

Mirella Lang, Director 
March 27, 2025 

By: 

Dated: 

By: 

Dated: 

By: 

Dated: 

By: 

Dated: 

By: 

Dated: 

Is/ Kelly Pecoraro 

Kelly Pecoraro 
Chief Financial Officer 
(Principal Financial Officer) 
March 27,2025 

/s/ J. Christopher Ely 

J. Christopher Ely, Director 
March 27,2025 

/s/ Kenneth Grimbilas 

Kenneth Grimbilas, Director 
March 27, 2025 

/s/ John F. Kuntz, Esq. 

John F. Kuntz, Esq., Director 
March 27, 2025 

Is/ Elizabeth Varki Jobes, Esg. 

Elizabeth Yarki Jobes, Esq., Director 
March 27,2025 
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Board of Directors 

James D. Nesci 
PRESIDENT & 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

Kenneth Grimbilas 
CHAIRMAN 

J. Christopher Ely 
VICE CHAIRMAN 

Executive Management 

James D. Nesci 
PRESIDENT & 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

Kelly Pecoraro 
EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT & 
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

Elyse D. Seidner 
EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT & 
CHIEF LEGAL OFFICER 

Alex Malkiman 
EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT & 
CHIEF TECHNOLOGY OFFICER 

Investor Contacts 

Transfer Agent 
Continental Stock Transfer & Trust 

1 State Street, 30th Floor 
New York, NY 10004-1561 

212-509-4000 
cstmail@contine ntalstock.com 

Corporate Counsel 
Luse Gorman, PC 

5335 Wisconsin Avenue, NW 
Suite 780 
Washington, DC 20015 

Robert T. Goldstein 

Elizabeth V. Jobes 

Patrick H. Kinzler 

Mirella Lang 

John F. Kuntz 

Jonathan M. Shaw 

Thomas Packwood 
SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT & 
CHIEF AUDIT EXECUTIVE 

Acela Roselle 
EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT & 

HUMAN RESOURCES DIRECTOR 

Keith Owes 
EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT & 

CHIEF RISK OFFICER 

Investor Relations 
Elyse Seidner, Investor Relations 

MSC 269744 
PO Box 105168 
Atlanta, GA 30348-5168 

888-931-BLUE 
lnvestorRelations@bluefoundrybank.com 
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